
 
 
PLANNING COMMITTEE  Contact:  Jane Creer / Kasey Knight 

Committee Administrator 
  Direct : 020-8379- 4093 / 4073 
Wednesday, 16th February, 2011 at 7.30 pm  Tel: 020-8379-1000 

 Ext:  4093 / 4073 
 Fax: 020-8379-4172 
 Textphone: 020 8379 4419 
 E-mail:  jane.creer@enfield.gov.uk 

             kasey.knight@enfield.gov.uk 

Venue:  Conference Room 
The Civic Centre, Silver Street, 
Enfield, Middlesex, EN1 3XA 

 Council website: www.enfield.gov.uk 

 
 
MEMBERS 
Councillors : Andreas Constantinides (Chairman), Toby Simon (Vice-Chairman), 
Kate Anolue, Ali Bakir, Yusuf Cicek, Don Delman, Ahmet Hasan, Ertan Hurer, 
Nneka Keazor, Dino Lemonides, Paul McCannah, Anne-Marie Pearce, 
Martin Prescott, George Savva MBE and Tom Waterhouse 
 

 
N.B. Any member of the public interested in attending the meeting 

should ensure that they arrive promptly at 7.15pm. 
 

Involved parties may request to make a deputation to the Committee by 
contacting the committee administrator before 12:00pm on 15/02/11. 

 
 

AGENDA – PART 1 
 
1. WELCOME AND LEGAL STATEMENT   
 
2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
3. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  (Pages 1 - 2) 
 
 Members of the Planning Committee are invited to identify any personal or 

prejudicial interests relevant to items on the agenda. Please refer to the 
guidance note attached to the agenda.  
 

4. MINUTES OF PLANNING COMMITTEE 25 JANUARY 2011  (Pages 3 - 14) 
 
 To receive the minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held on Tuesday 

25 January 2011. 
CIRCULATED UNDER SEPARATE COVER 

 

Public Document Pack



5. REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, PLANNING AND 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION  (REPORT NO. 187)  (Pages 15 - 16) 

 
 To receive the covering report of the Assistant Director, Planning and 

Environmental Protection. 
 
5.1 Applications dealt with under delegated powers. 
 (A copy is available in the Members’ Library.) 
 

6. LBE/10/0031  -  HONILANDS PRIMARY SCHOOL, LOVELL ROAD, 
ENFIELD, EN1 4RE  (Pages 17 - 36) 

 
 RECOMMENDATION:  Approval subject to conditions 

WARD:  Turkey Street 
 

7. LBE/10/0037  -  HIGHMEAD ESTATE, FORE STREET & CAR PARK 
TRAFALGAR PLACE, LONDON, N18 2SL  (Pages 37 - 72) 

 
 RECOMMENDATION:  Approval subject to conditions and S106 Agreement 

WARD:  Upper Edmonton 
 

8. LBE/10/0039  -  MERRYHILLS PRIMARY SCHOOL, BINCOTE ROAD, 
ENFIELD, EN2 7RE  (Pages 73 - 80) 

 
 RECOMMENDATION:  Approval subject to conditions 

WARD:  Highlands 
 

9. TP/10/0473  -  1, CRESCENT ROAD AND 33, WAVERLEY ROAD, 
ENFIELD, EN2 7BN  (Pages 81 - 96) 

 
 RECOMMENDATION:  Approval subject to S106 completion 

WARD:  Grange 
 

10. TP/10/0601/MM1  -  MAIN BUILDING, ST MICHAELS C OF E PRIMARY 
SCHOOL, BRIGADIER HILL, ENFIELD, EN2 0NB  (Pages 97 - 104) 

 
 RECOMMENDATION:  Approval subject to conditions 

WARD:  Chase 
 

11. TP/10/0880  -  WATER TOWER, 405, THE RIDGEWAY, ENFIELD, EN6 
5QT  (Pages 105 - 112) 

 
 RECOMMENDATION:  Approval subject to conditions 

WARD:  Chase 
 

12. TP/10/1392  -  ENFIELD COLLEGE, 73, HERTFORD ROAD, ENFIELD, 
EN3 5HA  (Pages 113 - 128) 

 
 RECOMMENDATION:  Approval subject to conditions 

WARD:  Enfield Highway 



 
13. TP/10/1424  -  CHASE SIDE WORKS, CHELMSFORD ROAD, LONDON, 

N14 4JN  (Pages 129 - 158) 
 
 RECOMMENDATION:  Approval subject to conditions and S106 Agreement 

WARD:  Southgate 
 

14. TP/10/1477  -  88 AND 90, HOPPERS ROAD, LONDON, N21 3LH  (Pages 
159 - 170) 

 
 RECOMMENDATION:  Approval subject to conditions 

WARD:  Winchmore Hill 
 

15. TP/10/1725  -  173, GREEN LANES, LONDON, N13 4UR  (Pages 171 - 180) 
 
 RECOMMENDATION:  Approval subject to conditions 

WARD:  Palmers Green 
 

16. TP/11/0026  -  GALLIARD PRIMARY SCHOOL, GALLIARD ROAD, 
LONDON, N9 7PE  (Pages 181 - 186) 

 
 RECOMMENDATION:  Approval subject to conditions 

WARD:  Jubilee 
 

17. TP/11/0028  -  GALLIARD PRIMARY SCHOOL, GALLIARD ROAD, 
LONDON, N9 7PE  (Pages 187 - 194) 

 
 RECOMMENDATION:  Approval subject to conditions 

WARD:  Jubilee 
 

18. APPEAL INFORMATION  (Pages 195 - 196) 
 
 Monthly decisions on Town Planning Application Appeals. 

 
19. SECTION 106 AGREEMENTS - MONITORING INFORMATION  (REPORT 

NO. 188)  (Pages 197 - 226) 
 
 To receive the report of the Assistant Director (Place Shaping) to provide an 

update on the monitoring of Section 106 Agreements (S106) for information. 
 

20. PROTOCOL FOR CABINET MEMBER FOR REGENERATION AND 
IMPROVING LOCALITIES TO ATTEND PLANNING COMMITTEE  
(REPORT NO. 189)  (Pages 227 - 230) 

 
 To receive the report of the Director of Finance and Corporate Resources to 

seek the agreement of Members to the draft protocol for the Cabinet Member 
for Regeneration and Improving Localities to attend Planning Committee in 
his capacity as a Cabinet Member. 
 



21. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 
 If necessary, to consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the 

Local Government Act 1972 excluding the press and public from the meeting 
for any items of business moved to part 2 of the agenda on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in those 
paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act (as amended by the Local 
Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006).  
(There is no part 2 agenda) 
 

 
 
 



 

 

 

Note: If in any doubt about a potential interest, members are asked to seek advice from Democratic Services in advance of the 
meeting. 
 

YES 

NO 

NO 

YES 

NO 

DECLARING INTERESTS FLOWCHART - QUESTIONS TO ASK YOURSELF 
 
 

What matters are being 
discussed at the meeting? 

Do any relate to my interests whether 
already registered or not? 

Is a particular matter close to me? 
Does it affect: 
� me or my partner; 
� my relatives or their partners; 
� my friends or close associates; 
� either me, my family or close associates: 

• job and business; 

• employers, firms you or they are a partner of and companies 
you or they are a Director of 

• or them to any position; 

• corporate bodies in which you or they have a shareholding of 
more than £25,000 (nominal value); 

� my entries in the register of interests 
more than it would affect the majority of people in the ward affected by the 
decision, or in the authority’s area or constituency? 

P
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
in

te
re

s
t 

You can participate 
in the meeting and 
vote 

Does the matter affect your financial position or the 
financial position of any person or body through 
whom you have a personal interest? 
Does the matter relate to an approval, consent, 
license, permission or registration that affects you or 
any person or body with which you have a personal 
interest? 
Would a member of the public (knowing the relevant 
facts) reasonably think that your personal interest 
was so significant that it would prejudice your 
judgement of public interest? 

P
re

ju
d

ic
ia

l 
in

te
re

s
t 

NO 

YES 

YES 

You may have a 
personal interest 

Do the public have speaking rights at the meeting?  
 

You should declare the interest and 
withdraw from the meeting by leaving 
the room.  You cannot speak or vote 
on the matter and must not seek to 
improperly influence the decision. 

You should declare the interest but can remain 
in the meeting to speak.  Once you have 
finished speaking (or the meeting decides you 
have finished - if earlier) you must withdraw from 
the meeting by leaving the room.   

YES 

You may have a 
prejudicial interest 

Declare your personal interest in the matter.  You can 
remain in meeting, speak and vote unless the interest is 
also prejudicial; or 
If your interest arises solely from your membership of, 
or position of control or management on any other 
public body or body to which you were nominated by 
the authority e.g. Governing Body, ALMO, you only 
need declare your personal interest if and when you 
speak on the matter, again providing it is not prejudicial. 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



Page 2

This page is intentionally left blank



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 25.1.2011 

 

- 598 - 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 
HELD ON TUESDAY, 25 JANUARY 2011 

 
COUNCILLORS  
 
PRESENT Andreas Constantinides, Toby Simon, Kate Anolue, Yusuf 

Cicek, Dogan Delman, Ahmet Hasan, Ertan Hurer, Nneka 
Keazor, Dino Lemonides, Paul McCannah, Terence Neville 
OBE JP, Anne-Marie Pearce, Martin Prescott and George 
Savva MBE 

 
ABSENT Ali Bakir 

 
OFFICERS: Linda Dalton (Legal Services), Debbie Addison (Legal 

Services), Andy Higham (Planning Decisions Manager), Steve 
Jaggard (Environment & Street Scene) and Aled Richards 
(Head of Development Management) Jane Creer (Secretary) 
and Kasey Knight (Secretary) 

  
 
Also Attending: Approximately 25 members of the public, applicants, agents 

and their representatives. 
Dennis Stacey, Chairman of Conservation Advisory Group. 
Councillor Alan Sitkin. 
Dr Eliot Finer, Independent Member of Standards Committee. 

 
690   
LONDON PLANNING AWARDS  
 
NOTED the Committee recorded their congratulations to the Planning 
Department and Sharon Davidson (Principal Planning Officer) in particular, on 
winning the Best Built Project award at this year’s London Planning Awards 
for Enfield Town Library, and it was suggested that Sharon Davidson be 
invited to full Council meeting. 
 
691   
WELCOME AND LEGAL STATEMENT  
 
The Chairman welcomed attendees to the Planning Committee, and 
introduced Linda Dalton, Legal representative, who read a statement 
regarding the order and conduct of the meeting. 
 
692   
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Bakir and from Bob 
Griffiths (Assistant Director, Planning & Environmental Protection). 
 
693   
DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  

Agenda Item 4Page 3



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 25.1.2011 

 

- 599 - 

 
NOTED 
 
1.  Councillor Simon declared a personal interest in application TP/10/1335 – 
10, Saville Row, Enfield, as he had advised residents of Planning Committee 
procedures. 
 
2.  Councillor Neville declared a personal interest in application TP/10/1278 – 
46, Cranleigh Gardens, London as he had requested that it be considered by 
the Planning Committee after having been contacted by the adjacent property 
owner. 
 
694   
MINUTES OF PLANNING COMMITTEE 16 DECEMBER 2010  
 
NOTED the amendment to Minute 620 requested by the Planning Decisions 
Manager and the amendment to Minute 619 requested by Councillor Neville 
with the agreement of Councillor Simon. 
 
AGREED the minutes of the meeting held on Thursday 16 December 2010 as 
a correct record, subject to the amendments as above. 
 
695   
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, PLANNING AND 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION  (REPORT NO. 170)  
 
RECEIVED the report of the Assistant Director, Planning and Environmental 
Protection (Report No. 170). 
 
696   
ORDER OF AGENDA  
 
AGREED that the order of the agenda be varied to accommodate the 
members of the public in attendance at the meeting. The minutes follow the 
order of the meeting. 
 
697   
LBC/10/0035  -  BOWES PRIMARY SCHOOL, BOWES ROAD, LONDON, 
N11 2HL  
 
NOTED 
 
1.  The two applications in respect of Bowes Primary School would be 
discussed together. 
 
2.  In respect of application LBC/10/0035, a letter had been received from 
English Heritage raising no objection. 
 

Page 4



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 25.1.2011 

 

- 600 - 

3.  In respect of application LBE/10/0035, a letter of support had been 
received from Councillor Yasemin Brett, Bowes Ward Councillor and 
longstanding governor of Bowes School, read in full to the Committee. 
 
4.  The deputation of Mr Steven Williams, neighbouring resident of Stanley 
Road, including the following points: 
a.  The original proposals had minimal impact on neighbouring properties, but 
the additional parking restrictions in this application would have a substantial 
effect, and residents had not been consulted. 
b.  Nine households would no longer be able to park outside their homes in 
Stanley Road, and 209 Bowes Road would also be affected. It was already 
difficult to find a parking space in the vicinity and property values would fall. 
c.  Concerns about the look of bricked off garages alongside 209 Bowes 
Road. 
d.  The tree which shielded his view from the North Circular Road would be 
removed. 
 
5.  The statement of Councillor Alan Sitkin, Bowes Ward Councillor, including 
the following points: 
a.  He was also speaking on behalf of the school, and he supported the points 
made by Councillor Brett. 
b.  Bowes Primary School children had disproportionately few amenities and 
any measure to give them access to more playground space should be taken. 
c.  Further distancing of the children from the traffic and fumes was welcome. 
d.  He understood local residents had concerns regarding child noise, but 
considered traffic noise had a greater effect. 
 
6.  The advice of the Traffic and Transportation officer in respect of the 
extension of parking restrictions into Stanley Road, and confirmation that 
there was likely to be an additional loss of around six parking spaces in a 
heavily parked road, but on balance this was felt to be outweighed by the 
benefits of the scheme. 
 
7.  The advice of the Planning Decisions Manager in respect of the Notting Hill 
Housing Trust owned property at 209 Bowes Road. 
 
8.  Members’ support for tree planting within the new playground to replace 
lost street trees, and for the benefits of the scheme to the school children. 
 
9.  Members’ unanimous support in favour of the officers’ recommendations. 
 
AGREED that following the expiration of the consultation period and subject to 
the application being referred to the Secretary of State for Communities and 
Local Government and no objection being raised, planning permission be 
deemed to be granted in accordance with Regulation 4 of the Town & Country 
Planning (General) Regulations 1992, subject to the conditions set out in the 
report, for the reason set out in the report. 
 
698   

Page 5



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 25.1.2011 

 

- 601 - 

LBE/10/0035  -  BOWES PRIMARY SCHOOL, BOWES ROAD, LONDON, 
N11 2HL  
 
NOTED that the application was discussed in conjunction with application 
LBC/10/0035 and noted in Minute 697 above. 
 
AGREED that in accordance with Regulation 3 of the Town and Country 
Planning Regulations 1992, planning permission be deemed to be granted 
subject to the conditions set out in the report and additional condition below, 
for the reason set out in the report. 
 
Additional Condition 
 
No development shall take place until details of a scheme to introduce waiting 
restrictions around the turning head have been submitted to and approved by 
the Local Planning Authority: the approved details to be implemented in 
accordance with an agreed timescale. 
Reason:  To ensure the turning head remains unobstructed and available for 
use in the interests of highway safety. 
 
699   
CAC/10/0008  -  THE COTTAGE, 17, GAMES ROAD, BARNET, EN4 9HN  
 
NOTED 
 
1.  The two applications in respect of the site were discussed together, but 
voted on separately. 
 
2.  Two adjoining residents had written to advise that, notwithstanding their 
objections to the massing and scale of the development, the increasing 
gentrification of the area and inadequate provision of car parking, they had 
met with the developer and would be prepared to waive their objections if 
matters which they had agreed with the developer could be secured through 
planning condition. 
 
3.  Confirmation of the Planning Decisions Manager that further conditions 
would be added in consultation with local residents to cover the points raised. 
 
4.  The deputation of Mrs Margaret Redman on behalf of Monken Hadley 
Conservation Advisory Committee, including the following points: 
a.  This application was changed very little from the previous one. 
b.  The property fitted well into the area, together with the cottages opposite, 
on one of the oldest roads in England. 
c.  This development would be too big for the site, its height and depth would 
be detrimental to other properties, and there were concerns about how long 
the features would remain as fitted. 
d.  There would be a loss of garden space and trees which made the area 
delightful. 
e.  The Planning Inspector appeared to ignore the views of local residents and 
the developer had done nothing to lower the scheme’s height and bulk. 

Page 6



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 25.1.2011 

 

- 602 - 

 
5.  The deputation of Mr Philip Redman on behalf of Chalk Lane Area 
Residents Association, including the following points: 
a.  They objected to the demolition of the property and replacement with a 
vast bulky building 2.5 times greater in footprint. 
b.  There may be 16 people living in the development and potentially at least 
16 vehicles and visitors’ cars. Parking provision would be inadequate, there 
was no parking availability in Games Road and the extra traffic would result in 
blockages and pollution. 
c.  The single exit/entrance was a potential hazard for emergency vehicles. 
 
6.  The response of Mr Colin Bull, neighbouring resident of Fairgreen East, 
including the following points: 
a.  He was speaking on behalf of residents of nos. 14, 16 and 18 Fairgreen 
East and no. 1 Games Road; the four properties that had boundaries with the 
development site. 
b.  They had concerns regarding the scale, parking provision and effect on 
visual amenities and views, but recognised the Planning Inspector’s 
conclusions. 
c.  If approval was granted, he would want the plan agreed by residents and 
Banner Homes to be implemented and the suggested conditions to be 
followed through on, including screening by evergreens and not permitting 
floodlighting at the rear. 
 
7.  The response of Mr Neil Cottrell, Planning Manager, Banner Homes Ltd, 
including the following points: 
a.  He confirmed there had been very positive discussions with Mr Bull and 
the other neighbours and Banner Homes had no objections to their requests. 
b.  The appeals were dismissed on the unacceptable effect of the coach-
house on 18 Fairgreen East. The Planning Inspector fully accepted the 
principle of demolition and replacement of the property. 
c.  The design and setting of the coach-house had been amended, and the 
development would preserve the character of the conservation area. 
d.  There was satisfactory parking provision and the proposals were 
acceptable from a highways viewpoint. 
 
8.  The Planning Decisions Manager’s assurance that conditions would cover 
refuse storage and tree protection and consultation with local residents would 
take place in respect of the landscaping and external lighting. 
 
9.  The statement of Mr Dennis Stacey, Chairman of the Conservation 
Advisory Group (CAG) advising that the group had considered the site on a 
number of occasions and consistently advised that the side and rear 
elevations were too big. Though not locally listed, this was a charming 
building, appropriate in scale and setting in the area. The proposal would be 
out of keeping and should be rejected. 
 
10.  Members’ discussion commending the developer and neighbouring 
residents for working constructively together, and recognising the principles 
established by the Planning Inspector’s report. 

Page 7



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 25.1.2011 

 

- 603 - 

 
11.  Officers’ confirmation that the emergency service access, the extra traffic 
generation, and the density were considered satisfactory, and distance from 
the electricity substation was sufficient. 
 
12.  Councillor Simon’s request for additional detail to break up the expanse of 
blank wall. 
 
13.  Councillor Delman’s continuing concerns that the new proposal was only 
marginally different, would not enhance the conservation area and that the 
Council had strong grounds for rejecting this application. 
 
14.  The support of the majority of the Committee for the officers’ 
recommendation; 10 votes for and 3 votes against. 
 
AGREED that Conservation Area Consent be granted, subject to the 
conditions set out in the report, for the reasons set out in the report. 
 
700   
TP/10/0977  -  THE COTTAGE, 17, GAMES ROAD, BARNET, EN4 9HN  
 
NOTED 
 
1.  The application was discussed in conjunction with the associated 
application CAC/09/0015 and noted in Minute 699 above. 
 
2.  The support of the majority of the Committee for the officers’ 
recommendation, with amended and additional conditions; 10 votes for and 2 
votes against with 1 abstention. 
 
AGREED that planning permission be granted, subject to the conditions set 
out in the report and additional conditions below, for the reasons set out in the 
report. 
 
Amended Conditions 
 
Condition 1 The development shall not commence until details of amended 
flank elevations to incorporate improved detailing and the external finishing 
materials to be used in the scheme have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be constructed 
in accordance with the approved details. 
Reason:  To ensure a satisfactory external appearance. 
 
Condition 11 Notwithstanding the details shown on drawing number BAN 
16934 09, the development shall not commence until details of trees, shrubs 
and grass to be planted on the site have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The planting scheme shall incorporate 
evergreens (for immediate screening) and indigenous species and shall be 
carried out in accordance with the approved details in the first planting season 
after completion or occupation of the development whichever is the sooner. 

Page 8



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 25.1.2011 

 

- 604 - 

Any planting which dies, becomes severely damaged or diseased within five 
years of planting shall be replaced with new planting in accordance with the 
approved details. 
Reason:  To provide a satisfactory appearance and ensure that the 
development does not prejudice highway safety. 
 
Additional Conditions 
 
Condition 19 The development shall not commence until details of any 
external lighting proposed have been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. The approved external lighting shall be provided 
before the development is occupied. 
Reason:  To ensure that the development does not prejudice the amenities of 
adjoining occupiers and / or the visual amenities of the surrounding area. 
 
701   
TP/10/1547  -  6, BOURNE HILL, LONDON, N13 4LG  
 
NOTED 
 
1.  Receipt of an additional consultation response from Environmental Health 
advising they had no objection. 
 
2.  The deputation of Mr David Cooper, the agent, including the following 
points: 
a.  The description in the report incorrectly described the premises as a petrol 
filling station, which had not been the case for at least three years. 
b.  As part of the 2007 planning permission, a S106 Agreement was entered 
into and £23,000 paid to provide a pedestrian cross-over and road markings 
considered imperative at the time. This money had not been spent, the 
Council had failed to meet its part of the undertaking and it was wrong for this 
application to be resisted on highways grounds. 
c.  The business had functioned successfully during its period of operation; it 
managed a sequential flow of vehicles through the bays and there had been 
no accidents or road blockage. Members were welcome to visit and see the 
operation. 
d.  Noise levels had been checked by Environmental Health who confirmed 
there was no problem. 
e.  The applicant would provide barriers to restrict access when the site was 
full, and an electronic board could be installed if necessary. 
 
3.  The response of Mr Denis Mayer, local resident, including the following 
points: 
a.  There were outstanding issues regarding land ownership and boundaries. 
b.  The kiosk, garage and storage had gone and the site looked ugly in what 
was a beautiful residential area. 
c.  From his garden, the hoovers and power washers could be heard 
operating non-stop, and spray came over the walls. 
 

Page 9



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 25.1.2011 

 

- 605 - 

4.  The response of Ms Pauline Monaghan, local resident, including the 
following points: 
a.  Every morning when she walked by she was unable to pass this site easily 
because of the number of cars there and she had to wait for them to move. 
b.  Soaping and pressure hosing spray went over the pavement and operators 
had to stop the hoses to let people pass. 
c.  Drying of cars took place on the pavement area because of the restricted 
space. 
 
5.  Members’ concern in respect of the unspent S106 monies and advice of 
the Traffic & Transportation officer regarding an ongoing review of traffic 
issues in the wider area and that the Council had not wanted to bring the 
S106 scheme forward in isolation before this review was concluded. 
 
6.  Members’ discussion regarding the business operation, ways of mitigating 
effects on local residents, traffic conditions in the area, and suggestions that 
the application may offer some improvement on the current situation. 
 
7.  Planning officers’ advice, if Members were minded to approve the 
application, regarding conditions, which could be delegated to officers for 
rewording to take into account the residents’ concerns. Officers agreed to 
amend conditions appropriately to deal with water spillage and noise. 
 
8.  Planning officers’ confirmation that Environmental Health had raised no 
objection and the Public Health Team had received allegations but none were 
substantiated, and advice in respect of boundary walls. 
 
9.  The proposal that planning permission be approved, with reworded 
conditions, supported by a majority of the Committee, 9 votes for and 5 votes 
against. 
 
10.  Councillor Neville’s request that concern regarding the S106 Agreement 
be referred to the appropriate Cabinet Member. 
 
AGREED that planning permission be granted, subject to conditions 
delegated to Officers. 
 
702   
TP/10/1278  -  46, CRANLEIGH GARDENS, LONDON, N21 1DS  
 
NOTED 
 
1.  In response to Members’ queries, the Head of Development 
Management’s advice regarding inspections of building works, and 
confirmation that in this instance the visit was made by an approved inspector 
rather than a Council Building Control officer, and that approved inspectors 
were self regulated. 
 
2.  Members’ discussion, expressing disappointment that the application was 
retrospective, comments that it was in keeping with the street scene, but 

Page 10



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 25.1.2011 

 

- 606 - 

concerns regarding the impact on the adjacent property, and officers’ advice 
regarding determination of this application, and on forthcoming legislation and 
the Localism Bill. 
 
3.  The support of the majority of the Committee for the officers’ 
recommendation; 9 votes in favour, 2 against with 2 abstentions. 
 
AGREED that planning permission be granted, subject to the conditions set 
out in the report, for the reason set out in the report. 
 
703   
TP/10/1335  -  10, SAVILLE ROW, ENFIELD, EN3 7LD  
 
NOTED that Members had made a very useful site visit on 8/1/11, and hoped 
that neighbours would be able to work together to enable the development to 
be built with minimum disruption. 
 
AGREED that planning permission be granted, subject to the conditions set 
out in the report, for the reasons set out in the report. 
 
704   
TP/07/1234/REN1  -  COMMERCIAL PREMISES, 5, PICKETTS LOCK 
LANE, LONDON, N9 0AS  
 
NOTED 
 
1.  Confirmation that Lea Valley Regional Park Authority had no objection in 
principle but wished to be consulted on details regarding highway alterations. 
 
2.  In response to Members’ queries, confirmation of the Traffic and 
Transportation officer that the service yard should accommodate turnover of 
vehicles on site and he was satisfied there should not be undue problems with 
HGVs parking or waiting. Condition 5 covered traffic management and 
required an approved travel plan and management plan. 
 
3.  In response to queries regarding materials to be processed, the Planning 
Decisions Manager’s advice on the de-manufacturing proposed and that 
Condition 7 ensured that all storage and processing must be carried out inside 
the building, and that before the operation started a waste licence must be 
obtained from the Environment Agency which would ensure that appropriate 
processes were in place. 
 
AGREED that planning permission be granted, subject to the conditions set 
out in the report, for the reasons set out in the report. 
 
705   
TP/10/0911  -  33, LONDON ROAD, ENFIELD, EN2 6DR  
 
NOTED 
 

Page 11



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 25.1.2011 

 

- 607 - 

1.  An amendment to Condition 16 to remove the reference to guard railings, 
in the interest of street furniture de-cluttering. 
 
2.  Councillor Neville’s reservations about the hotel operation and lack of 
catering provision, and the loss of potential office jobs. 
 
3.  The advice of the Head of Development Management that this would be a 
typical budget hotel, many of which did not provide restaurant facilities. That 
people would not be catered for would be good for the businesses of Enfield 
Town and there was a recognised shortage of hotel accommodation in the 
borough. 
 
4.  In response to discussion regarding possible use of the hotel as a hostel 
which was felt inappropriate for this location, agreement to a new condition 
controlling use. 
 
5.  The support of the majority of the Committee for the officers’ 
recommendation; 12 votes for and 1 against. 
 
AGREED that planning permission be granted, subject to the conditions set 
out in the report, and amended condition and additional condition below, for 
the reasons set out in the report. 
 
Amended Condition 
 
Condition 16 The development authorised by this permission shall not 
commence until the applicant has entered into a Section 278 agreement 
under the Highways Act 1980 with the Council (as local planning authority and 
local highway authority) to secure the provision of a pick up / drop off lay-by to 
serve the development in accordance with a location and a scheme to be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Thereafter the defined Section 278 works shall be completed to the 
satisfaction of the local highway authority prior to occupation of the 
development, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
Reason:  To ensure that the development does not prejudice the free flow and 
safety of vehicular and pedestrian traffic on the adjoining highways. 
 
Additional Condition 
 
The hotel element of the development hereby approved shall be occupied 
solely as a hotel within Use Class D2 of the Town and Country Planning (Use 
Classes) Order 1987 (as amended) and shall not be used for any other 
purpose whatsoever. 
Reason:  In order to ensure the use of the hotel element remains appropriate 
to its town centre location and supports the vitality and viability of the town 
centre. 
 
706   

Page 12



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 25.1.2011 

 

- 608 - 

LBE/10/0033  -  CRAIG PARK YOUTH CENTRE, LAWRENCE ROAD, 
LONDON, N18 2HN  
 
AGREED that in accordance with Regulation 3 of the Town and Country 
Planning (General) Regulations 1992, planning permission be deemed to be 
granted, subject to the conditions set out in the report, for the reasons set out 
in the report. 
 
707   
TP/10/1424  -  CHASE SIDE WORKS, CHELMSFORD ROAD, LONDON, 
N14 4JN  
 
NOTED 
 
1.  Receipt of two additional letters of objection from neighbours, listing 
concerns including inadequate separation from existing properties, does not 
meet distancing standards, excessive height, balconies affecting privacy, 
overbearing, out of keeping in the street scene, inadequate parking provision, 
and poor design. 
 
2.  Receipt of an objection from Councillor Bambos Charalambous, Palmers 
Green Ward Councillor, raising concerns including insufficient distancing, the 
height and mass represented overdevelopment, not in keeping with the area, 
loss of privacy, and pressure on local public services. 
 
3.  Members’ discussion in respect of the impact on parking. 
 
4.  Councillor Delman’s proposal, seconded by Councillor Prescott, that the 
decision be deferred to give Members the opportunity to make a site visit to 
assess parking, amenity space, bulk and size, and impact on neighbouring 
properties, supported by a majority of the Committee; 7 votes for and 6 
against with 1 abstention. 
 
AGREED that consideration of the application be deferred to allow Members 
to make a site visit. 
 
Reason:  In order to enable Members to review the relationship / scale of the 
development to neighbouring properties and to assess levels of on street 
parking. 
 
708   
APPEAL INFORMATION  
 
NOTED the information on town planning appeals received from 03/12/2010 
to 31/12/2010, summarised in tables. Full details of each appeal were 
available on the departmental website. 
 
709   
SECTION 106 AGREEMENTS - MONITORING INFORMATION  (REPORT 
NO. 171)  

Page 13



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 25.1.2011 

 

- 609 - 

 
RECEIVED the report of the Assistant Director (Place Shaping) (Report No. 
171). 
 
NOTED that the Chairman had asked for the report to be resubmitted to the 
next meeting of the Planning Committee, as the information had been 
reproduced incorrectly in the printed agenda pack and Members would like to 
see other information included within the appendix. 
 
710   
COUNCILLOR NEVILLE  
 
NOTED that Councillor Neville would no longer be a Member of the Planning 
Committee, and the Chairman’s thanks for his contribution to the Committee. 
 
 
 

Page 14



 - 1 - 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2010/2011 - REPORT NO   187 
 

 
COMMITTEE: 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 
16.02.2011 
 
REPORT OF: 
Assistant Director, Planning 
and Environmental Protection 
 
Contact Officer: 
Planning Decisions Manager 
Andy Higham Tel: 020 8379 3848 
 
 
5.1 APPLICATIONS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS INF 
 
5.1.1 In accordance with delegated powers, 180 applications were determined 

between 12/01/2011 and 03/02/2011, of which 144 were granted and 36 
refused. 

 
5.1.2 A Schedule of Decisions is available in the Members’ Library. 
 

Background Papers 
 
To be found on files indicated in Schedule. 

 
5.2 PLANNING APPLICATIONS AND APPLICATIONS TO DISPLAY 

ADVERTISEMENTS  DEC 
 
 On the Schedules attached to this report I set out my recommendations in 

respect of planning applications and applications to display advertisements.  I 
also set out in respect of each application a summary of any representations 
received and any later observations will be reported verbally at your meeting. 

 
 Background Papers 
 

(1) Section 70 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 states that the 
Local Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of the 
development plan, so far as material to the application, and to any 
other material considerations.  Section 54A of that Act, as inserted by 
the Planning and Compensation Act 1991, states that where in making 
any determination under the Planning Acts, regard is to be had to the 
development, the determination shall be made in accordance with the 
plan unless the material considerations indicate otherwise.  The 
development plan for the London Borough of Enfield is the Unitary 
Development Plan (UDP). 

 
(2) Other background papers are those contained within the file, the 

reference number of which is given in the heading to each application. 
 
 

ITEM 5 AGENDA - PART 1 

SUBJECT - 
 

MISCELLANEOUS MATTERS 

Agenda Item 5Page 15



 - 2 - 

 
 
5.3 APPEAL INFORMATION  INF 
 
 The Schedule attached to the report lists information on town planning 

application appeals received between 03/12/2010 and 31/12/2010 and also 
contains information on decisions taken during this period. 

Page 16



LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD 

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 16th February 2011 

Report of 
Assistant Director, Planning & 
Environmental Protection 

Contact Officer:
Aled Richards  Tel: 020 8379 3857 
Andy Higham  Tel: 020 8379 3848 
Mr S. Newton Tel: 020 8379 3851

Ward: Turkey 
Street

Application Number :  LBE/10/0031 Category: Other Development

LOCATION:  HONILANDS PRIMARY SCHOOL, LOVELL ROAD, ENFIELD, EN1 4RE

PROPOSAL:  Two storey side extension, single storey front extension to provide a new 
entrance lobby, new car park at side and associated landscape works. 

Applicant Name & Address:
London Borough of Enfield 
 PO Box 50, 
 Civic Centre,
Silver Street,
Enfield,
EN1 3XA 

Agent Name & Address:
Ann Lakshmanan,
Shepherd Epstein Hunter 
Phoenix Yard 
65, Kings Cross Road 
London
WC1X 9LW 

RECOMMENDATION: That in light of the objection raised by Sport England to the loss of 
playing fields and therefore, subject to the views of the Government Office for the West 
Midlands, planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED in accordance with 
Regulation 3 of the Town & Country Planning General Regulations 1992, subject to 
conditions:

Agenda Item 6Page 17



Application No:-  LBE/10/0031

6
3

5
1

1
3

to
2
3

8
5

4
8

82

LILAC AVENUE

2

1

1

CARPENTERS ROAD
2to12

1
00

10
2

8
7

111

CKER

77

75

ROAD

83

TCB

LB

14to24

6
5

to
7
5

4
9

3
7

K
E
M

P
E

R
O

A
D

9
2

8
4

25
to

3
5

M
A
S

O
N

S
R

O
A
D

1
to

1 1

8
6

9
4

9
5

K
E

M
P

E
R

O
A

D

9
7

8
1

16

15

11

76

62

72

67

1
1

22

1
6

1
0

C
H

A
R

N
W

O
O

D
R

O
A
D

21

1
2

2

4
62

to
7
2

Library

Honilands Infant School

and Clinic

Community Centre

50
to

 6
0

Playing Field

Honilands Junior School

86
to

9
6

1

1

KEMPE ROAD

6

42

1
9

1
6

2
8

9

11

6

LARCHES AVENUE

HORNBEAMS AVENUE

23

1
2
5

1
2

3

1
3
1

14

1
0
9

16

16

1
1
3

1
1

1

13

1
0
7

1
2
0

1
3

2

K
E

M
P

E
R

O
A

D

LOVELL ROAD

4
0

6

4
8

3

LOVELL ROAD

1
1
0

1

6
7

M
A

R
R

Y
A

T
R

O
A

D

14

8
3

7

Honilands School

School House

1
5
4

9

1
7

1
4

1
5
4

7

1

LB

M
A

N
O

R

5

1
6

9
0

3

1
5
4

1

1
7
0
2

1
5
2

9

1686

4
6

910

12

7

1
1

8

2

1640

1652

M
A

N
O

R
C

O
U

R
T

1674

30.5m

1664

1616

St John

1628

G
R

E
A

T
C

A
M

B
R

ID
G

E
R

O
A

D

Methodist Church

1604

29.9m

W
a

r d
B

d
y

C
R

9
1

to
9
6

Development Control

Scale - 1:2002
Time of plot: 16:16 Date of plot: 02/02/2011

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 240m

© Crown copyright. London Borough of Enfield LA086363,2003

Page 18



1.  Site and Surroundings 

1.1 Honilands Primary School is bounded by Lovell Road to the north and Kempe 
Road to the east and south. To the west are 2-storey semi-detached 
dwellings fronting the Great Cambridge Road (A10) whilst on Kempe Road to 
the east and Lovell Road to the north, are small terraced. 

1.2 The surrounding area is predominantly residential in character, with the rear 
gardens of the aforementioned semi-detached dwellings and to the southeast 
by three-storey flats and an associated community hall and library.  

2.  Proposal 

2.1 Permission is sought for the erection of a two storey side extension, single 
storey front extension to provide a new entrance lobby, new car park at side 
and associated landscape works. 

 Two storey extension

2.2 The proposed building is made up of three oblongs in a staggered formation, 
with a 2-storey link between the existing and proposed buildings. The 2-storey 
extension will provide a total footprint of approximately 513sqm and a floor 
area of approximately 950sqm. This element of the development will be to a 
maximum height of approximately 7.5m to the top of curved roofs. 

2.3 At the gables on both ends of the oblong, the facades are mostly fenestration 
serving as the main windows of the teaching areas inside. To the northeast, 
the rooms face the nature area courtyard while to the southwest, they face 
the playing field. There are generous roof overhangs on the southwest gable 
ends to provide solar shading and opaque insulated panels within the 
fenestration. 

 Single storey extension

2.4 The proposed extension will be sited on the northern elevation of the existing 
school buildings, and is effectively an infill extension as it will be positioned 
between the hall and the Head Teacher’s office. 

2.5 It will be between 6.3m and 7m deep, 19m wide, and will have a vaulted roof 
approximately 4m in height. 

2.6 This area will accommodate a new entrance lobby, an enlarged office/admin 
area and a large meeting room. 

 Car Park

2.7 The proposed new car park will be located in the north-west corner of the 
school and will cover an area of approximately 480sqm. 

2.8 It will provide additional parking for an additional 25 vehicles, including 1 
disability bay. 

Page 19



 Landscaping

2.9 The existing hard play area will extend towards the new extension and south 
of the existing hutted classroom. The immediate area surrounding the existing 
mature ash tree will be covered with permeable resin-bound gravel.  

2.10 A new footpath will extend southwards along the Nursery and Children Centre 
boundary fence to the entrance gate along Kempe Road. 

2.11 A structured soft landscape zone is provided along the Nursery and Children 
Centre boundary fence. 

3.  Relevant Planning Decisions 

3.1 An application for a single storey infill extension to provide additional offices 
and staffroom (TP/05/0804) was granted planning permission on 24th June 
2005. In addition, a temporary classroom to the east of the site (LBE/09/0017) 
was granted a limited period permission (expiring on 24th June 2014) to 
provide teaching space whilst building works are completed to the main 
school building. 

3.4 Planning permission was granted on 27 July 2010 for the erection of a single 
storey detached building to south east of site to provide a Nursery with 
canopy to both sides and front and new pedestrian and vehicle access to 
Kempe Road and 5 parking bays adjacent to existing Library (ref: 
LBE/10/0022).

4.  Consultations 

4.1  Statutory and non-statutory consultees 

4.1.1 Traffic and Transportation advises that there are no objections but make the 
following observations: 

 The application is part of an ongoing plan to expand the Borough’s 
schools. The school has been selected for expansion based on its 
suitability to accommodate an increase in pupils. However, whilst the 
school may have sufficient space to expand, there could still be a 
considerable impact on the neighbouring roads in terms of parking 
provision and traffic generation.  

 Although the school is expanding gradually, the application should be 
assessed on the ability of the school and surroundings to cope with the 
total increase in pupils which will peak in Sep 2015. 

 Parking for staff has been addressed by the proposed new car park, 
which will provide a total of 49 spaces for the total of 95 staff (on 
completion of the expansion project), which is acceptable and in line with 
London Plan parking standards, although the travel plan will also be 
applicable to the staff.  

 In order to address the existing problems and safety concerns then the TA 
proposed a number of mitigation measures and there is already a 20mph 

Page 20



zone in place. In total six schemes have been proposed, with the three 
most important ones being identified as: 

o Option 6 – CCTC, and Option 2 (eastbound one way arrangement on 
Lovell Road) – essential 

o Option 1  - Turning head and  or increased on street parking on 
Lovell Road – high priority 

o Option 3 – Parking on Marryat Road, and Option 5, new lay-by on 
Masons Road – low priority. 

 Following discussions with Traffic, it is considered that the schemes that 
allow for more parking and increase the attractiveness of driving to the 
school need to be balanced against the objectives of reducing the need to 
travel by car. Additionally, in terms of road safety around the school, then 
the eastbound one way arrangement on Lovell Road may not necessarily 
increase road safety due to the perception that traffic will be unobstructed 
which may result in increased speeds. Therefore should approval be 
granted then the measures needed to mitigate against parking problems 
and road safety will need to be revised. 

Conclusion

 The proposal will result in an increase in both vehicular and pedestrian 
traffic. The TA accompanying the application predicts the worst case 
scenario for the school, which is based on the modal split from 2009 
continuing throughout the five years of the schools expansion. However, 
the existing Travel Plan surveys and its subsequent review in 2010 has 
shown that the modal split is slightly below the percentage used to predict 
future trips, and lends confidence to the ‘soft measures’ currently being 
implemented to reduce car journeys to the school. Hard measures have 
also been proposed, but the exact package of works required has not 
been determined yet, although the school should be prepared to fund 
some mitigation measures should they be necessary.  

4.1.2 Environmental Protection & Regulations advise that there are no objections. 

4.1.3 Sport England object to the proposed development on grounds relating to the 
loss of playing field.. 

4.1.4 Thames Water advise that in relation to sewerage and water infrastructure, 
there are no objections to the proposal. 

4.2  Public

4.2.1 Consultation letters have been issued to  92 neighbouring and nearby 
occupiers. No comments have been received. 

5. Relevant Policy 

5.1  Local Development Framework

At the meeting of the full Council on 10th November 2010, the Core Strategy 
of the Local Development Framework was approved. The document and the 
policies contained therein, are now material considerations to be taken into 

Page 21



account when considering the acceptability of development proposals. The 
following are of relevance: 

CP8: Education 
CP9: Supporting community cohesion 
CP20: Sustainable energy use and energy infrastructure 
CP21: Delivering sustainable water supply, drainage and sewerage 

infrastructure 
CP22: Delivering sustainable waste management 
CP25 Pedestrians and cyclists 
CP26: Public transport 
CP30: Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open 

environment 
CP32: Pollution 
CP36: Biodiversity 

5.2 Saved UDP Policies

After the adoption of the Core Strategy, a number of UDP policies are 
retained as material considerations pending the emergence of new and 
updates policies and development standards within the Development 
Management Document. The following are of relevance: 

(II)GD3 Aesthetics and functional design 
(II)GD6 Traffic 
(II)GD8 Site access and servicing 
(II)H8  Privacy 
(II)H8  Privacy 

5.3  The London Plan

Policy 2A.1 Sustainability criteria 
Policy 3A.18 Protection and enhancement of community infrastructure and 

community facilities 
Policy 3A.24 Education facilities 
Policy 3C.17 Tackling congestion and reducing traffic 
Policy 3C.23 Parking strategy 
Policy 3D.13 Children and young people’s play and informal recreation 

strategies
Policy 3D.14 Biodiversity and nature conservation  
Policy 4A.1 Tackling climate change 
Policy 4A.2 Mitigating climate change 
Policy 4A.3 Sustainable design and construction 
Policy 4A.6 Decentralised Energy: heating, cooling and power 
Policy 4A.7 Renewable energy 
Policy 4B.1 Design principles for a compact city 
Policy 4B.3 Enhancing the quality of the public realm 
Policy 4B.5 Creating an inclusive environment 
Policy 4B.8 Respect local context and communities 

5.4  Other Relevant Policy

PPS1:  Sustainable development 
PPG13:  Transport 
PPG17: Planning for open space, sport and recreation 

Page 22



6.  Analysis 

6.1 Principle

6.1.1 As an existing school, it is considered appropriate for this site in principle, to 
be utilised to provide additional education development to meet the Boroughs 
identified need for such accommodation. However, this must be weighed 
against the presumption of loss of some playing field and also against the 
potential for increased traffic pressures within the vicinity. 

6.2 Loss of Playing Field

6.2.1 Paragraph 15 of PPG17, advises that development on playing fields should 
not be allowed unless: 
i. the proposed development is ancillary to the use of the site as a playing 

field (e.g. new changing rooms) and does not adversely affect the 
quantity or quality of pitches and their use; 

ii.  the proposed development only affects land which is incapable of 
forming a playing pitch (or part of one); 

iii.  the playing fields that would be lost as a result of the proposed 
development would be replaced by a playing field or fields of equivalent 
or better quantity and quality and in a suitable location  

iv.  the proposed development is for an outdoor or indoor sports facility of 
sufficient benefit to the development of sport to outweigh the loss of the 
playing field 

6.2.2 The proposed 2-storey extension will be constructed upon existing playing 
fields and the objection in principle from Sport England is noted. A justification 
for the expansion of the school onto the playing fields has therefore been 
provided and can be summarised as below: 

 The school has been identified by the London Borough of Enfield as being 
suitable for expansion as there is no alternative to expanding Honilands. 

 The Education (School Premises) Regulations 1999 sets out the statutory 
minimum total team playing fields area that should be provided for a 
school of Honiland's proposed pupil numbers as 20,000sqm. 

 Building Bulletin 99: Briefing Framework for Primary School Projects notes 
that in confined sites, the sports pitch area may be provided on a nearby 
site and/or through a single all-weather pitch. 

 The site has a total site area of 27,508.8sqm. The existing total pitch area 
available for team sports is 14,628m2 as broken down in the following 
table:

Existing (sqm) Proposed (sqm) 
Building Bulletin 
99 (sqm) 

Hard play 
areas 4261 5492  

All weather 
MUGA 536 536  

Grassed
playing field 9831 8940  

Total pitch area 14,628 14,968 12,600-14,925 

Page 23



 The new extension at the school has been designed as a two storey 
extension to minimise its footprint and impact on the playing field. 

 The hard play area has been enlarged to accommodate the increased 
pupil numbers by incorporating some grassed area that is not part of the 
playing field area.  

 The existing all weather MUGA has been retained 

 The proposed grass playing field area is 8,940. There is sufficient space 
to accommodate a 200m running track during summer and a junior sized 
football pitch during winter. 

 Although the proposals for the extension do reduce the area of playing 
field, the additional school accommodation cannot be provided in an 
alternative fashion 

6.2.3 The above analysis clearly demonstrates that whilst there will be some loss of 
existing playing field, this will be compensated for by the increase in size of 
the ‘hard play areas’, in accordance with subparagraph iii identified above. It 
is therefore considered that whilst the objection from Sport England is 
acknowledged, there is no material harm to on site sports provision and  that 
on balance, taking into account the educational need underpinning this 
application, the increase in useable playing area compensates for the loss of 
some open field. 

6.3 Impact on Character of Surrounding Area

6.3.1 The proposed 2-storey extension is of a good contemporary design, which  
will provide a focal point when viewed from the playing fields to the south. The 
use of materials, to be secured via condition, to complement the existing 
structures will provide a visual link to those existing structures whilst the 
building will also appear ‘detached’ due to the 2-storey glazed link. 
Furthermore, the design of the single storey infill element will also integrate 
well with the appearance of the existing building. 

6.3.2 All elements are considered appropriate to the context of the site and 
surroundings. 

6.4  Impact on Neighbouring Properties

6.4.1 The nearest residential units are within the 3-storey block approximately 35m 
to the south east, with the new nursery/ children’s centre in-between. To the 
west, the nearest element of the proposed two storey extension to the rear 
boundaries of those properties is approximately 50m, with a further 35m to 
the dwellings. Distancing is therefore considered to be acceptable. 

6..4.2 Due to distancing level detailed above, it is considered that there will be no 
impact on neighbouring occupiers in terms of loss of light and outlook. 

6.5  Access and Traffic generation

6.5.1 An additional 180 pupils will generate an increase in both pedestrian and 
vehicular traffic. In order to predict the impact of the proposed increase in 
numbers then some form of comparison with baseline conditions is required. 
The TA in para 3.3 states that baseline studies were informed by a detailed 
site audit conducted on Tuesday 30th June 2009, desktop research carried out 

Page 24



between June and July 2009 and updated in 2010, and through an additional 
traffic and transport workshop held at the school on Monday 6th July 2009. 

6.5.2 Although the TA details the existing parking restrictions of the site, no data is 
provided on the actual levels of on street parking during the dropping off and 
the collection times of the school. The evidence presented in the TA may be 
accurate but it is mainly anecdotal as opposed to containing quantitative 
figures on parking levels and available spaces around the school.  

6.5.3 The TA does include the modal split and the predicted modal split for the 
future increase in pupil numbers, using figures taken from the Travel Plan. 
The data in the Travel Plan is from 2009, although there is more recent data 
from 2010 contained in the Travel Plan 1st Annual Review, which is shown 
below:

 Pupils: Nursery 57; Reception 87; Year 1 60; Year 2 56; Year 3 60; Year 4 
58; Year 5 58; Year 6 60; TOTAL = 496 

 Staff: Full time 22; part time 57  

Table showing modal split of pupils 2009 and 2010:

6.5.4 The “Original STP” as referred to in the data above is the data from the 
original surveys done in 2009. The results show that progress, in terms of 
reducing both the percentage of car journeys to the school and the total 
number of trips by car, has been positive. Car use has reduced in real terms 

Page 25



from 135 trips to 97 trips, with the 97 trips representing a modal split of 19.6% 
of all trips. The reduction of the vehicular trips is made up by the increase in 
walking trips, which increased by a total of 20% (including walking trips from 
the edge of the walking zone). 

6.5.5 The figures included in the TA are from 2009, and the modal split for this year 
is used to predict the future trip patterns. The predicted future trip patterns are 
shown below (taken from 6.11 of the TA). 

6.5.7 The total number of pupils is set at 720 as this is the level expected after all 
the years fill up, including the nursery. The percentage modal split of the 
above application is based on the existing figures from the 2009 surveys, not 
the more recent 2010 surveys. The modal split used in the predictions is 42% 
car, and 52% for walking, when the latest modal split suggests approx 20% 
arrive by car and 70% walk.

6.5.8 As the existing modal split percentage of walking is slightly higher than the 
split used in the predictions, then there is some degree of confidence that if 
the Travel Plan is continually reviewed and improved that the resulting 
number of trips by car after five years will be below those predicted. If the 
20% modal split is maintained then the number of car trips would be 122 out 
of 720, which is fewer than the original surveys done in 2009 for when the 
school had 317 pupils.  

6.5.9 There are a number of other factors that could influence the modal split, such 
as the catchment area for future pupils. The TA suggests in para 5.6 that 
most pupils live in the EN1 postcode, and that the majority of the intake for 
September 2009 lived within 2km of the school (although the figures 
mentioned in 5.3 are not included in the TA). The TA states in para 5.7 that 
the catchment area for future pupils will be closer to the school than is 
existing, but this is only based on the September 2009 intake. It is not 
possible to predict the intake for the future years, and the increase in 
numbers over the next few years increases the chance of pupils living outside 
the existing catchment area, and therefore being more likely to arrive by car.  

6.5.10 The hours of use of the school must also be taken into account when 
considering the trip generation, as the school operates staggered hours and 
therefore not all the vehicles will be arriving at the same time. The TA details 
the operating times of the school which are stated as: 

Page 26



 8:00am –  Pupils arrive for breakfast club; 

 8:30am –  Pupils arrive at school; 

 8:50 am –  Majority of pupils arrive at school; 

 11:25am -  School day ends for nursery (first session); 

 12:25pm -  School day starts for nursery (second session); 

 2:55pm -  School day ends for nursery (second session); 

 3:00pm -  Key Stage 1 (KS1)(Reception and Years 1 & 2) School day 
ends;

 3:05pm -  Key Stage 2 (KS2)(Reception and Years 3, 4, 5 & 6) School 
day ends; and 

 4:20pm -  Afterschool activities end (approx. 20 pupils) 

6.5.11 The nursery has staggered hours, with one session starting 8.50 and finishing 
at 11.25, and then another session starting at 12.25 and finishing at 2.55. The 
rest of the school generally finishes between 2.55 and 3.05. It is during the 
school finishing times that parents are most likely to park and wait to collect 
their children, which can lead to illegal parking causing problems for local 
residents. It is also noted that the school is providing a separate entrance in 
the south east of the site from Kempe Road (in association with the approved 
nursery / children’s centre), which may result in traffic intensity falling as 
parents will be able to park further away from the existing access. 

6.5.12 It is proposed that a suitably worded condition is imposed to secure the 
mitigation measures as proposed within the Transport Assessment.  

6.6 Parking 

6.6.1 The development will provide for 25 additional parking spaces (inclusive of x1 
disability space), leading to the access onto Lovell Road. Parking for staff has 
been addressed by the proposed new car park, which will provide a total of 49 
spaces for the total of 95 staff (on completion of the expansion project), which 
is acceptable and in line with London Plan parking standards, although the 
travel plan will also be applicable to the staff. 

6.7  Sustainable Design and Construction

6.7.1 A BREEAM Pre-Assessment has been submitted, indicating that the scheme 
is aiming to achieve a minimum rating of ‘Very Good’. This is encouraged and 
a condition is recommended to secure this. 

6.7.2 The London Plan stipulates that an Energy Assessment must form part of any 
major proposal. The assessment should demonstrate expected energy and 
carbon dioxide emission savings (20%) from energy efficiency and renewable 
energy measures incorporated into the development (Policy 4A.4). 

6.7.3 Whilst the nursery building is not considered a ‘major scheme’, it is a 
permanent new building that is part of an expansion programme at the school 
and therefore should demonstrate a commitment to sustainable design and 
construction.  

6.7.4 A Sustainability Assessment Form has been submitted. Proposed Energy 
saving measures includes the following: 

 Trickle vents; 

Page 27



 The installation of a Heat exchange system; 

 Insulation of hot water pipes and tanks; 

 Insulation for walls, roof and under-floor to meet with minimum building 
regulations requirements; 

 Time controlled lighting 

6.7.5 Whilst the above measures are welcomed, a condition is suggested to 
establish that the development will achieve energy efficiency in accordance 
with the above savings target. 

6.8 Trees

6.8.1 A tree survey has been conducted of the site, with information provided 
indicating the species, BS categorisation (quality of the tree), those that are to 
be retained, the root protection area radius, and tree protection. 

6.8.2 Seven trees in total are identified for removal as they will be most impacted 
upon during the development. The loss of these unprotected trees can be 
mitigated through a condition requiring additional plantings, particularly within 
the ‘ecological zone’ to the north-west of the proposed 2-storey extension. 

6.9 Ecology

6.9.1 An ecological assessment has been submitted as part of the application. It 
identifies the site as having minimal  

6.9.2 Enhancements proposed include the provision of bat / nest boxes, brown 
roofs, insect boxes positioned on walls, new landscaping, and the provision of 
standing deadwood / log piles around the pond to create hibernacula for 
common reptile and amphibian species.  

6.9.3 The above measures are welcomed as they not only increase the ecological 
value of the site but also provide a valuable and visible educational tool. A 
condition will be imposed to secure ecological enhancements of the site. 

7.  Conclusion

7.1 The proposed development will improve facilities at the school in terms of 
teaching accommodation and in the provision of playing areas. Moreover, the 
design of the extensions are unique when viewed against the existing 
structures, with the proposed entrance providing a new focal point from Lovell 
Road and the 2-storey extension providing a focal point from vantage points 
to the south of that element. The development should also, through measures 
proposed, not lead to unacceptable impact on parking and traffic safety within 
the immediate vicinity of the school.  Mindful of these, it is also considered 
that the educational need and the overall effect on playing field provision 
having regard to Sport England’s objection, is not sufficient to render the 
scheme unacceptable and thus, the proposed development is considered 
acceptable and approval is recommended for the following reasons:  

1. The proposed development, having regard to the amount of playing field 
lost to accommodate the extensions and having regard to the increased 
provision of playing fields, is considered to comply with Core Policies 8 
and 34 of the Core Strategy, Policies (II)GD3, (II)CS2 and (II)CS3 of the 

Page 28



Unitary Development Plan, Policies 3A.24, 3D.8 and 3D.13 of The London 
Plan, with PPS1: Sustainable Development and PPG17: Planning for 
Open Space, Sport and Recreation. 

2. The proposed extensions improve teaching facilities at Honilands Primary 
School as well as providing for additional teaching space for which there 
is a recognised shortage within the Borough. It is considered that the 
proposed development complies with Core Policies 8 and 9 of the Core 
Strategy, Policies (II)CS1, (II)CS2 and (II)CS3 of the Unitary Development 
Plan, Policies 3A.18, 3A.24, 3D.13 4B.1, 4B.8 of The London Plan, and 
with PPS1: Sustainable Development. 

3. The proposed extensions having regard to their design, size and siting do 
not unduly affect the amenities of adjoining or nearby residential 
properties having regard to Core Policy 30 of the Core Strategy, Policies 
(II)GD3 and (II)H8 of the Unitary Development Plan and with Policies 4B.1 
and 4B.8 of The London Plan. 

4. The proposed development should not lead to conditions prejudicial to the 
free flow and safety of traffic, including pedestrian traffic, on the adjoining 
highways. In this regard, the proposal is considered to comply with 
Policies (II)GD6 and (II)GD8 of the Unitary Development Plan and with 
Policy 3C.23 of The London Plan. 

8.  Recommendation

8.1 That in light of the objection raised by Sport England to the loss of playing 
fields and therefore, subject to the views of the Government Office for the 
West Midlands, planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED in 
accordance with Regulation 3 of the Town & Country Planning General 
Regulations 1992, subject to the following conditions: 

1. C06 Details of phasing of construction 
2. C07 Details of materials 
3. C09 Details of hard surfacing 
4. C10 Details of levels 

The development shall not commence until details of a 
landscaping scheme shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The detailed 
landscaping scheme shall include the following details:  

a. a revised Access Statement detailing routes through 
the landscape and the facilities it provides; 

b. an ecological report detailing how the landscaping 
scheme maximises the ecological value of the site; 

c. existing and proposed underground services and their 
relationship to both hard and soft landscaping; 

d. proposed trees: their location, species and size; 
e. soft plantings: including grass and turf areas, shrub and 

herbaceous areas; 
f. topographical survey: including earthworks, ground 

finishes, top soiling with both conserved and imported 
topsoil(s), levels, drainage and fall in drain types;  

Page 29



g. enclosures: including types, dimensions and treatments 
of walls, fences, screen walls, barriers, rails, retaining 
walls and hedges; 

h. hard landscaping: including ground surfaces, kerbs, 
edges, ridge and flexible pavings, unit paving, furniture, 
steps and if applicable synthetic surfaces; and 

i. any other landscaping feature(s) forming part of the 
scheme.

All landscaping in accordance with the approved scheme shall 
be completed/planted during the first planting season following 
practical completion of the development hereby approved.  The 
landscaping and tree planting shall set out a plan for the 
continued management and maintenance of the site and any 
planting which dies, becomes severely damaged or diseased 
within five years of completion of the development shall be 
replaced with new planting in accordance with the approved 
details or an approved alternative and to the satisfaction of the 
Local Planning Authority. 

The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance 
with the details so approved and shall be maintained as such 
thereafter.

Reason: To minimise the impact of the development on the 
ecological value of the area, to ensure the development 
provides the maximum possible provision towards the creation 
of habitats and valuable areas for biodiversity and to preserve 
the character and appearance of the area in accordance with 
Policies CP30 and CP36 of the Core Strategy, the Biodiveristy 
Action Plan and Policies 3D.14, 4A,3 and 4B.5 of the London 
Plan 2008. 

5. C11 Details of enclosure 
6. C12 Parking and turning facilities shall be provided in accordance  

with Drawing No.051 rev.2 unless otherwise approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: To ensure the development complies with adopted 
standards and does not prejudice conditions of safety or traffic 
flow on the adjoining highway or the internal circulation of the 
car park. 

7. C14 Details of access and junction 
8. C16 Private vehicles only – Parking areas 
9. C17 Details of landscaping 
10. C18 Details of tree protection 
11. C21 Construction servicing area 
12. C22 Details of construction vehicle wheel cleaning 

      13  NSC1 That development shall not commence until a construction    
   methodology has been submitted to and approved in writing by  
   the Local Planning Authority. The construction methodology  
   shall contain: 

(i) a photographic condition survey of the roads, footways and 
verges leading to the site  

Page 30



(ii) details of construction access, associated traffic 
management and vehicle routing to the site 

(iii) arrangements for vehicle servicing and turning areas 
(iv) arrangements for the parking of contractors vehicles 
(v) arrangements for wheel cleaning  
(vi) details of the site compound and the layout of temporary 

construction buildings 
(vii) arrangements for the storage of materials 
(viii) hours of work 
(ix) A construction management plan written in accordance 

with the ‘London Best Practice Guidance: The control of 
dust and emission from construction and demolition’. 

The development shall then be undertaken in accordance with 
the approved construction methodology unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: To ensure the implementation of the development 
does not lead to damage to the existing roads, prejudice 
highway safety or the free-flow of traffic on the adjoining 
highways, and to minimise disruption to neighbouring 
properties.

14. NSC3 Evidence confirming that the development achieves a 
 BREEAM rating of no less than ‘Very Good’ shall be submitted to and  
approved in writing by the Local planning Authority.  The evidence  
required shall be provided in the following formats and at the following  
times:

a. design stage assessment, conducted by an accredited 
Assessor and supported by relevant BRE interim 
certificate, shall be submitted at pre-construction stage 
prior to the commencement of superstructure works on 
site; and, 

b. post construction assessment, conducted by an accredited 
Assessor and supported by relevant BRE accreditation 
certificate, shall be submitted following the practical 
completion of the development and prior to the first 
occupation. 

The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance 
with the details so approved, shall be maintained as such 
thereafter and no change there from shall take place without 
the prior approval of the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: In the interests of addressing climate change and to 
secure sustainable development in accordance with the 
strategic objectives of the Council and Policies 4A.1, 4A.2, 
4A.3 and 4A.9 of the London Plan as well as PPS1. 

15. NSC7 No development shall take place until an assessment has been 
 carried out into the potential for disposing of surface water by means  
of a sustainable drainage (SUDS) scheme, in accordance with the  
principles of sustainable drainage systems set out in national planning  
policy guidance and statements, and the results of that assessment  

Page 31



have been provided to the Local Planning Authority. The assessment  
shall take into account the design storm period and intensity; methods  
to delay and control the surface water discharged from the site; and  
measures to prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or  
surface waters. 

Reason: To ensure that the proposal would not result in an 
unacceptable risk of flooding from surface water run-off or 
create an unacceptable risk of flooding elsewhere. 

16.NSC8 Surface water drainage works shall be carried out in  
accordance with details that have been submitted to, and approved in 
writing by, the local planning authority before the development 
commences. Those details shall include a programme for implementing 
the works. Where, in the light of the assessment required by the above 
condition, the local planning authority concludes that a SUDS scheme 
should be implemented, details of the works shall specify: 

i) a management and maintenance plan, for the lifetime of the 
development, which shall include the arrangements for 
adoption by any public authority or statutory undertaker or any 
other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme 
throughout its lifetime; and 
ii) the responsibilities of each party for implementation of the 
SUDS scheme, together with a timetable for that 
implementation. 

Reason: To ensure implementation and adequate maintenance 
to ensure that the proposal would not result in an unacceptable 
risk of flooding from surface water run-off or create an 
unacceptable risk of flooding elsewhere. 

17. C25 No additional fenestration 
18. C41 Details of external lighting 
19. C51A Time limited permission 

Page 32



P
a
g
e
 3

3



P
a
g
e
 3

4



P
a
g
e
 3

5



P
a
g
e
 3

6



LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD 

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 16th February 2011 

Report of 
Assistant Director, Planning 
& Environmental Protection 

Contact Officers:
Aled Richards Tel: 020 8379 3857 
Andy Higham  Tel: 020 8379 3848 
David Warden Tel: 020 8379 3931 

Ward:
Upper
Edmonton

Application Number :  LBE/10/0037 Category: Smallscale Major 
Dwellings 

LOCATION:  Highmead Estate Fore Street & Trafalgar Place Car Park, 
London, N18 2SL 

PROPOSAL:  Redevelopment of site to provide 4 commercial and 120 residential 
units (comprising a part 6-storey, part 8-storey block of 1092 sqm of commercial 
floorspace (A1 Retail, A2 offices, A3 Restaurant and A4 Drinking establishments) 
at ground floor, 3 x 3-bed maisonettes, 45 x 1-bed, 33 x 2-bed and 17 x 3-bed flats 
with balconies to front and rear and 3 blocks of 5 x 3-storey, 4-bed terraced 
houses with balcony at second floor rear, 1 block of 6 x 3-bed part 2-storey, part 3-
storey town houses with integral garages and sun terrace at second floor rear and 
1 x 2-bed single family dwelling, a 3-storey block of 180 sqm of community space 
(D1 non residential institutions), vehicular access to Alpha Road, landscaping 
works and 28 car parking spaces and 137 cycle parking spaces and change of use 
of car park at Trafalgar Place from public to private parking. 

Applicant Name & Address:
London Borough of Enfield 
c/o agent 

Agent Name & Address:
Andrew Boyd 
Savills
Lansdowne House,
57, Berkeley Square,
London
W1J 6ER 

RECOMMENDATION: That in accordance with Regulation 4 of the Town & 
Country Planning General Regulations 1992, and subject to the completion of a 
S106 Agreement, planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED subject to 
conditions.

Agenda Item 7Page 37



Application No:-  LBE/10/0037

1
4
7

52

TCB

2

1
3

1

79

2
6

2
5

R
A

Y
N

H
A

M
A

V
E

N
U

E

1
4

3
3

3
7

3
0

SA

6
1

7
1

7
9

12

3
8

5
7

10

4

4
7

50

8
8

3
9

4
2

12.8m

7
9

8
7

2
9

7
2

8
0

2

2
4

7
1
1

2
0

3
2

2
3

1
5

1

2
2

a

C
L
A

R
E

N
D

O
N

R
O

A
D

37

1
2

5

2
b

30

20

CLAREMONT STREET

25

38

a
ll

44

35

36

R
O

A
D

B
U

C
K

S
T

O
N

E

37

54

29

43

1
4

2
a

2
b

2

3

2
1

1
3

B
U

C
K

S
T

O
N

E
R

O
A

D

2
2

3
0

4
0

1

9

3
5

2
9

2
7

2

12.9m

18

1
0
5

1
3

1

1
1

5
1

2
3

RAYNHAM

9
5

1
0

3

8
7

R
A

Y
N

H
A

M
A

V
E

N
U

E

1
3

9

56

Works

2

46

6
5

4
7

5
7

7
3

5
6

4
6

6
4

12.8m

3
7 3

6
4
4

12.9m

4
5

5 5a

2
1

1
2

2
0

19

W
A

K
E

F
IE

L
D

S
T

R
E

E
T

2
9

27

2
8

3
1

40

32

2
7

H
E

S
T

E
R

R
O

A
D

1
3

2
1

1
2

3
2

2
0

3
7

LEEDS STREET

TRAFALGAR PLACE

14

22

Sorting Office

Stores

Car Park

9
13

B
O

O
K

E
R

R
O

A
D

26

11

a1
6
9

Chapel

1
1

2

6
3

13

14

ALPHA ROAD

26

2

12.6m

6
2

5
8

6
0

6
6

6
8

PH

7
4

a

7
7

7
2

1a 1

4
8

5
6

TCBs

5
2

C
L
IV

E
A

V
E

N
U

E

5
4

5
7

GROVE STREET

7
5

F
O

R
E

S
T
R

E
E

T

(Civil)

T
C

B
s

County Court

7
3

6 to 23

7
9

St James's Court

War

Meml

C
of

E
P
rim

ar
y

S
ch

oo
l

S
t
Jo

hn
a
nd

S
tJ

a
m

e
s

1 to 45

5
0

12.5m

TCB

LB

GROVE STREET

1
0

1
to

1
3

2

Temple

Edmonton

1

23

9
0

Bank

El Sub Sta

Highmead

1 to 61

27

COWPER ROAD

2

9
2

10

1
6

4

1
5
8

PH

6

13.4m

5

LB

TCBs

1
6

5

1
6
1

1
7

2

6
1
8

0

1
7
8

to
1
7

4

1
6

7

1
2
7

1
1

9

115

7
5

to
8
5 El

117

Sub Sta

1
1
3

Posts

1
3
2

to
1
2

8
1

2
0

SMART'S PLACE

1
1
2

to
1
1

8

B
a
n

k
1

2
2

1
0
4

to
1
1

0

13.1m

9
6

to
1
0

2

9
4

9
2

a

1
3

7

B
a
n

k

1
3

61
2

9

1
3

5

150

F
O

R
E

S
T

R
E

E
T

138

1
4
0

to
1

4
8

7
4

7
6

a

1 to 5

P
O

7
6

8
0

8
3

13.0m

War

Meml

El Sub Sta

1
5

1

1to43

COLLEGE GARDENS

1
to

8

C
o
rd

w
a
in

H
o
u

se

PH

9
5

1
0
5

1
0
7

2

2to90

1 to 83

Car Park

C
O

L
Y

T
O

N
W

A
Y

El Sub Sta

Bridport
House

G
I L

P
IN

C
R

E
S

C
E

N
T

1
to

4
5

5

to

El Sub Sta

92

E AVENUE

126

11

128to216

38

28

Car Park

18

4
6

t o
7

7

14

30 27 2
528

29

2
6

Development Control

Scale - 1:2002
Time of plot: 16:12 Date of plot: 02/02/2011

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 240m

© Crown copyright. London Borough of Enfield LA086363,2003

Page 38



1.  Site and Surroundings 

1.1 Site

1.1.1 The main application site (‘the site’) is located on eastern site of Fore Street 
between Cowper Road to the north and Alpha Road to the south. The site 
currently comprises a mix of residential and retail uses. This includes 61 
residential properties comprising: a series of 3 bed maisonettes that are 
located above a north-south parade of 14 shops which front Fore Street; 10 
flats over floors one and two of the 11 storey tower and 40 maisonettes above 
third floor level. The residential properties are in poor condition and have 
been vacant since July 2010.

1.1.2 To the rear of the Fore Street block is a service road servicing the premises. 
The site also has a private play area and grassed area to the rear of the site, 
which is surrounding by high perimeter fencing, is in a relatively poor 
condition and has not been used since the former Highmead residents have 
vacated the site. 

1.1.3 The other element of the application site is comprises the Trafalgar Place Car 
Park.  This is an existing surface level pay and display public car park located 
behind the rear gardens of properties facing Leeds Street and to the north of 
Trafalgar Place.  Surveys have concluded that there is currently limited use of 
these facilities. 

1.2 Surroundings

1.2.1 The surrounding area comprises retail and commercial uses fronting Fore 
Street with an increasingly residential character moving away from the District 
centre to the east or west.  To the north of the site lie a mixture of two and 
three storey retail/commercial premises fronting Fore Street along with two 
storey terraced dwellings fronting Cowper Road and Hester Road, followed by 
the Trafalgar Place Car Park.  To the east and southwest are two storey 
terraced dwellings fronting Buckstone Road and Alpha Road.  To the south 
and west fronting Fore Street are further two and three storey 
retail/commercial premises, along St James Court a Church building 
converted residential.  Further south is petrol station where planning 
permission has previously been granted for a nine storey block.  Further west 
lies St John & St James Primary School, St James Open Space and taller 
residential blocks extending to nine storeys fronting Joyce Avenue. 

1.2.2 The site is within walking distance of Silver Street station, which is 
approximately 500 metres walking distance to the northwest.  Fore Street 
provides immediate access to bus stops and local facilities. 

1.2.3 The Fore Street frontage is located within the Upper Edmonton (Angel) 
District Centre.  The Fore Street South Conservation lies opposite and to the 
south of the application site.  However, the site is not itself located within a 
Conservation Area, nor are any of the buildings listed.

Page 39



2.  Proposal 

2.1 The application proposes the demolition of the existing buildings and 
redevelopment of the site to provide commercial units fronting Fore Street 
along with 120 residential units and a community space.    

2.2 The main building fronting Fore Street would rise to 8 storeys in height, with 
retail uses at ground floor comprising of 1092 sq m of retail floor space. This 
building can be divided in to Plot 1, comprising 22 affordable homes and Plot 
2 including 74 private market flats and 2 affordable maisonettes.  Collectively 
they provide 3 x 3-bed maisonettes, 45 x 1-bed, 33 x 2-bed and 17 x 3-bed 
flats.

2.3 On the rear part of the site, on Plot 3, 22 terraced houses are proposed 
comprising of 7 x 3 bed units and 15 x 4 bed units.  These are arranged as 
two terraces of 5 dwellings facing Alpha Road, a further terrace of 5 dwellings 
facing north to south fronting the courtyard and a terrace of 7 dwellings facing 
east to west again fronting the courtyard.  

2.4 A three storey community building is proposed in the south western corner 
along Alpha Road, providing 180 sq m of D1 floor space. A courtyard space is 
provided to the rear to be used in conjunction with the community space. 

2.5 The areas around the blocks provide small front gardens matching those 
already found in Alpha Road, private rear gardens to each of the houses and 
a central courtyard provide parking and open space.  Vehicular accesses are 
provided from Cowper Road and Alpha Road, but do not provide a through 
route.  Pedestrian access is direct from Fore Street, Alpha Road, Cowper 
Road or from with courtyard.  Servicing of the commercial units is via rear 
service corridors accessed from Cowper and Alpha Road. 

2.6 The proposal includes the change of use of Trafalgar Place Car Park from a 
pay and display public car park to a private car park for the exclusive use of 
Highmead redevelopment residents.  Improvements to the car park will 
include perimeter fencing, lighting and CCTV.   

2.7 The scheme provides 26 on-site parking spaces, which will be allocated to the 
family housing.  Two car club bays would also be available on-site, which 
evidence suggests are equivalent to approximately 20 parking spaces.  A 
further 45 parking spaces are provided in the proposed car private at 
Trafalgar Place.  Together, these elements provide for a total of 91 spaces or 
76% provision.  The scheme provides 130 cycle parking spaces across the 
site.

2.8 The application is submitted on behalf of Council following a series of Cabinet 
decisions to decant existing tenants, demolish the building and regenerate the 
site.  A Statement of Consultation has also been provided confirming 
consultation workshops and events, along with two separate questionnaires 
to 1,000 local residents.  The statement confirms that the events informed 
changes to the design of the scheme including the provision of outdoor space 
to the community unit, car parking, a secure perimeter and the height of the 
proposed houses on Alpha Road reduced so that they are no higher than the 
existing dwellings. 

Page 40



3.  Relevant Planning Decisions 

3.1 None relevant to the proposed redevelopment of this site. 

4. Consultations 

4.1  Statutory and non-statutory consultees

4.1.1 Thames Water does not object to the proposal and provides guidance for the 
applicant in respect of surface water and foul drainage.  However, they note 
that the water supply infrastructure has insufficient capacity to meet the 
additional demands for the proposed development and request a planning 
condition to address the magnitude of any new additional capacity 
requirement along with a suitable connection point.  

4.1.2 EDF Energy raises concerns regarding the proximity of the new dwellings to 
the retained Highmead substation site.  Guidance is provided on the potential 
for noise and vibration impacts, as well as construction safety requirements. 

4.1.3 The Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Design Advisor comments that pre-
application meetings have been held and that the development appears 
capable of achieving Secured by Design recognition. 

4.1.4 The Housing Enabling Team fully support the Highmead application stating it 
meets the following key objectives in the emerging Estate Renewal strategy; 

- Increase supply of good quality affordable housing in the borough 
- Meets an identified housing need 
- Tackle deprivation on housing estates that combines physical, social 

and economic deprivation  
- Support sustainable mixed communities across the borough 

4.1.5 The Urban Design Team welcome the generally clean and simple form of the 
development  and acknowledge the following essential design criteria, listed 
below, which have been fulfilled: 

- A landmark building forming a beacon on centre of Fore Street 
- Mixed tenure but externally tenure blind 
- Provision of community space 
- Consolidates and forms good high street 
- Ground floor retail units on Fore Street 
- Range of home types within 1, 2 or 3+ bed 
- Catalyst for regeneration 
- Complementary civic/ community uses for the area to be incorporated 
- Active edges to rear streets 
- Some residential access from high street 
- No blank gable ends to transverse streets 
- Corner retail units to have glazed façade wrapping around corners 
- Pedestrian dominant public realm, integrated with traffic calming 
- Maximise natural light 
- Integrate with existing street and building fabric to front, sides and 

rear
- Maximise massing towards high street 

Page 41



- Set principles for future high street (50-100 yrs) - massing, height, 
rhythm, etc 

- Achieve Place Shaping, as well as physico-spatial and socio economic 
objectives

4.1.6 The School Organisation and Development Officer confirms that due to 
deficiencies in the area financial contributions in respect of education will be 
required.  These are calculated based upon the net increase when compared 
with the existing building: 

Primary  - 6 places x £13,115 per place = £78,690 
Secondary  - 2 places x £19,762 per place = £39,524 
Total   = £118,214 

4.1.7 The Sustainable Design Officer raises concerns that the scheme does not 
currently meet Code Level 3 for the flats and 4 for the houses.  However, it is 
noted that a number of the issues can be readdressed to realise additional 
credits and recommends that the application be conditioned to secure both 
interim and final certification of the scheme to achieve these standards.  In 
addition, conditions are requested to ensure the commercial and community 
elements of the development achieve a BREEAM rating of ‘Very Good’.  

4.1.8 The Arboricultural Officer does not object to the scheme and supports the 
proposed replacement trees surrounding the site. 

4.2  Public response

4.2.1 Consultation letters were sent to 341 neighbouring properties.  At the time of 
writing no responses have been received. 

4.3 Conservation Advisory  Group

4.3.1 The Group were, on balance, in favour of the scheme, despite some concern 
over the 8 storey Fore Street block.  There were also  concerns regarding  the 
design such as roof form and materials and fenestration proportions.  

5. Relevant Policy Considerations 

5.1 Local Development Framework

At the meeting of the full Council on 10th November 2010, the Core Strategy 
of the Local Development Framework was approved. The document and the 
policies contained therein, are now material considerations to be taken into 
account when considering the acceptability of development proposals. The 
following are of relevance: 

SO1 Enabling and focusing change 
SO2 Environmental sustainability 
SO3 Community cohesion 
SO4 New homes 
SO5 Education, health and wellbeing 
SO6 Maximising economic potential 
SO7 Employment and skills 
SO8 Transportation and accessibility 
SO9 Natural environment 

Page 42



SO10 Built environment 

CP1 Strategic growth areas 
CP2 Housing supply and locations for new homes 
CP3 Affordable housing 
CP4 Housing quality 
CP5 Housing types 
CP6 Meeting particular housing needs 
CP7 Health and social care facilities and the wider determinants of 

health
CP8 Education 
CP9 Supporting community cohesion 
CP11 Recreation, leisure, culture and arts 
CP13 Promoting economic prosperity 
CP16 Taking part in economic success and improving skills 
CP17 Town centres 
CP18 Delivering shopping provision across Enfield 
CP20 Sustainable energy use and energy infrastructure 
CP21 Delivering sustainable water supply, drainage and sewerage 

infrastructure 
CP22 Delivering sustainable waste management 
CP25 Pedestrians and cyclists 
CP26 Public transport 
CP28 Managing flood risk through development 
CP30 Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open 

environment 
CP31 Built and landscape heritage 
CP32 Pollution 
CP34 Parks, playing fields and other open spaces 
CP36 Biodiversity 
CP46 Infrastructure contributions 

5.1.2 In particular, Core Policy 4 states: 

An Estates Investment Management Strategy will be undertaken to 
inform the future management and priorities for investment across the 
Council's own housing stock. The Council will facilitate the renewal of 
the Ladderswood Way and Highmead estates as early phases of this 
programme, undertaking feasibility studies and working with local 
residents to identify the most appropriate solution for renewal, taking 
into account potential for refurbishment and comprehensive 
redevelopment.

5.2 Saved UDP Policies

After the adoption of the Core Strategy, a number of UDP policies are 
retained as material considerations pending the emergence of new and 
updates policies and development standards within the Development 
Management Document. The following are of relevance: 

(II)GD3 Character / Design 
(II)GD6 Traffic Generation 
(II)GD8 Site Access and Servicing 
(II)H6  Size and tenure of new developments 

Page 43



(II)H8 Privacy and Overlooking 
(II)H9 Amenity Space 
(II)H12 Residential Extensions 
(II)H14 Terracing 
(II)H15 Roof Extensions 
(II)T13  Creation or improvement of accesses 
(II)T16 Adequate access for pedestrians and disabled persons 
(II)C38   Loss of trees of public amenity value 
(II)C39 Replacement of trees  
(II)S8 Non-retail uses 
(II)S18 Food and drink uses 
(II)S19 Shop fronts 

5.3 London Plan

2A.8 Town centres 
2A.9 The Suburbs: Supporting sustainable communities 
3A.1 Increasing Supply of Housing 
3A.2 Borough Housing Targets 
3A.3  Maximising the potential of sites 
3A.5  Housing choice 
3A.6  Quality of new housing provision 
3A.8  Definition of affordable housing 
3A.9  Affordable housing targets 
3A.10  Negotiating affordable housing in individual private residential 

and mixed-use schemes 
3A.11  Affordable housing thresholds 
3A.17 Addressing the needs of London’s diverse population  
3C.1 Integrating transport and development  
3C.21 Improving Conditions for Cycling 
3C.23 Parking Strategy 
3D.2 Town centre development 
3D.3 Maintaining and improving retail facilities 
4A.3 Sustainable Design and Construction 
4A.12 Flooding 
4A.13  Flood risk management 
4A.19  Improving air quality 
4A.20  Reducing noise and enhancing soundscapes 
4B.1 Design principles for a compact city 
4B.2 Architectural design 
4B.8 Respect the context of local communities 
Annex 4 Parking standards 

London Plan Supplementary Planning Guidance: Children and Young 
People’s Play and Recreation 

London Plan Supplementary Planning Guidance: Sustainable Design and 
Construction (2006).  

Draft London Plan Supplementary Planning Guidance: Interim Housing 
Guidance (2009).

5.4 Other Material Considerations

PPS1 Delivering Sustainable Development 

Page 44



PPS1  Supplement Climate Change 
PPS3 Housing 
PPS4 Planning for Sustainable Economic Growth 
PPS5 Planning for the Historic Environment 
PPS9 Biodiversity and Geological Conservation 
PPG13  Transport  

6.  Analysis 

6.1 Principle

6.1.1 The site is located within Upper Edmonton District Centre.  A mixed retail and 
residential scheme would be consistent with the surrounding character of the 
area.  The provision of additional residential units in this sustainable location 
would increase the supply of housing, which would assist in the attainment of 
the Borough’s housing targets. 

6.1.2 Policy 4  of the recently adopted Core Strategy makes it clear that the 
renewal of the Highmead estate should be carried out in the early phases of 
the plans implementation and that this includes the potential for 
comprehensive redevelopment.  Refurbishment of the building has been 
previously discounted by the Council due to the cost implications and the 
regeneration benefits of a comprehensive scheme. 

6.1.3 As such, subject to the resolution of the matters below regarding the scale of 
development, impact on neighbouring properties and access maters, the 
principle of the development of the site for residential purposes is considered 
acceptable.   

6.2  Impact on Character of Surrounding Area

Density

6.2.1 As previously stated the site lies within the Upper Edmonton (Angel) district 
centre, along a main arterial route and within close proximity to public 
transport links.  The surrounding area is characterised by a mixture of 
commercial and residential properties including terraced houses and high rise 
blocks of flats with a strong urban character.  As such, for the purposes of the 
London Plan’s density matrix, it is considered the site lies within an urban 
area.  Moreover, the site has a PTAL of 4/5.  Thus the density matrix 
suggests a range 200 to 700 habitable rooms and 55 to 225 units per hectare.  
Having regard to the sites primary location, a density towards the top of this 
range would seem appropriate.  However, the need to reduce the form of 
development on the eastern part of the site to reflect adjoining housing will 
provide a limitation.  Having regard to these factors, a density in the region of 
600 habitable rooms and 200 units per hectare is considered appropriate for 
this site. 

6.2.2 The application proposes 120 units and 373 habitable room providing a 
proposed density of 196 u/h or 610hrph.  The area of the Trafalgar Place Car 
Park has not been included.  These fall within the range considered 
acceptable, as set out above.  However, advice contained in PPS1 and 
PPS3, states that a numerical assessment of density must not be the sole 
test of acceptability and must also depend on the attainment of appropriate 

Page 45



scale and design relative to character and appearance of the surrounding 
area.

6.2.3 In this instance, the bulk of the proposed development fronts Fore Street 
reinforcing is primary position as a District Centre with the elements to the 
rear of the site designed to provide the appearance of two storey buildings 
with accommodation in the roof.  The scale of the existing building to be 
demolished is noted, as are the supportive comments of the Urban Design 
Team.  Whilst there are some concerns regarding the height and bulk of 
frontage building, which will be discussed further below, overall it is 
considered, that the scale of development is appropriate for this prominent 
urban location.

6.2.4 Having regard to these matters, as well as the surrounding patterns of 
development, the extent of site coverage and the numerical assessment 
details above, it is considered that the proposed density is acceptable and 
would not result in an overdevelopment of the site. 

Layout

6.2.5 The layout of the proposed development has emerged from a number of 
options considered at pre-application stage.  The site naturally lends itself to a 
larger block fronting Fore Street and to the provision of family housing to the 
rear.  The family housing enables the site to integrate well into the 
surrounding pattern of development.   

6.2.6 It is noted that the Urban Design Team support the scheme commenting that 
there is a well designed internal mews layout to the rear in a dense urban 
setting with positive overlooking of the communal amenity space. 

6.2.7 The hard and soft landscaping scheme will need to ensure that parking does 
not dominant the areas around the buildings.  This will be secured by 
condition.

6.2.8 Overall, the proposed layout is considered acceptable.

Design

6.2.9 The scheme provides for a contemporary design emphasising the strong 
angles of the building, whilst seeking to break up its mass through the use of 
variations in plane, projecting balconies, projecting upper floors and the use 
of materials.  

6.2.10 There are some concerns regarding the bulk of the frontage block.  However, 
the combination of the above factors mean that it will not be read as a 
continuous mass and is, on balance, considered acceptable.  In addition, 
there are concerns regarding the overall height of the building and whether 8 
storeys is greater containment than Fore Street requires.  However, planning 
permission has previously been granted for a 9 storey block within the vicinity 
of the site, there are tall buildings nearby and the building provides a mixture 
of storey heights with the majority of the upper two floors recessed from the 
main façade.  Again, on balance, this element of the scheme is considered 
acceptable. 

Page 46



6.2.11 The proposed terraced houses reflect the scale of the surrounding dwellings 
and provide similar eaves and ridge heights.  However, they still provide a 
contemporary feel in their detailing and roof design.  Overall, it is considered 
this is a successful approach. 

6.2.12 The scheme includes a relatively simple palette, but with considerable interest 
added through the use of brick patterns.  Often this is simply a mixture of light 
and dark bricks with either one or the other in significantly greater proportion 
than the other.  In other places within the scheme it involves the use of a dark 
brick plinth to the main block with light brick sting detailing and a hit and miss 
patterned parapet. 

6.2.13 The scheme includes the loss of existing trees within the site.  However, the 
Arboricultural Officer has accepted the loss of these trees provided suitable 
replacements are secured. 

6.2.14 It is essential in schemes of this nature to ensure there is a consistent 
approach from the end users of the proposed retail units in respect of shop 
fronts and signage.  A condition will, therefore, secure a Signage and Shop 
Frontage Strategy.  This will ensure that the fabric of the building supports 
commonality in the shop frontage detailing. 

6.2.15 A condition will be required to provide a central satellite to avoid individual 
satellite dishes from adversely affecting the design. 

6.2.16 Overall, it is considered that the proposal provides for a strong design that 
breaks up the massing of the frontage block and integrates well with the 
surrounding terraced dwellings.  

Amenity space

6.2.17 The adopted standard requires the provision of 100% of the gross internal 
area (GIA) for houses, 75% for flats with 2 or more bedrooms and 50% for 
those with one bedroom.   

6.2.18 The proposal incorporates approximately 2,583 square metres of amenity 
space of which 1065 square metres is in the form of private gardens, 848 
square metres is balconies/terraces, while 670 square metres is communal 
garden and patio.  This equates to a 53% provision for the houses and 
maisonettes and a 21% provision for the flats.  In addition, significantly more 
than 15% is provided in the form of terraces and balconies. 

6.2.19 Taking each element in turn, the gardens proposed are of similar sizes to 
those present in serving the surrounding terraces properties.  They are of a 
regular shape and a reasonable depth (between 9 and 11 metres).  
Compared wit the form and layout of neighbouring residential properties, this 
quantum of provision is consistent with this and, in the context of this and the 
desire for regeneration, is considered to provide high quality private amenity 
space in what is an urban environment.  As a result, it is not considered the 
shortfall in respect of the housing would warrant the refusal of this application. 

6.2.20 In respect of the maisonettes, these units are provided with large private roof 
terraces of 35 square metres and have the use of the communal garden and 
patio space.  In addition, with regard to the flats, where design consideration 
permit, the vast majority of the flats benefit from private balconies in excess of 

Page 47



5 square metres.  The communal space is of a regular shape, benefits from 
natural surveillance and is considered to provide a usable space.  
Nevertheless, is recognised that the scheme is deficient against the normally 
applied amenity space standards. 

6.2.21 In mitigation of this, it must be noted that the site in located within a town 
centre location where there would normally be a degree of flexibility in the 
provision of amenity space especially where accommodation is being 
provided above commercial premises. In addition, the site benefits from being 
in close proximity to both Florence Hayes Adventure Playground and St 
James Open Space.  Having regard to the sites location, guidance within 
PPS1 and PPS3 provides for a more flexible approach to planning standards. 
It is therefore considered that off site improvements to improve local open 
space could address the reduced level of on site provision.  Moreover, it is 
considered that such a contribution, provided it is appropriately allocated, 
would meet the tests of Circular 05/05 and would accord with the objectives of 
the Mayor’s Supplementary Planning Guidance on Providing for Children and 
Young People's Play and Informal Recreation.

6.2.22 Such a contribution would need to address the immediate shortfall, in 
particular in children’s play space.  In light of this it is considered that 
improvements to St Johns Open Space, which is opposite the site and within 
a couple of minutes walk, should be sought.  In this instance, having regard to 
the extent of the deficiency, it is considered that a sum of £50,000 will be 
required by a S106 agreement to improve the facility.

6.2.23 Having regard to all of the above considerations, on balance, it is considered 
the proposed amenity space provision, on and off site, is acceptable. 

6.3 Effect of Retail on Upper Edmonton District Centre

6.3.1 The scheme includes the provision of 1,092 square metres of retail floor 
space, this represents a reduction of approximately 400 square metres from 
the retail floor space being demolished.  However, the space provided is more 
usable and has been produced to meet the needs of retailers in respect of 
plot width and depth.  Consequently, this level of provision is considered 
acceptable. 

6.3.2 The retail floor space has been designed to allow a number of different 
divisions of this space; this includes a double height section at the southern 
end of the frontage block.  The plans show the retail space as four units, but it 
is likely to be further divided into a larger number of smaller units when let.  In 
respect of the double height unit, this may be occupied by a small 
supermarket.  There is no objection to such a flexible approach but it is 
considered important to limit the maximum floor area of the units to ensure 
that such a premises does not harm the existing retail off within the centre.   

6.3.3 With this in mind, the existing parade has a strong retail offer with 
approximately 65% of the retail uses remaining within A1.  This is consistent 
with saved objectives of the Policy (II)S8.  It will therefore be necessary to 
control the mix of uses to ensure that there remains a strong retail offering but 
allows a range of uses to aid variety.  It is considered that a restriction of 65% 
of the floorspace to A1 uses, along with a further restriction that there should 
be no more than one A4 use and two A3 uses within the parade is an 
acceptable balance to ensure the vitality and viability of the parade. 

Page 48



6.3.4 Further conditions will be required in respect of opening hours, delivery hours, 
plant and air conditioning equipment and noise controls for any A3 or A4 
uses.

6.3.5 Overall, subject to the conditions set out above, the retail impact of the 
scheme is considered acceptable. 

6.4 Community Use

6.4.1 The scheme includes a 180 square metre community building.  The submitted 
details indicate that a competition will be run in the local area to find a suitable 
community group for the building.  It is considered this element of the scheme 
has a significant public benefit.  It will be necessary to secure the long-term 
future of the community building within the legal agreement.  The proposed 
community is considered acceptable. 

6.4.2 Having regard to each of the above sections, it is considered the proposed 
development would have an acceptable impact on the character of the 
surrounding area.  

6.5  Impact on Neighbouring Properties

6.5.1 The site benefits from the fact that commercial properties and their associated 
rear car parks front Fore Street to the north and south of the application site.  
As a result, the bulk of the frontage building has a far more limited impact on 
the surrounding properties due to the separation distances involved.  In 
addition, the removal of the existing 11 storey block provides for significant 
improvements to the surrounding properties.   

6.5.2 There are some concerns regarding overlooking from the terraces serving the 
maisonettes to the rear gardens of the existing terraced properties fronting 
Cowper Road.  However, there is separation of 14 metres at the nearest point 
and it is considered the situation would be an improvement over the more 
direct overlooking that occurred from the existing high rise tower.  Whilst there 
would undoubtedly be further views from the rear of the proposed block 
fronting Fore Street of these rear gardens and the surrounding buildings, it is 
considered having regard to both increased separation distances involved 
that on balance, the views from the existing tower block and the sites urban 
context, the level of amenity available to these properties would not be unduly 
prejudiced.

6.5.3 Turning to the relationship between the existing and proposed properties on 
the opposite side of Alpha Road,  there would be window to window distances 
of only 16 metres, against a standard of 22-25 metres.  However, the 
proposed houses reflect the existing building line of the street and such views 
would be across a public road rather than private gardens.  In such situations, 
distancing standards are always applied more flexibly and largely dictated by 
prevailing urban layouts and whilst there are some concerns that the 
proposed scheme includes second floor windows, these are set back 
between 1 to 1.5 metres from the front façade. In this urban and public realm 
context, the relationship is considered acceptable.   

6.5.4 The dwelling proposed adjacent to no. 29 Alpha Road has been revised as a 
result of pre-application discussions to ensure that it does not breach a 30 

Page 49



degree line taken from the nearest window of no. 29.  As a result, it is 
considered the proposal would not unacceptably affect the outlook from this 
property.

6.5.5 The proposed courtyard dwellings facing east to west would have window to 
window distances to the rear of the existing dwellings fronting Buckstone 
Road of between 18 and 24 metres.  Whilst not wholly compliant with 
normally applied standards, particularly as the scheme includes second floor 
windows in line with the rear façade, the garden depths mirror those of the 
existing properties and the pattern of the surround area. 

6.5.6 In respect of the residential properties on the opposite side of Fore Street, 
including no. 79 Fore Street which is currently being refurbished for 
residential purposes and the previously converted St James Court, again, 
given the proposed height of the frontage element, there would be the 
potential for overlooking from the proposed development to these surrounding 
properties, especially as there are balconies proposed on the front elevation.  
However, these views would be across a busy road within a District Centre 
and having considered the relevant relationships, it is considered there would 
be no unacceptable loss of privacy to these properties.  

6.5.7 A Daylight and Sunlight Assessment has been submitted with the application 
to show the impact of the taller elements of the building on the surrounding 
residential properties.  The report confirms that there will be some impact 
from the development on the surrounding properties, in particular the 
Vicarage at St James Court and Corolwian House.  However, the extent of 
the impact is limited and is with the BRE guideline levels;  the report confirms 
that the properties are afforded relatively generous lighting level levels for 
such an urban environment.  Having regard to the surrounding context of the 
site, and, in particular, that the scheme has been designed to minimise such 
impacts, this element of the scheme is considered acceptable. 

6.5.8 The access to Cowper Road reflects the existing situation. Moreover, there 
would likely be a reduction in its impact due to the closing off of the through 
route from Alpha Road.

6.5.9 It is considered that the residential elements of the proposal would not result 
in an unacceptable level of noise and disturbance to nearby residents.  In 
respect of the commercial elements, conditions are proposed to control such 
impacts in the retail section below.   

6.5.10 In respect of the concerns raised regarding disruption during construction,  
this is not a basis upon which planning permission could be refused.  
However, a condition is proposed requiring a construction management plan 
to be submitted for approval which will seek to management the potential 
effects.

6.5.11 Overall, it is considered the proposal will not have an unacceptable impact on 
the amenities of neighbouring properties. 

6.6 Standard of Residential Accommodation

6.6.1 The proposed units have been designed to meet the London Housing Design 
Guide and the 2008 Housing Quality Indicator standards for the affordable 
and private units respectively.  With very few minor exceptions, these 

Page 50



standards meet or exceed the Council’s own guidance on minimum unit sizes.  
All of the units meet the lifetime homes standards. 

6.6.2 There are concerns that some of the units are single aspect.  However, where 
possible this has been avoided. Where it does occur the aspect is either east 
or west rather than north.

6.6.3 The spatial relationship between blocks / dwellings is good thus creating  
acceptable levels of outlook and daylight for individual units.  The closest 
relationship concerns the 8 metre separation distance between the rear of the 
properties fronting Alpha Road and the flank elevation of one of the courtyard 
blocks and the siting of the courtyard block that is situated at 90 degrees to 
the Fore Street block.  However, having regard to the urban context of the 
site, and the fact that this relationship relates to new build, it is considered 
sufficient to provide an acceptable residential environment. 

6.6.4 The application is accompanied by a detailed noise assessment.  The report 
highlights significant noise levels, particularly at night-time, from traffic on 
Fore Street.  This will have the greatest impact on the western façade of the 
building, which will essentially screen much of the remainder of the 
development.  The noise levels at the western façade fall within PPG24 
categories C and D, for day-time and night-time respectively.  Within these 
categories PPG24 provides that planning permission could be refused unless 
appropriate mitigation is included.  In this case, the report suggests mitigation 
measures in the form of thermal double glazing to reduce the impact of the 
noise to within guidance levels.  Although opening windows would reduce the 
effectiveness of this mitigation, it is noted that this reflects the existing 
situation of properties along Fore Street, many of which will have far 
protection against noise and is not an uncommon situation for development in 
town centres where residential accommodation exists above retail / 
commercial activities.  Comments are awaited from the Environmental Health 
Officers and will be reported at the meeting, but these are likely to support the 
case that appropriate mitigation measures can be secured by condition. 

6.6.5 EDF Energy note that the development would involve residential 
accommodation being  in close proximity of the existing substation within the 
site.  It is not viable to relocate the substation and having regard to all of the 
other factors limiting the layout, it is considered that the most effective method 
of addressing this constraint is mitigation through the construction process.  
This will be secured by condition, which will require an examination of the 
noise and vibration impacts from the substation, with associated mitigation 
measures.

6.6.6 The development is capable of achieving Secured by Design recognition and 
a condition is proposed securing a further assessment to seek to obtain this 
accreditation. 

6.6.7 Overall, the quality of the proposed accommodation is considered acceptable. 

6.7  Traffic Generation

6.7.1 Details of the predicted traffic generation associated with the proposed 
development are included within Section 6 of the Transport Assessment.  The 
predicted traffic flows have been derived from the TRAVL database and then 
due to the small sample size of comparable sites the TRAVL data have been 

Page 51



supplemented with data from the London Travel Demand Survey 2005-2008 
(LTDS) for the Borough of Enfield. This is deemed acceptable to T&T.  

According to the table above the proposed residential element will generate 
approximately 151 daily two-way trips. This trip generation is acceptable. 

6.7.2 With regard to the proposed commercial and community uses, due to the 
scale of change in floor area, no trip generation assessment for the 
commercial and community elements has been conducted as it is highly likely 
that in fact there will be a net decrease in trips to these land uses. This 
approach is considered acceptable. 

6.7.3 Concerns have been raised regarding construction traffic and the submitted 
Transport Assessment does not include any information on a proposed 
construction traffic management. It is therefore recommended that a condition 
be imposed for the provision of a Construction Traffic Management Plan to 
demonstrate how the needs traffic related to demolition and new build will be 
catered for. The Plan should also include a contractors parking strategy. 

6.8 Access and Servicing

6.8.1 It is proposed that the southern section of the adopted road and its access to 
Alpha Road will be formally stopped up and a new private site access 
provided to the east of the existing adopted road/Alpha Road junction. This 
will service the residential units in the south and eastern section of the site 
and will also be used by service vehicles for this section of the site. 

6.8.2 The access from Cowper Road will remain open but the road will be 
transformed into a private gated cul-de-sac, only for the use of the residents 
and vehicles servicing the north-western section of the development. It is 
proposed that both site access points will be gated and waiting bays (5m 
long) will be assigned for each access so that vehicles wishing to enter the 
site can do so without disrupting the flow of traffic.  

6.8.3 Whilst the general idea of the site access arrangement is considered 
acceptable for smaller vehicles visiting the site the primary concern relates to 
access for refuse, small delivery and emergency vehicles and whether they 
would be able to turn into the site from Alpha and Cowper Roads and reverse 
back again onto the public highway without compromising highway safety or 
creating congestion on these narrow roads. Vehicle tracking analysis 
undertaken for both access points determined that whilst a large car will not 

Page 52



have difficulty completing the turning movements necessary to access the site 
it failed to show whether emergency and large refuse vehicles will be able to 
do so.  This position needs to be clarified and a swept path analysis 
undertaken and thus a condition is requested requiring  the tracking 
movements of a large refuse and emergency vehicle to be provided.. 

.
6.8.4 As no formal footways are provided, it is assumed that the internal access 

road will be shared use.  As a result, it is important that proper pedestrian 
inter-visibility splays from the proposed access can be achieved and are 
provided. The pedestrian inter-visibility of 2.0m x 2.0m at the back of footway 
provided at the east of the southern access appears to be compromised 
however it is considered that this can be achieved through the provision of 
appropriate boundary treatments and as a result, this matter could be dealt 
with by condition should planning permission be granted.  

6.9 Vehicular & Cycle Parking

6.9.1 The number of spaces that can be provided within the site needs to be 
assessed against the relevant parking standard and any departure from 
standards needs to be justified in terms of satisfying predicted demand.   

6.9.2 The current planning application proposes a total car parking provision of 29 
(of which 2 will be car club bays, 6 will be in garages and the rest will be 
dedicated for the use of house/maisonette units). No dedicated parking will be 
provided for flats; however future residents will be encouraged to use the 
Trafalgar Place Car Park. The intention within the application is that this car 
park is passed to the private owner to manage as a satellite car park for 
Highmead residents. 

6.9.3 The parking standard for residential, as set out in Table A4.2 of The London 
Plan, for sites with a PTAL of 4 such as the proposed site is: 

Against this standard, the maximum number of parking spaces that should be  
provided is 128 spaces and what needs to be assessed to whether the 29  
parking spaces are sufficient based on site circusmatsnaces and access to 
public transport. 

6.9.4 To inform this, a Parking Impact Assessment for the site has been undertaken 
based on the levels of car ownership. The results showed that 95 flats will 
create demand for 84 car parking spaces whist 25 houses and maisonettes 
would require 19 parking spaces, leading to a total demand of 103 parking 
spaces. Bearing in mind the fact that only 26 spaces will be provided on-site, 
this means that 77 spaces would still need to be accommodated on street or 
at Trafalgar Place Car Park, which can accommodate 45 cars.

6.9.5 In order to establish the impact of an increase in on-street parking demand 
could have on the surrounding streets, parking surveys were undertaken in 
August and November 2010 which revealed that between 159 and 213 on-
street parking spaces were available within a 5 minute walk of the site on a 

Page 53



weekday. At the weekend between 125 and 205 spaces were available within 
the same distance (table below). 

6.9.6 The on street parking results revealed in the Transport Assessment show that 
this demand can be accommodated on the surrounding streets. Moreover the 
submitted Transport Assessment proposes the following parking mitigation 
measures:
- car club bays- there will be 2 car club bays provided on-site which 

have the potential to reduce parking demand by 20 spaces. 
- Trafalgar Place Car Park- this car park located to the north of the site 

is currently underutilised and as it was revealed by the parking survey 
has a potential of accommodating up to 45 car parking spaces. 

6.9.7 The proposed parking provision and mitigation methods are considered 
acceptable on the basis that the proposed residential flats will have a car free 
element involved. A strong Travel Plan can be secured by conditions and 
Section 106.  

6.9.8 It is noted that the proposed car parking provision includes 3 disabled spaces, 
which the Design and Access Statement states have been located as near as 
possible to their intended units.  This overall provision of disabled spaces 
within the site is acceptable; however these should have a 1.2m clear area to 
the side and rear which is not indicated on the proposed layout drawing.  This 
can be secured by a condition 

6.9.9 With reference to the parking layout, this is generally acceptable and meets 
the required standards. However, around the sub station, there is a need to 
review the position of the adjoining car park.. A condition is therefore 
proposed to ensure this is addressed 

6.9.10 It is considered that  there is also a potential for informal parking to occur 
within the site which may result in vehicles not being able to gain access, or 
having to reverse out if the turning space is unavailable. In order to address 
this issue a Parking management plan demonstrating preventive measures 
against illegal parking as well as explaining spaces assignment will be 
required by a condition. 

6.10 Cycle Parking

6.10.1 It is proposed that the development will provide 137 cycle parking spaces in 
total. This is in accordance with the cycle parking standards as set out in 
Council’s Cycle Action Plan. Details of the design of the secure/covered cycle 
parking spaces, their siting and number/phasing can be addressed through 
the implementation of a condition. 

Page 54



6.10.2 Whilst the number of the proposed cycle parking spaces appears to be 
acceptable the location of some of the wall mounted cycle facilities within in 
the same enclosure is not ideal. To explore opportunities to minimise this 
occurrence, a condition is suggested 

6.11  Affordable Housing Provision

6.11.1 The scheme includes the provision of 24 affordable units (20% of the overall 
scheme) comprising 9 one bed, 3 two bed and 8 three bed flats and 2 three 
bed maisonettes.  This falls short of the 40% affordable housing target set by 
Core Policy 3.  This is a Borough wide target and a detailed viability 
assessment has been provided with the application and the report concludes 
that the scheme cannot sustain additional affordable housing; indeed it is 
clear that the viability of the scheme is very finely balanced such that 
additional S106 contributions or affordable housing would render the scheme 
unviable.

6.11.2 Moreover, the number of affordable units is based upon the scheme receiving 
grant funding.  The Highmead scheme is listed as a specific priority for such 
funding.  In the event that a lesser sum is available to facilitate affordable 
housing on this site, it will be necessary to include a clause within the legal 
agreement that allows for a reduction in affordable units commensurate with 
the relative reduction in grant obtained. 

6.11.3 Whilst there will be two three bed maisonettes, there are concerns that none 
of the houses will be affordable.  However, because of the difference in 
values of each unit type, if houses were put forward as affordable the overall 
number off affordable units would need to be reduced to ensure the scheme 
remained viable. The resultant level of affordable housing has been arrived at 
in discussion with the Housing Enabling Officer.  The sites location in an area 
with a high proportion of existing social housing also suggests that the 
introduction of a larger proportion of private accommodation has the potential 
to provide a more balanced community. 

6.11.4 Overall, therefore, the 24 intermediate affordable units proposed, including a 
cascade mechanism, is considered acceptable. 

6.12  Housing Mix

6.12.1 The Enfield Strategic Housing Market Assessment (2010) identifies a 
significant need for larger sized 3 and 4 bedroom units.  Core Policy 5 of the 
emerging Core Strategy seeks to secure market housing at in the following 
proportion: 20% 1 and 2 bed flats (1-3 persons), 15% 2 bed houses (4 
persons), 45% 3 bed houses , (5-6 persons), 20% 4+ bed houses (6+ 
persons).

6.12.2 The submitted scheme provides 45 one bed (37.5%), 32 two bed (27%), 28 
three bed (23%) and 15 four bed units (12.5%).  Twenty two houses are 
proposed and three maisonettes or 21% of the scheme. 

6.12.3 There are concerns that the scheme lacks sufficient family sized units to 
comply with the Core Policy 5.  Although this falls below the desired level of 
family sized housing, this is a Borough wide target. Taking into account its 
town centre location, the mixed nature of the scheme  and the wider 
regeneration objectives, it is considered that higher proportions of one and 

Page 55



two bedroom units are justifiable.  In addition, the maximum amount of 
houses possible within the constraints of the site has been provided; houses 
would not be appropriate on the Fore Street frontage.  The scheme includes 6 
affordable and 6 private units, 10% of the total, that are designed to meet the 
Wheelchair Design Guidance Notes, which will be secured by condition. 

6.12.4 Overall, on balance, the proposed mix of housing is considered acceptable. 

6.13  Sustainable Design and Construction

6.13.1 The application includes both a renewable energy assessment and a Code 
for Sustainable Homes Pre-Assessment.  The Sustainable Design Officer has 
raised concerns does not currently meet Code Level 3 for the flats and 4 for 
the houses, which were the standards agreed at pre-application stage.  Whilst 
a code 4 across the site would have been preferable, this is more difficult to 
achieve where there is limited roof space relative to the amount of 
accommodation proposed and where the viability of the scheme is finely 
balanced.  It is considered the outstanding matters to achieve the requisite 
credits are attainable and can be addressed through planning conditions to 
secure both interim and final certification of the scheme.   

6.13.2 The commercial and community elements of the scheme are required to 
achieve BREEAM rating of ‘Very Good’, which will be secured by condition. 

6.13.3 The scheme includes an Energy Assessment that concludes that photovoltaic 
panels provide the most effective renewable energy solution for the site.  
These achieve a carbon saving of 9.6%, which does falls below the 20% 
London Plan target.  As justification, a detailed explanation of the competing 
priorities for roof space, for amenity and brown roofs is provided within the 
submitted planning statement and  it is noted that taller buildings present 
problems with such installations due to the ratio of roof space to internal 
accommodation.  Alternatives technologies have had to be discounted due 
the viability of the scheme.  It is further noted that the Sustainable Design 
Officer confirms that 10% renewables are required for CfSH credits.  Having 
regard to all the above matters, it is considered, on balance, that a 
requirement of 10% is an acceptable level of renewables for this site.  This 
will be secured by condition. 

6.13.4 The scheme includes a Site Waste Management Plan, which confirms that a 
target for the site has been set that less that 9.2 cubic metres of waste will be 
generated per 100 square metres of floor area. 

6.13.5 The application includes Site Investigation reports in respect of potential land 
contamination.  The report identifies a number of potential contaminants and 
linkages that may result in harm to health.  Mitigation measures are identified 
including the importation of clean topsoil  However, a condition requiring the 
mitigation measures set out in the report to be completed is proposed. 

6.13.6 The application incorporates a Sustainable Urban Drainage System approach 
and this will be secured by condition. 

6.13.7 Thames Water has advised that works will be necessary to provide additional 
water supply infrastructure to meet the needs of the development.  In 
accordance with their request, a condition proposed requiring reports to be 
provided including the identification of a suitable connection point. 

Page 56



6.13.8 Overall, having regard to all of the above factors, the proposed sustainable 
design features are considered acceptable. 

6.14  Biodiversity

6.14.1 The application is accompanied by a Phase 1 Habitat Survey.  Formal 
comments are awaited from the Biodiversity Officer, which will be reported at 
the committee meeting.  However, the report concludes that there is limited 
potential for the buildings to support bats and the trees low potential to shelter 
small numbers of bats during summer months.  The report notes signs of 
birds, in particular feral pigeons, and that the building has the potential house 
breeding birds.  The report provides mitigation measures for the felling of the 
trees and demolition of the building.  

6.14.2 The report also recommends brown roofs and integral bat and bird boxes 
should be incorporated within the building.  It is noted that roof space is at a 
premium in respect of the provision of photovoltaic panels.  However, a 
condition will secure a report to integrate these features, including brown 
roofs where possible.  Moreover, the report will examine opportunities for 
biodiversity improvements to the open spaces across the site.  The 
Sustainable Design Officer confirms this will also improve the CfSH scores. 

6.14.3 Overall, mitigation measures will prevent unacceptable impacts on protected 
species and a further report will secure biodiversity improvements. 

6.15  S106 Matters

6.10.1 For the reasons set out within the report above, an agreement under S106 
will be required to secure the following, along the relevant monitoring fees: 

- An education contribution of £118,214 
Primary 6 places x £13,115 per place = £78,690 
Secondary 2 places x £19,762 per place = £39,524 

- Affordable housing  
 The provision of 24 units of affordable housing (intermediate) in 

accordance with accommodation schedule, but subject to a 
cascade mechanism based upon the availability of grant funding 

- Employment and Training Initiative 
- Open space contribution of £50,000 

 Toward improvements to local open space 
- Community Use 

 Provision of 180 square metres of community floorspace  
- Highway improvements works  

 Junction Works at Alpha Road and Cowper Road  
 Reinstatement of disused crossover 
 Provision of a loading/unloading bay  

- Restriction that prevents occupiers of the units owning residents parking 
permits

- A travel plan for future residents 
- Provision and Management of a Car Club 
- - Management / Linkage/ Continued Availability of Trafalgar Place car 

park

Page 57



7.  Conclusion

7.1 It is considered the scheme provides for an appropriate scale of development 
having regard to its sustainable location.  The brings forward a development 
that is identified with the Core Strategy and regard must be had to the wider 
regeneration benefits to the surrounding are which results in a significant 
planning gain from the development proceeding.  In this respect, whilst 
acknowledging the scheme is finely balanced financially, it is considered 
significant weight must be afforded to achieving the Core Strategy objectives 
set out above and the viability of the scheme which leads to 20% intermediate 
affordable housing and an overall high quality development.  The impact on 
neighbouring properties has been considered acceptable.  The S106 
contributions will address the impact of the proposal on local infrastructure.  In 
light of the above, it is considered that the proposed development is 
acceptable for the following reasons 

1. The proposed development would contribute to increasing the range of 
the Boroughs housing stock, having regard to London Plan Policies 3A.1 
and 3A.2, as well as providing units of an acceptable size and quality 
having regard to Policies (I)GD1, (I)GD2, (II)GD3 and (II)H16 of the 
Unitary Development Plan, adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance 
on Flat Conversions and policies 3D.2 and 3D.3 of the London Plan 
(2008), as well as the objectives of PPS1, PPS3 and PPS4.  

2. The proposed development would not have an unacceptable impact on 
the character and appearance of the area having regard to policies 
(I)GD1, (I)GD2, (II)GD1 and (II)GD3 of the Unitary Development Plan as 
well as the objectives of PPS1 and PPS3.  

3. The proposed development would not unacceptably impact on the 
amenities of nearby residents having regard to policies (I)GD1, (I)GD2, 
(II)GD1 and (II)H8 of the Unitary Development Plan, as well as the 
objectives of PPS1 and PPS3.  

4. The proposed development would not give rise to unacceptable on street 
parking, congestion or highway safety issues, having regard to Policies 
(II)GD6, (II)GD8 and (II)T13 as of the Unitary Development Plan, Policy 
3C.23 of the London Plan (2008), as well as the objectives of PPG13. 

8.  Recommendation 

8.1 That in accordance with Regulation 4 of the Town & Country Planning 
General Regulations 1992, and subject to the completion of a S106 
Agreement, planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED subject to 
conditions:

1. Twelve of the units shall be built to Wheelchair accessible standards, in 
accordance with the CouncilsWheelchair Design Guidance Notes.    

Reason: In the interests of providing for the varied needs of future 
residents.

2. The development shall not commence until details of the external 
finishing materials to be used have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be 

Page 58



constructed in accordance with the approved details.  

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance. 

3. The development shall not commence until details of the surfacing 
materials to be used within the development including footpaths, access 
roads and parking areas and road markings have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The surfacing shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved detail before the 
development is occupied or use commences.  

Reason: To ensure that the development does not prejudice highway 
safety and a satisfactory appearance. 

4. The development shall not commence until plans detailing the existing 
and proposed ground levels including the levels of any proposed 
buildings, roads and/or hard surfaced areas have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development 
shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details.  

Reason: To ensure that levels have regard to the level of surrounding 
development, gradients and surface water drainage. 

5. The site shall be enclosed in accordance with details to be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, this shall include 
the provision of low walls and railsings to aid natural survailance of 
communal areas. The means of enclosure shall be erected in accordance 
with the approved detail before the development is occupied.  

Reason: To ensure satisfactory appearance and safeguard the privacy, 
amenity and safety of adjoining occupiers and the public and in the 
interests of highway safety. 

6. The parking area(s) forming part of the development shall only be used 
for the parking of private motor vehicles and shall not be used for any 
other purpose.

Reason: To ensure that the development complies with Unitary 
Development Plan Policies and to prevent the introduction of activity 
which would be detrimental to amenity. 

7. The development shall not commence until details of trees, shrubs and 
grass to be planted on the site and along the surrounding street frontages 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The planting scheme shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details in the first planting season after completion or 
occupation of the development whichever is the sooner. Any planting 
which dies, becomes severely damaged or diseased within five years of 
planting shall be replaced with new planting in accordance with the 
approved details.

Reason: To provide a satisfactory appearance and ensure that the 
development does not prejudice highway safety. 

Page 59



8. The development shall not commence until details of refuse storage 
facilities including facilities for the recycling of waste to be provided within 
the development, in accordance with the London Borough of Enfield – 
Waste and Recycling Planning Storage Guidance ENV 08/162, have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The facilities shall be provided in accordance with the approved 
details before the development is occupied or use commences.  

Reason: In the interests of amenity and the recycling of waste materials 
in support of the Boroughs waste reduction targets. 

9. The development shall not commence on site until a Site Management 
Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The construction methodology shall contain: a photographic 
condition survey of the roads and footways leading to the site, details of 
construction access and vehicle routing to the site, arrangements for 
vehicle servicing and turning areas, arrangements for the parking of 
contractors vehicles, arrangements for wheel cleaning, arrangements for 
the storage of materials and hours of work. The development shall then 
be undertaken in accordance with the approved construction 
methodology unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.

Reason: To ensure the implementation of the development does not lead 
to damage to the existing roads, prejudice highway safety or the free-flow 
of traffic and to minimise disruption to neighbouring properties. 

10. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order 1995, or any amending Order, 
no external windows or doors other than those indicated on the approved 
drawings shall be installed in the development hereby approved without 
the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.  

Reason: To safeguard the privacy of the occupiers of adjoining 
properties.

11. The development shall not commence until a scheme to insulated the 
building against noise and vibration from the adjacent substation has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The building(s) shall be constructed in accordance with the 
approved detail before the development is occupied.  

Reason: To ensure that the occupiers of the buildings are protected from 
external noise pollution. 

12. The development shall not commence until details of any external lighting 
proposed have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The approved external lighting shall be provided 
before the development is occupied.  

Reason: To ensure that the development does not prejudice the 
amenities of adjoining occupiers and / or the visual amenities of the 
surrounding area. 

Page 60



13. Detail of the proposed works to Trafalgar Place car park including 
permiter fencing, external lighting, surfaccing and CCTV, shall be 
submitted to and approved by the local planning auhtoiy. No part of the 
residential hereby approved shall be occpuied until the approved 
measures have been implemeted unless otherwise agreed by the local 
planning auhtority. 

Reason: in order to ensure adequate parking is available to serve the 
development and to avoid conditions prejudicial to the free flow and 
safety of traffic on the adjoining  highway. 

14 Details of the proposed play equipment and other furniture within the  
development including details and specification for its future 
management shall be submitted to and approved by the local planning 
authority. The approved equipment shall be installed prior to the 
occupation of the first residential unit unless otherwise agreed in 
writing and thereafter, shall be maintained for such purpose..  

Reason: in the interests of providing a high quality residential 
environment and to ensure adequate facilities are provided for the 
benefit of future residents having regard to the Council’ adopted 
amenity space standards. 

15 The development shall not commence until details of the security 
features design of secure/covered cycle parking spaces have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The approved details shall thereafter be installed and permanently 
retained for cycle parking. 

Reason: To ensure the provision of cycle parking spaces in line with 
the Council's adopted standards. 

16 Details of a shop front and signage strategy for the ground floor 
commercial units on the Fore Street Frontage, shall be submitted prior 
to the commence of the development.  The development shall be 
carried out in accordance with this starfey unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the local planning authority. 

Reason: in the interests of maintaining the appearance of the 
development and the visual amenities of the street scene. 

17 No less than 65% of the retail floor space as shown on submitted 
plans shall be for uses falling within Class A1 of the Town and Country 
Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended) and  no more than 
one A4 use and two A3 uses shall be permissible within the approved 
retail parade at any one time  

Reason: To ensure the vitality and viability of the parade. 

18 The restaurant and hot food take away premises permitted (with 
reference to Condition 17)  shall only be open for business between 
the hours of  08:00 and Midnight Monday to Saturday and 09:00 to 
23:00 on Sunday and all activity associated with the use shall cease 
within 1 hour of the closing time specified above.  

Page 61



Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of adjoining and 
nearby residential prop 

19 Deliveries and collections to and from the premises shall only take 
place between the hours of  07:30 and 18:00 Monday to Saturday and 
at no other times.

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of nearby 
residential properties. 

20 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order 1995, or any amending 
Order, no statalite dishes shall be affixed to the external elevations of 
the development. 

Reason: in order to maintain the integrity of the design and the visual 
appreance of the development within the surroung area. 

21 Prior to any of the reatil  premises being occpuied for purposes within 
Use Class A3 or A4 (see Condition 17), the use shall not commence 
until details of measures to insulate the unit to minimise the transfer of 
noise to residetial accomodation on the upper floors have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The units shall be fitted out  in accordance with the approved detail 
before the development is occupied.  

Reason: To ensure that the occupiers of the buildings are protected 
from external noise pollution. 

22 No development shall commence until details of the specification and 
appearance of any fume extraction and/or ventilation plant required in 
connection with the use have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority: the necessary plant to be 
incporated in to the fabric and design of the building. The plant shall 
be installed in accordance with the approved details before the use 
commences.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance and safeguard amenity. 

23 Details of a strategy for incoporating providing a communal satalite 
telecomunications systen for the benefit of all residents, shall be 
submitted to and approved by the local planning  authority. The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with this approved 
strategy unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning 
auhtority.

Reason: in order to maintain the integrity of the design and the visual 
appreance of the development within the surroung area. 

24 No development shall commence until details of a Sustainable Urbans 
Drainage scheme have been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the local planning authority. The developemtn to be implemeted in 
accordance with these approved details.  

Page 62



Reason: in the interests of sustainable development and minimising 
surface water  run off into the main sewerage system  

25 Details of  the mitigation measures identified in the Biodiversity Phase 
1 Habitat Survey including a strategy for securing biodiversity 
improvements to the open spaces across the site shall be submitted to 
and approved by the local planning authority prior to any development 
commencing. The development to be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details / strategy. 

Reason: in the interests of safeguarding and improving the biodiversity 
value of the site and the wider locality. 

26 With reference to the submitted noise assessment report, details of a 
scheme of mitigation to include thermal double glazing and whole 
house ventilation systems where necessary shall be submitted to and 
approved by the local planning authority. prior to any development 
commencing. The development to be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details / strategy 

 Reason: in order to ensure an adequate level of residential amenity for 
future residents. 

27 The development shall not commence until a scheme to deal with 
contamination of the site including an investigation and assessment of 
the extent of contamination and the measures to be taken to avoid risk 
to health and the environment has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Remediation shall be carried 
out in accordance with the approved scheme and the Local Planning 
Authority provided with a written warranty by the appointed specialist 
to confirm implementation prior to the commencement of 
development.  

Reason: To avoid risk to public health and the environment. 

28 No plant, machinery, goods, products or waste material shall be 
deposited or stored on any open part of the site unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of amenity and the appearance of the site. 

29 Notwithstanding the provisions of Classes A-E of the Town and 
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 or 
any amending Order, no buildings or extensions to buildings shall be 
erected to the houses hereby approved without the prior approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority.  

Reason: in order to safeguard the appearance of the development  
and to preserve adequate levels of residential amenity. 

30 No development shall commence until details of any works necessary 
to address the additional demands associated with eh development on 
the water / sewerage infrastructure and / or agreement with Thames 
Water have been submitted to the local planning authority and 

Page 63



approved. The development to be carried out in accordance with 
these details. 

Reason: In order to ensure the necessary water infrastructure exists to 
serve the development 

infrastructure has insufficient capacity to meet the additional 
demands for the proposed development and request a planning 
condition to address the magnitude of any new additional capacity 
requirement along with a suitable connection point.  

31 The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later 
than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of the decision 
notice.

Reason: To comply with the provisions of S.51 of the Planning & Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 

Page 64



Revisions

Project

Drawing

Drawn by Checked by

Status

RevDrawing No.

Job Number

DateScale at  A1  ( A3)

Proposed Block Plan

1:200 November 2010

NH  

Planning

PL_101 P1

Copyright  Hawkins\ Brown Architects

 
No implied license exists. This drawing should 

not  be used t o calculate areas for the 
purposes of valuat ion. Do not  scale t his 
drawing. All dimensions to be checked on site 

by the cont ractor and such dimensions to be 
their responsibilit y. All work must  comply with 
relevant  Brit ish Standards and Building 

Regulat ions requirements. Drawing errors and 
omissions to be reported to the architect .

1266

Highmead, Enf ield

P1 Issued for Planning 26/11/10
PLOT  1

PLOT  2

PLOT  3

P
a
g
e
 6

5



Key Plan

Plot 1

Plot 3

Plot 2

3

Site Boundary Site Boundary

Fore Street

Copyright Hawkins\Brown Architects

 
No implied license exists. This drawing should not 
be used to calculate areas for the purposes of 

valuation. Do not scale this drawing. All 
dimensions to be checked on site by the 
contractor and such dimensions to be their 

responsibility. All work must comply with relevant 
British Standards and Building Regulations 
requirements. Drawing errors and omissions to be 

reported to the architect.

Revisions Project

Drawing

Drawn by Checked by

StatusJob Number

DateScale at A1 (A3)

RevDrawing No.

1:200 (1:400)

Planning

Existing

AS

Nov 2010

P1
Site Elevations

DC

Highmead, Enfield

1266

PL_131

3. Cowper Road Elevation 1:200

P1 Issued for Planning 26/11/10

P
a
g
e
 6

6



22-49

4 9

8217

27

2 3

10
Plot 1 Plot 2

13  6

 9

+40.25m AOD

+13.0m AOD

+20.5m AOD

+33.75m AOD+33.75m AOD

+20.5m AOD

+40.25m AOD

14 14

Cowper Road Alpha Road

2828

Key Plan

B A

A
Plot 1

Plot 3

Plot 2

1

2

13 15 17 19 21 23
5 7

9 11

WEIGHT ROWS WEIGHT ROWS

 34 6 11 9

814 3 17 3 1 18

Plot 2 Plot 3

18 12 8

 621

+40.25m AOD

+13.0m AOD

+20.5m AOD

+33.75m AOD

+12.8m AOD +12.6m AOD +12.4m AOD

12

17

+21.77m AOD

+20.65m AOD

+20.75m AOD

+20.25m AOD

  1

Copyright Hawkins\Brown Architects

 
No implied license exists. This drawing should not
be used to calculate areas for the purposes of 

valuation. Do not scale this drawing. All 
dimensions to be checked on site by the 
contractor and such dimensions to be their 

responsibility. All work must comply with relevant 
British Standards and Building Regulations 
requirements. Drawing errors and omissions to be 

reported to the architect.

Revisions Project

Drawing

Drawn by Checked by

StatusJob Number

DateScale at A1 (A3)

RevDrawing No.

1:200 (1:400)

Planning

Proposed Elevations

AS

Nov 2010

P1
Plots 1, 2 + 3

DC

Highmead, Enfield

1266

PL_230

1. Alpha Road Elevation 1:200

2. Fore Street Elevation 1:200

KEY

1. Light brick Type 1 with small percentage dark brick

2. Dark brick with small percentage light brick

3. Light brick Type 1

4. Dark brick

5. Polished aluminium with strung wire for ivy/planters

6. Black painted steel railing

7. Recessed balcony

8. Aluminium framed window

9. Aluminium framed shop front with integral signage

10 Glazed residential entrance with anodised

aluminium surround.

11. Metal Door

12. Aluminium box frame

13. Semi recessed balcony

14. Parapet with decorative pattern of omitting bricks

15. Glazed entrance

16. Anodised aluminium window box for planting.

17. Charcoal grey fibre cement panels

18. Timber entrance door with anodised aluminium 

surround and cover

19. Timber fence

20. Anodised aluminium mesh cladding to existing 

electricity substation

21. Light brick Type 2 for banding 

22. Garage door

23. Aluminium framed sliding door

24. Aluminium framed folding door

25. Charcoal grey single ply membrane

with integrated photovoltaic panels

26. Black painted steel security gates

27. Aluminium edging/panel

28. Metal ventilation panel

P1 Issued for Planning 26/11/10

P
a
g
e
 6

7



Key Plan

B A

A
Plot 1

Plot 3

Plot 2

3

4

4

4 11 9

821

5

7

27

Plot 1

6

+13.0m AOD

+20.5m AOD

+33.75m AOD

2636

Site Boundary

Fore Street

233

Site Boundary

+34.25m AOD

Copyright Hawkins\Brown Architects

No implied license exists. This drawing should 
not be used to calculate areas for the 
purposes of valuation. Do not scale this 
drawing. All dimensions to be checked on site 
by the contractor and such dimensions to be 
their responsibility. All work must comply with 
relevant British Standards and Building 
Regulations requirements. Drawing errors and 
omissions to be reported to the architect.

Revisions Project

Drawing

Drawn by Checked by

StatusJob Number

DateScale at A1 (A3)

RevDrawing No.

1:200 (1:400)

Planning

Proposed Elevations

AS

Nov 2010

P1
Plots 1 + 2

DC

Highmead, Enf ield

1266

PL_231

KEY

1. Light brick Type 1 with small percentage dark brick

2. Dark brick with small percentage light brick

3. Light brick Type 1

4. Dark brick

5. Polished aluminium with strung wire for ivy/planters

6. Black painted steel railing

7. Recessed balcony

8. Aluminium framed window

9. Aluminium framed shop front with integral signage

10 Glazed residential entrance with anodised

aluminium surround.

11. Metal Door

12. Aluminium box frame

13. Semi recessed balcony

14. Parapet with decorative pattern of omitting bricks

15. Glazed entrance

16. Anodised aluminium window box for planting.

17. Charcoal grey fibre cement panels

18. Timber entrance door with anodised aluminium 

surround and cover

19. Timber fence

20. Anodised aluminium mesh cladding to existing 

electricity substation

21. Light brick Type 2 for banding 

22. Garage door

23. Aluminium framed sliding door

24. Aluminium framed folding door

25. Charcoal grey single ply membrane

with integrated photovoltaic panels

26. Black painted steel security gates

27. Aluminium edging/panel

28. Metal ventilation panel

Elevation 3

22-49 1-21

2 3 4

4

821

11

2 3

1011 10 10 1010 5

 Plot 2 Plot 1

21 86

126

+40.25m AOD

+13.0m AOD

+20.5m AOD

+33.75m AOD

+13.0m AOD

Site Boundary Site Boundary

+34.25m AOD

Elevation 4

P1 Issued for Planning 26/11/10

P
a
g
e
 6

8



1

17

1 8 26

 6

Plot 3

23 8
 

17

12

25

1 3

Mews Alpha Road

Site Boundary

+19.00m AOD

+21.35m AOD

+13.00m AOD

+21.65m AOD

+18.80m AOD

+12.65m AOD

1 16 19

17 8

3

6

 Plot 3

122424 23

Site Boundary

Plot 2

826

31

26

+13.00m AOD

+18.80m AOD

+20.65m AOD

+18.80m AOD

+21.75m AOD

+18.40m AOD

+20.25m AOD

+18.40m AOD

+20.25m AOD

 1

Key Plan

B A

A

5

6

7
8

Copyright Hawkins\Brown Architects

 
No implied license exists. This drawing should not
be used to calculate areas for the purposes of 

valuation. Do not scale this drawing. All 
dimensions to be checked on site by the 
contractor and such dimensions to be their 

responsibility. All work must comply with relevant 
British Standards and Building Regulations 
requirements. Drawing errors and omissions to be 

reported to the architect.

Revisions Project

Drawing

Drawn by Checked by

StatusJob Number

DateScale at A1 (A3)

RevDrawing No.

1:200 (1:400)

Planning

Proposed Elevations

AS

Nov 2010

P1
Plot 3
 DC

Highmead, Enfield

1266

PL_232

Elevation 5

KEY

1. Light brick Type 1 with small percentage dark brick

2. Dark brick with small percentage light brick

3. Light brick Type 1

4. Dark brick

5. Polished aluminium with strung wire for ivy/planters

6. Black painted steel railing

7. Recessed balcony

8. Aluminium framed window

9. Aluminium framed shop front with integral signage

10 Glazed residential entrance with anodised

aluminium surround.

11. Metal Door

12. Aluminium box frame

13. Semi recessed balcony

14. Parapet with decorative pattern of omitting bricks

15. Glazed entrance

16. Anodised aluminium window box for planting.

17. Charcoal grey fibre cement panels

18. Timber entrance door with anodised aluminium 

surround and cover

19. Timber fence

20. Anodised aluminium mesh cladding to existing 

electricity substation

21. Light brick Type 2 for banding 

22. Garage door

23. Aluminium framed sliding door

24. Aluminium framed folding door

25. Charcoal grey single ply membrane

with integrated photovoltaic panels

26. Black painted steel security gates

27. Aluminium edging/panel

28. Metal ventilation panel

Elevation 6

1 2

17

16

178

23

Plot 3

17

Alpha Road

Existing Fence

Site Boundary

+19.00m AOD

+20.25m AOD

+20.85m AOD

+19.00m AOD

+20.85m AOD

+15.85m AOD

+13.00m AOD

+18.40m AOD

+20.75m AOD

20

17

Plot 3

2 19231

17 816

1

25

Site Boundary

+19.00m AOD

+21.35m AOD

+13.00m AOD

+19.00m AOD

+20.85m AOD

Plot 2

Elevation 7 Elevation 8

P1 Issued for Planning 26/11/10

P
a
g
e
 6

9



Key Plan

10
11

9

 1 3 5 7 9

2 119

17

1818 8

1720 8

Plot 3

25 6 64

26 26

Plot 2

1Existing Fence

Site Boundary

+19.00m AOD

+20.85m AOD

+15.70m AOD

Copyright Hawkins\Brown Architects

No implied license exists. This drawing should 
not be used to calculate areas for the 
purposes of valuation. Do not scale this 
drawing. All dimensions to be checked on site 
by the contractor and such dimensions to be 
their responsibility. All work must comply with 
relevant British Standards and Building 
Regulations requirements. Drawing errors and 
omissions to be reported to the architect.

Revisions Project

Drawing

Drawn by Checked by

StatusJob Number

DateScale at A1 (A3)

RevDrawing No.

1:200 (1:400)

Planning

Proposed Elevations

AS

Nov 2010

P1
Plot 3

DC

Highmead, Enf ield

1266

PL_233

Elevation 9

KEY

1. Light brick Type 1 with small percentage dark brick

2. Dark brick with small percentage light brick

3. Light brick Type 1

4. Dark brick

5. Polished aluminium with strung wire for ivy/planters

6. Black painted steel railing

7. Recessed balcony

8. Aluminium framed window

9. Aluminium framed shop front with integral signage

10 Glazed residential entrance with anodised

aluminium surround.

11. Metal Door

12. Aluminium box frame

13. Semi recessed balcony

14. Parapet with decorative pattern of omitting bricks

15. Glazed entrance

16. Anodised aluminium window box for planting.

17. Charcoal grey fibre cement panels

18. Timber entrance door with anodised aluminium 

surround and cover

19. Timber fence

20. Anodised aluminium mesh cladding to existing 

electricity substation

21. Light brick Type 2 for banding 

22. Garage door

23. Aluminium framed sliding door

24. Aluminium framed folding door

25. Charcoal grey single ply membrane

26. Black painted steel security gates

27. Aluminium edging/panel

28. Metal ventilation panel

8 11

17 17

Plot 3Alpha Road Community Garden

2033

25

+19.00m AOD

+21.35m AOD

+18.80m AOD

+21.15m AOD

19 21 2313 15 25

2 618

17

22

23 17

 8

Plot 3

Site Boundary

 1

Alpha Road

+18.40m AOD

+20.75m AOD

+19.00m AOD

+21.35m AOD

Elevation 10

Elevation 11

P1 Issued for Planning 26/11/10

P
a
g
e
 7

0



Plot 3Plot 2

Site Boundary
Site Boundary

Key Plan

B A

A
Plot 1

Plot 3

Plot 2

A

A

C
B

B

C

D

D

Plot 3 Plot 2

Site Boundary Site Boundary

Copyright Hawkins\Brown Architects

 
No implied license exists. This drawing should 
not be used to calculate areas for the 
purposes of valuation. Do not scale this 
drawing. All dimensions to be checked on site 
by the contractor and such dimensions to be 
their responsibility. All work must comply with 
relevant British Standards and Building 
Regulations requirements. Drawing errors and 
omissions to be reported to the architect.

Revisions Project

Drawing

Drawn by Checked by

StatusJob Number

DateScale at A1 (A3)

RevDrawing No.

1:200 (1:400)

Planning

Site Section

AS

Nov 2010

P1DC

Highmead, Enf ield

1266

PL_250

Section AA

Section BB

P1 Issued for Planning 26/11/10

P
a
g
e
 7

1



Key Plan

B A

A
Plot 1

Plot 3

Plot 2

A

A

C
B

B

C

D

D

Plot 1 Plot 3Fore Street

Site Boundary Site Boundary

Copyright Hawkins\Brown Architects

No implied license exists. This drawing should 
not be used to calculate areas for the 
purposes of valuation. Do not scale this 
drawing. All dimensions to be checked on site 
by the contractor and such dimensions to be 
their responsibility. All work must comply with 
relevant British Standards and Building 
Regulations requirements. Drawing errors and 
omissions to be reported to the architect.

Revisions Project

Drawing

Drawn by Checked by

StatusJob Number

DateScale at A1 (A3)

RevDrawing No.

1:200 (1:400)

Planning

Site Section

AS

Nov 2010

P1DC

Highmead, Enf ield

1266

PL_251

Section CC

Plot 3Alpha Road Cowper Road

Site Boundary Site Boundary

Section DD

P1 Issued for Planning 26/11/10

P
a
g
e
 7

2



LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD 

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 16th February 2011 

Report of 
Assistant Director, Planning & 
Environmental Protection 

Contact Officer:
Aled Richards  Tel: 020 8379 3857 
Andy Higham  Tel: 020 8379 3848 
Mrs J. Tebbutt Tel: 020 8379 3849

Ward: Highlands

Application Number :  LBE/10/0039 Category: Other Development

LOCATION:  MERRYHILLS PRIMARY SCHOOL, BINCOTE ROAD, ENFIELD, EN2 
7RE

PROPOSAL:  Construction of a MUGA (multi-use games area) to the south of the main 
building.

Applicant Name & Address:
Andrew Fraser, 
Director of ECSL 
P.O. Box 51,  
Civic Centre,
Silver Street,
Enfield,
EN1 3XB 

Agent Name & Address:
Michael Florides, 
BHP Architects 
NICHOLAS HOUSE 
12, RIVER FRONT 
ENFIELD
EN1 3TR 

RECOMMENDATION: That in accordance with Regulation 3 of the Town & Country 
Planning General Regulations 1992, planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED
subject to conditions: 

Agenda Item 8Page 73



Application No:-  LBE/10/0039

34

2

1 32

LI
N
K
SID

E
C

LO
S
E

8

9
to

23

6
1

62

2

4
9

50

36.9m

37

11

24

5

B
IN

C
O

TE
R
O

A
D

12

38

12

Sub Sta

1
to

7

Posts

7
1

B
I N

C
O

T
E

R
O

A
D

32.6m

El

77

7
5

Merryhills Primary School

Games Court

1

6

6
4

54

GLENBROOK
SOUTH

1
0

5

5

GLENBROOK NORTH

Posts

35.7m

1

5

1
1

3

1
1

9

10

1
3

1

1
1

1

8

40.2m

11

11

15

38.4m

25

18

14

5

21

1
2

Clinic and Library

1
2a

FO
X
M

E
A
D

C
LO

S
E

8

5
5

82to116

49

2
2

3
0

1
2

54

3
4

25

46

4
1

6
0

130

1

El Sub Sta

16

1

C
O

T
S
W

O
LD

W
A

Y

4
4

4
3

38

3
2

3
4

4

COTSWOLD

C
O

T
S

W
O

L
D

W
A

Y

G
REEN

5
5

6
7

Posts

Development Control

Scale - 1:2002
Time of plot: 16:29 Date of plot: 02/02/2011

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 240m

© Crown copyright. London Borough of Enfield LA086363,2003

Page 74



1 Site and Surroundings 

1.1 Merryhills School covers an area of approximately 3 hectares accessed from 
Bincote Road and Glenbrook South and comprises a mixture of single storey 
and two storey buildings situated towards the centre of the site. The school 
grounds are of an irregular shape with the land sloping down from the school 
buildings towards Bincote Road and a small brook which runs to the south of 
the school boundary. The school is bordered on three sides by residential 
development. 

2 Proposal 

2.1 Permission is sought for the provision of an all-weather Multi-Use Games 
Area (MUGA) positioned to the south of the site on an existing grassed 
playing field. Netball courts would be marked on the area for formal and 
structured activities. The site coverage would be 36 metres in width and 45 
metres in length. The floor area to be constructed of a green porous tarmac. 
A temporary contractor’s site access road 3.5 m in width would need to be 
constructed to provide temporary access to the site area. The excavated 
grass and turf to be reinstated upon completion. 

3 Relevant Planning Decisions 

3.1 TP/09/1631- Installation of an all weather multi use games area to south side 
of school field. Granted 19 January 2010.  

3.2 LBE/10/0012-Installation of a temporary building to provide 2 classrooms to 
North East of site and additional parking area to south of existing parking 
area. Granted 16 July 2010. 

4 Consultations 

4.1 Statutory and non-statutory consultees

4.1.1 Environment Agency raise no objection. 

4.1.2 Any comments from Sport England will be reported at the meeting 

4.13 Highway Services (Structures & Watercourses) comment that  as the new 
games area is to be constructed using permeable surfacing material with sub 
surface storage and a discharge control they are satisfied that it will not have 
a negative impact on flood risk either on or off the site. 

4.2 Public

4.2.1 Consultation letters have been sent to 67 neighbouring properties. No 
objections have been received.   

5 Relevant Policy 

5.1  Local Development Framework

Page 75



5.1.1 The Enfield Plan –Core Strategy was adopted on 10th November 2010. The 
following policies from this document are of relevance to the consideration of 
this application: 

CP8  Education 
CP28  Managing flood risk through development 
CP29  Flood management infrastructure 

            CP30  Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open 
environment 

5.2 Unitary Development Plan

5.2.1 After the adoption of the Core Strategy, a number of UDP policies are 
retained as material considerations pending the emergence of new and 
updates policies and development standards within the Development 
Management Document. The following are of relevance 

 (II)GD3 Aesthetic and functional design 

5.3 London Plan

 3A.24  Education facilities 
3D.13 Children and young people’s play and informal recreation 

strategies
4B.8  Respect local context and communities   

5.4  Other Material Considerations

PPS1  Delivering sustainable development 
PPG17  Sport and recreation 

6 Analysis 

6.1 Impact on character and appearance of the area

6.1.1 The proposed MUGA would be situated on the school playing field to the 
south of the main school buildings.  No enclosure is proposed around the 
hard surfaced area and no flood lighting proposed. Access to the games area 
would be by way of a hard surfaced path approximately two metres in width 
linking into the main pedestrian foot path from Bincote Road .The proposed 
green coloured hard surfaced area would retain the open nature of the site 
and would not be detrimental to the character and appearance of the 
surrounding area when viewed from Glenbrook South.  There are 9 mature 
trees lying approximately 15 metres to the south of the reception classrooms 
and they will be unaffected by the proposed works. 

6.2 Impact on Neighbours

6.2.1 The proposed development is on the south side of the school and would have 
no direct impact on the amenities of neighbouring residential properties. The 
MUGA would be sited on the school playing field which is already used by the 
children as a play area apart from in the winter months when the grass 
becomes too wet. Apart from the use of the site by the school there is already 
occasional existing community use of the site. There is no proposal for any 
flood lighting .It is acknowledged that there is already a level of noise due to 

Page 76



the use of the play ground and playing fields. Whilst the MUGA  is likely to 
give rise to a slightly more intensified use in this section of the school grounds 
it is not considered that  this would not be out of character with the use of the 
area and would not adversely affect the residential amenities of nearby 
properties.

6.3 Flood Risk

6.3.1 The Environment Agency has no objection to the proposed development. The 
main flood element risk issue at this site is the management of surface water 
run off and ensuring that the drainage from the development does not 
increase flood risk either on site or elsewhere. The London Borough of Enfield 
Strategic Flood Risk assessment dated February 2008 identifies an area 
prone to surface water flooding along Bincote Road in the vicinity of the 
school site. However, the report notes that the highway flooding was due to 
blockage in a culverted watercourse and a lack of regular maintenance was 
recognised as a cause. The applicant has submitted a sustainable drainage 
system (SUDS) for the Multi use games area. Highway Services (Structures 
and Watercourses) are satisfied that the proposal will not have a negative 
impact on flood risk either on or off the site.  A condition is recommended 
requiring that these measures are implemented. 

7 Conclusion 

7.1 In the light of the above assessment it is considered that the proposed MUGA 
will provide additional and enhanced play facilities for the school. It is not 
considered that the proposal will cause undue loss of residential amenities to 
the occupiers of surrounding residential properties or detract from the 
appearance of the area. It is therefore recommended that planning 
permission be granted for the following reason. 

1. The siting of the proposed Multi-Use Games Area represents appropriate 
development on this school site and has appropriate regard to its 
surroundings. In this respect the proposal complies with Policies CP 28 
and 30 of the Core Strategy, Policy (II) GD3 of the Unitary Development 
Plan and Policies 3A.24 and 4B.8 of the London Plan.  

8. Recommendation 

8.1 That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions. 

1 The site shall be drained in accordance with the drainage details 
submitted on drawing No. C100 P1 dated 17th December 2010 .The 
development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved 
details.

Reason: To ensure that the development has regard to surface water 
run off. 

2. The reinstatement of the site access road and compound shall be 
carried out within 2 months of the completion of the development. 

Reason: To ensure that the site is returned to a satisfactory 
appearance. 

 3 C51A Time Limited Permission 

Page 77



P
a
g
e
 7

8



P
a
g
e
 7

9



P
a
g
e
 8

0

T
h
is

 p
a

g
e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD 

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 16th February 2011 

Report of 
Assistant Director, Planning & 
Environmental Protection 

Contact Officer:
Aled Richards  Tel: 020 8379 3857 
Andy Higham  Tel: 020 8379 3848 
Mrs S.L. Davidson Tel: 020 8379 
3841

Ward: Grange

Application Number :  TP/10/0473 Category: Dwellings

LOCATION:  1, CRESCENT ROAD and 33, WAVERLEY ROAD,  ENFIELD, EN2 7BN

PROPOSAL:  Redevelopment of site to provide a 3-storey block of 9 self contained flats 
(comprising 7 x 2-bed and 2 x 4-bed) involving accommodation in roof with dormer 
windows to front and side and a roof terrace, balconies to all sides and basement parking 
with access to Crescent Road. 

Applicant Name & Address:
Mr L  Hava  
c/o agent 

Agent Name & Address:
Mr Ian Coward,
Collins & Coward 
Westwood Park 
London Road 
Little Horkesley 
Colchester
Essex 
CO6 4BS 

RECOMMENDATION: That subject to the satisfactory completion of a S106 Agreement 
to secure the contribution referred to in this report, planning permission be GRANTED
subject to conditions.

Agenda Item 9Page 81



Application No:-  TP/10/0473

55.8m

1
8

a
1
8

W
A

V
E

R
L

E
Y

1
6

R
O

A
D

1
8
b

2
1
 t
o
 2

8

V
E

R
M

O
N

T
 C

L
O

S
E

1
 to

 8

1
3
 to

 1
6

1
7 to

 20

1
8
c

1
8

e

26
 to

 3
6

B
a
rr

y
d
e
n

e
 C

o
u

rt

1

2
5

2
2

2
7

2
2

a

1
 t
o
 1

6

2
0

2
0
a

1
5

4
1
 to

 5
1

Juliet

4

Court

3
9

8

1
 t
o

 8

CLOSE

1
5

BADG
ER

S

148

140

142

Willowside

Court

3
3

55.8m

6
2
 to

 7
2

5
0
 to 6

0

38
 to

 4
8

3
1

1 to 9

7
4
 to

 8
4

1

9
 to

 1
2

THE COPPICE

17

1

27

28

36

35

CRESCENT ROAD

Lodge

Claremont H
eights

5

1 to 7

1 to 20

1 to 7

1a

Glenview

H
A

S
E

L
W

O
O

D
 D

R
IV

E

1
0

1
2

1
2
c

Mountford House

1
2
a

1 to 10

14

Springview

55.5m

6

4

15

26

13

2

4

1 to 11

Elmwood House

2

4b

Development Control

Scale - 1:1250
Time of plot: 11:07 Date of plot: 04/02/2011

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 150m

Page 82



Note for Members 

This application was reported to the 16th December 2010 Planning Committee when 
Members resolved to defer consideration to enable officers to enter into further 
discussions with the applicant to increase the provision of amenity space. 

The scheme previously considered achieved a level of amenity space equivalent to 
61% of the gross internal area of the building. Amendments have now been made to 
the scheme, including the removal of one of the visitor parking spaces to the 
Crescent Road frontage and an increase in the size of the roof terrace, so that 
amenity space provision now equates to 73% of the gross internal area of the 
building.

It would be possible to further increase amenity space provision by removing the 
remaining visitor parking space, without compromising the ability of the scheme to 
meet the London Plan parking standards. If considered necessary, this would result 
in a level of amenity space of 76%, in excess of the Council’s minimum standards. 
However, on balance, it is considered beneficial to maintain a surface level visitor 
space and therefore this option has not been pursued  

With the loss of one visitor parking space, the scheme still makes provision for a total 
of 12 car parking spaces to support 9 flats proposed; a ratio of 1.3 spaces per unit. 
This still exceeds London Plan standards. 

Consultation has taken place on the revised plans in respect of the removal of the 
frontage car parking spaces. Any further observations received will be reported at the 
meeting.

In the light of the increased level of amenity space provision, the contribution to off-
site open space enhancements previously referred to is no longer recommended.   

Since the application was reported to Planning Committee in December one further 
letter of objection has been received from an occupier within the adjacent block of 
flats at Willowside Court. The  objections raised can be summarised as: 

 the development would restrict light to the bathroom windows in the flank 
elevation of this block 

 the development would restrict light to bedrooms in the rear elevation of 
the block 

 the sunny aspect already ruined by the building of Glenview in Crescent 
Road

 increasing density leads to increase traffic 

1 Site and Surroundings 

1.1 The application site is located at the corner of Crescent Road and Waverley 
Road and is presently occupied by two detached chalet style bungalows.  The 
site is one of the few undeveloped plots in the immediate vicinity and is 
surrounded on all sides by more recent flatted redevelopment schemes. The 
site immediately to the north, Willowside Court, comprises a three storey 

Page 83



block of flats; to the west the site adjoins Glenview Lodge, a four storey block 
with basement car parking. Opposite the site are Claremont Heights, 
Elmwood House and Nos. 50-84 Waverley Road, flatted developments of 
similar scale. 

1.2 The application site contains two trees the subject of a Tree Preservation 
Order, a Copper Beech within the front garden of No.33 Waverley Road and a 
Sweet Chestnut within the front garden of No. 1 Crescent Road. 

2 Proposal 

2.1 This application proposes the demolition of the existing two properties and the 
redevelopment of the site through the erection of a three storey block, plus 
accommodation within the mansard roof, to provide a total of 9 flats (7 x 2 bed 
and 2 x 4 bed). The building would be positioned to respect the building line 
to both Waverley Road and Crescent Road. Balconies are proposed to all 
flats and these are sited to the front and rear of the proposed block. 
Basement car parking is proposed, accessed from Crescent Road. Provision 
is made for 11 car parking spaces and 11 cycle parking spaces. The 
basement area also accommodates storage areas for each flat. Lift access 
would be provided from the basement parking area to all floors. 

3 Relevant Planning Decisions 

3.1 TP/96/0513  Planning permission granted for the redevelopment of land 
adjacent to 1 Crescent Road in December 1996 by the erection of a block of 7 
two-bed flats, together with associated car parking spaces and front and rear 
dormer windows, now known as Glenview Lodge. 

3.2 TP/91/1150  Planning permission granted for the change of use of part of 
No.1 Crescent Road house to Montessori Nursery/Playgroup for 16 children 
aged 2 1/2 - 5 year in December 1991. This permission was subsequently 
varied under reference TP/94/0763 to increase the number of children to 20. 
This use no longer appears to be evident at the site. 

4 Consultations 

4.1 Statutory and non statutory consultees

4.1.1 Traffic and Transportation note that: 

 Crescent Road and Waverley Road are both local access roads.  

 Double yellow lines apply to junctions with Waverley Road and 
Vermont Close, Waverley Road and Crescent Road, Haselwood Drive 
and Crescent Road. 

 The location has poor public transport accessibility (PTAL 2) 

 12 cycle parking spaces and 11 car parking spaces (1 disabled) are 
proposed in the basement car park which equates to 1.2 spaces per 
flat in a secure underground car park, plus 2 visitor spaces on the 
forecourt.

 Ramp fall of 1:15 and headroom of 2.10 are both within the adopted 
standards.

 The car parking arrangement provides sufficient turning space. 

Page 84



 Cycle storage is to be located in the underground car park however a 
condition needs to be attached to make sure it is secure. 

 The bin enclosure will not impede pedestrian sight line and will have a 
dropped kerb access. 

 A single 5.6m wide crossover off Crescent Road is proposed. This is 
well over the allowed maximum of 4.9m for a single crossover and 
therefore amendments will be required and this can be addressed 
through condition. 

 2 pedestrian accesses (both 1.78m wide) off Crescent Road and 
Waverely Road are proposed. 

 Two existing crossovers one to the junction with Waverely Road and 
another one on Waverely Rd will need to be closed up and the 
footway reinstated. 

They raise no objection to the development and consider that it would not 
give rise to conditions prejudicial to the free flow or safety of traffic. 

4.1.2 Education advise that the development would produce an average of 1 
additional primary aged pupil a year equating to a contribution of £13,115.  
Secondary yield is negligible. This contribution will need to be secured 
through a S106 Agreement. 

4.2 Public 

4.2.1 Consultation letters have been sent to the occupiers of 87 nearby properties. 
In addition, the application has been advertised on site. In response, 24 
letters of objection have been received which raise all or some of the 
following points: 

o object to any more blocks of flats be built  which is changing the 
character of the area 

 overdevelopment 

 this is no longer a brownfield site 

 nothing wrong with the existing properties 

 the road is already hazardous for parking and driving 

 increase congestion 
o new traffic island at Old Park Road junction has increased traffic 

movements on Crescent and Waverley Road 

 access to basement car park close to a dangerous corner 
o increasing damage to pavements from construction vehicles, delivery 

vehicles etc 
o overloading utility infrastructure – gas, electricity , water and sewerage 

supplies

 loss of light and outlook 

 loss of privacy 

 noise pollution 

 impact on trees 
o the area is already overcrowded with the number of flat developments 

that have taken place 
o the buildings would be higher than the existing buildings resulting in a 

loss of view 
o could impact access for ambulances etc to the nearby elderly persons 

home.

 Noise, dust and disturbance 

Page 85



o Excavation for a basement car park could damage foundations of 
adjoining buildings 

 Impede access for maintenance and decoration of adjoining blocks 

4.2.2 Councillor Vince, (Ward Councillor) and David Burrowed MP has also raised 
objections in support of their constituents concerns. 

5 Relevant Policy 

5.1 LDF – Core Strategy

5.1.1 At the meeting of the full Council on 10th November 2010, the Core Strategy 
of the Local Development Framework was approved. The document and the 
policies contained therein are now material considerations to be taken into 
account when considering the acceptability of development proposals. The 
following are of relevance 

Core Policy 2   Housing supply and locations for new homes 
Core Policy 4   Housing Quality 
Core Policy 5  Housing Types 
Core Policy 20  Sustainable Energy Use and Energy Infrastructure 
Core Policy 21 Delivering sustainable water supply, drainage and 

sewerage infrastructure 
Core Policy 30 Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and 

open environment 
Core Policy 46 Infrastructure contributions 

5.2 Unitary Development Plan

After the adoption of the Core Strategy, a number of UDP policies are 
retained as material considerations pending the emergence of new and 
updates policies and development standards within the Development 
Management Document. The following are of relevance 

(II)GD3 Design and character 
(II)GD6 Traffic implications 
(II)GD8 Access and servicing 
(II)H8  Privacy and overlooking 
(II)H9  Amenity space  
(II)T13  Access onto the public highway 

5.3 London Plan

3A.1 Increasing London’s Housing Supply 
3A.2 Borough Housing targets 
3A.3 Maximising the potential of sites 
3A.5 Housing choice 
3A.6 Quality of new housing provision 
3C.23 Parking strategy 
3D.13 Children and Young People’s Play and informal recreation strategies 
3D.14 Biodiversity and nature conservation 
4A.3 Sustainable design and construction 
4A.14 Sustainable drainage 

 4B.1 Design principles for a compact city 
 4B.5    Creating an inclusive environment 

Page 86



 4B.8 Respect local context and communities 

5.4 Other Material Considerations

PPS1  Delivering sustainable development 
PPS3  Housing (June 2010) 
PPG13  Transport 

6 Analysis 

6.1 Principle

6.1.1 The existing houses are not listed, nor are they located within a conservation 
area. Accordingly, planning permission is not required for their demolition. 

6.1.2 The recent changes to PPS3 explicitly remove sites such as this from the 
definition of ‘previously-developed land’ and therefore the policy presumption 
in favour of making a more effective and efficient use of such land does not 
now apply. However, the changes within the PPS do not introduce an 
objection in principle to the redevelopment of such sites but the Council must 
continue to consider the application on its merits having regard to the impact 
of redevelopment on the character of the area, the amenities of the occupiers 
of adjoining properties, highway safety etc. However as the immediately 
surrounding area is entirely residential in character and in the main consists 
of flatted developments, the use of this site for more intensive residential 
purpose is considered acceptable in principle and consistent with the 
character of the area. 

6.2 Impact on the character of the area

6.2.1 The immediately surrounding area in the main consists of flatted 
developments and the proposed development of flats would be consistent 
with this. 

6.2.2 The character of the surrounding area has both urban and suburban 
characteristics and therefore the London Plan would suggest a wide density 
range of from 150 to potentially 450hrph. However, given the PTAL rating of 2 
a density mid-range would be appropriate. The site has an area of 0.1017 
hectares. This application proposes 33 habitable rooms, giving a density of 
324 hrph.

6.2.3 This numerical assessment of density should also be taken with an 
assessment of the size and scale of the building proposed and how it sits 
within the context of the area. The area is dominated by flatted developments, 
the majority of which are of a size and scale consistent with the building 
proposed. Accordingly, the density of development proposed and the scale of 
building necessary to achieve this is considered acceptable and consistent  
with the character of the area. 

6.2.4 The Council’s standards require that amenity space provision should equate 
to 75% of the gross internal area of the proposed building. The application 
makes provision for 61% and therefore is below the Council’s standards. This 
level of amenity space provision is not dissimilar to the level of amenity space 
that supports adjacent blocks of flats. Notwithstanding this, to address the fact 
that the development does not comply with standards and to address the fact 

Page 87



that future residents would need to make use of existing areas of open space 
to meet their active recreational needs, the applicant has agreed to a 
contribution of £30,000 towards the enhancement of existing facilities or 
access thereto. This would be secured through a S106 Agreement.  

6.2.5 In addition, each flat at first floor level and above would be provided with at 
least two good sized usable balconies with the larger 4 bed units having the 
benefit of larger balconies to meet the passive needs of residents and provide 
access to some outside space. The ground level amenity space is largely 
provided to the front of the proposed building and ensures a setting consistent 
with the character of the area.   

6.2.6 The building is designed to reflect the prevailing character of the area in terns 
of its elevational treatment and this is considered acceptable. 

6.3 Housing Mix

6.3.1 In terms of variety of housing mix, the development of 9 units is relatively 
modest and therefore it would be difficult to achieve complete compliance 
with the Council’s preferred housing mix, as set in Core Policy 5. However, 
the Strategic Housing Market Assessment that provided the evidence base 
for this policy identifies the greatest need in market housing  to be for 3 bed + 
units. This application includes provision for 2 x 4 bed units. Although these 
are located on the upper floors, they are large units which would provide good 
sized family accommodation with access to balconies and or roof top amenity 
space.

6.4 Access, traffic and parking

6.4.1 The access arrangements into the site are considered acceptable, with 
appropriate visibility and an acceptable gradient to the basement car park. 
The level of parking proposed at 1.3 spaces per unit is in accordance with 
London Plan standards. In addition, 2 visitor spaces are proposed at surface 
level. Notwithstanding the objections raised by local residents on traffic, 
access and parking grounds, it is considered that the development would not 
give rise to conditions prejudicial to the free flow and safety of vehicles using 
the adjoining highways.  

6.5 Sustainable Design and Construction

6.5.1 The development is to achieve a Code 3 for Sustainable Homes, in line with  
Core Policy 4. A condition is recommended to secure this and require the 
submission of the necessary certification. 

6.5.2 The development presently does not achieve all Lifetime Homes Standards. 
However, this can be resolved with amendments to the internal layout and a 
condition is recommended requiring this to be undertaken to ensure 
compliance as required by London Plan policy 3A.5 and Core Policy 4. 

6.6 Impact on trees

6.6.1 In order to achieve appropriate disabled access to the building, the 
development requires the removal of the Sweet Chestnut to the site frontage, 
the subject of a Tree Preservation Order. Moreover, it should be noted that  

Page 88



consistent with adjoining developments, the site level is considerably above 
pavement level.  

6.6.2 The Arboricultural Report submitted with the applicant confirms that the tree is 
growing out of a raised bed and this now has a full height crack in the 
retaining wall adjacent to the footway. The tree has evidence of bark splitting, 
cracking and flaking in the trunk. The Tree Officer supports the removal of the 
tree subject to a replacement being secured through a condition. 

6.7 Impact on adjoining residents

6.7.1 No.31 Waverley Road (Wiilowside Court) to the north of the site comprises a 
three storey block of flats, containing 6 windows in its flank elevation facing 
the application site; two windows to each floor serving bathrooms and 
kitchens. The conditions of the planning permission for the Willowside Court 
development required that these windows be obscure glazed.  

6.7.2 The existing chalet bungalow on the application site is sited on the common 
boundary with Willowside Court and this has an impact on the flank windows 
to the ground and first floor flats.  The proposed development would introduce 
a three storey elevation but at a distance of 2.3m from the flank wall of 
Willowside Court. The impact of this on the ground and first floor flats is likely 
to be similar to the existing situation. The 2nd floor flat presently stands above 
the height of the bungalow roof and therefore is not unduly affected by it. The 
proposed development would certainly have a greater impact. However, given 
the position of the windows in the flank in relation to the proposed building, 
which step in considerably from the boundary at a point just past the first 
window and given these windows serve non-habitable accommodation and 
are obscure glazed, the development is considered acceptable in terms of its 
impact on the amenities of the occupiers of this property in terms of light and 
outlook. No windows are proposed in the flank elevation of the building 
adjacent to Willowside Court and therefore the development would not give 
rise to any loss of privacy. 

6.7.3 The adjacent block to the Crescent Road frontage, Glenview Lodge, is a ¾ 
storey block of flats with no windows in the flank elevation. The development 
would not have any undue impact on the amenities of the occupiers of this 
block in terms of light or outlook. The development does include provision for 
windows and balconies on the rear elevation facing the rear garden of 
Glenview Lodge. However, given this is a communal garden, and given a 
separation distance of approximately 11m is achieved,  it is considered that 
the development would not result in any undue loss of privacy. 

6.7.4 The flatted developments opposite the application site are separated by the 
existing roads. Given this and the position of the proposed block, respecting 
existing building lines, it is considered that the development would not have 
an undue impact on the amenities of the occupiers of these blocks. 

6.7.5 Concerns have been raised by nearby residents about noise and disturbance. 
The development of the site for flats is not likely to give rise to undue noise 
and disturbance once completed. An element of noise and disturbance is 
inevitable during the construction process but where unreasonable can be 
addressed through other statutory controls. 

Page 89



6.7.6 Concern about the impact of the development on the foundations to adjoining 
blocks  would be addressed through Buildings Regulations and/or The Party 
Wall Act. 

6.7.7 Issues regarding access for future maintenance are not material to the 
consideration of this application. 

6.8 S106 Agreement

6.8.1 A S106 Agreement is required to secure the education and open 
space/access contributions referred to above. 

7 Conclusion 

7.1 In conclusion the development of the site as proposed is considered 
acceptable in the context of the area and having regard to the amenities of 
the occupiers of adjoining and nearby properties. Accordingly, it is 
recommended that planning permission be granted for the following reasons: 

1 The proposed development has appropriate regard to the character of 
the area and the amenities of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby 
properties. In this respect the development complies with Core 
Strategy policy 30, Unitary Development Plan policies (II)GD3 and 
(II)H8  and London Plan policies 4B.1 and 4B.8. 

2 The development makes appropriate provision for car parking and will 
not give rise to conditions prejudicial to the free flow and safety of 
traffic using the adjoining highway, including pedestrian traffic. In this 
respect the development complies with Policies (II)GD6, (II)GD8 and 
(II)T13 of the Unitary Development Plan and London Plan policy 
3C.23

8 Recommendation:  

8.1 That subject to the satisfactory completion of a S106 Agreement to secure the 
contribution referred to in this report, planning permission be GRANTED 
subject to the following conditions: 

1 C07  Details of materials 
2 C09 Details of hard surfacing 
3 C11 Details of enclosure  
4 C14 Details of access and junction 
5 C16 Private vehicles only – parking areas 
6 C17 Details of landscaping 
7 C18 Details of tree protection 
8 C19 Details of refuse storage 
9 C22 Details of wheel cleaning 
10 Before the development hereby permitted commences an initial 

design stage assessment shall be carried out by an accredited 
assessor for the Code for Sustainable Homes and an interim 
certificate confirming compliance with at least level 3 of the Code shall 
be submitted to and acknowledged in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The dwellings shall not be occupied until a final Code 
certificate of compliance has been issued. 
Reason: To ensure that the development is built in accordance with 
the Code for Sustainable Homes   

Page 90



11 Notwithstanding the floor plans submitted, development shall not 
commence until floor plans have been submitted to and approved by 
the Local Planning Authority that demonstrate compliance with the 
Lifetime Homes Standards. The development shall be completed in 
accordance with the approved plans prior to occupation. 
Reason: In order to ensure compliance with Core Strategy Policy 4 
and London Plan policy 3A.5. 

12 C59 Cycle parking 
13 Notwithstanding the drawings submitted, the proposed vehicle access 

to the basement car park shall not exceed 4.9m in width. 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 

14 The development shall not be occupied until the existing redundant 
points of access to the site have been closed and the footway 
reinstated.
Reason: To confine vehicles movements to permitted points of 
access, to enable additional kerbside parking to the roadway and to 
improve the condition of the adjacent footway. 

15 C51a Time Limited Permission 

Page 91



P
a
g
e
 9

2



Page 93



P
a
g
e
 9

4



P
a
g
e
 9

5



P
a
g
e
 9

6

T
h
is

 p
a

g
e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD 

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date :16th February 2011 

Report of 
Assistant Director, Planning & 
Environmental Protection 

Contact Officer:
Aled Richards  Tel: 020 8379 3857 
Andy Higham  Tel: 020 8379 3848 
Mr S. Newton Tel: 020 8379 3851

Ward: Chase

Application Number :  TP/10/0601/MM1 Category: Other Development

LOCATION:  MAIN BUILDING,ST MICHAELS C OF E PRIMARY SCHOOL, 
BRIGADIER HILL, ENFIELD, EN2 0NB

PROPOSAL:  Minor amendment to approval granted under ref: TP/10/0601 for a two 
storey rear extension to main building to expand from 1 to 2 form entry, single storey 
extension to provide a new entrance at front of main building, new window to main hall, 
landscaping works to sloping grass pitch to provide a level pitch and Multi use games 
area (MUGA), vehicular access to Lavender Hill together with demolition of single storey 
accommodation at rear. 

Applicant Name & Address:
Inigo Woolf,  
The London Diocesan Board for Schools 
36, Causton Street,
London,
SW1P 4AU 

Agent Name & Address:
Rowan Parnell,  
GHM Rock Townsend 
The Old School 
Exton Street 
SE1 8UE 

RECOMMENDATION: That planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED in 
accordance with Regulation 3 of the Town & Country Planning General Regulations 
1992, subject to conditions:
(

Agenda Item 10Page 97



Application No:-  TP/10/0601/MM1

169

171

190

35.7m

1

2
5

W
h
it
a
k
e
r s

L
o
d

g
e

1
8

5

11

9

24

20

1

3

1

PH

B
A

T
L
E

Y
R

O
A

D

1
38

O
liv

ia

B
a

tl e
y

R
o
a

d

196to198

2
2

37.2m

Gov
200

245

Gas

3

PH

13

2

AVENUE

BRIGADIER AVENUE

9

RADCLIF
FE

10

25

WHITE HOUSE LANE

1

BR
IG

AD
IER

H
ILL

23

2

8

4
1

2
0

4

2
1

0

4

8

2
0

0

GP

6

2

21
4

2
0

8

2
0

6

1
2

2

AVENUE

1
4

41

39

25

GATER DRIVE

1

1
to

4
5

35

33

C
H

A
S

E
S

I D
E

18

30

24

22

Posts

28

BRIGADIER

10

12
14

35GLENVILLE AVENUE

6

1
3

2
4

63

2

3
6

5
1

4

13

25

1

4
9

31

43

1

42
to

52

2

75

15

5
0

42

10

W
ETH

E
R
BY

R
O
AD

52

54

1

E
l S

u
b

S
ta

1
2

60

Posts

3
2

7
0

2
2

40

80

72

30

62

CR
Ward Bdy

YORK TERRACE

9

CHANTRY
CLO

SE

B
u
rg

u
n
d
y

H
o
u
se

9

2

BEDALE
RO

AD

40

2
to

12

38

26
to

36

7

1

8

1

7

1
to

2
4

P
IN

N
A

T
A

C
L

O
S

E

2
5

to
3

6

Shelter

31

2
3
5

1
to

9

C
o
u
r t

2
1
3

1

2
2

5

29

3

2
1
9

27

1
5

18

El

19

24

26

Sub Sta

L
A

V
E

N
D

E
R

H
IL

L

22

16

20

39.0m

1

3
0

9

B
r i g

a
d
i e

r

2

F
re

e

30a

CLOSE

3

10

ST FAITH'S

C
h
u

rc
h

D
ra

in

24

C of E School
St Michael's

14

Y
O

U
N

G
M

A
N

S

28

30

32

1

C
L
O

S
E

2

W
ET

HE
R

BY

35

21

LB

8
2

92

T
C

B5

R
O

A
D

14

1
8
4

9

24

59

80

1
7
2

CLOSE

43.9m

68

48

10

RIP
LE

Y
ROAD

104

19

16

HILL

88

LAVENDER

Christies

Court

2
1
5

35

7

21

10

33a

2
2

1

1
9

0

2
1

7

3
3

2
1

1

57

1
2

41

47

El Sub
Sta

6
1

YOUNGMANS

3
2

45

GORDON
HILL

59

76

62

82

77

73

Development Control

Scale - 1:2002
Time of plot: 10:12 Date of plot: 03/02/2011

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 240m

© Crown copyright. London Borough of Enfield LA086363,2003

Page 98



1.  Site and Surroundings

1.1 The School is bounded by Brigadier Hill to the east, Lavender Hill to the 
south, open fields to the west and residential to the north (Wetherby Road & 
St Faiths Close) 

1.2 The school accommodation is provided within two blocks. The first, 
accommodating the Nursery and Reception classes is located near to the 
Brigadier Hill frontage and consists of single storey buildings. The second 
block, set within the larger part of the site and located to the south east of the 
playing fields, comprises of predominantly single storey, with some two storey 
elements. Ground levels increase to the north and west. 

2.  Proposal 

2.1 Permission is sought for a minor material amendment to the approval granted 
under reference TP/10/0601 for a two storey rear extension to main building 
to expand the School from 1 to 2 form entry, single storey extension to 
provide a new entrance at front of main building, new window to main hall, 
landscaping works to sloping grass pitch to provide a level pitch and Multi use 
games area (MUGA), vehicular access to Lavender Hill together with 
demolition of single storey accommodation at rear. 

2.2 The amendment sought involves the repositioning of the multi use games 
area from the south-west corner of the school to the north-east corner and the 
realignment and increase in size of the grass pitch previously approved in the 
north-west corner of the site. 

2.3 There are no other alterations proposed as part of this application. 

3.  Relevant Planning Decisions 

3.1 Planning permission (ref: TP/10/0601) was granted for a two storey rear 
extension to main building to expand the school from 1 to 2 form entry, single 
storey extension to provide a new entrance at front of main building, new 
window to main hall, landscaping works to sloping grass pitch to provide a 
level pitch and Multi use games area (MUGA), vehicular access to Lavender 
Hill together with demolition of single storey accommodation at rear. The 
application was referred to the Government Office for the West Midlands 
following an objection in principle from Sport England over the loss of some of 
the school playing field. The Secretary of State considered that the scheme 
was acceptable and directed the Council to issue the planning permission. 

4.  Consultations 

4.1  Statutory and non-statutory consultees

4.1.1 Traffic and Transportation together with Environmental Protection & 
Regulations raise no objections. 

4.1.2 Environment Agency advice that there are no comments to make as the 
application has been assessed as a low environmental risk. 

Page 99



4.1.3 Sport England does not object to the proposed amendment. 

4.1.4 Thames Water advise that it is the responsibility of the developer to make 
proper provision for drainage to ground, water courses or a suitable sewer. 
With regard to sewerage and water infrastructure, there are no objections to 
the proposal. 

4.2  Public  

4.2.1 Consultation letters have been sent to 66 neighbouring and nearby 
properties. In addition, notice has been displayed around the site. No 
objections have been received to date. 

5. Relevant Policy 

5.1  Local Development Framework

At the meeting of the full Council on 10th November 2010, the Core Strategy 
of the Local Development Framework was approved. The document and the 
policies contained therein are now material considerations to be taken into 
account when considering the acceptability of development proposals. The 
following are of relevance: 

CP8: Education 
CP11: Recreation, leisure, culture and arts 
CP21: Delivering sustainable water supply, drainage and sewerage 

infrastructure 
CP30: Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open 

environment 
CP34: Parks, playing fields and other open spaces 
CP36: Biodiversity 
CP46: Infrastructure contributions 

5.2 Saved UDP Policies

After the adoption of the Core Strategy, a number of UDP policies are 
retained as material considerations pending the emergence of new and 
updates policies and development standards within the Development 
Management Document. The following are of relevance: 

(II)CS1  Land requirements for facilities and services 
(II)CS2  Community services and the effective use of land 
(II)CS3  Facilities provided in the optimum location 
(II)GD3 Aesthetic and functional design 

5.3  The London Plan

Policy 2A.1 Sustainability criteria 
Policy 3A.17 addressing the needs of London’s diverse population 
Policy 3A.18 Protection and enhancement of community infrastructure and 

community facilities 
Policy 3A.24 Education facilities 
Policy 3D.8 Realising the value of open space and green infrastructure 

Page 100



Policy 3D.13 Children and young people’s play and informal recreation 
strategies

Policy 4A.3  Sustainable design and construction 
Policy 4B.1 Design principles for a compact city 
Policy 4B.5 Creating an inclusive environment 
Policy 4B.8 Respect local context and communities   

5.4  Other Relevant Policy

PPS1:  Delivering sustainable development 
PPG17: Planning for Open Space, Sport and Recreation 
PPS25: Development and flood risk 

6.  Analysis 

6.1 Principle

6.1.1 The proposal is considered acceptable in principle, having regard to the 
previously approved scheme. The issue to consider is the repositioning of the 
multi use games area (MUGA) 

6.2 MUGA

6.2.1 The MUGA is proposed to the north of the main school buildings and would 
comprise an all weather surface of approximately 30m x 14.5m. This differs 
from the scheme originally approved where this are was  proposed for open 
playing field. 

6.2.2 It will be sited between 11.5m -14m from the eastern boundary of the school 
(St Faiths Close) and 4m at its nearest point from the northern boundary 
(Wetherby Road).

6.2.3 Due to the ground levels across the site, the re-sited MUGA will involve a 
greater amount of excavating in this corner of the school ground. However, 
the works should not impact beyond the school site.  

6.2.4 The key issue is that of noise and disturbance use to the closer proximity to 
residential properties on Wetherby Road and St Faiths Close. It is recognised 
that the current scheme may result in additional disturbance to neighbouring 
residential occupiers compared with that approved previously. However, the 
sunken depth of the playing surface (up to 4m below natural ground level), 
the existing mature plantings along the eastern and northern boundaries, and 
the proposed plantings should provide an adequate noise buffer. In addition, 
no floodlights are proposed and thus use would be limited to normal daytime 
hours. These factors also ameliorate any visual impact on the outlook from 
these neighbouring properties. 

6.3 Playing Field

6.3.1 The repositioning of the MUGA to the north-east corner of the school enables 
the school to provide a more expansive grassed playing field. Whilst there 
was no objection from the Secretary of State in relation to the previous 
scheme, the amendments increases that grassed pitch from 768sqm to 
1310sqm. There are no additional issues arising from the repositioning of this 
field in terms of impact on neighbouring residential occupiers. 

Page 101



6.4  Access, Parking and Traffic Generation

6.4.1 There are no highways implications in terms of access, traffic generation and 
parking arising from the proposed alterations to the layout of the playing 
fields.

7  Conclusion

7.1 It is considered that the proposed re configuration of the external play areas 
involving the repositioning of the MUGA and plating field result in an improved 
quality of provision and although the MUGA will its slightly more intensive use 
would be positioned close to the residential properties which lie adjacent to 
the northern and eastern boundary, this would not lead to an unacceptable 
increase in noise and disturbance or loss of outlook, sufficient o warrant 
refusal of the application. The proposal is therefore considered acceptable for 
the following reasons: 

1 The proposed development due to its design, size, siting improves 
play facilities at the school having regard to Core Policies 8, 11 and 34 
of the Core Strategy, Policies (II)GD3, (II)CS2 and (II)CS3 of the 
Unitary Development Plan, Policies 3A.24, 3D.8 and 3D.13 of The 
London Plan, with PPS1: Sustainable Development and PPG17: 
Planning for Open Space, Sport and Recreation. 

2 The proposed development having regard to its design and siting does 
not unduly affect the amenities of adjoining or nearby residential 
properties having regard to Core Policy 30 of the Core Strategy, Policy 
(II)GD3 of the Unitary Development Plan and with Policies 4B.1 and 
4B.8 of The London Plan. 

8.  Recommendation

8.1 That planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED in accordance with 
Regulation 3 of the Town & Country Planning General Regulations 1992, 
subject to the following conditions: 

01. C06 Details of phasing of construction 
02. C07 Details of materials 
03. C09 Details of hard surfacing 
04. C11 Details of enclosure 
05. C17 Details of landscaping 
06. C21 Construction servicing area 
07. C22 Details of construction vehicle wheel cleaning 
08. NSC1 Details of construction methodology 

Development shall not commence until a construction 
methodology has been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. The construction methodology 
shall contain: 
i. Details of construction access and vehicle routing to the 

site.
ii. Arrangements for vehicle turning and servicing areas. 
iii. Arrangements for the parking of contractors vehicles. 
iv. Arrangements for the storage of materials. 
v. Hours of work. 

Page 102



Reason: In order to protect the amenities of nearby residential 
properties and to ensure access does not prejudice the free 
flow and safety of traffic and pedestrians along the adjoining 
highways.

09. C41 Details of external lighting 
10. C51A Time limited permission 

Page 103



P
a
g
e
 1

0
4



LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD 

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date :16th February 2011

Report of 
Assistant Director, Planning & 
Environmental Protection 

Contact Officer:
Aled Richards  Tel: 020 8379 3857 
Andy Higham  Tel: 020 8379 3848 
Mrs S.L. Davidson Tel: 020 8379 
3841

Ward: Chase

Application Number :  TP/10/0880 Category: Householder 
Developments

LOCATION:  WATER TOWER, 405, THE RIDGEWAY, ENFIELD, EN6 5QT

PROPOSAL:  Erection of a double detached garage. 

Applicant Name & Address:
Bambos Charalambous  
THE LODGE, 
ST NICHOLAS HOUSE,  
THE RIDGEWAY, 
ENFIELD
EN2 8AH 

Agent Name & Address:
Peter Koumis,  
Vivendi Architects 
Unit E3U,
Bounds Green Industrial Estate 
Ring Way 
 London 
N11 2UD 

RECOMMENDATION: That planning permission be GRANTED subject to conditions.

Agenda Item 11Page 105



Application No:-  TP/10/0880

A
1005

TH
E

R
IDG

EW
AY

D
rain

Water Tower

Boro
C
onst and

W
ard

Bdy

C
R

Development Control

Scale - 1:1001
Time of plot: 10:15 Date of plot: 03/02/2011

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 120m

© Crown copyright. London Borough of Enfield LA086363,2003

Page 106



1 Site and Surroundings 

1.1 Botany Bay Water Tower a locally listed building on the north side of The 
Ridgeway and located with the Green Belt, Area of Special Character. The 
building has now been extended and converted to residential use. 

2 Proposal 

2.1 This application seeks planning permission for the retention of a detached 
double garage that has been erected to the side and rear of the main tower. It 
is 6.5m wide, 6.6m deep and 3.8m high to ridge. The garage is of brick 
construction with a pitched slate roof. 

3 Relevant Planning Decisions 

3.1 LBE/04/0024 - Planning permission granted for conversion of water tower to 
4-bed dwelling house with roof terrace involving erection of lower ground floor 
extension at side was approved October 2004 

3.2 TP/06/1866 Planning permission granted for the conversion of water tower to 
4-bed dwelling with roof terrace involving erection of lower ground floor and 
basement extension at side incorporating underground swimming pool was 
approved January 2007. 

3.3 TP/09/1615 Planning permission granted for the Installation of a glass screen 
to roof and erection of a detached shed at rear (RETROSPECTIVE) was 
approved January 2010 

3.4 TP/10/0878 – an application for the erection of a single storey porch 
extension to south west elevation has yet to be determined. 

3.5 TP/10/0879 - Planning permission granted for the erection of an infill 
extension between the existing below ground extension and the main tower 
was approved October 2010 

4. Consultations 

4.1 Statutory and non-statutory consultees

None

4.2 Public

Consultation letters have been sent to the occupiers of two adjoining 
properties. In addition, a notice has been posted on site. No responses have 
been received. 

4.3 Conservation Advisory Group

The Group object to the application and consider that any garage should be 
set at a lower ground level and have a green roof or be relocated so that it is 
not visible from the road and is set further away from the tower, to maintain 
the integrity of its column appearance. 

Page 107



5 Relevant Policy 

5.1 Core Strategy

At the meeting of the full Council on 10th November 2010, the Core Strategy 
of the Local Development Framework was approved. The document and the 
policies contained therein are now material considerations to be taken into 
account when considering the acceptability of development proposals. The 
following are of relevance: 

Core Policy 30 Maintaining and improving the quality of the built 
environment.  

Core Policy 31 Built and landscape heritage 
Core Policy 33  Green Belt and Countryside 

5.2 Unitary Development Plan

After the adoption of the Core Strategy, a number of UDP policies are 
retained as material considerations pending the emergence of new and 
updates policies and development standards within the Development 
Management Document. The following are of relevance: 

(II)G6  Areas of special character 
(II)G11  Criteria for design of new development in Green Belt 
(II)GD3 Design 
(II)GD6 Traffic generation 
(II)GD8 Access and servicing 
(II)T13  Access to public highway 

5.3 London Plan

3D.9 Green Belt 

5.4 Other Material Considerations

PPG2  Green Belts 
PPS5  Planning for the historic environment 

6 Analysis 

6.1 Green Belt

6.1.1 Green Belt policy (PPG2) will allow limited extensions to residential 
properties, provided that they do not result in disproportionate additions over 
and above the size of the original building. The double garage is considered 
to be a proportionate and limited extension in the context of the original 
building subordinate to the main tower building. It is not therefore considered 
to constitute inappropriate development in the Green Belt. 

6.1.2 The garage is located to the rear of the site, approximately 55m back from the 
site frontage with The Ridgeway, backing on to the hedge line that forms the 
boundary with open farmland beyond. The structure is not therefore 

Page 108



prominent in views from the public domain or from the open farmland beyond. 
Consequently, it is contended that the proposal does not harm the local 
landscape character or the essential open character of the green belt. 

6.2  Impact on the setting of the tower

6.2.1 The Water Tower is a locally listed building: a non statutory designation which 
recognise the local importance of the building. As such, it is a prominent and 
distinctive building in the local landscape due to its height and design, 
comprising a slender tower standing in isolation.  Its conversion to residential 
use has seen the base of the tower extended to provide additional living 
accommodation, but largely below ground level and therefore the character 
and integrity of the tower has been retained.  

6.2.2 The Conservation Advisory Group object to the current application on 
grounds that the garage structure, due to its siting in relation to the tower, and 
the fact that it has been constructed at ground level, compromise the integrity 
of the tower.

6.2.3 This is noted. However, the garage is positioned approximately 5m away from 
the base of the tower and therefore, is clearly separate to it. It is significantly 
smaller in scale than the tower and in this context, it is considered that it does 
not compromises its integrity. Its design and the use of materials have been 
selected to complement the appearance of the building and on balance, the 
detached garage is considered acceptable. 

6.3 Parking

6.3.1 The provision of a garage on site takes the place of an area that had been 
hard surfaced for car parking purposes. The development does not therefore 
result in a net increase in parking provision or previously undeveloped open 
land.

6.4 Access

6.4.1 Access to the site remains as existing. The original planning permission for 
the conversion of the tower to residential use, includes a condition requiring 
the submission of details of alterations to the existing access to the site to 
improve visibility splays and that the works shall be undertaken in accordance 
with the approved details prior to occupation of the development. The details 
have been submitted but not yet agreed as information regarding the 
enclosures either side of the entrance are still awaited. The applicant will be 
reminded of the need to submit the additional information and that the works 
ultimately approved must be undertaken prior to occupation of the building for 
residential purposes.  

7. Conclusion 

7.1 In conclusion it is considered that the development has appropriate regard to 
its green belt setting and that the character and integrity of the tower would be 
safeguarded. Accordingly, it is recommended that planning permission be 
granted for the following reasons: 

1 The development, given its size and scale, does not result in a 

Page 109



disproportionate addition over and above the size of the original 
building and therefore does not constitute inappropriate development 
in the Green Belt. Moreover, having regard to its size, siting, design 
and relationship to existing landscaping, it has appropriate regard to 
its green belt setting and does not unduly detract from the local 
landscape character. In this respect the development complies with 
London Plan policy 3D.9,   Core Policy 33 of the Core Strategy, saved 
Unitary Development Policy (II)G11 and advice contained in Planning 
Policy Guidance Note 2: Green Belts. 

2 The garage, by reason of its size, scale and siting, detached from the 
main tower, safeguards the character and integrity of the locally listed 
building. In this respect the development complies with Core Policy 31 
of the Core Strategy. 

8. Recommendation:  

8.1 That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following condition: 

1 C15 Private vehicles only – garages 

Page 110



P
a
g
e
 1

1
1



Page 112



LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD 

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date :16TH February 2011

Report of 
Assistant Director, Planning & 
Environmental Protection 

Contact Officer:
Aled Richards  Tel: 020 8379 3857 
Andy Higham  Tel: 020 8379 3848 
Mr S. Newton Tel: 020 8379 3851

Ward: Enfield 
Highway

Application Number :  TP/10/1392 Category: Other Development

LOCATION:  ENFIELD COLLEGE, 73, HERTFORD ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 5HA

PROPOSAL:  Erection of a detached  training building with mezzanine floor, external  
training area and service yard , together with realignment of  existing vehicular access 
and construction of new pedestrian access,  associated external hard/soft landscaping. 

Applicant Name & Address:
Chris McCutcheon,
College of Haringey
Enfield & NE London
73, Hertford Road,
Enfield,
EN3 5HA 

Agent Name & Address:
Michael McCollum, 
 KSS Design Group Limited 
1, James Street 
London
W1U 1DR 

RECOMMENDATION: That planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED in 
accordance with Regulation 3 of the Town & Country Planning General Regulations 
1992, subject to conditions. 

Agenda Item 12Page 113



Application No:-  TP/10/1392

16.2m

T
iv

e
r t o

n

E
X

E
T
E

R
R

O
A
D

H
o

u
s
e

B
U

R
S

L
A

N
D

R
O

A
D

THE RIDE

16.2m

GREEN ST

16.5m

BURNCROFT

BURNCROFT AVENUE

MOAT

D
U

R
A

N
T

S
P

A
R

K
A

V
E

N
U

E

CR

16.8m

Boro Const & Ward Bdy

CR

DURANTS ROAD

Roseacre

Lodge

Waverley School

Durants Park

Allotment Gardens

Cemetery

15.8m

C
y
c
l e

T
r a

c
k

Playground

P
a
th

Athletic Ground

Playing Field

17.1m

SIDE

AV
E
NU

E

17.7m

Durants Park

P
a

th

Tennis Courts

Running Track

Allotment Gardens

Cemetery

Cemetery

18.0m

THE RIDE

Enfield College

D
r a

in

Pool

Bowling Green

Pond

Chapel

Durants Park

C
O

L
L

IN
W

O
O

D
A

V
E

N
U

E

THE RIDE

Boro Const & Ward Bdy

Drain

Hall

St James's Church

Centre
Community

Dean House

21.0m

21.3m

Vicarage

21.0m

PH

A
R

C
H

E
R

S
D

R
IV

E

Works

Vincent House

Ponders End

Methodist Church

Works

House

Emerald

Clinic

Holmeleigh

Court

Car Park

BRECON ROAD

FF

C
F

Boro Const & Ward Bdy

S
W

A
N

S
E

A
R

O
A

D

S
o
u
th

b
u

r y
P

ri
m

a
ry

S
c
h
o

o
l

BROADLANDS AVENUE

FW
FF

A
B

E
R

D
A

R
E

R
O

A
D

Builder's Yard

Timber Yard

18.3m

Club

Paddling

19.2m

The

H
E

R
T
F
O

R
D

R
O

A
D

Barn Hall

20.7m

BROADLANDS CLOSE

BROADLANDS AVENUE

21.0m

FW

F
F

B
R

O
A

D
L

A
N

D
S

A
V

E
N

U
E

Development Control

Scale - 1:4004
Time of plot: 10:45 Date of plot: 03/02/2011

0 1 2 3 400m

© Crown copyright. London Borough of Enfield LA086363,2003

Page 114



1.  Site and Surroundings 

1.1 Enfield College is bound by Hertford Road to the west, Durants Park to the 
north, residential dwelling houses to the south and Metropolitan Open Land to 
the east.  There is approximately 14,400sqm of gross internal area within six 
main buildings: Park; Montagu; Collinwood; Kingfisher; Ride; and the Sports 
building. Collinwood is a two storey 1960s building, Park and Ride are two 
storey 1970s constructions. Montagu is a two-storey 1980s era building and 
Kingfisher is a two storey development completed in 2004. A recently 
approved planning application (TP/10/0356) will add an additional 800sqm of 
internal space once completed. 

1.2 Existing vehicular access for staff is via The Ride, on the south-east boundary 
of the site, leading to a 188 space car park. The visitors’ car park (47no. 
spaces) is accessed off Hertford, with deliveries and mini bus access via 
Collinwood Avenue from the south. 

1.3 The main pedestrian access is from Hertford Road, with an informal access 
via The Ride. 

1.4 The nearest residential dwelling is approximately 78m distant on Collinwood 
Avenue but separated from that dwelling by the 2-storey teaching block 
known as Collinwood. 

2.  Proposal 

2.1 Permission is sought for the erection of a 2-storey building to provide a 
construction training workshop, together with an external brickwork training 
area, ancillary washing and changing areas. 

2.2 The proposed building will be approximately 27m wide, it will have a 
maximum rearward projection of between approximately 29m and 38m, and it 
will have a maximum height of approximately 8.7m to the top of a flat roof. 
The building will provide 879sqm of floor area, with 60sqm covered external 
working area and a 142sqm mezzanine floor for plant. 

2.3 The site is currently served by a total of 235 parking spaces (186 spaces for 
staff, 15 for pupils and 34 for visitors), although 6 parking bays will already be 
lost as a result of the 2-storey infill extension to provide new entrance, student 
enrichment zone and 6 additional classrooms (TP/10/0356). A further 65 
spaces will be lost as a result of the current scheme. 

3.  Relevant Planning Decisions 

TP/10/0356 - Erection of a 2-storey infill extension to provide new entrance, 
student enrichment zone and 6 additional classrooms. – granted with 
conditions.

TP/95/0630 - Erection of single storey extension to south elevation and 
erection of a 2-storey extension to north elevation; construction of new 
pitched roof at ground floor level and installation of external staircase to east 
elevation. – granted with conditions. 

Page 115



TP/03/0053 - Demolition of an existing teaching block and erection of new 
reception and teaching building. – granted with conditions. 

4.  Consultations 

4.1  Statutory and non-statutory consultees

4.1.1 Traffic & Transportation and Environmental Health raise no objections. 

4.2  Public

4.2.1 Consultation letters were issued to two neighbouring and nearby residential 
properties. In addition, notice was displayed at the site. No letters of objection 
have been received. 

5. Relevant Policy 

5.1  Local Development Framework

At the meeting of the full Council on 10th November 2010, the Core Strategy 
of the Local Development Framework was approved. The document and the 
policies contained therein are now material considerations to be taken into 
account when considering the acceptability of development proposals. The 
following are of relevance: 

CP1: Strategic growth areas 
CP8: Education 
CP9: Supporting community cohesion 
CP11: Recreation, leisure, culture and arts 
CP20: Sustainable energy use and energy infrastructure 
CP21: Delivering sustainable water supply, drainage and sewerage 

infrastructure 
CP22: Delivering sustainable waste management 
CP24: The road network 
CP25: Pedestrians and cyclists 
CP26: Public transport 
CP30: Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open 

environment 
CP34: Parks, playing fields and other open spaces 
CP36: Biodiversity 
CP40: North east Enfield 

5.2 Saved UDP Policies

After the adoption of the Core Strategy, a number of UDP policies are 
retained as material considerations pending the emergence of new and 
updates policies and development standards within the Development 
Management Document. The following are of relevance: 

(II)CS1  Land requirements for facilities and services 
(II)CS2  Community services and the effective use of land 
(II)CS3  Facilities provided in the optimum location 
(II)GD1 Appropriate location 
(II)GD3 Aesthetic and functional design 
(II)GD6 Traffic generation 

Page 116



(II)H8  Privacy 

5.3  The London Plan

Policy 2A.1 Sustainability criteria 
Policy 3A.17 Addressing the needs of London’s diverse population 
Policy 3A.18 Protection and enhancement of community infrastructure and 

community facilities 
Policy 3A.24 Education facilities 
Policy 3C.23 Parking strategy 
Policy 4A.3  Sustainable design and construction 
Policy 4B.1 Design principles for a compact city 
Policy 4B.5 Creating an inclusive environment 
Policy 4B.8 Respect local context and communities   

5.4 Other Material Considerations

PPS1:  Delivering sustainable development 
PPG13: Transport 
PPS22; Renewable energy 
PPS25: Development and flood risk 

6.  Analysis 

6.1  Principle

6.1.1 With the existing use of the site, development  which seeks to improve 
existing school facilities would be both in keeping with the character of the 
site and the thrust of Policies (II)CS1, (II)CS2 and (II)CS3 of the Unitary 
development Plan which seek to encourage the improvement of existing 
educational facilities where they are in the right location and accord with wider 
environmental policy. In principle, therefore, there no objection to this 
proposed development subject to detailed matters being satisfactory resolved 
including design, appearance from MOL, loss of parking, access and traffic 
generation.

6.2  Impact on Character of Surrounding Area and Metropolitan Open Land (MOL)

Whilst the height at (8.7 metres) and mass of the proposed building reflects 
that of other buildings comprising the College campus, the overall design is 
considered utilitarian. The accompanying Design & Access Statement 
supports this approach by identifying its relationship to its intended function, 
with the horizontally laid cladding providing a clean, contemporary 
appearance. To provide relief and emphasis to the buildings entrance, this will 
be finished in contrasting colour and will have a glazed canopy.

6.2.3 Whist the thrust of the design principles are acknowledged, improvements 
could possibly be achieved in the external appearance to provide additional 
visual interest through for example, the provision of green walls / roofs or 
through the use of different coloured cladding. A condition will be imposed to 
secure details of the external appearance and on this basis, it is considered 
the building would sit well within the context of the existing Campus. 

6.2.4
6.2.5 A further consideration is the relationship to the Metropolitan Open Land 

situated to the east. The development  would lie adjacent to this boundary 

Page 117



and Policy in this regard seeks to ensure any development is appropriate and  
avoids excessive visual intrusion. Whilst it is acknowledged that the 
development introduces a built structure into an area that is relatively open in 
nature (car park) and near to the boundary with land to the east designated 
as Metropolitan Open Land (MOL), it will be largely screened from the MOL 
by existing mature trees within the MOL. As a result, it is considered that the 
development would not be overly intrusive when view from this adjoining open 
space.

6.3  Impact on Neighbouring Properties

6.3.1 The nearest residential dwelling is approximately 80m distant and also 
separated from the proposed building by existing multi-storey school 
buildings. There will therefore be no impact on the amenities of neighbouring 
residential occupiers in terms of loss of light, outlook, overshadowing and 
privacy.

6.3.2 The site is an existing school campus, therefore neighbouring residential 
properties will already experience some noise emanating from the school. 
Moreover, the above mentioned facility, although intended to support 
construction related  learning, should be sufficiently well insulated and distant 
from neighbouring properties to avoid issues of noise nuisance. In this regard, 
it is noted Environmental Health raise  no objection.  

6.3.3 It is noted that the applicant has stated that there is the potential to use the 
facilities outside of normal school hours. There should be no issues arising 
from this in terms of any potential impact on residents given the siting of the 
building.

6.4  Access and Traffic generation

6.4.1 No additional vehicle movements are envisaged as the proposal is not for the 
expansion of the school but for the improvement of existing facilities. 

6.4.2 Existing access arrangements will not be altered with staff and service 
vehicles accessing from The Ride and visitors from Hertford Road. 

6.5  Parking

6.5.1 A key issue with this proposal is the effect arising from the loss of on site 
parking. As a result of the development, 65 spaces would be lost rising to 71 
with the reallocation of 6 spaces to cater for mini buses. Taking into account 
the car parking spaces lost in connection with the “student hub” development 
recently approved, this takes the cumulative loss of parking on site to 97 
spaces.  The Transport Assessment submitted in support of the application 
concluded that the existing parking provision is acceptable, as car parking 
surveys have shown 72 spaces spare on a typical college weekday. 
Cumulatively therefore, there is potentially a daily deficiency of 25 spaces. 

6.4.4 In response to this situation, additional information was sought to provide 
sufficient support for the loss of the parking spaces. The additional 
information is summarised below:

1. The peak demand on parking at the College is identified to be between 
10:00-15:00. This is considered to reflect the main visitor period to the 

Page 118



College. At 09:00, when all teaching staff are likely to be on-site a 
minimum of 64 parking spaces are still available. Similarly, at 16:00 when 
afternoon classes are still taking place, there was an identified minimum 
space capacity of 45 spaces increasing to 63 spaces based upon the 
proposed total parking provision of 175 spaces at the College. 

2. In the context of off-site parking demand, the initial survey conducted on 
the 9th September took place on a number of surrounding residential 
streets near to the College that are not within existing Controlled Parking 
Zones (CPZ). These revealed that during the daytime parking demand on 
The Ride, to the east of Durants Park Avenue, reached a maximum of 
83% at 08:00, with capacity for 8 on street spaces still available. During 
the College daytime opening hours on-street parking demand reduced to 
a maximum demand of 79% with 10 spaces available at 11:00. 

3. The surveys also revealed that to the west of Durants Park Avenue on 
The Ride, parking demand reached a maximum of 34% at 09:00 with 
capacity for 46 on-street spaces still available. During the College daytime 
opening hours, on-street parking demand reduced to a maximum demand 
of 27% with 39 spaces available at 11:00. 

4. Additional on-site car park surveys conducted on Wednesday 8th, 
Thursday 9th and Tuesday 14th December 2010 between 07:00-22:00 
showed that there would still remain sufficient spare on-site parking 
capacity to meet demand based upon a reduction from 246 spaces to 175 
spaces.

5. In terms of numbers, there is a total staff count of 194 (x113 teaching staff 
and x81 non-teaching staff) and the proposal will increase teaching staff 
by five. In addition, there will be an increase in student numbers of 200 
FTEs.

6.4.5 Overall therefore, and having regard to this additional information, it is 
considered that any potential demand for parking which cannot be met on 
site, can be accommodated on adjoining highways within the parameters of 
existing highway parking restriction. Together with the requirements of a 
travel plan, it is considered these factors would mitigate any harm to the free 
flow and safety of vehicle using the adjoining highways. 

6.4.6 The scheme does not proposed additional cycle parking in excess of the 
existing 80 spaces. It is advised that demand for the existing spaces is low at 
present therefore additional cycle parking will not be sought through this 
current application.

6.6 Servicing

6.6.1 In relation to the new building, a dedicated servicing (inclusive of refuse 
storage) and loading area has been incorporated onto the northern side of the 
building.

6.6.2 Servicing arrangements for the school remain largely unaltered from the 
existing. The majority of deliveries are by minivans (several times per day), 2-
3 deliveries per week by rigid vehicles up to 10m in length. 

Page 119



6.6.3 A swept path analysis has confirmed that the access and manoeuvring 
arrangements will be acceptable. 

6.7 Construction traffic

6.7.1 Disruption from construction is inevitable. However, a condition requiring the 
submission of a construction management plan for approval would be 
imposed. Such a management plan would show, amongst other details, 
construction access and vehicle routing to the site, arrangements for the 
parking of contractors’ vehicles, wheel cleaning, and hours of work.  

6.8  Sustainable Design and Construction

6.8.1 The London Plan stipulates that an Energy Assessment must form part of any 
major proposal. The assessment should demonstrate expected energy and 
carbon dioxide emission savings (20%) from energy efficiency and renewable 
energy measures incorporated into the development (Policy 4A.4). 

6.8.2 Details are not provided on how the scheme will achieve the above targets 
although it is noted that that the flat roof will be provided with three rows of 
x13 polycarbonate roof lights to allow for natural lighting and a solar hot water 
panel is to be installed. 

6.8.3 Conditions are suggested to ensure that a BREEAM rating of ‘Very Good’ is 
achieved and that the details of how the development will achieve energy 
efficiency in accordance with the above target is met or exceeded. 

6.8.4 The campus has existing sewerage and surface facilities that discharge to the 
Thames Water network. Existing drainage facilities are in close proximity to 
the proposed building and it is noted that the recently completed Kingfisher 
building discharges to a soakaway. 

6.8.5 It is proposed to connect to the existing sewerage network. In relation to 
surface water drainage, it is recognised that the existing drainage is 
undersized and that there is also the potential for infiltration from construction 
materials such as silt. Conditions will however be imposed to ensure that the 
potential for SUDs is investigated and that subject to the findings, is 
implemented. 

6.8.6 The existing site, being an open car park, has little ecological value. 
Immediately to the east however, is an MOL with mature trees bordering the 
school site. The Design & Access Statement makes reference to new areas 
of soft landscaping on the south and west of the building. This proposal is 
considered acceptable and a condition will be imposed to secure the details 
of that landscaping / ecological improvements. In addition, a further condition 
will be imposed to secure the protection of the trees located near to the site 
boundary but within the MOL. 

7.  Conclusion

7.1 In the light of the above, it is considered that the scheme is acceptable for the 
following reasons:  

1. The proposed development improves facilities at the existing school 
campus as well as providing for additional teaching space for which there 

Page 120



is a recognised shortage within the Borough. It is considered that the 
proposed development complies with Core Policies 8 and 9 of the Core 
Strategy, Policies (II)CS1, (II)CS2 and (II)CS3 of the Unitary Development 
Plan, Policies 3A.18, 3A.24, 4B.1, 4B.8 of The London Plan, and with 
PPS1: Sustainable Development. 

2. The proposed development due to its size, siting and by virtue of 
conditions imposed should not detract from the character and appearance 
of the surrounding area nor would it unduly affect the amenities of 
adjoining or nearby residential properties having regard to Core Policies 
30 and 34 of the Core Strategy, Policies (II)CS2, (II)CS3 (II)GD3 and 
(II)H8 of the Unitary Development Plan and with Policy 4B.8 of The 
London Plan. 

3. The proposed development should not prejudice the ability to provide 
sufficient on-site parking thereby not giving rise to conditions prejudicial to 
the free flow and safety of traffic on the adjoining highways, having regard 
to Policies (II)GD6 and (II)GD8 of the Unitary Development Plan, Policy 
3C.23 of The London Plan and with PPG13: Transport.  

8.  Recommendation

8.1 That planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED in accordance with 
Regulation 3 of the Town & Country Planning General Regulations 1992, 
subject to conditions. 

1. Notwithstanding the details of the external appearance shown on 
submitted drawings, the development shall not commence until details 
of the external appearance of the approved building, including an 
assessment of the provision of green walls and roofs, have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The development shall be constructed in accordance with the 
approved details before it is occupied. 

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance that complies 
with adopted Policies. 

2. C09 Details of Hard Surfacing 
3 C10  Details of Levels 
4 C11  Details of Enclosure 

5 Parking and turning facilities shall be provided in accordance with 
Drawing No.010 unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
Reason: To ensure the development complies with adopted standards 
and does not prejudice conditions of safety or traffic flow on the 
adjoining highway or the internal circulation of the car park. 

6 That development shall not commence until a construction 
methodology has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The construction methodology shall contain: 

i) a photographic condition survey of the roads, footways and 
verges leading to the site  

Page 121



ii) details of construction access, associated traffic management 
and vehicle routing to the site 

iii) arrangements for vehicle servicing and turning areas 
iv) arrangements for the parking of contractors vehicles 
v) arrangements for wheel cleaning  
vi) details of the site compound and the layout of temporary 

construction buildings 
vii) arrangements for the storage of materials 
viii hours of work 

A construction management plan written in accordance with the 
‘London Best Practice Guidance: The control of dust and emission 
from construction and demolition’. 

The development shall then be undertaken in accordance with the 
approved construction methodology unless otherwise agreed in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: To ensure the implementation of the development does not 
lead to damage to the existing roads, prejudice highway safety or the 
free-flow of traffic on the adjoining highways, and to minimise 
disruption to neighbouring properties. 

7. The development shall not commence until a detailed ‘Energy 
Statement’ has been submitted and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  Submitted details will demonstrate the energy 
efficiency of the development and shall provide for no less than 20% 
total CO2 emissions arising from the operation of a development and 
its services over Part L of Building Regs.  The Energy Statement 
should outline how the reductions are achieved through the use of 
Fabric Energy Efficiency performance, energy efficient fittings, and the 
use of renewable technologies.   

Reason:  In the interest of sustainable development and to ensure that 
the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied that CO2 emission 
reduction targets are met in accordance with Policy CP20 of the Core 
Strategy, Policies 4A.4 and 4A.7 of the London Plan 2008 and PPS22. 

8 Evidence confirming that the development achieves a BREEAM rating 
of no less than ‘Very Good’ shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local planning Authority.  The evidence required shall 
be provided in the following formats and at the following times: 

a) design stage assessment, conducted by an accredited 
Assessor and supported by relevant BRE interim certificate, 
shall be submitted at pre-construction stage prior to the 
commencement of superstructure works on site; and, 

b) post construction assessment, conducted by an accredited 
Assessor and supported by relevant BRE accreditation 
certificate, shall be submitted following the practical completion 
of the development and prior to the first occupation. 

The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the 
details so approved, shall be maintained as such thereafter and no 

Page 122



change there from shall take place without the prior approval of the 
Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: In the interests of addressing climate change and to secure 
sustainable development in accordance with the strategic objectives of 
the Council and Policies 4A.1, 4A.2, 4A.3 and 4A.9 of the London Plan 
as well as PPS1. 

9 Prior to the commencement of development, a scheme to deal with 
the risks associated with contamination of the site shall each be 
submitted to, for the approval in writing, by the Local Planning 
Authority. The scheme shall include: 

a) A preliminary risk assessment identifying all previous uses and 
potential contaminants associated with those uses, a 
conceptual model of the site indicating sources, pathways and 
receptors and potentially unacceptable risks arising from 
contamination at the site. 

b) A site investigation scheme, based on (1) to provide 
information for a detailed assessment of the risk to all 
receptors that may be affected, including those off site. 

c) The site investigation results and the detailed risk assessment 
(2) and, based on these, an options appraisal and remediation 
strategy giving full details of the remediation measures 
required and how they are to be undertaken. 

d) A verification plan providing details of the data that will be 
collected in order to demonstrate that the works set out in (3) 
are complete and identifying any requirements for longer-term 
monitoring of pollutant linkages, maintenance and 
arrangements for contingency action. 

The approved scheme shall thereafter be implemented, unless 
otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: To protect against risks arising from contamination and in 
accordance with the recommendations of the submitted desktop study. 

10 If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found 
to be present at the site, then no further development, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, shall be 
carried out until the developer has submitted and obtained prior written 
approval from the Local Planning Authority for, an amendment to the 
remediation strategy detailing how this unsuspected contamination 
shall be dealt with. 

Reason: To protect against risks arising from contamination. 

11 Piling or any other foundation designs using penetrative methods shall 
not be permitted other than with the express written consent of the 
Local Planning Authority, which may be given for those parts of the 
site where it has been demonstrated that there is no resultant 
unacceptable risk to groundwater. The development shall be carried 
out in accordance with the approved details. 

Reason: To protect against pollution risk. 

Page 123



12 No development shall take place until an assessment has been 
carried out into the potential for disposing of surface water by means 
of a sustainable drainage (SUDS) scheme, in accordance with the 
principles of sustainable drainage systems set out in national planning 
policy guidance and statements, and the results of that assessment 
have been provided to the Local Planning Authority. The assessment 
shall take into account the design storm period and intensity; methods 
to delay and control the surface water discharged from the site; and 
measures to prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or 
surface waters. 

Reason: To ensure that the proposal would not result in an 
unacceptable risk of flooding from surface water run-off or create an 
unacceptable risk of flooding elsewhere. 

13 Surface water drainage works shall be carried out in accordance with 
details that have been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
local planning authority before the development commences. Those 
details shall include a programme for implementing the works. Where, 
in the light of the assessment required by the above condition, the 
local planning authority concludes that a SUDS scheme should be 
implemented, details of the works shall specify: 
i) a management and maintenance plan, for the lifetime of the 
development, which shall include the arrangements for adoption by 
any public authority or statutory undertaker or any other arrangements 
to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime; and 
ii) the responsibilities of each party for implementation of the SUDS 
scheme, together with a timetable for that implementation. 

Reason: To ensure implementation and adequate maintenance to 
ensure that the proposal would not result in an unacceptable risk of 
flooding from surface water run-off or create an unacceptable risk of 
flooding elsewhere. 

14 The development shall not commence until details of a landscaping 
scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  The detailed landscaping scheme shall include 
the following details:  

i) a revised Access Statement detailing routes through the 
landscape and the facilities it provides; 

ii) an ecological report detailing how the landscaping scheme 
maximises the ecological value of the site; 

iii) existing and proposed underground services and their 
relationship to both hard and soft landscaping; 

iv) proposed trees: their location, species and size; 
v) soft plantings: including grass and turf areas, shrub and 

herbaceous areas; 
vi) topographical survey: including earthworks, ground finishes, 

top soiling with both conserved and imported topsoil(s), levels, 
drainage and fall in drain types;  

vii) enclosures: including types, dimensions and treatments of 
walls, fences, screen walls, barriers, rails, retaining walls and 
hedges;

Page 124



viii) hard landscaping: including ground surfaces, kerbs, edges, 
ridge and flexible pavings, unit paving, furniture, steps and if 
applicable synthetic surfaces; and 

ix) any other landscaping feature(s) forming part of the scheme. 

All landscaping in accordance with the approved scheme shall be 
completed/planted during the first planting season following practical 
completion of the development hereby approved.  The landscaping 
and tree planting shall set out a plan for the continued management 
and maintenance of the site and any planting which dies, becomes 
severely damaged or diseased within five years of completion of the 
development shall be replaced with new planting in accordance with 
the approved details or an approved alternative and to the satisfaction 
of the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out 
strictly in accordance with the details so approved and shall be 
maintained as such thereafter.  

Reason: To minimise the impact of the development on the ecological 
value of the area, to ensure the development provides the maximum 
possible provision towards the creation of habitats and valuable areas 
for biodiversity and to preserve the character and appearance of the 
area in accordance with Policies CP30 and CP36 of the Core 
Strategy, the Biodiversity Action Plan and Policies 3D.14, 4A,3 and 
4B.5 of the London Plan 2008. 

15 C18 Details of Tree Protection 
16 C19 Details of Refuse Storage / Recycling 
17 C25 No Additional Fenestration 
18 C41 Details of External Lighting 

19 That prior to the occupation of the development a School Travel Plan 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The Travel Plan shall include: 

i) Agreed targets with the aim of reducing the impact of car travel 
on the environment; 

ii) Measures to promote sustainable transport and provisions iii)
 promoting a wider range of cleaner travel choices; 
iii) A full travel survey in consultation with relevant Council 

Officers;
iv) A programme for the review and monitoring of the Travel Plan 

to ensure target are met. 

The School shall operate in accordance with the approved Travel 
Plan.

Reason: In order to reduce the level of car borne traffic associated 
with the development and move towards more sustainable modes of 
transport.

20 C51A  Time Limited Permission 

Page 125



Revision

Scale at A1

Project number

Date drawn

File ref

Date checkedChecked by

Drawing title

Project

Client

London

1 James Street

London W1U 1DR

T+44(0)20 7907 2222

F +44(0)20 7907 2299

Drawn by

Figured dimensions only are to be taken from this drawing.  All dimensions are in millimeters unless

otherwise stated. All dimensions shall be checked on site prior to works commencing.  Any

discrepancies shall be reported to KSS. Do not scale this drawing.

All rights reserved. KSS asserts its rights under the Copyright, Designs and Patents Act 1988

(Unless otherwise agreed in writing).

Sevenoaks

7 Blighs Walk

Sevenoaks TN13 1DB

T+44(0)20 7907 2222

F +44(0)1732 467 841

Drawing number

Construction

Health and Safety Information
In addition to the hazards/risks normally associated with the types of work

detailed on this drawing, please note the following

Revisions

Maintenance / Cleaning / Operation

Decommissioning / Demolition

No significant risks

No significant risks

No significant risks

PLANNING

COLLEGE OF ENFIELD & NE LONDON

NEW CONSTRUCTION FACILITY

ELEVATIONS

PROPOSED

1:100

10502-Elevations

IM 23.06.10

MM 05.10.10

10502 300 -

6600

SCALE 1:

ELEVATION

100WEST

A B C D E

8250 8250 4850 4850

SCALE 1:

ELEVATION

100SOUTH

2 3 4 5

7125 7125 7125

5

7125

SCALE 1:

ELEVATION

100EAST

4 3 2

7125 7125 6600

E D C B A

82504850 4850

SCALE 1:

ELEVATION

100NORTH

8250

PARAPET 26.075

FFL
0

17.775

PARAPET 26.075

FFL
0

17.775

PARAPET 26.075

FFL
0

17.775

PARAPET 26.075

FFL
0

17.775

PARAPET 22.375

PARAPET 22.375

PARAPET 22.375

6

7125

1

6

7125

1

0m 1 2 5 10

SCALE

KEY

Horizontal insulated steel cladding panels with half-round

profile (EuroClad Elite 60 or similar)

Colour : BS M4L0367 (light grey)

Bi-modular insulated flat panel steel cladding panels

(EuroClad Elite Fusion or similar)

Colour : RAL 7047 (dark grey)

EuroClad corner profile with fin flashing

Colour : BS M4L0367

Aluminium capping system to match cladding

Colour : BS M4L0367

Plinth in engineering brick

Colour : Blue

Aluminium window system with PPC finish

Colour : RAL 7047

Insulated sectional overhead door with PVF2 finish

Colour : RAL 7047

Aluminium framed glazed external doors to match windows

Colour : RAL 7047

Lightweight cantilevered steel-framed canopy, partially glazed

with Planar Glazing

Colour : Silver

Signage

Font and colour to be determined by Enfield College

Lovered Panel (EuroClad)

Colour: To match cladding type B

New weldmesh security fence and matching gate

Colour: Black

Existing fence to football pitches / public land

Painted steel bollard

Colour: Silver

EuroClad running vertical joint with fin flashing

Colour : BS M4L0367

Stainless steel lighting bollard

A

C

G

D

F

A

C

D

E

E

E

H

H

C

D

B

F

C

D

A

A

NM

E

N

A

J

J

K

J

M

M M

L

SSL  21.225

SSL  21.225

SSL  21.225

METROPOLITAN OPEN LAND

Existing boundary fence

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

N

P

R

M

SPORTS BUILDING

ACCESS ROAD
P

L

Line of existing boundary fence

ACCESS ROAD

METROPOLITAN OPEN LAND

COLINWOOD BUILDING

ACCESS ROADCOLINWOOD BUILDING

ACCESS ROAD LRC/CONSTRUCTION

CLASSROOMS

R

R

R

R

C

C

C

C

S

R

P
a
g
e
 1

2
6



RS

TP

Revision

Scale at A1

Project number

Date drawn

File ref

Date checkedChecked by

Drawing title

Project

Client

London

1 James Street

London W1U 1DR

T+44(0)20 7907 2222

F +44(0)20 7907 2299

Drawn by

Figured dimensions only are to be taken from this drawing.  All dimensions are in millimeters unless

otherwise stated. All dimensions shall be checked on site prior to works commencing.  Any

discrepancies shall be reported to KSS. Do not scale this drawing.

All rights reserved. KSS asserts its rights under the Copyright, Designs and Patents Act 1988

(Unless otherwise agreed in writing).

Sevenoaks

7 Blighs Walk

Sevenoaks TN13 1DB

T+44(0)20 7907 2222

F +44(0)1732 467 841

Drawing number

Construction

Health and Safety Information
In addition to the hazards/risks normally associated with the types of work

detailed on this drawing, please note the following

Revisions

Maintenance / Cleaning / Operation

Decommissioning / Demolition

No significant risks

No significant risks

No significant risks

PLANNING

COLLEGE OF ENFIELD & NE LONDON

NEW CONSTRUCTION FACILITY

SITE PLAN

PROPOSED

1:250

10502-Site

IM 23.06.10

MM 05.10.10

10502 010 -

SCALE 1:

PLAN

250SITE PLAN - PROPOSED

EXISTING

ACCESS

ROAD

EXISTING

CAR PARK

SCALE

0m 5 2510

EXISTING

CAR PARK

PROPOSED

SOAKAWAY

LOCATION

METROPOLITAN

OPEN LAND

NEW

STUDENT HUB

PROPOSED

CONSTRUCTION

FACILITY

COLLINWOOD

(2 STOREY)

SPORTS

(2 STOREY)

MONTAGU

(2 STOREY)

COLLINWOOD

(4 STOREY)

CONSTRUCTION

BUILDING

(2 STOREY)

LRC

(2 STOREY)

COLLEGE SITE BOUNDARY

PLANNING APPLICATION BOUNDARY

SITE LOCATION - NATIONAL GRID REFERENCE TQ353 966

BOUNDARY OF METROPOLITAN

OPEN LAND

P
a
g
e
 1

2
7



GV

Revision

Scale at A1

Project number

Date drawn

File ref

Date checkedChecked by

Drawing title

Project

Client

London

1 James Street

London W1U 1DR

T+44(0)20 7907 2222

F +44(0)20 7907 2299

Drawn by

Figured dimensions only are to be taken from this drawing.  All dimensions are in millimeters unless

otherwise stated. All dimensions shall be checked on site prior to works commencing.  Any

discrepancies shall be reported to KSS. Do not scale this drawing.

All rights reserved. KSS asserts its rights under the Copyright, Designs and Patents Act 1988

(Unless otherwise agreed in writing).

Sevenoaks

7 Blighs Walk

Sevenoaks TN13 1DB

T+44(0)20 7907 2222

F +44(0)1732 467 841

Drawing number

Construction

Health and Safety Information
In addition to the hazards/risks normally associated with the types of work

detailed on this drawing, please note the following

Revisions

Maintenance / Cleaning / Operation

Decommissioning / Demolition

No significant risks

No significant risks

No significant risks

PLANNING

COLLEGE OF ENFIELD & NE LONDON

NEW CONSTRUCTION FACILITY

SITE PLAN

EXISTING

1:250

10502-Site

IM 23.06.10

MM 05.10.10

10502 002 -

COLLINWOOD

(2 STOREY)

SPORTS

(2 STOREY)

MONTAGU

(2 STOREY)

SCALE 1:

PLAN

250SITE PLAN - EXISTING

EXISTING

CAR PARK

EXISTING

ACCESS

ROAD

SCALE

0m 5 2510

EXISTING

CAR PARK

METRPOLITAN

OPEN LAND

STUDENT HUB

(2 STOREY)

Existing site boundary

Planning application boundary

COLLINWOOD

(4 STOREY)

CONSTRUCTION

BUILDING

(2 STOREY)

LRC

(2 STOREY)

COLLEGE SITE BOUNDARY

PLANNING APPLICATION BOUNDARY

SITE LOCATION - NATIONAL GRID REFERENCE TQ353 966

BOUNDARY OF METROPOLITAN

OPEN LAND

Existing tarmacadam finish

Existing lighting columns (to be

removed)

Boundary of metropolitan open

land

P
a
g
e
 1

2
8



LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD 

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 16th February 2011 

Report of 
Assistant Director, Planning & 
Environmental Protection 

Contact Officers:
Aled Richards  Tel: 020 8379 3857 
Andy Higham  Tel: 020 8379 3848 
Robert Lancaster Tel: 020 8379 
4019

Ward:
Southgate

Application Number :  TP/10/1424 Category: Small Scale Major: 
Dwellings

LOCATION:  Chase Side Works, Chelmsford Road, London, N14 4JN

PROPOSAL:  Redevelopment of site to provide 53 residential units comprising 8 * 4-bed 
houses in two terraces with accommodation in the roof and attached 3-storey block of 
3*2-bed flats and a 3-storey block of 42 flats (9 * 1-bed, 10 * 2-bed, and 23 * 3-bed) with 
accommodation in the roofspace, balconies and terraces together with provision of 
associated bicycle and car parking with access to Linden Way and Chelmsford Road.  

Applicant Name & Address:
Sorbon Homes Ltd, 
Sorbon,
Aylesbury End, 
Beaconsfield,
Bucks,
HP9 1LW

Agent Name & Address:
Sorbon Homes Ltd, 
Sorbon,
Aylesbury End, 
Beaconsfield,
Bucks,
HP9 1LW 

RECOMMENDATION:  That planning permission be GRANTED with conditions subject
to a S.106 Agreement in respect of the heads of terms as detailed in the report.  

Agenda Item 13Page 129



Application No:-  TP/10/1424

3

C
helm

sford

CHELMSFORD ROAD

Court

1
to

12

1
3
5

Yard

Willis

4to13

1 to

to 58

59

55
to 62

124

126

Chase Side

55.8m

2
0

2
1

71

to 66

Depot

1
0

1
2

2
9

63
67 to 70

9
6

72

El Sub Sta

Works

100
TCB

2
4

2

1
4

1

THE RYE

4

2

1

3
2

a

2
9

L
IN

D
E

N
W

A
Y

2
5

3
2

75

94

10
1

87

62.5m

4
3

Development Control

Scale - 1:1001
Time of plot: 10:21 Date of plot: 03/02/2011

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 120m

© Crown copyright. London Borough of Enfield LA086363,2003

Page 130



NOTE FOR MEMBERS 

Members will recall that at the meeting of the Planning Committee on 16th December 
2010, the application was deferred for a member site visit. This took place on 
Saturday 5th February and the application is reported here for further consideration in 
the light of this visit.   

Furthermore, since the last meeting, the Applicant has also provided some additional 
information in support of their development proposals and its effect on the 
surrounding highways. These  points are: 

a)  actual traffic counts carried out in October 2009 show 357 traffic movements 
including heavy lorries to and from the site every day. The total flows on 
Linden way and Chelmsford Road per day were 1125. This represents a 
significant proportion of traffic in the area and is directly attributable to the 
current use of the site; 

b) TRICS data base predicts a traffic generation from the proposed 53 dwellings 
of 110 movements per day. This represents 13% of the existing movements; 

c) Surveys of available roadside parking spaces reveal no spare spaces until 5 
pm i.e. after Chaseside Works employees, customers and visitors have gone 
home;

d) pedestrian flows as surveyed / counted are comparatively high with few 
journeys starting or ending at the site. These pedestrian flows e.g. 474 two-
way on Linden way arise from the proximity of the site to facilities, public 
transport and schools. The nearest tube station is just 800m away (a 10 min 
walk)

Taken together with the conclusions in the report, The Applicant is of the opinion that 
the development would lead to a  very considerable improvement to traffic and 
highway conditions 

1.  Site and Surroundings 

1.1 Site

1.1.1 The site, Chase Side Works, is 0.58 hectares in size. It is situated 75m off 
Chase Road, and is bounded by Chelmsford Road to the south, Linden Way 
to the west, The Rye to the north and by the rear gardens of the houses on 
Chelmsford Road to the east. The site is currently in industrial use (Class B2) 
comprising 3814sqm in 16 units of 1 & 2-storey accommodation. The use is 
predominately car repair and MOT services with some storage and office 
uses. As a result of the industrial use of this land it is contaminated due to the 
previous industrial uses, including a dye works and paint factory.   

1.1.2 The land is highest on the south-western corner of the site at the junction of 
Chelmsford Road and Linden Way. The levels fall away along Chelmsford 
Road for approximately 55m before rising again. The levels fall away along 
Linden Way before rising upwards after the junction with The Rye. From the 
south-west junction the land falls away diagonally across the site to the north-
east before rising towards the new development on The Rye. Furthermore the 
site is approximately 0.8-1m below pavement level. The results of these 

Page 131



undulating ground levels means that the site sits in a ‘sink’, with a visually 
prominent corner at the junction of Chelmsford Road and Linden Way with the 
new development at Nos12-29 The Rye prominent over the top of the existing 
industrial buildings.     

1.1.3 A culverted main river, Hounsden Gutter, runs north-west to south-east 
across the site. The applicant indicates that the Environment Agency has 
advised that a 7m easement is required. On the south-western edge of the 
site is an EDF electricity sub-station bounded by 1.8m high wooden fencing 
and a metal gate. 

1.1.4 On the western boundary of the site are 13 Lime Trees which are protected 
under Group Tree Preservation Order (TPO), LBE Order No. 28 (3) 1971.   

1.1.8 As existing there are 34 off-street parking spaces, however the intensity of 
use is such that it results in overspill parking onto the adjoining highways 
during work hours. The surrounding streets are double parked, and as a 
result the useable carriageway width is relatively narrow, giving rise to difficult 
access conditions for an industrial site. 

1.2 Surroundings

1.2.1 The surrounding area is residential in character, containing mainly 2-storey 
terraced properties. To the west of the site, on Linden Way, there are 2-storey 
1930’s terraced properties in rows of four, set back from the highway with off-
street parking to the front. To the north of the site is a 2-storey detached 
property with a detached garage to the rear, which is part of the new 
development on The Rye. To the north east is the main part of this new 
development containing 3-storey townhouses. The new development was 
completed in approximately 2003 and was formerly part of the industrial site. 
To the east of the site is a terrace of Victorian 2-storey houses on the 
northern side of Chelmsford Road and to the south of the site, on the 
southern side of Chelmsford Road is a long terrace of Edwardian 2-storey 
houses. There are also the occasional 3 or 4-storey purpose built block of 
flats in the locality.  

2.  Proposal 

2.1 Permission is sought for the comprehensive redevelopment of the site, 
demolishing the industrial units and providing 53 residential units comprising 
8 * 4-bed houses and 45 flats (9 * 1-bed, 13 * 2-bed and 23 * 3-bed). With 
associated amenity space and 55 vehicular parking spaces. 

2.2 The houses, approximately 9.3m high, would be 2-storeys with habitable 
accommodation in the roof space and would be provided in two terraces. 
Plots 1-4 would be on the street frontage adjacent to No.135 Chelmsford 
Road and plots 5-8 would be at the back of the site in broad alignment with 
No.20 The Rye.

2.3 The flats would be provided in two blocks with 3 * 2-bed open-market flats in 
the 10.25m high Block D adjoining the house on plot 4, with accommodation 
over three floors. The central feature of the redevelopment would be the 
contiguous Blocks A-C which fronts both Chelmsford Road and Linden Way. 
The highest point would be at the corner junction and would be 12m high. The 
development falls away in height to approximately 10m at the two ends. 

Page 132



Accommodation is provided across four floors including accommodation in 
the roof space. The ‘with grant’ option would provide 12 socially rented flats 
within Block A , 4 ‘intermediate’ flats with Block B and 29 open-market flats 
with Blocks C and D. The ‘without grant’ option would provide 8 socially 
rented flats and 3 intermediate flats in Block A and 34 open-market flats 
elsewhere.

2.4. The proposal provides for 55 parking spaces broadly arranged into two 
parking areas. A new vehicular access is proposed to Linden Way providing 
access to parking area on the northern edge of the site adjacent to No.25 
Linden Way. The other parking area which also requires a new vehicular 
access is sited at the eastern end of the site between Blocks C and D. There 
are two other vehicular accesses to Chelmsford Road and Linden Way to 
double parking bays. 84 cycle spaces are provided across the site, at a ratio 
of 1 space for each 1 and 2-bed flat and 2 spaces for the 3 and 4-bed units.       

2.5 Communal amenity space is provided to the rear of the main block and to the 
front of the development. The eight houses each have private rear amenity 
space.

3.  Relevant Planning Decisions 

3.1 PRE/10/0034: Proposed residential redevelopment. Advice despatched 09-
Jun-2010

3.2 TP/09/1875: Redevelopment of site to provide 65 residential units comprising 
8 x 4-bed houses and 57 flats (3 x 1-bed, 35 x 2-bed and 19 x 3-bed) with 62 
parking spaces and new vehicular access to Linden Way and Chelmsford 
Road  (OUTLINE - access, landscaping, layout and scale with some matters 
reserved). Refused 26-Apr-2010. Appeal Withdrawn 21-Oct-2010.  The refusal 
reasons were: 

1) The proposal by reason of its scale, layout, design and density results in a  
cramped form of development, detrimental to character and appearance 
of the area, the living conditions of and amenity space for future occupiers 
and highway safety contrary to London Plan Policy 4B.3 and PPS3.

2) The proposal fails to provide satisfactory quality amenity space for the 
occupiers of the flats resulting in substandard amenity provision, 
detrimental to the living conditions of future occupiers and the quality of 
residential accommodation available in the Borough, contrary to Policy 
(II)H9 and Appendix A1.7 of the Unitary Development Plan and the 
objectives of PPS1 and PPS3. 

3) The proposal by virtue of its layout results in refuse bin enclosures and 
parking areas in visually prominent locations to the detriment of the 
appearance of the development and character of the area, contrary to 
Policies (I)GD1, (I)GD2 and (II)GD3 of the Unitary Development Plan.   

4) The proposed appearance of the scheme by virtue of its bulk and design 
is considered to be detrimental to the character of the area. In particular 
the main 3 and 4-storey block is not considered to take advantage of the 
visually prominent corner location, block A is considered to be unduly 

Page 133



bulky, block D and the end elevation of block A by virtue of their design 
and chamfered edges are considered to have a visually awkward and 
contrived appearance, the proposed roof design of the main block with 
protruding lift shafts is considered to be unduly bulky and as viewed from 
the north and east, has a contrived and formless design, contrary to 
Policies (I)GD1, (I)GD2 and (II)GD3 of the Unitary Development Plan.   

5) The proposal does not provide an adequate range of dwelling sizes or any 
wheelchair accessible units to the detriment of meeting the diverse 
housing needs of future occupiers, contrary to Policies (I)GD1, (I)GD2 and 
(II)H6 of the Unitary Development Plan, Policy 3A.5 of The London Plan 
and PPS3: Housing. 

6) The application fails to provide sufficient information to assess the 
useable floor areas of the flats in the roof. In the absence of such 
information it is considered that the proposal would provide cramped 
accommodation in these units, detrimental to the future occupier’s living 
conditions and contrary to Policy (II)H16 of the Unitary Development Plan, 
Supplementary Guidance on Flat Conversions, Draft London Plan 
Supplementary Planning Guidance: Interim Housing Guidance (2009). 
Draft London Plan Supplementary Planning Guidance: Housing Design 
Guide (2009). 

7) The proposed layout of the dwellings is considered to result in a poor form 
of accommodation. In particular the flats within Block A, B & C with a 
single aspect facing either north or east would receive low levels of 
natural light and have limited outlook, the open plan living arrangements 
for all of the flats and houses fails to adequately reflect the diverse 
accommodation needs of potential occupiers and the landscaped buffer 
between the communal amenity space and fenestration of the ground 
floor flats would result in a loss of privacy and undue disturbance to the 
potential occupiers. Contrary to Policies (I)GD1, (I)GD2, (II)H8 and (II)H9 
of the Unitary Development Plan, London Plan Policies 3A.5, 3A.6, 3A.13 
and 3A.17 and Draft London Plan Supplementary Planning Guidance: 
Housing Design Guide (2009). 

8) The siting of the proposed car parking areas in relation to the ground floor 
Flat 1 within Block E, Flat A1 within Block A and bedroom 2 of Flat C6, 
results in a contrived design whereby the kitchen of Flat 1 in Block E does 
not have any fenestration, detrimental to the outlook and levels of light for 
the potential occupiers and the occupier’s of bedroom 2 of Flat C6 and 
bedroom 3 of Flat A1 would be unduly affected by light pollution from 
vehicle headlights, noise and disturbance and a poor level of outlook. 
Contrary to Policies (I)GD1, (I)GD2 and (II)GD3 of the Unitary 
Development Plan as well as 3A.6 of the London Plan and  Draft London 
Plan Supplementary Planning Guidance: Housing Design Guide (2009). 

9) The proposed development provides inadequate and insufficient levels of 
off-street vehicular parking and would result in the potential for on-street 
parking on the surrounding highways, resulting in an unacceptable 
increase in the demand for kerbside parking to the detriment of safety and 
free flow of traffic on the highway contrary to Policies (II) GD6 and (II) 
GD8 of the Unitary Development Plan and Policy 3C.23 of the London 
Plan.

Page 134



10) The proposal by virtue of its layout prejudices the ability of the site to 
satisfactorily provide adequate and acceptable access, circulation routes 
and general site permeability for pedestrians and people with disabilities 
and does not provide facilities in accordance with standards contrary to 
Policies (II)GD3, (II)GD11 and (II)T16 of the Unitary Development Plan 
and Manual for Streets 2007.

11) The proposal fails to make adequate provision for the reduction of CO2

emissions resulting from the development by on-site renewable sources 
as required by London Plan Policies 4A.1, 4A.3 and 4B.6 and the 
objectives contained within PPS1, the climate change supplement to 
PPS1 and PPS22. 

12) The submitted Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) does not comply with the 
requirements set out in Annex E, paragraph E3 of Planning Policy 
Statement 25 (PPS: 25). The submitted FRA does not, therefore, provide 
a suitable basis for assessment to be made of the flood risks arising from 
the proposed development. In particular the FRA fails to consider all 
aspects of flood risk, adequately address the potential effects of the 
development on the Hounsden Gutter Culvert, and, demonstrate that any 
damage to the Hounsden Gutter Culvert resulting from the proposed 
development will be rectified. Contrary to Unitary Development Plan 
Policies (I)EN6, (II)GD12 and (II)GD13 as well as PPS25. 

13) The information submitted is considered insufficient to justify the level of 
Affordable Housing provision as contained within the applicant’s Three 
Dragon’s Toolkit. In the absence of such information it is considered that 
the proposal fails to provide a sufficient level of affordable housing, 
contrary to Policies 3A.8, 3A.9 and 3A.10 of the London Plan.    

14) The proposal makes no provision to off-set the impact of the proposal on 
the ability of local schools to provide for the additional pupils resulting 
from this development, contrary to Policy 3A.2 of the London Plan and 
PPS1 and PPS3.

3.3 PRE/09/0051: Proposed erection of 65 residential units, comprising 57 self-
contained flats in 3 blocks and 8 houses within 2 terraces. Advice dispatched 
27-Oct-2009.

3.4 PRE/07/0044: Proposed redevelopment of site to provide 54 residential units 
with 54 car parking spaces. Request received 27-Feb-2007. 

3.5 TP/01/1464: 1-23, Linden Way, London, N14. Erection of 18 x four bedroom 
townhouses in 4 three storey blocks and a detached 3 bedroom house 
together with widening of access road (The Rye), provision of associated car 
parking and removal of 16 trees. Refused 07-Jun-2002. Appeal allowed 
subject to conditions 17-May-2003.  

4. Consultations 

4.1  Statutory and non-statutory consultees

4.1.1 Thames Water  

Page 135



Advise that their approval is required for new buildings across public sewers 
and that petrol interceptors should be fitted to the car parking areas. They 
have no objections on the basis of the impact on the water infrastructure. 

4.1.2 EDF Energy  

Advises that the distance between the sub-station and the proposed buildings 
footings should be greater than 7m and that habitable rooms should be sited 
should not have windows opening out over the sub-station.  

4.1.3 Environment Agency  

The Agency raises no objections subject to conditions.  

4.1.4 LFEPA 

 The Brigade raises no objections to the proposal.  

4.1.5 Traffic and Transportation  

Transportation raises no objections to the proposal subject to conditions and 
s106 agreement. 

4.1.6 Environmental Health  

Environmental Health raises no objections subject to a number of conditions 
regarding contaminated land, restrictions on construction times and activities 
and details of a Construction Management Plan. 

4.1.7 Education  

Education calculates that the development would generate the need for six 
additional primary school places and 2 additional secondary school places. 
This burden on local schools should be offset through a s106 contribution.  

4.1.8 Arboricultural Officer 

  No objections to the scheme are raised and advises that the TPO’s can be 
retained.

4.1.9 Housing  

Housing objects to the scheme on the basis of the mix of affordable housing 
units.

4.1.10 Economic Development  

Raise no objections subject to a s106 agreement requiring the developer to 
enter into a Local Labour in Construction Agreement to provide opportunities 
for local people to gain employment/training.   

4.1.11 Urban Design Team  

Page 136



The Team supports the application however suggest improvements in relation 
to the layout, design, use of amenity space, living conditions for future 
occupiers and permeability of site.  

4.1.12 Ecology Officer 

The Officer raises no objections to the revised ecology report subject to 
conditions.

4.2  Public 

4.2.1 Consultation letters were sent to 200 neighbouring properties. Three notices 
were erected adjacent to the site and a notice placed in the local press. 

4.2.2. At the time of writing there have been 16 responses by letter, signed to be 20 
people including the Directors of The Rye Management Company and the 
Southgate Civic District Trust. All of the responses contained objections to the 
scheme.

4.2.3 A summary of the objections is as follows: 

 Due to the height and set back of the development results in 
overshadowing, a loss of light to the houses on the other side of 
Chelmsford Road. 

 Balconies result in a loss of privacy and noise to the houses on the other 
side of Chelmsford Road. 

 Lack of parking resulting in increased on-street parking demand. 

 Access and entrance points to Block C will cause a noise disturbance. 

 Development will be detrimental to the character and appearance of the 
area.

 The proposal is an overdevelopment of the site. 

 The new blocks of flats are excessive in height, size, bulk and massing. 

 Proposal would, due to its height and scale result in Chelmsford Road 
being a ‘dark alley’ and result in increased opportunity for crime. 

 The proposed ground floor flats would be single aspect and receive little 
natural light. 

 Lack of amenity space for proposed development. 

 The proposed scheme should have houses not flats. 

 Detrimental impact on free flow of traffic and highway safety due to siting 
of proposed accesses/egresses.  

 Noise and disturbance from pedestrian traffic, proximity of entrances to 
existing houses and other activities associated with an overly dense 
development. 

 Out of character with surrounding Edwardian and Victorian properties. 

4.2.4 In addition, the Southgate Civic District Trust comments that the proposed 
development will adversely impact on their quality of life, visual appearance 
and on street parking. In particular, they are concerned about the impact of 
overlooking on the residential properties located on the opposite side of the 
road and the scale of the development is out of keeping with the surroundings 
particularly the Victoria terraces opposite the site. Taken together, they 
consider the proposal represents overall development. The Group are also 
concerned about the effect on street parking and insufficient provision will 
impact on the on street spaces available to existing residents, 

Page 137



5. Relevant Policy  

5.1 Local Development Framework

5.1.1 The Enfield Plan –Core Strategy was adopted on 10th November 2010. The 
following policies from this document are of relevance to the consideration of 
this application: 

CP2 Housing Supply 
CP3 Affordable Housing 
CP4  Housing Quality 
CP5 Housing Type 
CP6 Meeting Housing Need 
CP8 Education 
CP9 Community Cohesion 
CP13 Promoting Economic Prosperity 
CP16 Economic success and improving skills 
CP20 Sustainable Homes 
CP21 Sustainable water, drainage and sewage 
CP25 Pedestrian and Cyclists 
CP26 Public Transport 
CP28 Flood Risk 
CP29 Flood Risk Infrastructure 
CP30 Built and Open Environment 
CP32 Pollution 

            CP46 Infrastructure Contributions 

5.2 Unitary Development Plan

5.2.1 After the adoption of the Core Strategy, a number of UDP policies are 
retained as material considerations pending the emergence of new and 
updates policies and development standards within the Development 
Management Document. The following are of relevance: 

(II)GD3  Character / Design 
(II)GD6  Traffic Generation 
(II)GD8  Site Access and Servicing 
(II)H6   Size and tenure of new developments 
(II)H8  Privacy and Overlooking 
(II)H9  Amenity Space 
(II)T13  Access onto Public Highway 
(II)C35  Tree Preservation Orders 
(II)C36  Replacement planting 
(II)C38  Resist development that entail loss of trees of public 

5.32 London Plan 

 2A.1     Sustainability criteria 
 3A.1  Increasing London’s supply of housing 
 3A.2  Borough Housing Targets 
 3A.3  Maximising potential of sites 
 3A.5  Sustainable Design and Construction 
 3A.6  Quality of new housing provision 
 3A.13  Special needs and specialist housing 

Page 138



 3A.17   Addressing the needs of London’s diverse population  
 3A.20  Health objectives  
 3C.21  Improving Conditions for Walking 
 3C.22  Improving conditions for cycling 
 3C.23  Parking Strategy 
 4A.1      Tackling Climate Change 
 4A.3  Sustainable Design and Construction 

4A.4  Energy Assessment 
4A.5  Heating and Cooling Networks 
4A.7  Renewable Energy 
4A.9  Adapting to Climate Change 
4B.1  Design principle for a compact city 
4B.3  Maximising the potential of sites (see also Table 4B.1) 
4B.5  Creating an inclusive environment 
4B.6  Sustainable design and construction  
4B.8  Respect local context and communities 

Annex 4 Parking standards 

London Plan Supplementary Planning Guidance: Children and Young 
People’s Play and Recreation 

London Plan Supplementary Planning Guidance: Sustainable Design and 
Construction (2006).  

Draft London Plan Supplementary Planning Guidance: Interim Housing 
Guidance (2009).

5.4 Other Material Considerations

PPS1 Sustainable Development 
PPS1  Supplement Climate Change 
PPS3 Housing  
PPS4 Planning for Sustainable Economic Growth 
PPG13 Transport  

Supplementary Planning Guidance: Flat Conversions 

Manual for Streets (2007) 

Wheelchair Housing Design Guide (2nd Edition), Stephen Thorpe, Habinteg 
Housing Association (2006) 

Halcrow’s Employment Land Study 2006.  

6.  Analysis 

6.1  Principle

6.1.1 The site’s designation as secondary or locally significant industrial land has 
been removed by the recently adopted Core Strategy. Notwithstanding its 
designation however, it is recognised that such premises provide a source of 
local employment and an opportunity for new small businesses to become 
established in the Borough. The units are also suitable for service trades 
which need to be located amongst the community they serve. Many do not 

Page 139



act to the detriment of the local environment and make a valuable contribution 
to the Borough’s economy and employment opportunity. However, it also 
recognised that many of these units, as well as the site as a whole, are 
outdated and do not meet modern needs leading to pressures for 
redevelopment. In such cases, regard will be had to the suitability of the site 
for residential or for continued business/industrial use, and to the current 
availability of land for housing and business uses.  

6.1.2 More recent work regarding future designation and the need for industrial land 
has been undertaken in support of the Core Strategy. In particular, the 
Halcrow’s Employment Land Study (2006) indicates that the Borough can 
meet its industrial employment land requirements potentially without the 
contribution of this particular site, which it describes as follows: 

‘a collection of high density buildings with almost no parking or none kerbside 
access. It appears to be constructed in part at the turn of the century with 
additional buildings circa 1930’s. The site is only accessible via residential 
streets and is surrounded by established residential areas.’

6.1.3 The reports assessment is that it is ‘ideal for a change of planning use due to 
the lack of modern facilities, poor access both physically and via the road 
network.’  Furthermore the Cluster appraisal results rank Chase Side Works 
23rd out of Enfield’s 23 industrial sites.  

6.1.4 Given the Study’s assessment of the site, highlighting its lack of modern 
facilities, its poor accessibility, that it is sited adjacent to existing residential 
areas, has limited off-street parking and gives rise to significant overspill on-
street parking on the adjoining highways, it is considered that the loss of this 
industrial site and its use for residential purposes is acceptable subject to a 
s106 obligation supporting the Construction Web initiative. In principle, 
therefore, the proposed land use is acceptable. 

6.2  Impact on Character and Appearance of Surrounding Area

6.2.1   Density 

6.2.2 The London Plan Density Matrix advocates a density of up to 75 units per 
hectare (u/ha) or 300hrph (net), given the site’s suburban location, its PTAL 
rating and the density of the surrounding development. The site area is 0.58 
ha, the scheme proposes 53 units with 203 habitable rooms, resulting in a 
density of 91 u/ ha and 350 hrph. However it is acknowledged that an 
assessment should not solely be a numerical calculation, but also include a 
qualitative appraisal of the scheme.  

6.2.3  Layout 

6.2.4 The basic layout of the scheme maintains the established building lines on 
Chelmsford Road and Linden Way and provides a strong street frontage with 
vistas through to The Rye. Furthermore the landscaping between the 
proposed blocks and back edge of the footway is considered to provide a 
comfortable setting for the development.  

6.2.5 Moreover the revisions to the scheme (from the originally refused proposal) 
contribute to an assessment of the proposal as satisfactorily integrating with 
the surrounding area with particular regard to its bulk and design. In particular 

Page 140



the increased proportion of amenity space to built form is considered more 
appropriate in this suburban location. Moreover the revised siting, layout and 
design of refuse/recycling enclosures and parking areas are such that they 
would not be as prominent in the street scene and the revised layout now 
provides a good level of site permeability for pedestrian and disabled persons. 
Furthermore the scheme provides quality of accommodation and satisfactory 
consideration has been given to avoiding undue noise and disturbance to the 
occupiers of the property at No.25 The Rye.   

6.2.6 Turning to each of these issues in detail, the amenity space requirements for 
flats according to UDP Policy (II)H9 are 75% of the Gross Internal Area (GIA). 
Here, the GIA is 4150m2 leading to a requirement for amenity space of 
3112m2. The proposed amenity space is calculated as 980m2 to rear, 580m2

to front and 150m2 of balcony space producing an overall figure of 1710m2 or
55% of the GIA. The proposed amenity space is thus below that normally 
required, but having regard to the functionality of the space, including 
balconies, patio areas to the front of the development and seating and 
children’s play area to the rear amenity space, it is considered sufficient in 
terms of quality and quantity of the amenity space and contributes to a high 
standard of residential accommodation for future occupiers.  

6.2.7 With regard to the proposed houses; 100% of their GIA should be provided as 
amenity space. The GIA of the eight houses is 904m2 whilst the amenity 
space to the rear is 451m2. Therefore the amenity space to the rear would be 
50% of GIA. Whilst this is below standard, given its regular shape and a large 
proportion being private amenity space, it is considered acceptable. 

6.2.8 The revised siting of the parking area to the north and additional landscaping 
on the boundary with No.25 Linden Way is considered to adequately mitigate 
against the potential for undue noise and disturbance resulting from the 
parking area to the occupiers of No.25.  

6.2.9 The site is considered to have a good standard of pedestrian permeability 
including for disabled persons having regards to the path widths, the siting of 
the disabled parking bays, pedestrian visibility at the access points to the car 
park, the internal routes for people and especially disabled persons between 
the amenity space and the blocks’ entrances. 

6.2.10 The revised relationship between the parking areas and the ground floor flats 
is not now considered to result in undue light pollution (from headlights), noise 
disturbance or poor levels of outlook.  

6.2.11 Furthermore it is considered that the vegetative buffer between the communal 
amenity space and windows of the ground floor flats would ensure that there 
is not an undue loss of privacy or undue disturbance to the future occupiers.  

6.2.12 The proposed landscaping scheme is considered to contribute to the 
scheme’s spacious and suburban appearance and sufficiently softens the 
appearance of the hard surfaced areas.  

6.2.13 The boundary treatments are 1.5-1.8m high metal black railings to 
Chelmsford Road and Linden Way frontage, 1.8m timber fencing to rear of 
proposed houses, and along the northern and eastern boundary the high 
wall/fence is to be retained to Linden Square. However it is not clear what the 
front boundary treatment to the houses would be. Given that details of the 

Page 141



boundary treatments can be dealt with under the condition, it is considered 
appropriate to deal with this element of the scheme at a later stage. 

6.2.14  Height and Design 

6.2.15 The proposed blocks of flats are between 9-13m high and the proposed 
houses are approximately 9.3m high. The surrounding houses are 
approximately 8.25m high on Chelmsford Road, 10.8m high for houses 
between No.12 to 29 The Rye and No.25 Linden Way is approximately 9m 
high to its main ridge. It is considered that the proposed building heights are 
appropriate for the area and in terms of eaves and ridge heights and building 
lines relate well to the Chelmsford Road terrace starting at No.135.  

6.2.16 The gable ends to Blocks C & E, enclosing the Chelmsford Road access, are 
considered to providing an appropriate ‘book end’ form of development. 
Furthermore the windows on this end elevation are considered to provide an 
sufficiently active frontage. 

6.2.17 The street elevation design, whilst different to existing development in the 
area, is considered to pleasantly contrast with the street scene. In particular 
the design at the focal point at the junction of Chelmsford Road and The Rye 
is considered to be successful in providing a ‘landmark feature’.  

6.2.18 As viewed from the North and East (rear) Elevations, the revised roof design 
is such that it appears less complicated. Furthermore the revised roof design, 
including the revised siting of the lift shafts is such that it does not appear 
unduly bulky as perceived from the street.  

6.3  Impact on Neighbouring Properties

6.3.1 The most sensitive residential properties in relation to this development are 
No.135 Chelmsford Road, Nos.20 – 27 The Rye and No.25 Linden Way. 
Given the objections further consideration is also given to the houses 
between Nos.98-126 Chelmsford Road. 

6.3.2 In terms of the impact on No.135 Chelmsford Road, the following 
considerations are taken into account:  

 The proposed house on Plot 1 does not breach the front or rear building 
line of No.135.  

 There are no flank windows on No.135 and only obscured glazed 
windows on the flank wall of the proposed house at Plot 1.  

 Appendix A1.7 of the UDP contains standards for the minimum length of 
rear gardens, to ensure, amongst other things, that new houses would not 
unduly overlook the gardens of existing properties and vice-versa. It 
recommends a minimum distance of 11m. The proposed rear windows of 
the house on Plot 5 would be 15.75m away from the rear garden of 
No.135 and from the rear windows of the house at Plot 6 would be 15m 
away.

Taking these factors into account, it is considered the proposed development 
would not unduly detract from the residential amenities of No.135. 

6.3.3 In terms of the impact on No.25 Linden Way, the following considerations are 
taken into account: 

Page 142



 No.25 has one first floor flank window which appears to serve a non-
habitable room. 

 The closest distance between the flank wall of No.25 and the flank wall of 
the proposed Block A is 18m. 

 The scheme proposes to retain the 2m+ fence on the boundary with 
No.25 along with a substantial landscaping scheme. 

Taking these factors into account, it is considered the proposed development 
would not unduly detract from the residential amenities of No.25. 

6.3.4 In terms of the impact on No.20 The Rye, the following considerations are 
taken into account: 

 The proposed building line of the house on Plot 8 would not extend 
beyond the building line of No.20. 

 The proposed house on Plot 8 would only have obscure glazed windows 
in the flank elevation facing No.20. 

Taking these factors into account, it is considered the proposed development 
would not unduly detract from the residential amenities of No.20. 

6.3.5 In terms of the impact on Nos.21 - 27 The Rye, the following considerations 
are taken into account: 

 The UDP Appendix A1.7 contains standards for the minimum length of 
rear gardens, to ensure, amongst other things, that new houses would not 
unduly overlook the gardens of existing properties and vice-versa. It 
recommends a minimum distance of 11m. The distance between Block A 
and the rear boundary of No.21 is 14.1m. The distance increases for the 
other properties on the Rye.  

 The UDP Appendix A1.7 contains standards for the minimum distance 
between buildings to safeguard privacy, the admission of light and 
outlook. Block A’s highest facing windows/balconies are 3-storeys high, 
whilst the houses on the The Rye are also 3-storeys high, therefore the 
UDP criteria recommend a minimum distance of 30m. The distance 
between Block A and the rear windows of No.21 is 28m. The distance 
increases for the other properties on the Rye. However it is recognised 
that the development on The Rye is on substantially higher ground than 
that of the proposed Block, therefore the distance is considered to be 
acceptable. 

Taking these factors into account, it is considered the proposed development 
would not unduly detract from the residential amenities of Nos 21-27. 

6.3.6 In terms of the impact on Nos.98-136 Chelmsford Road, the following 
considerations are taken into account: 

 The distance between the proposed block and the houses on the opposite 
side of Chelmsford Road is 17 / 18m and separated by the footways and 
highway of Chelmsford Road. 

 The front of the proposed block is facing the front of the houses on 
Chelmsford Road. 

 The development, albeit higher and with balconies, is no closer than other 
houses opposite each other on Chelmsford Road and not untypical on 
residential suburban roads. 

Page 143



 The noise associated with the Block entrances and balconies to flats is 
not likely to result in undue disturbance or generate noise complaints.  

6.4 Quality of proposed accommodation

6.4.1 Having regard to the proposed units’ floor areas, floor to ceiling heights, 
layout, aspect and fenestration, it is considered that they would be fit for 
purpose, sufficiently spacious, receive good levels of natural light and have a 
satisfactory outlook in accordance with Enfield’s supplementary guidance as 
well as the principles of the draft London Housing Design Guide. Moreover, 
the revised scheme has now provided a mix of open-plan and traditional 
layouts which adequately reflects the varied needs of potential occupiers. 

6.4.2 The revised layout has been altered so that the ground floor units’ standard of 
accommodation has now improved as the ground floor windows are not 
unduly impinged upon by the close proximity of parking spaces and the 
communal amenity space. Thus it is considered that these flats are not unduly 
affected in terms of noise, disturbance, light pollution or loss of privacy. 

6.5  Highway Safety 

6.5.1 Observations

6.5.2 There are no formal parking restrictions along the Linden Way and 
Chelmsford Road frontages.  There is double yellow line waiting restrictions 
on the southern edge of The Rye. Images provided within the planning 
application show extensive on-street parking along both sides of the Linden 
Way and Chelmsford Road frontages. The Rye, Linden Way and Chelmsford 
Road are public adopted highways. There is a Primary School located 
approximately 100m east on Trinity Street which may mean heavy traffic 
volumes and parking demand at school opening/closing times. The site has a 
PTAL of 2, although it is noted that Chelmsford Road has a PTAL of 3. 
Nearest underground station is Southgate with 850m south east of the site.  
Bus stops served by 1 daytime and 1 night route are located within a 
reasonable walking distance on Chelmsford Road, south east of the site. 

6.5.3 The existing site has some 34 parking spaces – the proposals include the 
provision of 55 car parking spaces (an increase of some 20 spaces), which 
equates to an overall provision of 1.04 spaces per unit. The existing use is 
general industrial – 3,814sqm.  There are two existing vehicular accesses 
located on Chelmsford Road and an existing vehicular access on the north 
western corner of the site onto Linden Way. The proposals include the 
provision of new vehicular access on Chelmsford Road and Linden Way 
together with new crossover access to disabled parking located on these 
frontages. Redundant crossovers are to be reinstated. 

6.5.4 Existing pedestrian access into the site is to be via the existing vehicular 
accesses and also frontage entrances on Chelmsford Road.  The proposals 
include the provision of a number of new pedestrian access points from 
Chelmsford Road and Linden Way.

6.5.5  Traffic Generation 

6.5.6 It is considered that the proposed development will not generate significantly 
greater number of trips in the peak periods compared to the existing land 

Page 144



uses and as such, the proposed development is unlikely to have a material 
impact on the capacity or operation of the surrounding highway network. 

6.5.7 Vehicular and Cycle Parking 

6.5.8 Parking Standards within Annex 4 of the London Plan (2008) recommend less 
than 1 space per flat and 1.5 spaces per 4-bed house. The proposal provides 
55 parking spaces. Two of the houses have one dedicated parking space, the 
others do not. The proposal is therefore below the maximum standards 
advised within the London Plan, however at more than 1 parking space per 
unit should not lead to undue levels of overspill parking. 

6.5.9 Therefore it is considered that the proposal provides suitable off-street car 
parking provision, which would not create significant additional on-street car 
parking and is a net benefit over the existing on-street parking demand 
generated by the Industrial Estate.       

6.5.10 The proposal contains secure and covered cycle spaces, including dedicated 
provision for six of the eight houses, TfL standards recommend a minimum of 
63 spaces for this type and size of development. Confirmation will be required 
that a Right of Way exists over the path adjacent to No.135 and how cycle 
parking is provided for the houses on plots 2 & 3. However it is considered 
that these can be appropriately dealt with at the conditions stage. The cycle 
parking provision is acceptable in principle. 

6.5.11 Car Parking - Layout 

6.5.12 The residential car parking layout is indicated on Drawing Number 101/A and 
has been revised since the previous application to take account of the 
Council’s concerns. The bays conform to the standard requirement of 2.4m x 
4.8m bays with a minimum aisle width of 6.0m width.  Furthermore, the 
disabled spaces which require a minimum 1.2m area of hard-standing 
adjacent to each bay have been provided. Therefore, the proposed layout and 
provision of off-street car parking is in accordance with Policies (II)GD6 and 
(II)GD8 of the Unitary Development Plan. 

6.5.13 Vehicular accessibility 

6.5.14 The development proposals include the provision of two new vehicular 
accesses on Chelmsford Road and Linden Way.  It would appear that the 
access on Chelmsford Road will be a formal priority junction to allow access 
for refuse vehicles, whilst the new access on Linden Way will be in the form of 
a vehicular crossover.  This is no different to the existing situation and as 
such is considered acceptable in principle.   

6.5.15 Similarly, the proposed vehicular crossovers associated with the disabled 
parking to be accessed directly from Chelmsford Road and Linden Way are in 
accordance with the relevant standards and as such, are also acceptable in 
principle.

6.5.16 Whilst visibility along the carriageway is provided at each access and 
vehicular crossover, it is important to note that a minimum pedestrian inter-
visibility of 2.0m x 2.0m at the back of footway should also be provided.  Any 
structures and/or landscaping within the inter-visibility splays must have a 
maximum height of 0.6m.  In order to ensure that this is provided it is 

Page 145



recommended that planning condition requiring further details should be 
implemented were permission to be granted. 

6.5.17 Pedestrian accessibility

6.5.18 Pedestrian access into and through the site should form a fundamental part of 
the schemes development. It is considered that given the revised layout and 
the altered pedestrian routes into and through the site, shown on Drawing 
Number 101A, are satisfactory and furthermore are of a width that are in 
accordance with the guidance set out within the Department for Transport 
Manual for Streets (MfS) document, in that all shared/communal footpaths 
into and through the site should have a minimum width of 2.0m or in the case 
of footways into individual residential properties have a minimum width of 
1.5m.

6.5.19 Furthermore, it is noted that the revised layout is such that the car parking 
areas are now closer to the properties (and their entrances) they are meant to 
serve. 

6.5.20 It is noted that the proposed development will increase footfall on the existing 
footways of Chelmsford Road and Linden Way.  Whilst the widths of the 
existing footways are considered sufficient, they are currently block paved 
and in a relatively poor condition.  Therefore, a S106 contribution for off-site 
highway improvement works, including footway improvements within the 
vicinity of the site would be required. 

6.6  Housing Mix and Affordable Housing

6.6.1 Housing Mix

6.6.2 The proposed housing mix is:  
9 * 1-bed flats 
10 * 2-bed flats 
23 * 3-bed flats 
8 * 4-bed houses 

6.6.3 With the subsequent adoption of the Core Policy however, Policy 5 seeks to 
ensure that new developments plan for the following borough-wide mix of 
housing:

1 & 2 bed 
flats

2 bed 
house

3 bed 
house

4+ bed 
house

Market 20% 15% 45% 20% 

1 & 2 bed 
units

2 bed units 
(4 person)

3 bed
units

4+ bed 
units

Social 20% 20% 30% 30% 

6.6.4 The objective is to secure 80% of new market housing to be houses across 
the Borough: in this instance  8 houses are proposed which equates to 22%.   
In addition, the Policy seeks to ensure that 30% of social housing is 4+ bed 
units: no 4+ bed units are proposed for social rent. Therefore the proposed 

Page 146



mix of units does not meet the Core Strategy’s targets for a suitable mix of 
housing and this is highlighted by Housing.  

6.6.5 Nevertheless the evolution of this scheme has occurred over some duration 
and advice on the mix has been based on the Unitary Development Plan and 
Housing Needs Survey (2005), that over 50% of the proposed units should 
contain three or more bedrooms. With this in mind, the current scheme 
proposes that 31 of the 53 units (58.5%) would have three or more units and 
thus well in excess of what had been requested.  

6.6.6 In the light of our discussions and notwithstanding the adoption of the Core 
Strategy, there is a legitimate expectation from the Applicant that as such an 
advanced stage, the Council is consistent in its approach to avoid abortive 
costs and a fundamental redesign.  Thus, whilst the change in Policy is a 
significant material consideration, it is considered that given the above points 
that the proposed mix of housing makes suitable provision to meet the varied 
needs of the Borough’s current and future population.  

6.6.7 Moreover, and as will be covered in more detail in later sections, it would 
appear that a mix of housing in accordance with the Core Strategy would 
have a significant effect on the viability of a residential re-development of the 
site and hinder the likelihood of terminating the non-conforming industrial use 
in this location and bringing a housing scheme forward.   

6.6.8 Affordable Housing and Viability

6.6.9 The scheme proposes to provide 30% Affordable Housing in the ‘with grant’ 
option and 21% Affordable Housing in the ‘without grant’ option. The grant is 
from the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) in order to provide 
additional Affordable Housing than would otherwise be the case. It is directed 
to the relevant Registered provider (RP) and the level of grant affects the 
amount the RP can afford to pay the developer for each affordable unit and 
subsequently has a significant affect on the viability of the scheme as a 
whole.

6.6.10 The ‘with grant’ option would provide 16 affordable units as follows: 
2 * 1-bed social rented flats 
3 * 2-bed social rented flats 
7 * 3-bed social rented flats 
4 * 2-bed shared ownership flats 

6.6.11 The ‘without grant’ option would provide 11 affordable units as follows: 
2 * 1-bed social rented flats 
2 * 2-bed social rented flats 
4 * 3-bed social rented flats 
3 * 2-bed shared ownership flats 

6.6.13 In order to interrogate whether the proposed level of affordable housing is the 
most the site / development can provide; a viability analysis, in the form of a 
Three Dragon’s Toolkit’, has been submitted along the application,  

6.6.14 A viability analysis broadly contains five main elements. The Existing Use 
Value (EUV) of the site; the build / construction costs; financing costs; 
developer return and the sale value of the open-market units along with the 
RP payment. From the last four of elements a residual value for the site can 

Page 147



be produced which in turn is compared to the EUV. Simply put, if the residual 
value exceeds the EUV, the development can potentially make greater 
contributions towards affordable housing: if the residual value is below the 
EUV then this implies that the proposed redevelopment is unviable. Thus it 
can be seen that where the residual value is broadly equal to the EUV the 
scheme is both viable and the Council achieves the maximum possible level 
of affordable housing.      

6.6.15 With this in mind, following consideration the viability assessment 
demonstrates that, at current sale prices, the residual value is below the EUV 
in both the with and without grant options. Thus no more affordable housing 
can be sustained by the development.   

6.6.16 In order to corroborate this approach and the number of affordable housing 
units being supported, an independent surveyor was retained to assess the 
viability report. This largely supported the values and assumptions contained 
in the viability assessment only identifying a 3.5% potential increase in the 
open market valuation. However, it is considered that this 3.5% difference is 
within the vagaries of any valuation and do not indicate a significant 
underestimation in the original assessment  and therefore it is considered that 
the submitted values are robust. Consequently, it is considered that the 
proposal of 21% affordable housing without grant and 30% affordable housing 
with grant is a good offer for the Council, especially in current market.    

6.6.17 However, it is recognised that if sale prices and/or RP offer (given prospective 
Government changes to social rent) are significantly higher when the units 
are actually sold and/or RP offer made; then clearly the scheme has the 
potential to make a further contribution to affordable housing provision. Thus 
the Council has negotiated overage / claw back clauses to the s106. The ‘with 
grant’ option has a 7.5% buffer to the Gross Development Value (Total 
Scheme Revenue TSR) and then a claw back of 50% of the revenue above 
this buffer. The total amount subject to claw back is 50% of £1,000,000 (the 
cap).

6.6.18 The without grant option has a 10% buffer to the Gross Development Value 
(Total Scheme Revenue TSR) and then a claw back of 50% of the revenue 
above this buffer. The total amount subject to  claw back is 50% of 
£2,000,000 (the cap).  It is considered that these overage clauses provides 
the Council with a reasonable slice of additional revenues for affordable 
housing purposes if the residential housing market was to significantly 
improve.

6.7  Sustainable Design and Construction

6.7.1    Policies 4A.4 - 4A.7 of the London Plan requires that the CO2-equivalent 
emissions rate (after energy efficiency measures) is reduced by a minimum of 
20% by on-site renewable unless it can be demonstrated that it is unfeasible 
or unviable to do so. The submitted Energy Statement and its addendum 
indicate that the development would reduce CO2 emissions by 12.1% from 
Building Regulations Target Emission Rate (TER). On-site renewable 
provision through the use of a Combined Heat and Power (CHP) system and 
photovoltaic (pv) and solar water heating panels would reduce emissions from 
this energy-efficient baseline by 16.1%.  

Page 148



6.7.2 It is noted therefore that the development fails to achieve the 20% reduction 
by on-site renewable technologies. In this case the onus is on the applicant to 
demonstrate that why it is unfeasible to go further in this respect. An 
addendum demonstrated the following;  
a) there is no further space on the flat-roof parts of the roof for pv and solar 

water heating panels;
b) the panels could not sited on the sloping element of the roof due to 

maintenance and warranty concerns;
c) air source heat pumps would likely have resulted in aesthetic and noise 

concerns;
d) the culvert running through the site and the (low) amount of unshaded 

ground areas made ground source heat pumps unviable / ineffective; and,  
e) an extension of the CHP system would not have significantly further 

reduced CO2 emissions.  
Therefore it is considered that in this instance it has been adequately 
demonstrated that reductions greater than the 16.1% level is not feasible in 
this instance. 

6.7.3 The scheme will meet a minimum of Level 3 on the Code for Sustainable 
Homes (CfSH) Assessment. A condition will be attached to any approval 
requiring that a design and post-construction stage are submitted to be 
approved by the LPA to ensure compliance. 

6.7.4 The development will accord in full with the Lifetime Homes standards. 
Furthermore 5 units on the ground floor across a mixture of tenures and sizes 
will be Wheelchair Accessible units in accordance with the London Plan and 
details set out within 2nd edition of the Wheelchair Housing Design Guide by 
Stephen Thorpe, Habinteg Housing Association 2006. Conditions or clauses 
within the s106 agreement will be attached requiring the development meets 
these standards. 

6.8 Refuse Storage

6.8.1 The siting of refuse/ recycling areas and parking areas are considered to be 
situated in locations that are convenient for future occupiers, meet Refuse 
Department standards and do not harm the street scene and the appearance 
of the development.

6.9 Flood Risk

6.9.1 The Environment Agency raises no objections to the proposal on the basis of 
the submitted Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) and addendum. In particular the 
submitted FRA adequately addresses all aspects of flood risk, in particular the 
potential effects of the development on the Hounsden Gutter Culvert which 
runs through the site. Suitable imposed conditions are appropriate to deal 
with rectifying any potential damage to the Hounsden Gutter Culvert resulting 
from the development. 

6.10 Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) Regulations

6.10.1 The site is greater in area than 0.5ha and therefore qualifies under Schedule 
2 of the EIA regulations. A Screening Opinion was not sought by the 
applicant. The key concern in this instance is the proposed residential use on 
contaminated land. A Contaminated Land Study and Remediation Scheme 
have been submitted with the application for assessment by Environmental 

Page 149



Health Officers. Given the above it is not considered that an EIA is required. A 
fuller screening opinion note is on file. 

6.11 Contaminated Land

6.11.1 The issue regarding contaminated land has been assessed by Environmental 
Health and is considered to be able to be appropriately dealt with via 
conditions.   

6.12  S106 requirements

6.12.1 Due to the nature of the development proposed, it is considered a S106 legal 
agreement is required to secure necessary mitigation as follows: 

a) a financial contribution of circa £118,000 towards education provision 
in the locality; 

b) a financial contribution of no more than £15,000 towards footway and 
highway works improvements;

c) the provision of 30% affordable housing or 21% if there is no HCA 
grant; along with overage clauses 

d) a contribution to the Council’s Construction Web Training Initiative, 
which seeks to increase employment and training for local workers in 
the construction of the development.   

7. Conclusion

7.1. It is therefore considered that the scheme has overcome the previous 
reasons for refusal and thus it is recommended that planning permission be 
granted for the following reasons: 

1. The proposed redevelopment is not considered to harm the Council’s 
objective of maintaining and improving its stock of employment-
generating industrial land, having regard to Policies 13 and 16 of the 
Core Strategy as well as the objectives of PPS4: Planning for 
Sustainable Economic Growth. 

2. The proposed development would contribute to increasing the range 
of the Borough’s housing stock, having regard to London Plan Policies 
3A.1 and 3A.2, as well as providing range of units of an acceptable 
size, quality and mix with an acceptable standard of amenity provision 
having regard to Policies 2, 3, 4 and 5 of the Core Strategy, Policies 
(II)GD3, (II)H9 and (II)H16 of the Unitary Development Plan, adopted 
Supplementary Planning Guidance on Flat Conversions and Policies 
3D.2 and 3D.3 of the London Plan (2008), as well as the objectives of 
PPS1, PPS3 and PPS4.

3. The proposed development by virtue of its layout, scale, density, size 
and design is considered to satisfactorily integrate in the locality and 
not harm the character and appearance of the surrounding area, 
having regard to Policy 30 of the Core Strategy, Policies 3A.3 and 
4B.8 of the London Plan and PPS3: Housing

Page 150



4. The proposed development would not unacceptably impact on the 
amenities of nearby residents having regard to Policy 30 of the Core 
Strategy, Policy (II)H8 of the Unitary Development Plan, as well as the 
objectives of PPS1 and PPS3. 

5. The proposed development would not give rise to unacceptable on 
street parking, congestion or highway safety issues, having regard to 
Policies (II)GD6, (II)GD8 and (II)T13 as of the Unitary Development 
Plan, Policy 3C.23 of the London Plan (2008), as well as the 
objectives of PPG13. 

6. The proposed makes satisfactory provision for sustainable design and 
construction and reduction of carbon dioxide-equivalent emissions, 
having regard to Policy (II)GD3 of the Unitary Development Plan, 
Policy 20 and 21 of the Core Strategy and National Guidance PPS1 
and PPS1 supplement. 

8.  Recommendation 

8.1 That the application be APPROVED with the following conditions and subject 
to a signed s106 agreement with the following heads of terms: 

1. C07 Details of Materials 

2. C09 Details of Hard Surfacing 

3. C10 Details of Levels 

4. C11 Details of Enclosure 

5. C16 Private Vehicles Only - Parking Areas 

6. C17 Details of Landscaping 

7. C19 Details of Refuse Storage & Recycling Facilities 

8. C25 No additional Fenestration 

9. C51A Time Limited Permission 

10. C59 Cycle parking spaces 

11. T001 British Standard 3998 

12. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 1995, or any amending Order, no balustrades 
or other means of enclosure shall be erected on any of the flat roof elements 
of the development. No roof of any part the flat roof elements of the 
development shall be used for any recreational purpose and access shall only 
be for the purposes of the maintenance of the property or means of 
emergency escape.  

Reason: To safeguard the privacy of the occupiers of adjoining properties. 

13. Evidence confirming that the development achieves a Code for Sustainable 
Homes rating of no less than Level 3 shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local planning Authority.  The evidence required shall be 
provided in the following formats and at the following times: 

a design stage assessment, conducted by an accredited and licensed 
Code for Sustainable Homes Assessor and supported by relevant 

Page 151



BRE interim certificate, shall be submitted at pre-construction stage 
prior to the commencement of superstructure works on site; and, 
a post construction assessment, conducted by and accredited and 
licensed Code for Sustainable Homes Assessor and supported by 
relevant BRE accreditation certificate, shall be submitted following the 
practical completion of the development and prior to the first 
occupation. 

The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the details so 
approved, shall be maintained as such thereafter and no change there from 
shall take place without the prior approval of the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: In the interests of addressing climate change and to secure 
sustainable development in accordance with the strategic objectives of the 
Council and Policies 4A.1, 4A.2, 4A.3 and 4A.9 of the London Plan as well as 
PPS1.

14. The development shall not be occupied until such time as the energy efficient 
and renewable energy measures outlined in the submitted Energy 
assessment have been installed and are operational. They shall be retained 
thereafter.

Reason: In the interests of addressing climate change and to secure 
sustainable development in accordance with the strategic objectives of the 
Council and Policies 4A.1, 4A.2, 4A.3 and 4A.9 of the London Plan as well as 
PPS1.

15. The entirety of the development shall be built to Lifetime Homes Standards. 

 Reason: In the interests of providing for the varied needs of future residents. 

16. No development shall take place until such time as a Construction 
Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) written in accordance with 
London's Best Practice guidance is submitted to, and approved in writing by, 
the Local Planning Authority. The (CEMP) will address the following issues:  

(i) Noise and mitigation measures 
(ii) Control of site drainage and surface water run-off 
(iii) Storage and removal of material including excavation/ demolition 
material
(iv) a photographic condition survey of the roads and footways 
leading to the site 
(v) details of construction access   
(vi) The siting of work compounds together with loading and 
unloading
(vii) Contractors’ parking  
(viii) Wheel washing facilities and methodology 
(viiii) Construction traffic routing and hours of operation 
(x) arrangements for vehicle servicing and turning areas 
(xi) Control of dust and air quality during demolition and construction 
(xii) Hours of work

The CEMP shall nominate a Construction Manager to oversee the 
management of these issues and the CEMP shall detail mechanisms for 
addressing complaints, monitoring, public liaison, prior notification works. The 

Page 152



CEMP shall be adhered to at all times and regular monitoring and auditing 
performance shall be carried out in accordance with a schedule to be agreed 
with the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: To ensure the implementation of the development does not lead to 
damage to the existing roads, prejudice highway safety or the free-flow of 
traffic and to minimise disruption to neighbouring properties. 

17. No development shall take place until such time as an air quality impact 
assessment of the effects of the Combined Heat and Power plant on the local 
air quality levels has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local 
Planning Authority. Should be assessment show that the plant will have a 
negative impact upon air quality, mitigation measures shall be submitted to, 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The mitigation 
measures, thereby approved, shall be fully implemented prior to first 
occupation of the development. 

Reason: In the interests of local air quality. 

18. Soil remediation shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted 
scheme. A verification report shall be provided, in writing, to the Local 
Planning Authority providing details to demonstrate that the works are 
complete and will identify any requirements for longer-term monitoring of 
pollutant linkages, maintenance and arrangements for contingency action, 
which shall be adhered to thereafter. 

Reason: In the interests of sustainable water drainage and sewerage 

19. If, during development, contamination not previously identified if found to be 
present at the site, then all further development shall cease until such time as 
the developer has submitted and the Local Planning Authority approved an 
amendment to the remediation to the remediation strategy detailing how this 
unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with. The amended remediation 
strategy shall be adhered to thereafter. 

Reason: In the interests of sustainable water drainage and sewerage 

20. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 1995 (As amended by Town and Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development) (Amendment) (No.2) (England) 
Order 2008). No buildings or extensions to buildings shall be erected under 
Article 3 and Schedule 2, Part 1, Classes A, B, D or E without the prior 
approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.  

Reason: To safeguard the character and appearance of the area and the 
amenities of neighbouring occupiers. 

21. Prior to the occupation of the development, the ecological enhancements 
detailed in Section 6 of the revised ecological report (Phase 1 Habitat Survey 
and Report dated 22nd November 2010) shall be installed, and thereafter 
maintained for a minimum of five years, as per the specifications given in this 
report.

Reason: To enhance the site’s biodiversity value in line with PPS 9. 

Page 153



22. No demolition shall take place until such time as a suitably qualified ecologist 
has been engaged to oversee the removal of features that have the potential 
to support roosting bats. Should bats or signs of bats be found, all works on-
site will stop and The Local Planning Authority and Natural England shall be 
informed in writing. Works shall not re-commence until such time as either a 
Licence from Natural England for development works affecting bats has been 
obtained or the applicant has demonstrated in writing to the Local Planning 
Authority that a licence would not be required.  In any case a closing-out letter 
detailing the methodology used and any signs of bats found will be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the council.

Reason:  To ensure that protected species are not adversely affected by the 
proposed redevelopment. 

23. The redevelopment, hereby approved, shall be only be carried out in 
accordance with the approved Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) dated 1st

December 2009 and FRA addendum dated 1st October 2010 and the 
following mitigation measures with those documents: 

- Reducing the surface run-off generated by the 1 in 100 
year critical storm, taking   into account the effects of 
climate change, to a maximum of 257 litres per second, to 
minimise the risk of flooding off-site. 

- Provision of a 7 metre wide built development buffer 
around the Hounsden Gutter Culvert. 

Reason: To prevent flooding by ensuring the satisfactory disposal of surface 
water from the site; and to ensure the structural integrity of and means of 
access to Hounsden Gutter Culvert. 

24. No development shall take place until such time as a method statement 
detailing how the Hounsden Gutter Culvert will be protected from adjacent 
works has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning 
Authority. A post-construction survey of the culvert shall also be undertaken 
and submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority, in 
order to determine any damage caused by the works. Identified damage shall 
be rectified to pre-development standards to the satisfaction of the 
Environment Agency. 

Reason: To ensure the structural integrity of the Hounsden Gutter Culvert. 

25. Prior to first occupation of development details shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority of how the amenity space 
shall be provided and managed, with particular regard to the seating area and 
children’s play area to the rear and the layout and manner of 
division/enclosure/landscaping of the amenity areas between the proposed 
flatted block and footways on Chelmsford Road and Linden Way.        

Reason: To provide a satisfactory level of amenity space and in the interests 
of providing a high quality level of residential accommodation. 

26.       Prior to first occupation of the development details shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority of the allocation of parking 
spaces to particular flats and houses. 

Page 154



Reason: In the interests of the occupiers of the wheelchair units and in the 
interests of the amenities of ground floor units. 

The s106 agreement shall include the following: 

1. Education contribution of £118,214. 
2. Highways contribution of £15,000 for footway / highway improvements. 
3. Employment strategy contribution (Construction Web Initiative) of £10,000 

per £1,000,000 of construction expenditure. 
4. Affordable Housing of 16 units (30%) for the ‘with grant’ option including 

an overage clause on Total Scheme Revenue (TSR) split 50:50 with a 
7.5% buffer above submitted TSR capped at £1m. 

5. Affordable Housing of 11 units (21%) for the ‘without grant’ option 
including an overage clause on Total Scheme Revenue split 50:50 with a 
10% buffer above submitted TSR capped at £2m. 

Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158

This page is intentionally left blank



LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD 

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 16th February 2011 

Report of 
Assistant Director, Planning & 
Environmental Protection 

Contact Officer:
Aled Richards  Tel: 020 8379 3857 
Andy Higham  Tel: 020 8379 3848 
Ms E. Kiernan Tel: 020 8379 3830

Ward:
Winchmore Hill

Application Number :  TP/10/1477 Category: Dwellings

LOCATION:  88 and 90, HOPPERS ROAD, LONDON, N21 3LH

PROPOSAL:  Demolition of 2 bungalows and erection of a detached 2-storey block 
incorporating a school hall with 2 x 1-bed self contained flats over. 

Applicant Name & Address:
Deborah Ivory-Webb,  
Bursar to the P.G.H.S
104, HOPPERS ROAD, 
LONDON,
 N21 3LH 

Agent Name & Address:
David  Cooper 
23, WILLOW ROAD 
ENFIELD
EN1 3NG 

RECOMMENDATION: That planning permission be GRANTED subject to conditions.

Agenda Item 14Page 159



Application No:-  TP/10/1477

4
9

1
1
8

6
1

6
7

H
ig

h
S

c
h
o
o
l

3
7

P
a
lm

e
rs

G
re

e
n

2
5

1
3

9
0

1
0

4

42.4m

5
6

43

El Sub Sta

3
4

4
4

3
7

2
4

4
9

A
V

O
N

D
A

L
E

R
O

A
D

4

2
0

1
3

1
2

2
5

A
V

O
N

D
A

L
E

R
O

A
D

42

1

8
0

7
6

46

5
4

44

LB

D

7
8

7

PH

7
2

Development Control

Scale - 1:1001
Time of plot: 10:42 Date of plot: 03/02/2011

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 120m

© Crown copyright. London Borough of Enfield LA086363,2003

Page 160



1. Site and Surroundings 

1.1 The site is situated on the eastern side of Hoppers Road adjacent to and 
within the ownership, of Palmers Green High School. The site contains a semi 
detached pair of bungalows on an irregular shaped plot of approximately 281 
sq.m. There is no off street parking associated with these properties. 

1.2 The surrounding area is predominantly residential with two storey dwellings 
situated on either side although the main school building is 3 storey in height. 
Nos 86 Hoppers Road is a two storey end of terrace dwelling and is situated 
to the south whilst the gardens of Nos 25-29 Avondale are situated to the 
east.

2. Proposal 

2.1 Permission is sought for the demolition of the pair of bungalows and the 
erection of a detached two storey block comprising a school hall with two 
independent 1-bed self contained flats on the first floor. 

2.2 The proposed building would have a width of 19.3m and an overall height of  
8.6m with eaves at 5.1m. At either end of the block are two wings of reduced 
scale each with a width of 1.5 metres and an overall height of 7.3m (with 
eaves at 3m). The building would be set behind the back edge of the 
pavement by 1.5m to provide a landscaping strip. 

2.3 The main entrance to the hall is from the existing playground in front of the 
school. However, each flat has its own independent access from Hoppers 
Road.

2.4 Amendments have been received during the determination period to improve 
the design to the front elevation. 

3. Relevant Planning Decisions 

3.1 TP/94/0331 - Use of residential dwellings for education purposes in 
connection with adjoining school was approved in June 1994 for a temporary 
period expiring on 31 July 1995 

4. Consultations 

4.1 Statutory and non-statutory consultees

4.1.1  Traffic and Transportation – No objections subject to conditions for surfacing 
materials and cycle parking 

4.1.2 Thames Water – No objections in regards to sewerage infrastructure and 
surface water drainage 

4.1.3  Edu, Child’s Svs & Leisure – No comments received 

4.1.4 Place Shaping - No comments received 

Page 161



4.2  Public 

4.2.1 Seventeen neighbouring properties were consulted. Press and site notices 
were also posted. Twenty one representations were received raising the 
following planning considerations: 

 Impact on parking, traffic and congestion 

 Height and proximity of the building would result in loss of 
sunlight/daylight to no. 86 Hoppers Road 

 No need for further expansion of the school 

 Overlooking to properties in Avondale Road 

 Out of keeping and character with street scene due to overbearing 
presence and increased bulk and design 

 Loss of sunlight/daylight to Avondale Road 

 Proximity of building to neighbouring buildings at 29 Avondale Road 

 Different finishes and reduced height would be more sympathetic to 
the street scene 

 Noise disturbance due to use of the building for increased after school 
activities

 Development does not benefit local residents 

 Increased use of the school site would impact on living environment of 
residents

 Loss of family dwellings and their contribution to the street scene 

4.2.2 Additionally a petition was received with 96 signatures. 

4.2.3 Winchmore Hill Residents Association - Do not object to the principle, 
however consider that the elevational detailing could be improved. 

5.  Relevant Policy 

5.1  Local Development Framework 

At the meeting of the full Council on 10th November 2010, the Core Strategy 
of the Local Development Framework was approved. The document and the 
policies contained therein are now material considerations to be taken into 
account when considering the acceptability of development proposals. The 
following are of relevance 

SO5: Education, health and well being 
SO8: Transportation and accessibility 
SO10: Built environment 
CP8:  Education 
CP30: Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open 

environment 
CP32: Pollution 

5.2 Unitary Development Plan

After the adoption of the Core Strategy, a number of UDP policies are 
retained as material considerations pending the emergence of new and 
updates policies and development standards within the Development 
Management Document. The following are of relevance: 

Page 162



(II) CS1 Community facilities 
(II)GD3  Design 
(II)GD6  Traffic generation 

 (II) GD8 Access and Servicing 

5.3 London Plan

3A.1  Increasing London’s Housing Supply 
3A.2  Boroughs Housing Targets 
3A.6  Quality of Housing Provision 
3A.18 Protection and Enhancement of Social Infrastructure and 

Community
3C.23  Parking Strategy 
4B.8  Respect Local Context and Character 

5.4 Other Material Considerations   

PPS1  Delivering Sustainable Development 
PPG13   Transportation (2011) 

6.  Analysis 

6.1 Principle

6.1.1 In terms of land use, a mixed development comprising educational and 
residential uses would not be inappropriate given the character of the 
surrounding area. However, in policy terms, there would normally be a 
presumption against the loss of residential accommodation. To address this, 
the proposal involves the replacement of the existing bungalows, by two 1-
bed self contained flats, offering similar sized accommodation. Therefore, the 
proposal would be compatible with Policies 3A.1, 3A.2 and 4B.3 of the 
London Plan and Core Policy 2 of the Local Development Framework insofar 
as there is no reduction in the Borough’s housing stock.  

6.1.2 Additionally, some weight  can be given to the circumstances of the school 
and their desire for an improved school hall. Policy CP8 of the Core Strategy 
is supportive of improving existing facilities on school sites and it is therefore 
considered that on balance, the principle of erecting a building with an 
element of education provision and residential accommodation would 
constitute an acceptable form of development. 

6.2 Design and Impact on the Character of the Street Scene

6.2.1 Although the existing school building is a dominant feature within the street 
scene, the prevailing character is derived from the residential properties: 
generally two storey bay fronted terraces. However, immediately to the south 
is a row of two storey cottages situated on the back edge of the highway and 
without bay windows.  It is therefore important to obtain a building on site, 
which is sympathetic to the varied character and appearance of the street 
scene.

6.2.2 The proposed development hall would be two storey in height, in keeping with 
the prevailing residential form. It would also feature a pitched roofline with 
detailing fenestration and openings to the front elevation, providing a 

Page 163



welcoming façade within the street scene. In addition, the building would be 
approximately 1.1m above the ridge height of the cottages immediately to the 
south. However, the effect of this in the street scene in mitigated by the varied 
pattern of ridge heights within the street scene and the reduced eaves and 
ridge height to the outer sections of the building, Additionally, the proposed 
building line respects that within the established street scene and involves a 
1.5m set back, which allows for the introduction of a landscaping strip to 
soften the appearance of the development. 

6.2.3 The development would be constructed in a brick to match that of the 
adjoining school building which is considered to be the correct approach in 
this instance and although it is acknowledged that a pair of simple bungalows 
would be lost as part of the development, it is considered that the design and 
proportions of the development would be acceptable within the street scene.. 

6.3 Standard of Accommodation

6.3.1 Supplementary Planning Guidance requires that in the case of a 1-bedroom 
flat, the minimum net internal floor space should be 45 sq.m. Additionally, as 
stated in paragraph 7 of Appendix A1.9 of the Unitary Development Plan each 
unit would need to be self-contained and have, inter alia, rooms of an 
adequate size and shape and feature its own entrance, kitchen and bathroom 
accommodation. 

6.3.2 As submitted, the plans show a net internal floor space of 49 sq m, which 
complies with Council standards. In addition, the layout of each flat is 
considered acceptable and provides rooms of an adequate size and shape, 
kitchen, bath and toilet accommodation and its own independent access 
direct to the street.. 

6.3 Impact on Neighbouring Amenities

6.3.1 One of the main objections received relates to the impact of the development 
on the adjoining property, no.86 Hoppers Road. 

6.3.2 No. 86 Hoppers Road is a two storey cottage, with no windows in the side 
elevation or first floor rear elevation. There is a rear extension, which serves 
as a conservatory and contains the nearest habitable window to the 
development. As proposed, the flank wall of the development would be xxx 
further away compared with the existing bungalow but  would have an overall 
rearward projection 1.4m greater than existing. However, this increased depth 
is stepped at 3 metres away from the common boundary. Nevertheless, is it 
acknowledged that the proposed development would have a larger bulk / 
assign that the bungalow but despite this, due to the siting of the ground floor 
rear habitable window and the absence of first floor rear or side windows, it is 
considered that the proposed development would not give rise to 
unacceptable loss of sunlight/daylight or outlook to the occupiers of this 
property.

6.3.3 Policy (II) H8 seeks to maintain privacy and prevent overlooking to 
surrounding developments. The windows in the front elevation to serve the 
residential units would have views towards the street scene and rooflights 
have been placed in the rear elevation to minimise overlooking. Thus, despite 
there being only xx metres to the rear elevation with the properties on 

Page 164



Avondale Road, the development would not give rise to overlooking or any 
loss of privacy. 

6.3.4 The proposed building to serve a school hall at ground floor level would not 
result in an unacceptable increase in levels of noise and disturbance to 
adjacent occupiers of this property, particularly given that the building would 
be detached and its function is related to the use of the school.  

6.3 Traffic Generation and Pedestrian Safety

6.3.1 Objections have also been received raising concerns about the loss of 
parking and increased congestion. The development though does not involve 
any increase in staff or pupils and Traffic and Transportation are satisfied on 
this basis that  there would not be any further impacts to existing off street 
parking or traffic flows. Consequently, there would be no increase to trip 
generation or parking demand having regard to the requirements contained 
within Policy GD6 of the Unitary Development Plan and Policy 3C.23 of the 
London Plan. 

7.  Conclusion  

7.1 Having regard to the above considerations, it is considered the proposal is 
acceptable and would not unduly prejudice the character, appearance and 
residential amenities of the surrounding area or have detrimental impacts on 
highways, parking or pedestrian safety. The proposed development is 
therefore considered acceptable for the following reasons: 

1 The proposed development due to its design,  size and siting does not 
unduly affect the amenities of adjoining or nearby residential 
properties or detract from the character and appearance of the 
surrounding area having regard to policy (II) GD3 of the Unitary 
Development Plan, policy CP30 of the Core Strategy and policies 4B.8 
and 4B.2 of the London Plan. 

2 The proposed development would improve the existing educational 
facilities at the school having regard to policy CP8 of the Core 
Strategy

3 The proposed development would not result in a reduction of the 
Boroughs Housing Stock, having regard to policies 3A.1 and 3A.2 of 
the London Plan and CP1, CP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy. 

4  The proposals do not prejudice the provision of on site parking nor 
would they lead to additional parking and do not give rise to conditions 
prejudicial to the free flow and safety of traffic on the adjoining 
highways having regard to Policies (II) GD6 and (II) GD8 of the Unitary 
Development Plan. 

8.  Recommendation 

8.1 That planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions: 

1. The development to which this permission relates must be begun not 
later than the expiration of three beginning with the date of the 
decision notice.  

Page 165



Reason: To comply with S.51 of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 

2 The development shall not commence until details of the external 
finishing materials to be used have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be 
constructed in accordance with the approved details before it is 
occupied.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance which complies 
with Unitary Development Plan Policies. 

3 The development shall not commence until details of existing planting 
to be retained and trees, shrubs and grass to be planted and the 
treatment of any hard surfaced amenity areas have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The site shall 
be landscaped in accordance with the approved details in the first 
planting season after completion or occupation of the development 
whichever is the sooner. Any trees or shrubs which die, becomes 
severely damaged or diseased within five years of planting shall be 
replaced with new planting in accordance with the approved details.  

Reason: To provide a satisfactory appearance and ensure that the 
development does not prejudice highway safety. 

4 The site shall be enclosed in accordance with details to be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The means 
of enclosure shall be erected in accordance with the approved detail 
before the development is occupied.  

Reason: To ensure satisfactory appearance and safeguard the 
privacy, amenity and safety of adjoining occupiers and the public and 
in the interests of highway safety. 

5. The development shall not commence until details of the surfacing 
materials to be used within the development including footpaths, 
access roads and parking areas and road markings have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The surfacing shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
detail before the development is occupied or use commences.  

Reason: To ensure that the development does not prejudice highway 
safety and a satisfactory appearance. 

6. The development shall not commence until plans detailing the existing 
and proposed ground levels including the levels of any proposed 
buildings, roads and/or hard surfaced areas have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved 
details.

Reason: To ensure that levels have regard to the level of surrounding 
development, gradients and surface water drainage. 

Page 166



7. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order 1995, or any amending 
Order, no external windows or doors other than those indicated on the 
approved drawings shall be installed in the development hereby 
approved without the approval in writing of the Local Planning 
Authority.

Reason: To safeguard the privacy of the occupiers of adjoining 
properties.

8 The building shall not be occupied at any time other than for the 
purpose of accommodation ancillary to the use of the school. 

Reason: To ensure that the development complies with adopted 
standards and to safeguard the amenities of adjoining occupiers. 

Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD 

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 16th February 2011 

Report of 
Assistant Director, Planning & 
Environmental Protection 

Contact Officers:
Aled Richards  Tel: 020 8379 3857 
Andy Higham  Tel: 020 8379 3848 
Robert Lancaster Tel: 020 8379 
4019

Ward:
Palmers Green 

Application Number :  TP/10/1725 Category: Other

LOCATION:  173 Green Lanes, London, N13 4UR

PROPOSAL:  Change of use of first and second floors from residential to offices 

Applicant Name & Address:
C/o Agent 

Agent Name & Address:
Mr D McGowan 
Arta Architectural 
Portland House 
51 Colney Hatch Lane 
London Borough of Enfield N10 1LJ 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That planning permission be GRANTED with conditions.

Note for Members 

Although an application of this nature would normally be determined under delegated 
authority, the Application is made on behalf of Councillor Oykenor and in accordance with 
the Scheme of Delegation, is therefore reported to the Planning Committee for 
consideration. 

Agenda Item 15Page 171



Application No:-  TP/10/1725

2
0

5

1

Shelter

Clockhouse

Mansions

27.1m

2

LB

Clockhouse Parade

7
8

10

Club

7
0

TCBs

1
6

1

1
4

5

TCB

1
2

0

2

Bus Depot

REGENTS AVENUE

T
im

b
e
r

Y
a

rd

B
R

O
A

D
W

A
Y

M
E

W
S

1
7
3

T
im

b
e
r

Y
a
r d

1
7

7

10

1
8
1

26.2m

7

1
8

9

2
0

1

1
4

3

1
4

1

ELMDALE ROAD

13

Shelter

23

20

30

11
15

12

28.3m

Development Control

Scale - 1:1001
Time of plot: 10:39 Date of plot: 03/02/2011

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 120m

© Crown copyright. London Borough of Enfield LA086363,2003

Page 172



1.  Site and Surroundings 

1.1 The site comprises an end of terrace two-storey property with accommodation 
in the roof space, on the western side of Green Lanes, adjacent to the A406 
north Circular. It is currently in use with commercial on the ground floor and 
residential above. 

1.2 The site is part of a Residential Opportunity Site within the North Circular 
Area Action Plan and is part of an area that is proposed to be 
comprehensively redeveloped for Housing purposes.    

2.  Proposal 

2.1 Permission is sought for the conversion of the first and second floors from a 
1-bed maisonette into office accommodation on a temporary basis. 

2.2. No external alterations are proposed. Three off-street vehicular spaces are 
retained, the access remains unaltered.       

3.  Relevant Planning Decisions 

3.1 There is no relevant planning or enforcement history. 

4. Consultations 

4.1  Statutory and non-statutory consultees

4.1.1 Traffic and Transportation raises no objections to the proposal subject to 
conditions.

4.1.2 Environmental Health raise no objections subject to a number of conditions. 

4.2  Public 

4.2.1 Consultation letters were sent to five neighbouring properties. No objections 
have been received. 

5. Relevant Policy  

5.1 Local Development Framework

At the meeting of the full Council on 10th November 2010, the Core Strategy 
of the Local Development Framework was approved. The document and the 
policies contained therein are now material considerations to be taken into 
account when considering the acceptability of development proposals. The 
following are of relevance:: 

CP2 Housing Supply 
CP5 Housing Type 
CP13 Promoting Economic Prosperity 
CP16 Economic success and improving skills 
CP17 Town Centres 

Page 173



CP25 Pedestrian and Cyclists 
CP26 Public Transport 
CP30 Built and Open Environment 
CP32 Pollution 

            CP44 North Circular Area             

5.2 Unitary Development Plan

5.2.1 After the adoption of the Core Strategy, a number of UDP policies are 
retained as material considerations pending the emergence of new and 
updates policies and development standards within the Development 
Management Document. The following are of relevance: 

(II)GD3  Character / Design 
(II)GD6  Traffic Generation 
(II)GD8  Site Access and Servicing 
(II)H2  Loss of Housing 
(II)H8  Privacy and Overlooking 
(II)T13  Access onto Public Highway 

5.3 London Plan 

 2A.1     Sustainability criteria 
 3A.1  Increasing London’s supply of housing 
 3A.2  Borough Housing Targets 
 3A.3  Maximising potential of sites 
 3A.5  Sustainable Design and Construction 
 3C.21  Improving Conditions for Walking 
 3C.22  Improving conditions for cycling 
 3C.23  Parking Strategy 

4B.3  Maximising the potential of sites (see also Table 4B.1) 
4B.5  Creating an inclusive environment 
4B.6  Sustainable design and construction  
4B.8  Respect local context and communities 

Annex 4 Parking standards 

5.4 Other Material Considerations

PPS3 Housing  
PPS4 Planning for Sustainable Economic Growth 
PPG13 Transport  

North Circular Area Action Plan 

6.  Analysis 

6.1  Background

6.1.1 The property is situated within the North Circular Road AAP. Policy 44 of the 
Core Strategy seeks to promote environmental and housing improvements in 
the North Circular Area with the proposals to achieve this set out within the 
North Circular Area Action Plan (AAP). The AAP is currently at the preferred 
options stage and as such has been out to public consultation. It is therefore 
considered that significant weight can be given to this document. The 

Page 174



application site is within this area and is specifically designated as part of a 
Residential Opportunity Site.  

6.1.2 The property was owned by Transport for London (TfL), as part of its plans for 
widening of this section of the North Circular. This plan has not, and is 
unlikely to, come to fruition with TfL currently undertaking more modest 
environmental and safety improvements. Allied to this and the wider 
regeneration objective of the Council, the property along with other formerly in 
TfL’s ownership, have been transferred to Notting Hill Housing Trust. The 
property is earmarked for demolition and comprehensive residential 
redevelopment in accordance with the AAP 

6.2 Principle (Loss of Housing)

6.1.1 There is a normal presumption against proposals which would involve the 
loss of existing residential accommodation. However, the residential element 
of this property (first and second floors) has been vacant since 2008. 
Moreover, it’s run down condition and location at the junction of Green Lanes 
with the North Circular Road makes the property difficult to let. This situation 
has lead to a poor appearance for this property. The proposal therefore seeks 
to obtain permission on a temporary basis of 3 years (linked to the length of a 
lease agreement with Notting Hill Housing Trust) to change the use of the first 
and second floors from residential to offices pending wider more 
comprehensive redevelopment proposals.  

6.1.3 Nevertheless, as the proposal seeks to terminate the residential use, it is 
appropriate to assess this proposal against Policy (II) H2 of the UDP and 
whether the circumstances described above represent an exception to the 
general presumption to resist the loss of housing. 

6.1.4 The objective of Policy (II) H2 is clearly to resist the diminution of Enfield’s 
Housing Stock to meet the current and future needs of its inhabitants.  
Moreover, it is recognised that the Council seeks to encourage the efficient 
use of the property by normally supporting residential uses above shops. In 
this instance however, the environmental conditions of the location together 
with the run down condition of the property, result in a poor residential 
environment and low levels of residential amenity. This assessment is 
supported by the fact that the premises has been vacant since 2008 and the 
fact that Notting Hill Housing Association do not intend to invest in the short 
term to upgrade the premises to residential standards.  

6.1.5 It must also be acknowledged that it is the Council’s long-term intention to 
redevelop this area which militates against investment in the property to bring 
it up to a standard of residential accommodation that would encourage 
occupation. Nevertheless, the proposal would result in investment to the 
property to enhance its appearance in the short tem and thus it is considered 
that the proposal is acceptable on a temporary basis whilst the preparatory 
work to redevelop the area proceeds without harm to the wider housing 
objectives..       

6.2  Impact on Neighbouring Properties

6.2.1 The nearest residential premises is the adjoining No.175 Green Lanes, which 
is in use as commercial on the ground floor with residential above. Given the 
proposed hours and intensity of use, as well as the relatively high background 

Page 175



noise levels associated with Green Lanes, it is not considered that the 
proposed change of use to Offices will significantly affect the amenities of 
neighbouring occupiers. 

6.3  Highway Safety 

6.3.1 As existing there are three parking spaces at the rear of the premises with 
access over Broadway Mews. The spaces are in use by the occupier’s of the 
ground floor office. The proposed vehicle parking and access arrangements 
remain unchanged, except that the parking will serve the offices across all 
three floors. It therefore falls to be considered whether the increased intensity 
of use would be detrimental to highway safety.  

6.3.2 Given the relatively minor increase in office floor space as a result of this 
proposal (as well as taking account that the potential residential parking 
demand will be terminated) and the applicant’s indication that the proposal 
will provide for five additional staff members, it is not considered that the 
proposal would result in significantly increase traffic movements or result in 
overspill parking. It is noted that the parking provision accords with the 
relevant London Plan and PPG13 standards, which in any case, seek to 
impose maximum rather than minimum standards.

6.4 Refuse Storage

6.4.1 It has not been indicated what the existing or proposed refuse / /recycling 
arrangements are. Therefore a condition has been attached requiring further 
details.

7. Conclusion

7.1. It is therefore considered that scheme is acceptable and it is recommended 
that planning permission be granted for the following reasons: 

1 Due to its continued vacancy and poor residential condition, the 
proposed change of use to an office for a temporary 3 year period 
involving the loss of the residential accommodation, would not harm 
the strategic housing objectives of the Borough in the short term 
having regard to the fact that the premises is situated in the North 
Circular Road AAP and identified for future redevelopment. It is 
considered therefore that the proposal is acceptable having regard to 
Policies CP13, CP30 and CP44 of the adopted LDF Core Strategy, 
Policy (II)H2 of the saved Unitary Development Plan as well as PPS1 
and PPS4. 

2. The proposed office use would not give rise to conditions through an 
increase in noise and disturbance that would prejudice the amenities 
of neighbouring residential properties having regard to Policy CP30 of 
the adopted LDF Core Strategy 

3. The proposed office use would not give rise to conditions through 
inadequate parking or an increase in vehicular movements that would 
prejudice the free flow and safety of users of the adjoining highways 
having regard to Policy CP30, CP25 and CP25 of the adopted LDF 

Page 176



Core Strategy, Policies (II)GD6 and (II)GD8 of the saved Unitary 
Development Plan and PPG13 

8.  Recommendation 

8.1 That the application be APPROVED with the following conditions: 

1.    C16 Private Vehicles Only - Parking Areas 

2.  C19 Details of Refuse Storage & Recycling Facilities 

3.  C25 No additional Fenestration 

4. The premises shall only be open for business and working between the 
hours of 08.00 to 20.00 hours Monday to Friday; 09.00 to 18.00 hours on 
Saturday and 10.00 hours to 16.00 hours on Sunday.  

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of nearby residential 
properties.

5.  C50 (Three Year) Limited Period Permission 

Page 177



�
��

�
�

�
�

	



�
�


�



�
�

�
�

��
��

�
��

�
�


�



�
�

�
�

��
��

�
��

�
�

�
��

�
�

��





�

�
�


�



�
�

�
�

��
��

�
��

����������

������� ��

�
��

��
�

��

�
��

��
�

��

�
��

��
�

��

!
"

�
!

��

�
��
�
��
��
�
	�


�
��
��
�



�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�



�
�
��
�
��


�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�



�
�
�
�


���
�
	��

�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�

��
��
�
�
�
��
�
 
�!
!
�
"

#
�

�
 �

$
��

%
��

�
�&



'

�
�	

�
�

(�
�

)
�

�
#



��
$

�
�

%
�
�


&


'

�
�
(
(


�
��

)
�

�
�
*

��
�*

��
!

!

�
 




��

�
 �

�

+
�

�
�!

!
�



,

�
��

�
�

�

�

��
�-

��

$
�

�
��

!
�

!

�
.

�
�

�+
��

�
�

�-
�

�
�

�
�

�
 �

�
��

�+
��

�
�

&
�

�

+
�


)
�

�
��

 




��
�

 �
�

�
��

�
��

�
 




��

�
 �

�
#

�
�



�

�
��

 




��
�

 �
�

Page 178



�
��
�
�
�
�

	





�
��
�
�
�

�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�



�
��
�
�
�

�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�



�
��
�
�
�

�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�



�
��
�
�
�

�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�����������
�������
��

�
��
��
�
��

�
��
��
�
��

�
��
��
�
��

�
 

�
�
�!

�
��
�
��
��
�
	�


�
��
��
�



�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�



�
�
��
�
��


�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�



�
�
�
�


���
�
	��

�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�

��
��
�
�
�
��
�
 
�!
!
�
"

"
�
�

�

#
��
$
��
%
��
�
&

�
�	

�
�

'�
�
�
�
�

#



��
$

�
�

%
�
�


&


'

�
�
(
(


�
��

)
�

�
�
*

��
�(
��
�
�

�
)
��
��
�
%
��

�
�
��
*

�
�
�

+
,
�
��
�
�



�
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�-
��

#
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
.
�
�
�+
��
�
�
�-
�
�
�
�

*
�

!
�
��
�+
��
�
�

�
�
�

+
��
�
�
�
��

�
�
��
*

�
�

�
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
*

�
�

"
�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
��
*

�
�

Page 179



Page 180

This page is intentionally left blank



LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD 

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 16th February 2011 

Report of 
Assistant Director, Planning & 
Environmental Protection 

Contact Officer:
Aled Richards  Tel: 020 8379 3857 
Andy Higham  Tel: 020 8379 3848 
Mr R.W. Laws Tel: 020 8379 3605

Ward: Jubilee

Application Number :  TP/11/0026 Category: Other Development

LOCATION:  GALLIARD PRIMARY SCHOOL, GALLIARD ROAD, LONDON, N9 7PE

PROPOSAL:  Installation of single storey detached building for use as music room to 
south of site. 

Applicant Name & Address:
Penny Sullivan,
Galliard Primary School  
Galliard Road,
London,
N9 7PE 

Agent Name & Address:
Daniel Morriss,
HDA Architecture 
4, Albion Place 
Northamptonshire 
NN1 1UD 

RECOMMENDATION: That subject to the expiry of the site notice after 23rd of February 
and no additional issues are raised which are not covered in the report, the Planning 
Committee resolve to GRANT planning permission subject to conditions. 

Agenda Item 16Page 181



Application No:-  TP/11/0026

Playing Field

17
5

74a

173a

72

58

58b

58a

173

171

2

Hall

1

163

12

10

3
3

34

18.9m

9

BEECH
CLOSE

1
0

1
2

2

Posts

99

111

101

122

Path

Galliard Children's Centre

Pool

Paddling

Playground

Tennis Courts

27

32

1

5

8

22

CLOSE

23

M
ANSFIELD

20
2

to
2
18

TCB

161

Court

Gallia
rd

GALL
IA

RD
ROAD

200

13
9

149

1
to

14

SL

7

6

2
53

to
2
69

M
A
N

SF
IE

LD
C

LO
S
E

Playground

12

17

MP

22

12

SA
VER

N
AKE

R
O

AD

School House

2

1

18
0

13
7

12
9

8

18.9m

1
a

192

R
O

AD

DON
CLOSE

ST
ED

M
UN

D
S

182

2
27

7

25
1

7

239

12

1
60

1
70

1
21

2
17

1
0
7

1
17

18.3m

Galliard Primary School

1

2

1

1

7

6

7

Development Control

Scale - 1:2002
Time of plot: 10:48 Date of plot: 03/02/2011

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 240m

© Crown copyright. London Borough of Enfield LA086363,2003

Page 182



1.  Site and Surroundings 

1.1  Galliard Primary School is located off Galliard Road. Opposite the school are 
residential properties whilst to the north, east and south is Jubilee Park which 
is designated Metropolitan Open Land. The school playing fields also fall 
within Metropolitan Open Land, although the school buildings are not. 
Vehicular access into the school is located of Galliard Road. 

2.0  Proposal 

2.1  The proposal involves the construction of a single storey freestanding building 
for use as a music room. The building would be positioned on the side 
boundary  with Jubilee Park (and the designated MOL) towards the rear of the 
main school building. There is an existing boundary hedge adjoining the 
footpath.

2.2 Due to the pressure on school places, the existing music room is currently 
being used as additional classroom space and there is need for alternative 
teaching space for music.  

2.2    The single storey “cube” building would be 6.5m in depth with maximum width 
of 8.5 m with a flat roof 2.85m high. The building would be constructed of 
western red cedar cladding with grey powder coated aluminium doors and 
window.

3.   Relevant Planning Decisions 

3.1 TP/11/0028- Installation of single storey detached building with decking for 
use as staff room to south east of site. This application is not determined but 
reported elsewhere on this Agenda. 

4.         Consultations 

4.1  Statutory and Non Statutory Consultees

4.1.1 Any replies received will be reported at the meeting 

4.2  Pubic

4.2.1 Consultation letters were issued to two neighbouring properties. In addition, 
two site notices were displayed.  Any responses received will be reported at 
Planning Committee. The consultation period expires on 23rd of February 
2011.

5.  Relevant Policy 

5. 1  Local Development Framework

At the meeting of the full council on the 10th November 2010, the Core 
Strategy of the Local Development Framework was approved. The document 
and the policies contained therein are now material considerations to be 
taken into account when considering the acceptability of development 
proposals. The following are now of relevance. 

Page 183



CP8    Education 
CP9    Supporting Community cohesion 
CP30 Maintaining and improving quality of built environment 
CP34 Parks, Playing fields and other Open spaces 

5.2 Saved UDP Policies

After the adoption of the Core Strategy, a number of UDP Policies are 
retained as material considerations pending the emergence of new and 
updated policies and development standards within the Development 
Management Document. 

(II) GD3-   Aesthetics and functional Design 
(II) GD6    Traffic 
(II) GD8    Servicing 
(II) CS2    Siting and design of buildings to accord with Council’s 

      environmental policies 

5.3 The London Plan

Policy 2A.1      Sustainability Criteria 
Policy 3A.24    Education Facilities 
Policy 3C.23    Parking Strategy 
Policy 4A.1      Tackling Climate change 
Policy 4A.3      Sustainable Design and Construction 
Policy 4B.5      Creating an inclusive environment 
Policy 4B.8      Respect local context and communities 

5.4 Other Relevant Policies

PPS1     Sustainable Development 
PPG13   Transport 

6.  Analysis 

6.1  Principle

6.1.1 The proposal represents additional educational related development on land 
already in use for such purpose. In principle therefore, it is considered the 
development would be appropriate whilst also providing improved educational 
facilities for the school and would accord with Core Policy 8 Education of the 
Core Strategy as well as London Plan Policy 3A.24. 

6.2  Impact on Character of surrounding area

6.2.1 The proposed detached free standing building is of a modern contemporary 
design. It is considered that neither the proposed materials or its design and 
appearance would detract from the character and appearance of the 
surrounding area or locality. Moreover, although the building would be 
positioned against the southern boundary of Jubilee Park and the designated 
Metropolitan Open Land, when viewed from this perspective, it would be seen 
in the context of the existing school building and hedge line. It is therefore 
considered that the well designed single storey building would not intrude on 
the open character of the MOL. 

Page 184



6.3  Impact on Neighbouring Properties

6.3.1 The closest residential buildings are in Bedford Road approximately 105m 
away, and 170m away from properties in Galliard Road. Given this overall 
relationship and the single storey nature of the building, there would be no 
effect on the residential amenities of these properties 

6.4 Highway Issues

6.4.1  The increase in the school role has already occurred in response to the 
pressure for school places across the Borough. The proposed additional 
classroom  would not in itself increase staff or pupil numbers notwithstanding 
the fact that any increase would be minimal and not sufficient to warrant 
refusal of the application on grounds relating to  the free flow and safety of 
traffic.

7.  Conclusion 

7.1  Although the proposed building would be visible from the MOL, it is 
considered that the design and appearance of the proposed building would 
not detract from the essential open character and appearance of the 
surrounding area or adversely impact on the residential amenities of 
surrounding properties. Moreover, as the proposed classroom would provide 
improved education facilities for the school, on balance, the proposal is 
considered acceptable for the following reasons: 

1. The proposed detached free standing music room would improve 
educational teaching provision facilities at Galliards School. Accordingly the 
proposed development complies with Core Policies CP8 and CP 9 of the 
Core Strategy, Policy (II) CS2 of the UDP, Policy 3A.24  of the London Plan 
and PPS1 Sustainable Development. 

2. The proposed detached free standing music room building having regard to 
its design, size and siting would not unduly impact on the amenities of nearby 
residents having regard to Core Policy 30 of the Core Strategy, Policies (II) 
GD3 and (II) H8 of the UDP and London Plan Policy 4B.8. 

3. The proposed development would not lead to conditions prejudicial to the 
free flow and safety of traffic, including pedestrian traffic on the adjoining 
highway. In this regard, the proposal is considered to comply with Policies (II) 
GD6 and (II) GD8 of the UDP and with Policy 3C.23 of the London Plan. 

8.  Recommendation 

8.1 That subject to the expiry of the site notice after 23rd of February and no 
additional issues are raised which are not covered in the report, the Planning 
Committee resolve to GRANT planning permission subject to the following 
conditions:

1. C60- Approved details 

2. C7-   Details of materials 

3. C51- Time Limit 

Page 185



6500.0

5400.0

D
1

1250.0
6000.0

1250.0

600.0

F
IG

U
R

E
D

 D
IM

E
N

S
IO

N
S

 O
N

 T
H

IS
 P

LA
N

 A
R

E
 A

LL T
O

 F
A

C
E

S
 O

F
 S

IP
S

 P
A

N
E

LS

6682.3
2033.0

3675.3

974.0

8500.0

F
R

F
R

F
R

F
R

F
R

F
R

F
R

W
1

0
0.5

1
5

m
etres

S
C

A
LE

 1:50

hedge

site boundary

2850.0

F
R

O
N

T
 E

LE
V

A
T

IO
N

w
estern red cedar cladding

alum
inium

 doors - pow
der coated dark grey

single ply roofing w
ith fascia - dark grey

S
ID

E
 E

LE
V

A
T

IO
N

scale 1:50

D
1

W
1

150.0

R
E

A
R

 E
LE

V
A

T
IO

N
S

ID
E

 E
LE

V
A

T
IO

N

line of hedge in foreground

new
 'Q

ube'

0
25

m
etres

10

S
C

A
LE

 1:250

5
1

0S
C

A
LE

 1:1250

75
m

etres
25

50

D
A

T
E

D
R

N
/C

H
D

S
C

A
LE

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
.

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

D
R

G
.

S
H

E
E

T
 S

IZ
E

 A
1

1:50 / 1:250 / 1:1000

A
A

P
roposed P

lans &
 E

levations

M
U

S
IC

 R
O

O
M

E
xisting S

ite Location P
lan

S
cale 1:1250

P
roposed S

ite P
lan

S
cale 1:250

G
alliard P

rim
ary S

chool, G
reater London

T
he Q

ube
S

uite 11

M
obbs M

iller H
ouse

A
rdington R

d

N
ortham

pton N
N

1 5LP

m
ick@

theqube.co.uk   w
w

w
.theqube.co.uk

G
a
llia

rd
 P

rim
a
ry

 S
ch

o
o
l, G

a
llia

rd
 R

o
a
d
,

G
re

a
te

r L
o
n
d
o
n
, N

9
 7

P
E

20.12.2010

10115 01

Page 186



LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD 

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 16th February 2011 

Report of 
Assistant Director, Planning & 
Environmental Protection 

Contact Officer:
Aled Richards  Tel: 020 8379 3857 
Andy Higham  Tel: 020 8379 3848 
Mr R.W. Laws Tel: 020 8379 3605

Ward: Jubilee

Application Number :  TP/11/0028 Category: Other Development

LOCATION:  GALLIARD PRIMARY SCHOOL, GALLIARD ROAD, LONDON, N9 7PE

PROPOSAL:  Installation of single storey detached building with decking for use as staff 
room to south east of site. 

Applicant Name & Address:
Penny Sullivan,
Galliard Primary School  
Galliard Road,
London,
N9 7PE 

Agent Name & Address:
Daniel Morriss,
HDA Architecture 
4, Albion Place 
Northamptonshire 
NN1 1UD 

RECOMMENDATION: That subject to the expiry of the site notice after 23rd of February 
and no additional issues are raised which are not covered in the report, the Planning 
Committee resolve to GRANT planning permission subject to conditions. 

Agenda Item 17Page 187



Application No:-  TP/11/0028

Playing Field

14
0a

76

1
0
9

140

1
0
9
a

175

74a

173a

74

72

187

1
4
2

58

58b

58a

173

171

2

Hall

1

163

12

10

3
3

3
4

18.9m

197

1

E
R

 C
L

O
S

E

El S
ub 

Sta

13

9

7
W

O
O

D
S
TO

C
K C

R
E
S
C
E
N
T

23

17
21a

BEECH C
LO

SE

2
1

2
2

1
0

1
2

3
2

1
9

17
a

2

54

90

100

61

69

98

Sub 64

Posts

99

89

49

Sta

El

110

111

101

122

Path

Galliard Children's Centre

79

Pool

Paddling

Playground

Tennis Courts

D Fn

Pavilion

PCs

27

32

1

5

8

22

CLOSE

23

M
AN

S
FIELD

W
O

O
D

G
R
A
N
G

E
 G

A
R
D
E
N
S

52

42

20
2 to 21

8

TCB

161

Court

G
allia

rd

GA
LLI

AR
D
 R

O
AD

200

139

149

1 to
 14

SL

7

6

2
53

 to
 2

69

M
A
N

S
F
IE

LD
 C

L
O

S
E

Playground

12

17

MP

22

1
a

21

11

32

12

1

S
A
V
E
R
N

A
K
E
 R

O
A
D

School House

2

1

18
0

1
37

12
9

8

18.9m

1
a

192

R
O

A
D

HADD
ON CLO

SE

S
T 

E
D
M

U
N
D

S

182

22
7

7

251

7

23
9

12

20
7

1
60

1
70

12
1

21
7

9
5

1
0
7

1
17

18.3m

14
8

Galliard Primary School

1

5
6
a

5
6

18.9m

2

1
3
4

1
4
4

2
7

19

1

2

22

1

1
2

1

2

9

7

6

1
7

1
2

9

7

22

LEE R
OAD

1

6

2

1
9
7

8
7

Development Control

Scale - 1:2500
Time of plot: 08:23 Date of plot: 04/02/2011

0 1 2 300m

Page 188



1.  Site and Surroundings 

1.1  Galliard Primary School is located off Galliard Road. Opposite the school are 
residential properties whilst to the north, east and south is Jubilee Park which 
is designated Metropolitan Open Land. The school playing fields also fall 
within Metropolitan Open Land, although the school buildings are not. 
Vehicular access into the school is located of Galliard Road. 

2.0  Proposal 

2.1 The proposal involves the provision of a single storey detached building with 
decking for use as staff room. The building would be 7.2m in width by 4.2m in 
depth with a flat roof 3.1m in height. There would also be a wooden decked 
area out side the building with access ramp: the maximum height of the 
decking being 500mm. The building would be constructed of western red 
cedar cladding with powder coated dark grey window surrounds.  

2.2 It would be sited in the south eastern corner of the school close to the main 
building but adjoining the boundary with the Metropolitan Open Land. The 
nearest residential properties to the building are In Bedford Road 

2.3  At present the only staff area is a working office so there is no appropriate 
staff rest facilities. This was identified as being in breach of Health and Safety 
requirements and therefore the new building is proposed to meet this 
requirement.

3.   Relevant Planning Decisions 

3.1 TP/11/0026- Installation of single storey detached building for use as music 
room. This application is not determined but reported elsewhere on this 
Agenda.

4.         Consultations 

4.1  Statutory and Non Statutory Consultees

4.1.1 Any replies received will be reported at the meeting 

4.2  Pubic

4.2.1 Consultation letters were issued to two neighbouring properties. In addition, 
two site notices were displayed.  Any responses received will be reported at 
Planning Committee. The consultation period expires on 23rd of February 
2011.

5.  Relevant Policy 

5. 1  Local Development Framework

At the meeting of the full council on the 10th November 2010, the Core 
Strategy of the Local Development Framework was approved. The document 
and the policies contained therein are now material considerations to be 
taken into account when considering the acceptability of development 
proposals. The following are now of relevance. 

Page 189



CP8    Education 
CP9    Supporting Community cohesion 
CP30 Maintaining and improving quality of built environment 
CP34 Parks, Playing fields and other Open spaces 

5.2 Saved UDP Policies

After the adoption of the Core Strategy, a number of UDP Policies are 
retained as material considerations pending the emergence of new and 
updated policies and development standards within the Development 
Management Document. 

(II) GD3-   Aesthetics and functional Design 
(II) GD6    Traffic 
(II) GD8    Servicing 
(II) CS2    Siting and design of buildings to accord with Council’s 

      environmental policies 

5.3 The London Plan

Policy 2A.1      Sustainability Criteria 
Policy 3A.24    Education Facilities 
Policy 3C.23    Parking Strategy 
Policy 4A.1      Tackling Climate change 
Policy 4A.3      Sustainable Design and Construction 
Policy 4B.5      Creating an inclusive environment 
Policy 4B.8      Respect local context and communities 

5.4 Other Relevant Policies

PPS1     Sustainable Development 
PPG13   Transport 

6.  Analysis 

6.1  Principle

6.1.1 The proposal represents additional educational related development on land 
already in use for such purpose. In principle therefore, it is considered the 
development would be appropriate whilst also providing improved educational 
facilities for the school and would accord with Core Policy 8 Education of the 
Core Strategy as well as London Plan Policy 3A.24. 

6.2  Impact on Character of surrounding area

6.2.1 The proposed detached free standing building is of a modern contemporary 
design. It is considered that neither the proposed materials or its design and 
appearance would detract from the character and appearance of the 
surrounding area or locality. Moreover, although the building would be 
positioned against the boundary with the school’s playing field which is 
designated Metropolitan Open Land, when viewed from this perspective, it 
would be seen in the context of the existing school building and other 
associated buildings. It is therefore considered that the well designed single 
storey building would not intrude on the open character of the MOL. 

Page 190



6.2.2 The proposed new decking area outside the building is a maximum height of 
500mm and is acceptable in terms of its siting and appearance. 

6.3  Impact on Neighbouring Properties

6.3.1 The closest residential properties to the new staff room building are in 
Bedford Road approximately 55m away. Given this overall relationship and 
the single storey nature of the building, although the building would bring the 
built envelope closer to the properties on Baxter Road, the intervening 
distance means there would be no effect on the residential amenities of these 
properties.

6.4  Highway Issues

6.4.1  The proposed staff room building would not give rise to any increase in 
vehicle movements or parking. Thus, it is considered there are no issues with 
regard to parking or  the free flow and safety of traffic on the adjoining 
highway.

7.  Conclusion 

7.1  Although the proposed building would be visible from the MOL, it is 
considered that the design and appearance of the proposed building would 
not detract from the essential open character and appearance of the 
surrounding area or adversely impact on the residential amenities of 
surrounding properties. Moreover, as the proposed classroom would provide 
improved education facilities for the school, on balance, the proposal is 
considered acceptable for the following reasons: 

1. The proposed detached free standing staff room would improve staff 
facilities for teachers at Galliards School. Accordingly ,the proposed 
development complies with Core Policies CP8 and CP 9 of the Core Strategy, 
Policy (II) CS2 of the UDP, Policy 3A.24of the London Plan and PPS1 
Sustainable Development. 

2. The proposed detached free standing staff room building with decking 
having regard to its design, size and siting would not unduly impact on the 
open character of the adjoining Metropolitan Open Land or the amenities of 
nearby residents having regard to CP 30 and CP 34 of the Core Strategy, 
Policies (II) GD3 and (II) H8 of the UDP as well as London Plan Policy 4B.8. 

3. The proposed development would not lead to conditions prejudicial to the 
free flow and safety of traffic, including pedestrian traffic on the adjoining 
highway. In this regard, the proposal is considered to comply with Policies (II) 
GD6 and (II) GD8 of the UDP and with Policy 3C.23 of the London Plan. 

8.  Recommendation 

8.1 That subject to the expiry of the site notice after 23rd of February and no 
additional issues are raised which are not covered in the report, the Planning 
Committee resolve to GRANT planning permission subject to the following 
conditions:

1. C60- Approved details 

Page 191



2. C7-   Details of materials 

3. C51- Time Limit 

Page 192



4200

D
1

1100
5000

1100

600.0

F
IG

U
R

E
D

 D
IM

E
N

S
IO

N
S

 O
N

 T
H

IS
 P

LA
N

 A
R

E
 A

LL T
O

 F
A

C
E

S
 O

F
 S

IP
S

 P
A

N
E

LS

W
1

shallow ramp @ 1:20 grad

1500

7200

1500

7274

0
0.5

1
5

m
etres

S
C

A
LE

 1:50

1500

2850.0

F
R

O
N

T
 E

LE
V

A
T

IO
N

w
estern red cedar cladding

alum
inium

 doors - pow
der coated dark grey

single ply roofing w
ith fascia - dark greyS

ID
E

 E
LE

V
A

T
IO

N
scale 1:100

D
1

500.0
R

E
A

R
 E

LE
V

A
T

IO
N

S
ID

E
 E

LE
V

A
T

IO
N

W
1

new
 'Q

ube'
decking

0S
C

A
LE

 1:1250

75
m

etres
25

50

D
A

T
E

D
R

N
/C

H
D

S
C

A
LE

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
.

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

D
R

G
.

S
H

E
E

T
 S

IZ
E

 A
1

1:50 / 1:250 / 1:1000

A
A

P
roposed P

lans &
 E

levations

N
E

W
 S

T
A

F
F

 R
O

O
M

E
xisting S

ite Location P
lan

S
cale 1:1250

P
roposed S

ite P
lan

S
cale 1:250

G
alliard P

rim
ary S

chool, G
reater London

T
he Q

ube
S

uite 11

M
obbs M

iller H
ouse

A
rdington R

d

N
ortham

pton N
N

1 5LP

m
ick@

theqube.co.uk   w
w

w
.theqube.co.uk

G
a
llia

rd
 P

rim
a
ry

 S
ch

o
o
l, G

a
llia

rd
 R

o
a
d
,

G
re

a
te

r L
o
n
d
o
n
, N

9
 7

P
E

20.12.2010

10116 01

Page 193



Page 194

This page is intentionally left blank



Monthly Decisions on Town Planning  Application Appeals 

 
1.1 Between the 4 th December and the 31st of December 2010, 14 appeal 

decisions had been received from the Planning Inspectorate. Two of 
those were invalid. The table below confirms how many appeals were 
upheld and how many were dismissed. Details of each appeal can be 
viewed on the departmental website. 

 

OVERALL PERFORMANCE 

 

APPEALS  

RECEIVED 

DISMISSED ALLOWED WITHDRAWN 

/INVALID 

 

PERCENTAGE  

DISMISSED 

  

       14 

 

 

       11 

 

      1 

   

         2 

 

     92% 

Not including 

invalid appeal 

 

 
1.2 Of the overall number of appeals these have been divided between 

delegated decisions, i.e those made by officers under the scheme of 
delegation and committee decisions. It will be noted that no appeals of 
refusals at committee had been determined. 

 

DELEGATED DECISIONS 

 
No. of 

APPEALS 

DISMISSED ALLOWED WITHDRAWN/ 

INVALID 
PERCENTAGE 

DISMISSED 

 

     14 

 

 

 

        11 

 

      1 

 

          2 

 

     92% 

 

COMMITTEE DECISIONS 

 

 No. of 

APPEALS 

DISMISSED ALLOWED WITHDRAWN PERCENTAGE 

DISMISSED 

Refusal as per 

officer 

recommendation 

 

    0 

  

     0 

 

     0 

   

       0 

 Not applicable 

as no appeals 

decided 

Refusal 

against officer 

recommendation 

 

     0 

 

     0 

 

     0 

 

      0 

Not applicable as 

no appeals 

decided 
 

Agenda Item 18Page 195



Page 196

This page is intentionally left blank



243272 - 1 - 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2010/2011 REPORT NO. 188 
 
COMMITTEE: 
PLANNING 
- 16/02/11  
 
REPORT OF: 
 
Assistant Director (Place 
Shaping) 
Contact Officer: Mike Brown  
Tel: 020 8379 3865 or email:               
MIKE.BROWN@enfield.gov.uk 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 

The purpose of this report is to provide an update of the monitoring of section 
106 Agreements (s106) categorised by constituency, including the type and 
amount for financial obligations agreed and subsequently received, details of 
funds that have been allocated for spend and their current status, an available 
balance as of 1 February 2011, and any spend deadlines.   

 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 

2.1 That the report including Appendix be noted. 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The last report submitted was February 2009. This report seeks to update 
Members on the latest position relating to all outstanding section 106 
agreements and obligations and will be provided on a 6 monthly basis with 
new entries provided in italics and updates on existing entries provided in 
blue.  

 
4. CURRENT POSITION 
 
 The Appendix is made up of 3 sections considered by constituency that the 

land relating to the s106 agreement falls within i.e. Edmonton, Enfield North 
and Southgate: 

 

4.1 Paragraphs in red are summarised details of the obligations included 
within the s106 agreement relating to a particular head of term.  

 
4.2  Information highlighted in blue are updates on various current s106 

projects, identifying trigger points for payments that have not been 
received as yet and seek to highlight any unallocated funds that are 
available for expenditure. A traffic signal key is assigned to individual 
balances in order to easily indentify the current status of various projects.  

 

SUBJECT - 
 

S106 AGREEMENTS –  

MONITORING INFORMATION 

 

 

WARDS: ALL 

ITEM 19 AGENDA – PART 1  

Agenda Item 19Page 197



243272 - 2 - 

4.3  I would draw Members attention to note any spend deadlines that may 
have surpassed; extensions to these deadlines have been negotiated by 
the relating Council department/officer with the relevant developer.  

 
 

Background Papers 
Corresponding section 106 agreements 

 

Page 198



L
B

E
 P

L
A

C
E

 S
H

A
P

IN
G

 &
 E

N
T

E
R

P
R

IS
E

 
    

P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 1

6
th

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
1

  
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 t

o
 R

e
p

o
rt

 o
f 

A
s

s
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
(P

la
c

e
 S

h
a

p
in

g
) 

 
     

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
 S

.1
0

6
 P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 A
G

R
E

E
M

E
N

T
S

 
 

W
IT

H
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 O
B

L
IG

A
T

IO
N

S
    

      
=

 

Page 199



Page 200

This page is intentionally left blank



In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 O
n
ly

S
1
0
6
 -

 E
D

M
O

N
T

O
N

 C
O

N
S

T
IT

U
E

N
C

Y
F

e
b
 2

0
1
1

D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
r

T
P

 N
u
m

b
e
r 

/ 
S

it
e
 

A
d
d
re

s
s
 

a
n
d

W
a
rd

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

D
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
O

b
lig

a
ti
o
n
s
/W

o
rk

s
 

a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

fu
n
d
s

S
p
e
n
d
 D

e
a
d
lin

e
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

O
b

lig
a

ti
o

n
 

S
u
m

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 

to
 d

a
te

 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

in
te

re
s
t 

w
h
e
re

 

a
c
c
ru

e
d
)

A
v
a
ila

b
le

 

b
a
la

n
c
e
 a

s
 o

f 

0
1
/0

2
/2

0
1
1

F
u
n
d
s
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
/a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

 s
p
e
n
d

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

/O
ff

ic
e
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

s
p
e
n
d

S
T

A
T

U
S

 

U
n
i 
g
lo

b
a
l 
L
td

L
a
n
d
 a

d
j.
 T

o
 C

o
a
c
h
 

H
o
u
s
e
 P

H
, 

1
7
3
 A

lm
a
 

R
d
 E

n
fi
e
ld

P
O

N
D

E
R

S
 E

N
D

 

9
8
/1

5
1
9

R
e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

s
it
e
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 3
-s

to
re

y 
b
lo

c
k
 o

f 
1
0
 

tw
o
- 

b
e
d
 f

la
ts

 a
n
d
 2

 o
n
e
-b

e
d
 d

is
a
b
le

d
 p

e
rs

o
n
s
 f

la
ts

, 
a
ll 

fo
r 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 u

s
e
, 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 v

e
h
ic

u
la

r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

o
n
to

 A
lm

a
 R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
 G

re
e
n
 R

o
a
d
 N

o
rt

h
. 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 3
1
.0

3
.0

0

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 H

ig
h
w

a
y 

W
o
rk

s

T
ra

ff
ic

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
o
rk

s
 a

t 

ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
A

lm
a
 R

o
a
d
/D

u
ra

n
ts

 

R
d
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0

£
2
,0

0
0

£
2
,0

0
0

£
2
,1

9
8
.5

5
 

C
T

0
0
8
0

U
n
a
llo

c
a
te

d
. 

A
w

a
it
in

g
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 n

e
a
rb

y 
&

 n
e
e
d
 f

o
r 

a
n
y 

w
o
rk

s
/o

r 

w
a
it
in

g
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o
n
s
. 

P
/P

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 g

ra
n
te

d
 f

o
r 

n
e
a
rb

y 

u
n
re

la
te

d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

&
 m

o
n
e
y 

h
e
ld

 p
e
n
d
in

g
 n

e
e
d
 f

o
r 

a
n
y 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
lo

c
a
l 
w

o
rk

s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h
a
t 

s
c
h
e
m

e
.

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

S
t.

 M
o
d
w

e
n
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t(

E
d

m
o
n
to

n
) 

L
td

T
P

/0
0
/0

5
0
0

T
P

/0
2
/0

4
0
0

T
P

/0
2
/0

4
0
0
/1

L
a
n
d
 a

t 
a
n
d
 a

d
j.
  

E
d
m

o
n
to

n
 G

re
e
n
 

S
h
o
p
p
in

g
 C

e
n
tr

e
. 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

E
D

M
O

N
T

O
N

 G
R

E
E

N

E
x
te
n
s
io
n
 a
n
d
 n
e
w
 b
u
il
d
 t
o
 f
o
rm

 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
s
h
o
p
p
in
g
 (
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 

fo
o
d
 a
n
d
 d
ri
n
k
 u
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
a
n
d
 

p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
),
 l
e
is
u
re
, 
o
ff
ic
e
s
 

a
n
d
 a
n
c
il
la
ry
 u
s
e
s
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 n
e
w
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
, 
s
e
rv
ic
in
g
, 
p
a
rk
in
g
 a
n
d
 

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
in
g
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
 n
e
w
 b
u
s
 f
a
c
il
it
y
. 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
s
ig
n
e
d
 1
8
.0
9
.0
0

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
s
ig
n
e
d
 1
8
.0
9
.0
0

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
s
ig
n
e
d
 1
8
.0
9
.0
0

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
s
ig
n
e
d
 1
8
.0
9
.0
0

E
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

&
 t

ra
in

in
g
 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n

m
e
a
n
s
: 

th
e
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 o

f 

e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t

ra
in

in
g
 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 r

e
la

te
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

E
d
m

o
n
to

n
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 I
n
it
ia

ti
v
e

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
  

o
f 

C
o
n
tr

o
lle

d
 

P
a
rk

in
g
 Z

o
n
e

m
e
a
n
s
 :

 a
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 

o
f 

o
n
-s

tr
e
e
t 

p
a
rk

in
g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

E
d
m

o
n
to

n
 G

re
e
n
 A

re
a

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
 

O
n
 g

o
in

g
 

n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 t

a
k
in

g
 

p
la

c
e
 t

o
 s

e
c
u
re

 a
n
 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 

£
2
0
,0

0
0

£
2
0
0
,0

0
0

£
2
3
,0

5
3
.8

9

£
1
5
6
,2

8
5
.3

8

£
8
4
8
.8

3
 

(C
T

0
1
6
9
) 

£
1
4
2
,6

3
8
.9

3
 

(C
T

0
2
1
0
)

U
n
a
llo

c
a
te

d

 1
s
t 

C
P

Z
 i
n
s
ta

lm
e
n
t 

o
f 

£
1
5
0
,0

0
0
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 

S
e
c
o
n
d
 p

a
ym

e
n
t 

o
f 

£
5
0
,0

0
0
 n

o
t 

ye
t 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 D

A
R

 b
e
in

g
 

c
ir
c
u
la

te
d
 f

o
r 

u
s
e
 o

f 
S

1
0
6
 f

u
n
d
s
 t

o
 e

n
a
b
le

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 

th
e
 C

P
Z

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

D
a
v
id

 T
a
yl

o
r

T
ra

ff
ic

 &
 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

a
ti
o
n

 

K
E

Y
 

U
n
a
llo

c
a
te

d
 s

1
0
6
 m

o
n
ie

s
  

P
ro

je
c
ts

 t
h
a
t 

a
re

 s
ti
ll 

b
e
in

g
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 

P
ro

je
c
ts

 t
h
a
t 

a
re

 c
o
m

m
it
te

d

P
ro

je
c
ts

 w
h
e
re

 m
o
n
ie

s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 s

p
e
n
t 

  

P
ro

je
c
ts

 t
h
a
t 

a
re

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

lo
s
e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
ye

a
r 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

. 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
1

P
a
g
e
 1

Page 201



In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 O
n
ly

S
1
0
6
 -

 E
D

M
O

N
T

O
N

 C
O

N
S

T
IT

U
E

N
C

Y
F

e
b
 2

0
1
1

D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
r

T
P

 N
u
m

b
e
r 

/ 
S

it
e
 

A
d
d
re

s
s
 

a
n
d

W
a
rd

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

D
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
O

b
lig

a
ti
o
n
s
/W

o
rk

s
 

a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

fu
n
d
s

S
p
e
n
d
 D

e
a
d
lin

e
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

O
b

lig
a

ti
o

n
 

S
u
m

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 

to
 d

a
te

 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

in
te

re
s
t 

w
h
e
re

 

a
c
c
ru

e
d
)

A
v
a
ila

b
le

 

b
a
la

n
c
e
 a

s
 o

f 

0
1
/0

2
/2

0
1
1

F
u
n
d
s
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
/a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

 s
p
e
n
d

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

/O
ff

ic
e
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

s
p
e
n
d

S
T

A
T

U
S

 

S
t 

M
o
d
w

e
n
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
…

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n

m
e
a
n
s
 :

 t
h
e
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
 a

n
d
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

to
 t

h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 o

p
e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 v

ic
in

it
y 

o
f 

th
e
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 s

it
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 

o
f 

a
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 b

u
ilt

 c
h
ild

re
n
's

 p
la

y 

a
re

a
/c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

fa
c
ili

ty

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n

m
e
a
n
s
 :

 t
h
e
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
 a

n
d
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

to
 t

h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 o

p
e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 v

ic
in

it
y 

o
f 

th
e
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 s

it
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 

o
f 

a
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 b

u
ilt

 c
h
ild

re
n
's

 p
la

y 

a
re

a
/c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

fa
c
ili

ty

re
v
is

io
n
 t

o
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 s

e
c
u
re

s
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
m

o
n
ie

s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 D

e
e
d
 

o
f 

V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n

m
e
a
n
s
  

: 
fo

r 
th

e
 c

re
a
ti
o
n
 o

r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

re
c
re

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

r 
o
th

e
r 

a
m

e
n
it
y 

s
p
a
c
e
 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 v

ic
in

it
y 

o
f 

th
e
 L

a
n
d
 t

o
 

c
o
m

p
e
n
s
a
te

 f
o
r 

th
e
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
a
m

e
n
it
y 

s
p
a
c
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
s
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

m
a
y 

d
e
e
m

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 o
r 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2

J
a
n
 2

0
1
2

£
2
0
0
,0

0
0

£
3
0
0
,0

0
0

£
9
,2

0
4

£
2
0
0
,0

0
0

£
3
3
7
,4

1
5
.3

7

£
9
,8

4
5
.6

5

£
1
1
1
,1

1
9
.5

2
 

C
T

0
1
7
0

£
3
4
7
,8

8
3
.7

9
 

C
T

0
1
8
6

£
1
0
,2

5
0
.3

7
 

C
T

0
1
5
0

£
4
5
,0

0
0
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 t

o
 G

re
e
n
 T

o
w

e
rs

 F
e
e
s
 A

2
0
0
2
9
2
 

£
6
6
,1

1
9
.5

2
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 t

o
 G

re
e
n
 T

o
w

e
rs

 R
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 

C
0
2
0
1
2
5

  R
e
q
u
e
s
t 

fo
r 

£
1
7
0
K

 t
o
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 f

o
r 

M
o
n
ta

g
u
 R

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 

B
u
ild

in
g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
.

£
1
7
7
,8

8
3
.7

9
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 t

o
 G

re
e
n
 T

o
w

e
rs

 R
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 

C
0
2
0
1
2
5
 

 £
1
0
,2

5
0
.3

7
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 t

o
 G

re
e
n
 T

o
w

e
rs

 R
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t

J
u
d
y 

F
lig

h
t 

S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

T
o
n
y 

C
o
rr

ig
a
n
 

P
a
rk

s
 

J
u
d
y 

F
lig

h
t 

S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
1

P
a
g
e
 2

Page 202



In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 O
n
ly

S
1
0
6
 -

 E
D

M
O

N
T

O
N

 C
O

N
S

T
IT

U
E

N
C

Y
F

e
b
 2

0
1
1

D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
r

T
P

 N
u
m

b
e
r 

/ 
S

it
e
 

A
d
d
re

s
s
 

a
n
d

W
a
rd

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

D
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
O

b
lig

a
ti
o
n
s
/W

o
rk

s
 

a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

fu
n
d
s

S
p
e
n
d
 D

e
a
d
lin

e
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

O
b

lig
a

ti
o

n
 

S
u
m

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 

to
 d

a
te

 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

in
te

re
s
t 

w
h
e
re

 

a
c
c
ru

e
d
)

A
v
a
ila

b
le

 

b
a
la

n
c
e
 a

s
 o

f 

0
1
/0

2
/2

0
1
1

F
u
n
d
s
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
/a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

 s
p
e
n
d

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

/O
ff

ic
e
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

s
p
e
n
d

S
T

A
T

U
S

 

Ik
e
a
 L

td
T

P
/9

9
/0

8
6
6

L
a
n
d
 a

t 
G

lo
v
e
r 

D
ri
v
e
 

N
1
8

U
P

P
E

R
 E

D
M

O
N

T
O

N

M
e
ri
d
ia

n
 W

a
te

r 
P

la
c
e
 

S
h
a
p
in

g
 A

re
a

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
tw

o
-s

to
re

y 
n
o
n
-f

o
o
d
 r

e
ta

il 
u
n
it
 w

it
h
 

a
n
c
ill

a
ry

 u
s
e
s
, 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
, 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 w

o
rk

s
 a

n
d
 

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
 t

o
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
  

e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

(B
1
, 

B
2
 a

n
d
 B

8
) 

,a
ll 

lin
k
e
d
 b

y 
a
 n

e
w

 s
p
in

e
 r

o
a
d
. 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 2
5
.0

9
.0

2

- 
In

d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
la

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
-r

e
c
'd

  

0
3
/0

5

m
e
a
n
s
 :

 s
u
c
h
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 a

s
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

c
o
n
s
id

e
rs

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 t
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 I

n
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 

re
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 a

lo
n
g
 t

h
e
 L

e
a
 

V
a
lle

y 
C

o
rr

id
o
r 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
 o

f 
E

n
fi
e
ld

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

w
it
h
o
u
t 

lim
it
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 

re
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 M

o
n
ta

g
u
 a

n
d
 

K
e
n
n
in

g
h
a
ll 

In
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
E

s
ta

te
s
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 H

a
rb

e
t 

R
o
a
d
 I

n
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 

A
re

a
 a

n
d
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
lo

n
g
 t

h
e
 l
e
n
g
th

 o
f 

M
e
ri
d
ia

n
 W

a
y 

a
n
d
 M

o
lli

s
o
n
 

A
v
e
n
u
e

- 
H

ig
h
w

a
ys

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 -
 r

e
c
'd

 

0
6
/0

4

m
e
a
n
s
: 

L
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 w

o
rk

s
 a

lo
n
g
 

M
e
ri
d
ia

n
 W

a
y,

 t
ra

ff
ic

 c
a
lm

in
g
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 v

ic
in

it
y 

o
f 

th
e
 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y 
to

 s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

 t
h
e
 

a
m

e
n
it
y 

o
f 

lo
c
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

, 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 p

e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 P

ro
p
e
rt

y,
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

lin
k
s
 w

it
h
 p

u
b
lic

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

, 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t

h
e
 c

yc
le

 

n
e
tw

o
rk

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2

J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
9
. 

N
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y 

ta
k
in

g
 

p
la

c
e
 f

o
r 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 

p
e
ri
o
d
. 

£
5
0
0
,0

0
0

£
2
4
5
,0

0
0

£
5
9
8
,8

7
8
.8

5
£
6
2
3
,4

9
6
.3

9
 

(C
T

0
1
6
6
)

£
2
8
1
,0

3
2
.2

2
 

(C
T

0
1
5
2
) 

U
n
a
llo

c
a
te

d
. 

C
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y 

b
e
in

g
 g

iv
e
n
 t

o
 

u
p
g
ra

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 C

la
v
e
ri
n
g
s
 e

s
ta

te
. 

A
w

a
it
in

g
 a

 s
to

c
k
 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
 s

u
rv

e
y 

(b
e
in

g
 l
e
d
 b

y 
p
ro

p
e
rt

y)
 b

e
fo

re
 m

a
k
in

g
 a

 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
.  

S
ti
ll 

a
w

a
it
in

g
 P

ro
p
e
rt

y 
to

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 t

h
e
 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
 s

to
c
k
 s

u
rv

e
y 

o
f 

p
re

m
is

e
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 e

s
ta

te
. 

O
th

e
r 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 s

c
o
p
e
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
ils

 o
th

e
r 

in
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
e
s
ta

te
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
ir
 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y 

a
n
d
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
 t

h
e
ir
 i
m

a
g
e
 w

it
h
 a

 v
ie

w
 

to
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
n
g
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

in
w

a
rd

 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t.

 

A
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 

H
ig

h
w

a
y 

w
o
rk

s
 -

 T
e
s
c
o
 &

 I
K

E
A

 G
lo

v
e
r 

D
ri
v
e
 -

 b
e
in

g
 

lo
o
k
e
d
 a

t 
to

g
e
th

e
r.

 D
e
fe

r 
a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 u

n
ti
l 
p
o
s
it
io

n
 a

t 

M
e
ri
d
ia

n
 W

a
te

r 
fi
rm

s
 u

p
 -

 D
ra

ft
 v

e
rs

io
n
 w

it
h
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
a
d
y 

fo
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 y
e
a
r.

 L
in

d
a
 

D
a
lt
o
n
 w

o
rk

in
g
 o

n
 a

m
e
n
d
m

e
n
t 

to
 t

h
e
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t.

 W
a
it
in

g
 

to
 h

e
a
r 

b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 I
k
e
a
. 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
1

P
a
g
e
 3

Page 203



In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 O
n
ly

S
1
0
6
 -

 E
D

M
O

N
T

O
N

 C
O

N
S

T
IT

U
E

N
C

Y
F

e
b
 2

0
1
1

D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
r

T
P

 N
u
m

b
e
r 

/ 
S

it
e
 

A
d
d
re

s
s
 

a
n
d

W
a
rd

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

D
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
O

b
lig

a
ti
o
n
s
/W

o
rk

s
 

a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

fu
n
d
s

S
p
e
n
d
 D

e
a
d
lin

e
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

O
b

lig
a

ti
o

n
 

S
u
m

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 

to
 d

a
te

 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

in
te

re
s
t 

w
h
e
re

 

a
c
c
ru

e
d
)

A
v
a
ila

b
le

 

b
a
la

n
c
e
 a

s
 o

f 

0
1
/0

2
/2

0
1
1

F
u
n
d
s
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
/a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

 s
p
e
n
d

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

/O
ff

ic
e
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

s
p
e
n
d

S
T

A
T

U
S

 

Ik
e
a
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
…

E
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

s
c
h
e
m

e

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

E
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 

u
n
d
e
r 

c
la

u
s
e
 1

2
.1

 o
f 

th
e
 S

1
0
6
 

A
g
re

e
m

e
n
t

S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 p
la

n

m
e
a
n
s
 -

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 P
la

n
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 

G
lo

v
e
r 

D
ri
v
e
 S

te
e
ri
n
g
 G

ro
u
p

P
u
b
lic

 A
rt

m
e
a
n
s
 :

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t

o
 a

 p
ie

c
e
 o

f 

a
rt

w
o
rk

 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 b

y 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 v

ic
in

it
y 

o
f 

th
e
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

N
o
 s

p
e
n
d
 d

e
a
d
lin

e
 

 N
o
 s

p
e
n
d
 d

e
a
d
lin

e

£
6
0
,0

0
0

£
1
5
0
,0

0
0

£
2
0
,0

0
0

£
6
5
,0

4
9

£
2
4
,0

0
6
.9

7

£
2
7
,5

3
6
.6

9
 

(C
T

0
1
4
1
)

£
2
4
,9

9
3
.8

0
 

(C
T

0
1
4
2
)

£
4
0
,0

0
0
 f

ro
m

 e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 s

p
e
n
t 

o
n
 

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 W

e
b
 I

n
it
ia

ti
v
e
. 

O
ri
g
in

a
lly

 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 t

o
 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 J

C
P

's
 c

o
s
ts

 i
n
 a

s
s
is

ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 s

to
re

. 
J
C

P
 l
a
te

r 
c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 i
t 

w
a
s
 n

o
t 

a
llo

w
e
d
 t

o
 u

s
e
 

s
u
c
h
 m

o
n
ie

s
. 

IK
E

A
 s

in
c
e
 h

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

o
 i
t 

b
e
in

g
 s

p
e
n
t 

o
n
 

a
n
 U

rb
a
n
 F

u
tu

re
s
 j
o
b
 b

ro
k
e
ra

g
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 t

o
 f

a
c
ili

ta
te

 t
h
e
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
 w

a
v
e
 d

o
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

a
t 

th
e
 s

to
re

 b
u
t 

IK
E

A
 a

p
p
e
a
r 

u
n
w

ill
in

g
 t

o
 t

a
k
e
 a

d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t.

 J
H

 

s
u
g
g
e
s
te

d
 t

o
 r

e
q
u
e
s
t 

IK
E

A
 t

o
 a

g
re

e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 m

o
n
e
y 

b
e
in

g
 

s
p
e
n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
m

 d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 a

n
 A

p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip

 t
ra

in
in

g
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 e

m
p
lo

y 
lo

c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le

 f
ro

m
 E

d
m

o
n
to

n
. 

A
w

a
it
in

g
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
. 

U
n
a
llo

c
a
te

d
. 

S
p
o
k
e
 w

it
h
 L

o
rr

a
in

e
 C

o
x
 w

h
o
 i
s
 a

c
ti
v
e
ly

 

p
u
rs

u
in

g
 t

ry
in

g
 t

o
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
 a

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 w

it
h
 I

k
e
a
. 

L
C

 a
w

a
it
in

g
 

a
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
. 

 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
1

P
a
g
e
 4

Page 204



In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 O
n
ly

S
1
0
6
 -

 E
D

M
O

N
T

O
N

 C
O

N
S

T
IT

U
E

N
C

Y
F

e
b
 2

0
1
1

D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
r

T
P

 N
u
m

b
e
r 

/ 
S

it
e
 

A
d
d
re

s
s
 

a
n
d

W
a
rd

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

D
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
O

b
lig

a
ti
o
n
s
/W

o
rk

s
 

a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

fu
n
d
s

S
p
e
n
d
 D

e
a
d
lin

e
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

O
b

lig
a

ti
o

n
 

S
u
m

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 

to
 d

a
te

 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

in
te

re
s
t 

w
h
e
re

 

a
c
c
ru

e
d
)

A
v
a
ila

b
le

 

b
a
la

n
c
e
 a

s
 o

f 

0
1
/0

2
/2

0
1
1

F
u
n
d
s
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
/a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

 s
p
e
n
d

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

/O
ff

ic
e
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

s
p
e
n
d

S
T

A
T

U
S

 

N
o
rt

h
 M

id
d
x
 

U
n
iv

e
rs

it
y 

H
o
s
p
it
a
l

T
P

/0
2
/0

7
8
5

N
o
rt

h
 M

id
d
x
 

U
n
iv

e
rs

it
y 

H
o
s
p
it
a
l,
 

S
te

rl
in

g
 w

a
y 

N
1
8

U
P

P
E

R
 E

D
M

O
N

T
O

N

D
e
m

o
lit

io
n
, 

re
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t,

 a
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 o

f 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 t

o
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 n

e
w

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
c
a
re

 p
u
rp

o
s
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 c
re

c
h
e
, 

lib
ra

ry
, 

o
ff

ic
e
s
, 

c
lin

ic
s
, 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
in

g
 r

o
o
m

s
 a

n
d
 t

ra
in

in
g
 c

e
n
tr

e
. 

 P
ro

v
is

io
n
 

o
f 

n
e
w

 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 f

o
r 

6
9
8
 

v
e
h
ic

le
s
, 

in
te

rn
a
l 
e
s
ta

te
 r

o
a
d
s
 a

n
d
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
 t

o
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
1
.9

5
 h

e
c
ta

re
s
 o

f 
la

n
d
 f

o
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
s
.

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n

m
e
a
n
s
 :

 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 

e
x
p
e
n
d
e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

u
p
o
n
 

th
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
la

c
e
s
 

w
it
h
in

 i
ts

 a
re

a

C
P

Z
 S

ta
g
e
 1

fo
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 r

e
g
a
rd

 t
o
 t

h
e
 f

e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

b
ri
n
g
in

g
 i
n
to

 e
ff

e
c
t 

a
 C

o
n
tr

o
lle

d
 

P
a
rk

in
g
 Z

o
n
e
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 

s
tr

e
e
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 v

ic
in

it
y 

o
f 

N
o
rt

h
 

M
id

d
le

s
e
x
 U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y 

H
o
s
p
it
a
l-

F
u
n
d
in

g
 f

o
r 

p
e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 H
ig

h
w

a
y

to
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h
w

a
y 

to
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 f

o
r 

p
e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 l
a
n
d
 

a
n
d
 F

o
re

 S
tr

e
e
t

R
o
a
d
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 (

A
llo

c
a
te

d
 f

o
r 

Z
e
b
ra

 C
ro

s
s
in

g
 i
n
 B

u
ll 

L
a
n
e
)

fo
r 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
 c

o
n
tr

o
lle

d
 

p
e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
 c

ro
s
s
in

g
  

in
 t

h
e
 

v
ic

in
it
y 

o
f 

th
e
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
B

u
ll 

L
a
n
e
 a

n
d
 B

ri
d
p
o
rt

 R
o
a
d

(G
re

e
n
 T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 P
la

n
)

(A
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 P

ro
v
is

io
n
-4

5
 

u
n
it
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
)

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
2

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
2

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
2
  

£
6
1
,0

0
0

£
1
8
,0

0
0

£
1
5
,0

0
0

£
4
5
,0

0
0

£
0

£
2
0
,5

8
1

£
1
7
,1

5
1

£
4
5
,0

0
0

£
0

£
1
7
,2

7
5
.6

3
 

C
T

0
2
1
2
 -

 

A
llo

c
a
te

d
 

£
1
8
,6

0
4
.2

2
 

(C
T

0
2
1
4
)

£
2
4
,0

4
9
.5

5
 

C
T

0
2
1
3

M
o
n
ie

s
 n

o
t 

ye
t 

re
c
e
iv

e
d

P
a
ym

e
n
t 

d
u
e
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 o

c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ti
a
l.
 E

m
a
ile

d
 

S
a
ra

h
 C

a
rt

e
r 

to
 c

h
e
c
k
 s

ta
tu

s
.

£
1
7
,2

7
5
.6

3
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 A

2
0
0
2
5
6
 E

n
fi
e
ld

 T
o
w

n
 C

P
Z

 w
o
rk

s
  

5
 y

e
a
rs

 f
ro

m
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 

p
a
ym

e
n
t 

- 
J
u
ly

 2
0
1
2

U
n
a
llo

c
a
te

d
. 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 w

it
h
 T

fL
, 

th
is

 a
m

o
u
n
t 

is
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
. 

5
 y

e
a
rs

 f
ro

m
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 

p
a
ym

e
n
t 

 -
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
2

T
o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 z

e
b
ra

 c
ro

s
s
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 B

u
ll 

L
a
n
e
 a

n
d
 W

ilb
u
ry

 

W
a
y 

. 
W

a
it
in

g
 f

o
r 

N
o
rt

h
 M

id
d
le

s
e
x
 t

o
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 p
la

n
s
 b

e
fo

re
 

th
is

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 i
s
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 t

o
 a

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

 p
ro

je
c
t.

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

D
a
v
id

 T
a
yl

o
r 

D
a
v
id

 T
a
yl

o
r

 D
a
v
id

 T
a
yl

o
r

K
e
n
n
e
t 

P
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 L

td

T
P

/9
3
/0

2
4
4

P
a
rt

 o
f 

D
e
e
p
h
a
m

s
 

S
e
w

a
g
e
 w

o
rk

s
 

P
ic

k
e
tt

s
 L

o
c
k
 L

a
n
e
 

N
1
8

L
O

W
E

R
 E

D
M

O
N

T
O

N

R
e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

s
it
e
 f

o
r 

B
1
, 

B
2
, 

B
8
 u

s
e
s
 a

n
d
/o

r 
u
s
e
s
 

fo
r 

w
a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
, 

re
c
yc

lin
g
, 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
, 

re
p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
 

a
n
d
 a

 D
e
p
o
t 

fo
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 o

f 

c
le

a
n
s
in

g
/w

a
s
te

 d
is

p
o
s
a
l 
v
e
h
ic

le
s
, 

a
n
c
ill

a
ry

 o
ff

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 

o
th

e
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 (
O

u
tl
in

e
) 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 

0
2
.0

6
.0

0

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 

re
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

t 
In

n
o
v
a
 

P
a
rk

m
e
a
n
s
 -

 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 

a
s
s
is

ti
n
g
 c

o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
 l
o
c
a
ti
n
g
 t

o
 

a
n
d
 e

x
p
a
n
d
in

g
 w

it
h
in

 P
h
a
s
e
 1

 o
f 

th
e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 S

c
ie

n
c
e
 P

a
rk

 a
t 

In
n
o
v
a
 P

a
rk

N
o
 s

p
e
n
d
 d

e
a
d
lin

e
£
2
0
0
,0

0
0

£
2
2
4
,7

0
0

£
9
7
,9

8
2
.1

6
 

(C
T

0
2
2
7
)

S
c
h
e
m

e
 n

o
w

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 

 O
n
g
o
in

g
. 

S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

a
re

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

s
p
e
n
d
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 S

1
0
6
 

A
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

0
7
/2

0
0
8
 -

 m
o
n
ie

s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y 

in
 e

s
c
ro

w
 J

H
 h

a
s
 

re
q
u
e
s
te

d
 t

ra
n
s
fe

r 
a
n
d
 i
s
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

s
p
e
n
d
 -

 

m
o
n
ie

s
 a

lr
e
a
d
y 

b
e
in

g
 s

p
e
n
d
 o

n
 I

n
n
o
v
a
to

rs
 S

c
h
e
m

e

S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

L
a
in

g
 H

o
m

e
s
 L

td
F

o
rm

e
r 

M
K

 w
o
rk

s
 

D
ys

o
n
s
 R

o
a
d
 N

1
8

U
P

P
E

R
 E

D
M

O
N

T
O

N
 

T
P

/0
1
/0

2
2
0
 

T
P

/0
2
/1

3
3
2

R
e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

s
it
e
 f

o
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
p
u
rp

o
s
e
s
 w

it
h
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 D

ys
o
n
s
 R

o
a
d
. 

(O
u
tl
in

e
) 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 

2
8
.0

5
.0

3

tb
c
 

tb
c
 

tb
c
 t

b
c
 

£
7
,1

1
8
.9

4
 

(C
T

0
1
3
1
)

tb
c
 

L
ia

m
 

M
u
lr

o
o
n
e
y
 

B
ri
x
to

n
 p

lc
G

re
a
t 

C
a
m

b
ri
d
g
e
 

In
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
e
s
ta

te
, 

L
in

c
o
ln

 R
d
 E

N
1
 

0
3
/0

8
3
7

D
e
m

o
lit

io
n
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d
 e

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

re
e
 

b
lo

c
k
s
 o

f 
1
6
 u

n
it
s
 f

o
r 

B
1
 (

b
),

  
(c

),
 B

2
 a

n
d
/o

r 
B

8
 u

s
e
s
 

(b
u
s
in

e
s
s
, 

g
e
n
e
ra

l 
in

d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
a
n
d
/o

r 
s
to

ra
g
e
/d

is
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 

u
s
e
s
) 

(t
o
ta

l 
o
f 

8
9
2
8
 s

q
.m

) 
w

it
h
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 c

a
r,

 l
o
rr

y 
a
n
d
 

c
yc

le
 p

a
rk

in
g
. 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 1
6
.0

1
.0

4

H
ig

h
w

a
y  

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 

v
ic

in
it
y 

o
f 

th
e
 l
a
n
d

W
o
rk

s
 t

o
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 W

a
y 

o
r 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n

N
o
 D

e
a
d
li
n
e

1
3
5
,0

0
0
 

9
6
,6

2
5

3
,0

0
0

£
1
3
5
,0

0
0

£
0

£
0

£
6
,2

0
1
.1

5
 

(C
T

0
2
3
9
)

£
0

£
0

tb
c
 

N
o
 m

o
n
ie

s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 y

e
t.

 T
ri
g
g
e
r 

p
o
in

t 
tb

c

S
te

v
e
 J

a
g
g
a
rd

 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
1

P
a
g
e
 5

Page 205



In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 O
n
ly

S
1
0
6
 -

 E
D

M
O

N
T

O
N

 C
O

N
S

T
IT

U
E

N
C

Y
F

e
b
 2

0
1
1

D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
r

T
P

 N
u
m

b
e
r 

/ 
S

it
e
 

A
d
d
re

s
s
 

a
n
d

W
a
rd

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

D
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
O

b
lig

a
ti
o
n
s
/W

o
rk

s
 

a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

fu
n
d
s

S
p
e
n
d
 D

e
a
d
lin

e
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

O
b

lig
a

ti
o

n
 

S
u
m

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 

to
 d

a
te

 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

in
te

re
s
t 

w
h
e
re

 

a
c
c
ru

e
d
)

A
v
a
ila

b
le

 

b
a
la

n
c
e
 a

s
 o

f 

0
1
/0

2
/2

0
1
1

F
u
n
d
s
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
/a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

 s
p
e
n
d

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

/O
ff

ic
e
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

s
p
e
n
d

S
T

A
T

U
S

 

G
B

 C
o
n
s
o
rt

iu
m

 1
 

L
td

T
P

/0
3
/2

3
2
7

S
t 

J
o
s
e
p
h
 R

d
 N

9

L
O

W
E

R
 E

D
M

O
N

T
O

N

D
e
m

o
lit

io
n
 o

f 
p
a
rt

 o
f 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 b

u
ild

in
g
, 

a
n
d
 

re
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

s
it
e
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
t 

a
 p

a
rt

 t
w

o
-s

to
re

y,
 p

a
rt

 

th
re

e
-s

to
re

y,
 n

e
w

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 H
e
a
lt
h
 C

a
re

 C
e
n
tr

e
, 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 a

 p
h
a
rm

a
c
y 

a
n
d
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
. 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 2
4
.0

4
.0

4

M
it
ig

a
ti
n
g
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 s

tr
e
e
t 

p
a
rk

in
g
 -

re
c
'd

 1
2
/0

4

m
e
a
n
s
 -

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e
 

c
o
s
t 

o
f 

m
it
ig

a
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

o
n
 s

tr
e
e
t 

p
a
rk

in
g

N
o
 s

p
e
n
d
 d

e
a
d
lin

e
£
2
5
,0

0
0

£
2
7
,8

0
3

£
2
9
,5

0
0
.8

0
B

e
in

g
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t

re
e
s
, 

s
o
 w

a
it
in

g
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o
n
 

o
p
ti
o
n
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 i
n
it
ia

l 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 d

ra
w

n
 u

p
 w

a
s
 

a
b
a
n
d
o
n
e
d
 a

s
 u

ti
lit

y 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

o
u
ld

 m
a
k
e
 i
s
 t

o
o
 c

o
s
tl
y 

&
 

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 d

e
ta

ils
 a

re
 w

o
rk

e
d
 o

n
. 

F
re

s
h
 w

a
it
in

g
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o
n
s
 

b
e
in

g
 w

o
rk

e
d
 u

p
. 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

S
te

v
e
 J

a
g
g
a
rd

 

C
o
c
a
 C

o
la

 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
s

L
a
n
d
 a

t 
K

yn
o
c
h
 R

d
. 

a
n
d
 N

o
b
e
l 
R

o
a
d
 

E
d
m

o
n
to

n
 N

1
8

T
P

/0
3
/2

4
1
4

E
D

M
O

N
T

O
N

 G
R

E
E

N

D
e
m

o
lit

io
n
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 w

a
re

h
o
u
s
e
, 

lo
a
d
in

g
 b

a
y 

a
n
d
 

a
n
c
ill

a
ry

 b
u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d
 e

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
n
 a

u
to

m
a
te

d
 

w
a
re

h
o
u
s
in

g
 b

u
ild

in
g
 (

to
 a

 m
a
x
im

u
m

 h
e
ig

h
t 

o
f 

3
6
m

) 
w

it
h
 

m
e
z
z
a
n
in

e
 f

lo
o
rs

 a
t 

1
s
t 

a
n
d
 2

n
d
 l
e
v
e
l 
a
n
d
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 

lo
a
d
in

g
 b

a
ys

 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 r

e
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
v
e
h
ic

u
la

r 

c
ir
c
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
  

a
c
c
e
s
s
 v

ia
 K

yn
o
c
h
 R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 l
o
rr

y 

p
a
rk

in
g
. 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 1
4
.0

5
.0

4

H
ig

h
w

a
ys

 C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 -

 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 

s
a
fe

ty
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 i
n
 A

d
v
e
n
t 

W
a
y 

 

N
o
 s

p
e
n
d
 d

e
a
d
lin

e
 

2
3
,5

0
0

£
2
3
,5

0
0

£
1
6
,1

4
5
.5

3
  

(C
T

0
1
6
5
)

A
d
v
e
n
t 

W
a
y 

S
a
fe

ty
 S

c
h
e
m

e
. 

T
&

T
 e

x
p
lo

ri
n
g
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

n
 a

n
ti
 s

k
i 
s
k
id

 s
u
rf

a
c
e
 a

p
p
lie

d
 t

o
 A

d
v
e
n
t 

W
a
y 

o
n
 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 r

o
u
n
d
a
b
o
u
t.

  

S
te

v
e
 J

a
g
g
a
rd

 

T
e
s
c
o
 S

to
re

s
 L

td
T

P
/0

2
/0

7
9
0

G
lo

v
e
r 

D
ri
v
e
 N

1
8

U
P

P
E

R
 E

D
M

O
N

T
O

N

M
e
ri
d
ia

n
 W

a
te

r 
P

la
c
e
 

S
h
a
p
in

g
 A

re
a

E
n
la

rg
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 s

to
re

 b
y 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 t

o
 e

a
s
te

rn
 

a
n
d
 w

e
s
te

rn
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
v
o
lv

in
g
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
2
,4

3
9
 

s
q
u
a
re

 m
e
tr

e
s
 o

f 
re

ta
il 

a
n
d
 a

n
c
ill

a
ry

 f
lo

o
r 

s
p
a
c
e
 i
n
v
o
lv

in
g
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 t

o
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 o

th
e
r 

a
n
c
ill

a
ry

 w
o
rk

s
. 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 2
4
.0

5
.0

4

H
ig

h
w

a
y 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

m
e
a
n
s
 -

 t
o
 f

u
n
d
 t

ra
ff

ic
 c

a
lm

in
g
 

a
n
d
 t

ra
ff

ic
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
o
rk

s
 i
n
 

th
e
 v

ic
in

it
y 

o
f 

th
e
 s

it
e
, 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 p

e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
 a

n
d
 

c
yc

le
 l
in

k
s
, 

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 v

ic
in

it
y 

o
f 

th
e
 s

it
e
 

P
u
b
lic

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n

m
e
a
n
s
 -

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 P
la

n
 o

r 

o
th

e
r 

p
u
b
lic

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
r

M
a
y 

2
0
0
9

M
a
y 

2
0
1
4

£
1
2
0
,0

0
0

£
1
2
5
,0

0
0

£
1
3
6
,9

1
4

£
1
4
2
,6

1
8

£
1
9
,4

8
2
.8

7
 

C
T

0
1
4
8

£
1
1
0
, 

8
0
9
.9

3
 

(C
T

0
2
3
1
)

£
1
5
6
,7

7
7
.0

8
 

(C
T

0
1
4
7
)

S
tr

e
e
t 

lig
h
ti
n
g
 f

e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y 

- 
b
e
in

g
 

lo
o
k
e
d
 a

t 
in

 c
o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 I

K
E

A
 w

o
rk

s
.

H
ig

h
w

a
y 

w
o
rk

s
 -

 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

 u
n
d
e
r 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 

R
e
m

a
in

in
g
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

to
 b

e
 m

a
rr

ie
d
 w

it
h
 £

5
0
K

 L
e
a
 V

a
lle

y 

P
a
rk

 &
 £

2
1
0
K

 f
ro

m
 M

a
yo

rs
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 r
o
u
te

 f
u
n
d
. 

J
o
in

t 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
. 

 T
h
e
 m

o
n
ie

s
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

s
e
d
 b

y 
T

&
T

 &
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d
 

w
it
h
 M

a
yo

r'
s
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 R
o
u
te

s
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 &

 L
V

R
P

A
 g

ra
n
t 

m
o
n
ie

s
 t

o
 s

e
c
u
re

 p
e
d
/c

yc
le

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
lo

n
g
 t

h
e
 R

.L
e
a
 

to
w

p
a
th

 i
n
 E

d
m

o
n
to

n
, 

in
 c

o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 B

W
 &

 L
V

R
P

A
 +

 

a
d
jo

in
in

g
 l
a
n
d
 o

w
n
e
rs

/o
c
c
u
p
ie

rs
.

U
n
a
llo

c
a
te

d
 D

e
fe

rr
e
d
 u

n
ti
l 
M

e
ri
d
ia

n
 W

a
te

r 
M

a
s
te

rp
la

n
 

fi
rm

s
 u

p
. 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

. 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 S
te

v
e
 J

a
g
g
a
rd

 

  
  

  
  

-

A
le

x
a
n
d
e
r 

S
e
d
g
le

y

T
P

/0
5
/2

3
0
4
  

F
o
rm

e
r 

w
o
rk

s
 a

t 

B
re

tt
e
n
h
a
m

/B
a
x
te

r 

R
o
a
d
  

  
E

d
m

o
n
to

n
 

G
re

e
n

D
e
m

o
lit

io
n
 o

f 
in

d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
b
u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d
 e

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 p

a
rt

 

s
in

g
le

, 
p
a
rt

 3
-s

to
re

y 
b
o
c
k
 o

f 
3
6
 x

 2
 b

e
d
ro

o
m

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

fl
a
ts

 w
it
h
 v

e
h
ic

u
la

r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
e
s
 f

ro
m

  
B

a
x
te

r 
R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
. 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 3
0
.0

3
.0

6

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

o
f 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 w

e
b
 

N
o
 s

p
e
n
d
 d

e
a
d
lin

e
 
£
3
,6

0
0

£
4
,0

5
2

£
4
,0

6
8
.6

5
 

C
T

0
1
9
7

T
h
is

 w
a
s
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 

w
e
b
 p

ro
je

c
t,

 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 b

y 
U

rb
a
n
 F

u
tu

re
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 a

im
e
d
 t

o
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 l
o
c
a
l 
la

b
o
u
r 

in
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
a
t 

p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 n

o
w

 

m
o
ri
b
u
n
d
. 

J
H

 s
u
g
g
e
s
ts

 t
o
 u

s
e
 m

o
n
ie

s
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 

o
f 

th
e
 j
o
b
s
n
e
t 

te
a
m

 o
r 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 t

h
e
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il'

s
 a

p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip

 t
ra

in
in

g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
1
-1

2
 

(w
h
ic

h
 a

t 
p
re

s
e
n
t 

is
 n

o
t 

fu
n
d
e
d
 a

t 
a
ll)

. 
 

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

E
d
m

o
n
to

n
 

Is
la

m
ic

 C
e
n
tr

e
 

A
lm

a
s
jid

T
P

/0
5
/0

6
2
9

2
0
-3

4
 R

a
yn

h
a
m

 R
o
a
d
 

N
1
8

U
P

P
E

R
 E

D
M

O
N

T
O

N

C
h
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
u
s
e
 o

f 
2
-s

to
re

y 
o
ff

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

in
g
le

 s
to

re
y 

fa
c
to

ry
 t

o
 a

 m
o
s
q
u
e
, 

a
n
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
u
s
e
 o

f 
4
-s

to
re

y 

fa
c
to

ry
 t

o
 a

n
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

c
e
n
tr

e
, 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
2
0
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 s

p
a
c
e
s
. 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 

s
ig

n
e
d

 2
8
.0

5
.0

6

W
o
rk

s
 t

o
 s

it
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 i
n
 

W
a
k
e
fi
e
ld

 S
tr

e
e
t

W
o
rk

s
 o

n
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 w

a
it
in

g
 

re
s
tr

ic
ti
o
n
s

A
n
y 

u
n
s
p
e
n
t 

m
o
n
e
y 

to
 b

e
 

re
tu

rn
e
d
 o

n
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 

re
v
is

e
d
 w

a
it
in

g
 

re
s
tr

ic
ti
o
n
s

£
2
,0

0
0

£
5
,0

0
0

£
2
,0

0
0

£
5
,0

0
0

£
2
,2

8
6
.8

5
 

(C
T

0
1
9
3
)

£
5
,6

9
5
.0

6
 

(C
T

0
1
9
4
)

£
7
,9

8
1
.9

1
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 f

o
r 

w
a
it
in

g
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 R

a
yn

h
a
m

 

R
o
a
d
 A

2
0
0
2
9
0

S
te

v
e
 J

a
g
g
a
rd

 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
1

P
a
g
e
 6

Page 206



In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 O
n
ly

S
1
0
6
 -

 E
D

M
O

N
T

O
N

 C
O

N
S

T
IT

U
E

N
C

Y
F

e
b
 2

0
1
1

D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
r

T
P

 N
u
m

b
e
r 

/ 
S

it
e
 

A
d
d
re

s
s
 

a
n
d

W
a
rd

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

D
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
O

b
lig

a
ti
o
n
s
/W

o
rk

s
 

a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

fu
n
d
s

S
p
e
n
d
 D

e
a
d
lin

e
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

O
b

lig
a

ti
o

n
 

S
u
m

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 

to
 d

a
te

 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

in
te

re
s
t 

w
h
e
re

 

a
c
c
ru

e
d
)

A
v
a
ila

b
le

 

b
a
la

n
c
e
 a

s
 o

f 

0
1
/0

2
/2

0
1
1

F
u
n
d
s
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
/a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

 s
p
e
n
d

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

/O
ff

ic
e
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

s
p
e
n
d

S
T

A
T

U
S

 

G
ra

n
d
v
a
le

 

L
im

it
e
d

L
a
n
d
 a

t 
a
n
d
 a

d
ja

c
e
n
t 

to
 5

4
-5

6
 E

lm
 P

a
rk

 

R
o
a
d
, 

W
in

c
h
m

o
re

 

H
ill

, 
N

2
1
 2

H
S

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

B
U

S
H

 H
IL

L
 P

A
R

K
 

T
P

/0
5
/2

2
7
7

D
e
m

o
lit

io
n
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 g

a
ra

g
e
s
 a

n
d
 e

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
tw

o
 2

-

s
to

re
y 

s
e
m

i 
d
e
ta

c
h
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
. 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 

2
7
.0

6
.0

7

H
ig

h
w

a
ys

 C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 -

 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 

w
id

e
n
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 f

o
o
tw

a
y 

N
o
 D

e
a
d
li
n
e
 

£
2
,7

2
0

£
2
,9

5
0
.4

6
£
2
,9

5
0
.4

6
 

(C
T

0
2
1
1
)

£
2
,7

2
0
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 t

o
 w

id
e
n
in

g
 f

o
o
tw

a
y 

A
2
0
0
2
7
9
 

S
te

v
e
 J

a
g
g
a
rd

 

G
e
o
rg

e
 W

im
p
e
y 

N
o
rt

h
 L

o
n
d
o
n

T
P

/0
7
/0

9
2
1

L
a
n
d
 o

ff
 M

o
n
ta

g
u
 

R
o
a
d
 e

n
d
 o

f 
Z

a
m

b
e
z
i 

D
ri
v
e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 N

9
 0

F
T

L
O

W
E

R
 E

D
M

O
N

T
O

N

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 r

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

s
it
e
 

b
y 

th
e
 e

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
5
5
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
u
n
it
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
w

o
 3

-s
to

re
y 

a
n
d
 o

n
e
 4

-s
to

re
y 

b
lo

c
k
s
 a

n
d
 1

5
 t

e
rr

a
c
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
, 

c
o
m

p
ri
s
in

g
 a

 t
o
ta

l 
o
f 

4
0
 x

 2
-b

e
d
 f

la
ts

 t
o
 b

lo
c
k
s
 A

, 
B

 &
 C

, 

a
 t

e
rr

a
c
e
 o

f 
6
 x

 4
-b

e
d
 3

-s
to

re
y 

h
o
u
s
e
s
 w

it
h
 g

a
ra

g
e
s
, 

a
 

te
rr

a
c
e
 o

f 
4
 x

 3
-b

e
d
 2

-s
to

re
y 

h
o
u
s
e
s
 w

it
h
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r

o
o
f 

s
p
a
c
e
 a

n
d
 f

ro
n
t 

d
o
rm

e
r 

w
in

d
o
w

s
 

a
n
d
 a

 t
e
rr

a
c
e
 o

f 
5
 x

 3
-b

e
d
 2

-s
to

re
y 

h
o
u
s
e
s
 (

3
 w

it
h
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r

o
o
f 

s
p
a
c
e
 a

n
d
 f

ro
n
t 

d
o
rm

e
r 

w
in

d
o
w

s
),

 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 1

7
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 u

n
it
s
, 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 c

yc
le

 a
n
d
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
, 

re
fu

s
e
 

s
to

re
s
 a

n
d
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
. 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 1
3
.1

1
.0

7

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n

fo
r 

th
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

th
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 

A
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 u

n
it
s
 p

lo
ts

 5
-

2
1
 a

re
 r

e
a
d
y 

fo
r 

o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
 a

s
 o

f 

1
9
/1

2
/2

0
0
8
 -

 a
w

a
it
in

g
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f

ro
m

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 t

h
a
t 

u
n
it
s
 a

re
 o

f 
re

q
u
ir
e
d
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

7
 y

e
a
rs

 f
ro

m
 d

a
te

 

o
f 

re
c
e
ip

t 

1
0
.0

1
.2

0
1
5

£
8
3
,5

5
6

£
8
3
,5

5
6

£
8
8
, 

2
0
5
.7

 

C
T

0
2
1
6

A
llo

c
a
te

d
 t

o
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 E

S
C

L
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l 

B
o
b
 A

yt
o
n
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

M
e
ri
d
ia

n
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n

M
e
ri
d
ia

n
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

P
a
rk

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

P
O

N
D

E
R

S
 E

N
D

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

J
U

B
IL

E
E

 

T
o
 b

e
 a

d
d
e
d
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 0
9
.1

2
.0

8
W

o
rk

s
 a

t 
M

e
ri
d
ia

n
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rk

 

- 
c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

re
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

w
o
rk

s
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 f
ro

m
 M

K
 W

o
rk

s
 

D
ys

o
n
 R

o
a
d
 S

1
0
6
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

N
o
 d

e
a
d
lin

e
 

£
1
0
0
,0

0
0

£
1
0
0
,0

0
0

£
9
5
,4

4
2
.2

8
 

(C
T

0
2
1
5
)

£
1
0
0
,0

0
0
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 f

o
r 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
W

o
rk

s
 C

2
0
0
9
8
3

J
o
h
n
 H

a
s
le

m
 

C
h
ri
s
ti
a
n
 A

c
ti
o
n
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

C
a
r 

P
a
rk

 a
d
ja

c
e
n
t 

to
 

1
-5

3
 S

t 
J
o
s
e
p
h
s
 

R
o
a
d
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 N

9
, 

8
N

F
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

J
U

B
IL

E
E

 T
P

/0
4
/2

6
1
7

E
re

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 t

e
rr

a
c
e
 o

f 
4
 x

 3
-s

to
re

y 
4
-b

e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 w

it
h
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 S

t.
 J

o
s
e
p
h
s
 R

o
a
d
. 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 1
1
.0

3
.0

9

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 e

a
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

N
o
 D

e
a
d
li
n
e

£
1
4
,5

8
0

£
1
4
,5

8
0
 

R
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 

0
9
/0

6
/2

0
1
0
 

C
T

0
2
4
5

£
1
4
,5

8
0
 

(C
T

0
2
4
5
)

£
1
4
,5

8
0
 E

C
S

L
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 C

1
0
0
8
7

B
o
b
 A

yt
o
n

C
h
ri
s
ti
a
n
 A

c
ti
o
n
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

G
a
ra

g
e
s
 S

e
b
a
s
to

p
o
l 

R
o
a
d
, 

E
n
fi
e
ld

 N
9
 0

P
F

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

E
D

M
O

N
T

O
N

 G
R

E
E

N
  

D
e
m

o
lit

io
n
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 g

a
ra

g
e
s
 a

n
d
 e

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 t

e
rr

a
c
e
 

o
f 

s
e
v
e
n
 2

-s
to

re
y,

 3
-b

e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 w

it
h
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
. 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 1
1
.0

3
.0

9

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 e

a
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

N
o
 d

e
a
d
li
n
e
 

£
1
5
,3

4
2

£
1
5
,3

4
2
 

R
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 

0
9
/0

6
/2

0
1
0

£
1
5
,3

4
2
.0

0
 

(C
T

0
2
4
4
)

£
1
5
,3

4
2
.0

0
 E

C
S

L
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 C

1
0
0
8
7

B
o
b
 A

yt
o
n
 

C
h
ri
s
ti
a
n
 A

c
ti
o
n
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

G
a
ra

g
e
s
 A

d
ja

c
e
n
t 

to
 

D
o
v
e
r 

H
o
u
s
e
, 

B
o
lt
o
n
 

R
o
a
d
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

U
P

P
E

R
 E

D
M

O
N

T
O

N
  

T
P

/0
5
/0

1
5
5

D
e
m

o
lit

io
n
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

 a
n
d
 e

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 4

-s
to

re
y 

b
lo

c
k
 o

f 
s
ix

te
e
n
 f

la
ts

 (
c
o
m

p
ri
s
in

g
 2

 x
 1

-b
e
d
, 

1
4
 x

 2
-b

e
d
) 

w
it
h
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 v

ia
 G

lo
u
c
e
s
te

r 

R
o
a
d
. 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 1
1
.0

3
.0

9

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 e

a
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

N
o
 d

e
a
d
li
n
e
 

£
1
0
,1

0
9

£
1
0
,1

0
9
 

R
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 

0
9
/0

6
/2

0
1
0

£
1
0
,1

0
9
. 
0
0
 

(C
T

0
2
4
6
)

£
1
0
,1

0
9
.0

0
 E

C
S

L
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 C

1
0
0
8
7

B
o
b
 A

yt
o
n
 

A
it
c
h
 G

ro
u
p

F
o
rm

e
r 

H
o
rs

e
 D

ra
y 

P
u
b
lic

 H
o
u
s
e
 8

 A
lm

a
 

R
o
a
d
, 

E
n
fi
e
ld

 E
N

3
 

4
U

G
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

P
O

N
D

E
R

S
 E

N
D

  

T
P

/0
9
/0

7
4
9

R
e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

s
it
e
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 2
-s

to
re

y 
b
lo

c
k
 o

f 
7
 

te
rr

a
c
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 (

c
o
m

p
ri
s
in

g
 5

 x
 4

-b
e
d
 a

n
d
 2

 x
 5

-b
e
d
) 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 r

o
o
m

s
 i
n
 r

o
o
f 

w
it
h
 f

ro
n
t 

d
o
rm

e
r 

w
in

d
o
w

s
, 

o
ff

 s
tr

e
e
t 

p
a
rk

in
g
 t

o
 s

id
e
 a

n
d
 f

ro
n
t 

a
n
d
 n

e
w

 v
e
h
ic

u
la

r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 N

a
p
ie

r 
R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 C

u
rz

o
n
 A

v
e
n
u
e
. 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 

s
ig

n
e
d

 2
0
.0

6
.0

9

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 e

a
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

N
o
 d

e
a
d
li
n
e
 

£
4
5
,9

5
6

£
4
5
,9

5
6

£
4
5
,9

5
6
.0

0
 

(C
T

0
0
2
4
9
)

£
4
5
,9

5
6
.0

0
 E

C
S

L
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 C

1
0
0
8
7

B
o
b
 A

yt
o
n

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
1

P
a
g
e
 7

Page 207



In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 O
n
ly

S
1
0
6
 -

 E
D

M
O

N
T

O
N

 C
O

N
S

T
IT

U
E

N
C

Y
F

e
b
 2

0
1
1

D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
r

T
P

 N
u
m

b
e
r 

/ 
S

it
e
 

A
d
d
re

s
s
 

a
n
d

W
a
rd

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

D
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
O

b
lig

a
ti
o
n
s
/W

o
rk

s
 

a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

fu
n
d
s

S
p
e
n
d
 D

e
a
d
lin

e
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

O
b

lig
a

ti
o

n
 

S
u
m

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 

to
 d

a
te

 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

in
te

re
s
t 

w
h
e
re

 

a
c
c
ru

e
d
)

A
v
a
ila

b
le

 

b
a
la

n
c
e
 a

s
 o

f 

0
1
/0

2
/2

0
1
1

F
u
n
d
s
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
/a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

 s
p
e
n
d

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

/O
ff

ic
e
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

s
p
e
n
d

S
T

A
T

U
S

 

O
ri
g
in

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 

G
ro

u
p
 a

n
d
 T

h
e
 

R
o
ya

l 
b
a
n
k
 o

f 

S
c
o
tl
a
n
d
 P

lc
 

W
a
te

rm
ill

 L
a
n
e
, 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 N

1
8
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

U
P

P
E

R
 E

D
M

O
N

T
O

N
 

D
e
m

o
lit

io
n
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d
 e

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 t

o
ta

l 
o
f 

2
2
1
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
u
n
it
s
 (

c
o
m

p
ri
s
in

g
 1

2
8
 k

e
y 

w
o
rk

e
r 

u
n
it
s
 

a
n
d
 9

3
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 u
n
it
s
) 

a
n
d
 2

5
6
 s

q
.m

. 
o
f 

o
ff

ic
e
 s

p
a
c
e
, 

c
o
m

p
ri
s
in

g
 o

f 
a
 s

e
ri
e
s
 o

f 
b
lo

c
k
s
 o

f 
fl
a
ts

 (
B

lo
c
k
s
 

1
A

/1
B

/1
C

 c
o
m

p
ri
s
in

g
 4

7
 u

n
it
s
 i
n
 a

 p
a
rt

 3
/ 

4
/5

/6
 a

n
d
 8

 

s
to

re
y 

b
lo

c
k
s
),

 B
lo

c
k
 2

 (
3
3
 u

n
it
s
) 

p
a
rt

 4
/5

 s
to

re
y,

 B
lo

c
k
 3

 

(5
5
 u

n
it
s
) 

p
a
rt

 5
/ 

6
 s

to
re

y,
 B

lo
c
k
 A

 (
8
 u

n
it
s
) 

4
 s

to
re

y,
 

B
lo

c
k
 B

 (
1
3
 u

n
it
s
) 

3
/ 

4
 s

to
re

y,
 B

lo
c
k
 C

 (
1
5
u
n
it
s
) 

4
 s

to
re

y,
 

B
lo

c
k
 4

A
 a

n
d
 4

B
 (

3
4
 u

n
it
s
) 

p
a
rt

 2
/3

/4
 s

to
re

y,
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 

1
6
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 p

a
rt

 2
/ 

3
 s

to
re

y 
to

g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 b

a
lc

o
n
ie

s
, 

c
o
m

m
u
n
a
l 
ro

o
f 

g
a
rd

e
n
 a

n
d
 t

e
rr

a
c
e
s
, 

th
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
c
a
r 

a
n
d
 c

yc
le

 s
p
a
c
e
s
, 

2
 p

e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
 l
in

k
s
 t

o
 A

d
lin

g
to

n
 C

lo
s
e
, 

a
m

e
n
it
y 

a
re

a
s
, 

s
in

g
le

 s
to

re
y 

p
la

n
t 

ro
o
m

 t
o
 r

e
a
r 

o
f 

b
lo

c
k
 

4
A

 a
n
d
 e

le
c
tr

ic
it
y 

s
u
b
 s

ta
ti
o
n
s
. 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 

0
8
.0

4
.1

0

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n

m
e
a
n
s
: 

tb
c
 

E
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

&
 t

ra
in

in
g
 p

a
c
k
a
g
e

m
e
a
n
s
: 

e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t

ra
in

in
g
 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 

H
ig

h
w

a
ys

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n

m
e
a
n
s
 :

 t
b
c

P
ym

m
s
 P

a
rk

 C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 

m
e
a
n
s
 :

 

A
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 

T
ra

v
e
l 
P

la
n
 

S
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 F

e
e
 

W
it
h
in

 5
 y

e
a
rs

 o
f 

re
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 

p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

  

2
3
.0

9
.2

0
1
5

£
4
3
9
,0

0
0
 

£
0

£
9
5
,0

0
0

£
3
0
,0

0
0

n
/a

£
0

£
5
,0

0
0
 

£
4
3
9
,0

0
0
 

£
0

£
9
5
,0

0
0

£
3
0
,0

0
0

n
/a

£
0

£
5
,0

0
0
 

£
4
3
9
,0

0
0
 

(C
T

0
2
5
3
) 

£
0
 

£
9
5
,0

0
0
 

(C
T

0
2
5
4
)

£
3
0
,0

0
0
 

(C
T

0
2
5
5
)

n
/a

£
0

£
5
,0

0
0
 

(C
T

0
2
5
6
)

N
o
n
e
 a

s
 y

e
t 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

T
&

T
, 

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

P
a
rk

s
 n

o
ti
fi
e
d
. 

B
o
b
 A

yt
o
n
 

£
0
 

S
te

v
e
 J

a
g
g
a
rd

 

T
o
n
y 

C
o
rr

ig
a
n
 

S
a
ra

h
 C

a
rt

e
r 

T
&

T

S
1
0
6
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

T
e
s
c
o
's

 G
o
th

ic
 

W
o
rk

s
 

G
o
th

ic
 W

o
rk

s
, 

G
lo

v
e
r 

D
ri
v
e
 T

P
/9

0
/0

6
5
0
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

U
P

P
E

R
 E

D
M

O
N

T
O

N
 

R
e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

s
it
e
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 C

la
s
s
 A

1
 r

e
ta

il 
s
to

re
 

w
it
h
 c

o
ff

e
e
 s

h
o
p
 (

6
5
0
3
 s

q
. 

m
e
tr

e
s
);

 p
e
tr

o
l 
fi
lli

n
g
 s

ta
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 p

a
rk

in
g
; 

B
1
 &

 B
8
 u

n
it
s
 (

to
ta

l 
fl
o
o
r 

s
p
a
c
e
 

2
4
 1

5
5
 s

q
. 

m
e
tr

e
s
) 

w
it
h
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 p

a
rk

in
g
; 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

a
re

a
s
 a

n
d
 f

o
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
e
s
ta

te
 r

o
a
d
s
.

tb
c
 

tb
c
 

tb
c

tb
c

£
2
5
5
.4

2
 

(C
T

0
1
0
7
) 

£
7
,1

5
4
.1

7
 

(C
T

0
1
0
8
)

tb
c

S
te

v
e
 J

a
g
g
a
rd

S
IG

N
E

D
 S

1
0
6
 A

G
R

E
E

M
E

N
T

S
 W

H
E

R
E

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 H
A

V
E

 N
O

T
 B

E
E

N
 R

E
C

E
IV

E
D

 Y
E

T

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
1

P
a
g
e
 8

Page 208



In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 O
n
ly

S
1
0
6
 -

 E
D

M
O

N
T

O
N

 C
O

N
S

T
IT

U
E

N
C

Y
F

e
b
 2

0
1
1

D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
r

T
P

 N
u
m

b
e
r 

/ 
S

it
e
 

A
d
d
re

s
s
 

a
n
d

W
a
rd

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

D
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
O

b
lig

a
ti
o
n
s
/W

o
rk

s
 

a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

fu
n
d
s

S
p
e
n
d
 D

e
a
d
lin

e
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

O
b

lig
a

ti
o

n
 

S
u
m

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 

to
 d

a
te

 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

in
te

re
s
t 

w
h
e
re

 

a
c
c
ru

e
d
)

A
v
a
ila

b
le

 

b
a
la

n
c
e
 a

s
 o

f 

0
1
/0

2
/2

0
1
1

F
u
n
d
s
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
/a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

 s
p
e
n
d

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

/O
ff

ic
e
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

s
p
e
n
d

S
T

A
T

U
S

 

K
u
a
n
 L

e
n
g
, 

P
a
rr

it
t 

L
e
n
g

T
P

/0
7
/0

6
3
1

5
7
 F

o
re

 S
tr

e
e
t 

E
d
m

o
n
to

n

L
O

W
E

R
 E

D
M

O
N

T
O

N

D
e
m

o
lit

io
n
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d
 e

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 p

a
rt

 3
-

s
to

re
y,

 p
a
rt

 9
-s

to
re

y 
b
lo

c
k
 (

to
ta

l 
h
e
ig

h
t 

2
9
.5

m
) 

c
o
m

p
ri
s
in

g
 t

w
o
 r

e
ta

il 
u
n
it
s
 o

n
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

(5
2
0
 s

q
.m

. 

C
la

s
s
 A

1
 u

s
e
) 

a
n
d
 2

4
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
u
n
it
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 (

2
2
 x

 2
-

b
e
d
, 

2
 x

 3
-b

e
d
) 

w
it
h
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 b

a
s
e
m

e
n
t 

c
yc

le
 a

n
d
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 v

ia
 G

ro
v
e
 S

tr
e
e
t.

 A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 

1
2
.1

2
.0

7

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

m
e
a
n
s
 -

 £
2
0
,7

4
4
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 £

1
5
,8

4
8
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

H
ig

h
w

a
y 

W
o
rk

s

m
e
a
n
s
 -

 a
ll 

w
o
rk

s
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 t
o
 

fo
rm

 p
e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
 a

n
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 v

ic
in

it
y 

o
f 

th
e
 s

it
e
 t

o
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

b
y 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
t 

o
r 

in
 t

h
e
 v

ic
in

it
y 

o
f 

th
e
 

ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
F

o
re

 S
tr

e
e
t 

a
n
d
 

G
ro

v
e
 S

tr
e
e
t 

a
s
 d

e
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

F
o
u
rt

h
 S

c
h
e
d
u
le

 o
f 

th
e
 

A
g
re

e
m

e
n
t

£
3

0
,0

0
0

£
3

6
,0

0
0

£
0

£
0

P
a
ym

e
n
ts

 a
re

 d
u
e
 o

n
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

 

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 o

n
 B

u
ild

in
g
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 
d
a
ta

b
a
s
e
 a

n
d
 n

o
 r

e
c
o
rd

 o
f 

w
o
rk

s
 s

ta
rt

in
g
 a

s
 y

e
t.

 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 I

n
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 

L
im

it
e
d

4
4
-4

7
 E

a
s
t 

D
u
c
k
 L

e
e
s
 

L
a
n
e
 &

 3
-4

 P
o
n
d
e
rs

 

E
n
d
 I

n
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
E

s
ta

te
 

P
O

N
D

E
R

S
 E

N
D

 

0
6
/1

2
6
4

P
a
rt

 r
e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 p

a
rt

 r
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

s
it
e
 t

o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 3

5
 u

n
it
s
 f

o
r 

B
1
 (

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
),

 B
2
 (

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
In

d
u
s
tr

y)
 

a
n
d
 B

8
 (

S
to

ra
g
e
 /

 D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
) 

u
s
e
s
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 

m
e
z
z
a
n
in

e
 f

lo
o
rs

, 
a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
, 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
. 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 1
3
.0

6
.0

7

In
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 o

f 
W

o
o
d
s
c
a
p
e
 

F
u
rn

it
u
re

 i
n
  

a
re

a
 e

d
g
e
 r

e
d
 o

n
 

P
la

n
 N

o
. 

2
 o

r 
s
u
c
h
 o

th
e
r 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 

in
 t

h
e
 B

ri
m

s
d
o
w

n
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 A

re
a

S
p
e
n
d
 d

e
a
d
lin

e
 i
s
 

b
e
fo

re
 5

th
 

a
n
n
iv

e
rs

a
ry

 o
f 

p
a
ym

e
n
t.

 

£
1
5
,0

0
0

P
a
ym

e
n
t 

d
u
e
 o

n
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

 B
u
ild

in
g
 

C
o
n
tr

o
l 
d
a
ta

b
a
s
e
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

in
d
ic

a
te

 w
o
rk

s
 h

a
v
e
 s

ta
rt

e
d
. 

S
a
v
ill

s
 

T
P

/0
8
/0

8
9
3
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
8
9
-2

9
1
 F

o
re

 S
tr

e
e
t 

 

E
d
m

o
n
to

n
 G

re
e
n

R
e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

s
it
e
 b

y 
th

e
 e

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
2
5
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

u
n
it
s
 i
n
 a

 p
a
rt

 4
, 

p
a
rt

 5
-s

to
re

y 
b
lo

c
k
 (

4
 x

 1
-b

e
d
, 

1
7
 x

 2
-

b
e
d
, 

4
 x

 3
-b

e
d
, 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 1

0
 u

n
it
s
 o

f 
a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 

h
o
u
s
in

g
) 

w
it
h
 b

a
lc

o
n
ie

s
 t

o
 f

ro
n
t 

a
n
d
 r

e
a
r,

 r
o
o
f 

te
rr

a
c
e
, 

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
, 

c
yc

le
 a

n
d
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 F

o
re

 S
tr

e
e
t.

 A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 0
7
.0

8
.0

8

1
)C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
ts

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

2
) 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
  

£
3
0
 0

0
0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

£
4
5
,9

9
2

P
a
ym

e
n
ts

 a
re

 d
u
e
 o

n
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

 

L
B

E
 &

 H
ill

v
ie

w
 

In
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 

L
im

it
e
d

U
n
it
 6

 R
iv

e
rs

id
e
 

In
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
E

s
ta

te
, 

M
o
rs

o
n
 R

o
a
d
, 

E
n
fi
e
ld

 

E
N

3
 4

N
Q

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

P
O

N
D

E
R

S
 E

N
D

 

T
P

/0
8
/0

2
9
3

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
e
s
ta

te
 r

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 e

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
3
 x

 2
-s

to
re

y 

b
lo

c
k
s
 c

o
m

p
ri
s
in

g
 2

7
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 u

n
it
s
 f

o
r 

u
s
e
 w

it
h
in

 

c
la

s
s
e
s
 B

1
(c

),
 B

2
 a

n
d
 B

8
 (

lig
h
t 

in
d
u
s
tr

ia
l,
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 

in
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
a
n
d
 s

to
ra

g
e
 /

 d
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 u

s
e
s
) 

w
it
h
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
, 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
, 

a
n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
e
s
 t

o
 M

o
rs

o
n
 R

o
a
d
. 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 2
7
.0

4
.0

9

H
ig

h
w

a
y 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

w
o
rk

s
: 

w
o
rk

s
 t

o
 M

o
rs

o
n
 R

o
a
d
 t

o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

(b
u
t 

n
o
t 

lim
it
e
d
 t

o
) 

th
e
:

* 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

v
is

e
d
 

lo
a
d
in

g
/u

n
lo

a
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

a
rk

in
g
 

re
s
tr

ic
ti
o
n
s

* 
P

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
n
e
w

 s
ig

n
a
g
e

* 
T

h
e
 i
n
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 o

f 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t

o
 

a
s
s
is

t 
c
yc

lis
ts

 a
n
d
 p

e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
s

5
 y

e
a
rs

 f
ro

m
 

re
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 

o
b
lig

a
ti
o
n

4
0
,0

0
0

P
a
ym

e
n
t 

d
u
e
 o

n
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

 B
u
ild

in
g
 

C
o
n
tr

o
l 
d
a
ta

b
a
s
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

s
 t

h
a
t 

w
o
rk

s
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 

s
ta

rt
e
d
 y

e
t.

 

G
re

e
n
 H

o
ri

z
o
n
s

T
P

/9
9
/1

3
2
0

B
a
rb

o
t 
E

s
ta

te
 

R
e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

C
y
c
le

/P
e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
 w

o
rk

s
 a

t 

S
a
lm

o
n
s
 B

ro
o
k
 

N
o
 s

p
e
n
d
 

d
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

£
3
5
,0

0
0

£
4
8
,0

1
3
.9

4
£
4
9
,9

8
7
.6

0
 

(C
T

0
1
5
1
)

S
p
e
c
if
ic

 a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

C
y
c
le

/P
e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
 w

o
rk

s
 a

t 

S
a
lm

o
n
s
 B

ro
o
k
 w

it
h
 E

P
I 
T

&
T

 n
o
ti
fi
e
d
. 

S
te

v
e
 J

a
g
g
a
rd

 

G
R

E
E

N
 H

O
R

IZ
O

N
S

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
1

P
a
g
e
 9

Page 209



In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 O
n
ly

S
1
0
6
 -

 E
D

M
O

N
T

O
N

 C
O

N
S

T
IT

U
E

N
C

Y
F

e
b
 2

0
1
1

D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
r

T
P

 N
u
m

b
e
r 

/ 
S

it
e
 

A
d
d
re

s
s
 

a
n
d

W
a
rd

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

D
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
O

b
lig

a
ti
o
n
s
/W

o
rk

s
 

a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

fu
n
d
s

S
p
e
n
d
 D

e
a
d
lin

e
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

O
b

lig
a

ti
o

n
 

S
u
m

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 

to
 d

a
te

 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

in
te

re
s
t 

w
h
e
re

 

a
c
c
ru

e
d
)

A
v
a
ila

b
le

 

b
a
la

n
c
e
 a

s
 o

f 

0
1
/0

2
/2

0
1
1

F
u
n
d
s
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
/a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

 s
p
e
n
d

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

/O
ff

ic
e
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

s
p
e
n
d

S
T

A
T

U
S

 

G
re

e
n
 H

o
ri

z
o
n
s

T
P

/9
9
/1

3
2
0

B
a
rb

o
t 
E

s
ta

te
 

R
e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

P
e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
/c

y
c
le

 l
in

k
 P

le
v
n
a
 

R
o
a
d

P
e
d
/C

y
c
le

 l
in

k
 S

a
lm

o
n
s
 

B
ro

o
k

P
a
rk

in
g
 C

o
n
tr

o
ls

O
p
e
n
/s

p
a
c
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
ll
y
 M

o
n
ta

g
u
e
 R

o
a
d
 

A
re

a

N
o
 s

p
e
n
d
 

d
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

£
2
3
2
,0

0
0

£
2
4
6
,9

2
9
.7

0
  
  
  
  
  

£
2
3
9
,8

3
3
.7

1
 

(C
T

0
2
0
5
) 

£
3
9
,8

3
3
.7

1
 

u
n
a
ll
o
c
a
te

d
 

(a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 i
s
 

h
o
p
e
d
 t
o
 f
u
n
d
 

fi
x
tu

re
s
 f
o
r 

G
re

e
n
 T

o
w

e
rs

 

p
ro

je
c
t)

 

£
1
7
,2

4
6
.3

0
 

(C
T

0
2
2
8
)

S
p
e
c
if
ic

 a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
in

 v
ic

in
it
y
 o

f 
M

o
n
ta

g
u
e
 R

o
a
d
 

in
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 E

P
I 
  
  
 £

1
7
, 
1
8
9
 f
o
r 

M
o
n
ta

g
u
e
 

P
a
rk

 F
e
a
s
ib

il
it
y
 S

tu
d
y
  
P

ri
o
r 

to
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 

M
y
 P

la
c
e
 b

id
 f
o
r 

C
ra

ig
 P

a
rk

, 
a
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 w

a
s
 m

a
d
e
 a

t 

s
e
n
io

r 
le

v
e
l 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 L

B
E

 m
a
tc

h
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 t
o
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 o

u
r 

c
h
a
n
c
e
s
 o

f 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 b

id
 a

n
d
 

s
h
o
w

 c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t.
 T

h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 c
h
a
n
n
e
ls

 a
n
d
 s

u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 a

g
re

e
d
. 
*N

o
t 

S
1
0
6
 M

o
n
e
y
* 

 

J
u
d
y 

F
lig

h
t 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
1

P
a
g
e
 1

0

Page 210



In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 O
n
ly

. 
S

1
0
6
 E

N
F

IE
L
D

 N
O

R
T

H
 C

O
N

S
T

IT
U

E
N

C
Y

D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
r

T
P

 N
u
m

b
e
r 

/ 
S

it
e
 

A
d
d
re

s
s
 

a
n
d

W
a
rd

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

D
e
ta

il
s
 o

f 
O

b
li
g
a
ti
o
n
s
/W

o
rk

s
 

a
u
th

o
ri

s
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

fu
n
d
s

S
p
e
n
d
 D

e
a
d
li
n
e
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

O
b
li
g
a
ti
o
n
 

S
u
m

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 

to
 d

a
te

 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

in
te

re
s
t 
w

h
e
re

 

a
c
c
ru

e
d
)

A
v
a
il
a
b
le

 

b
a
la

n
c
e
 a

s
 o

f 

0
1
/0

2
/2

0
1
1

F
u
n
d
s
 a

ll
o
c
a
te

d
/a

v
a
il
a
b
le

 f
o
r 

 s
p
e
n
d

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

/O
ff
ic

e
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

s
p
e
n
d

S
T

A
T

U
S

 

S
a
in

s
b
u
ry

s
G

re
a
t 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g
e
 

R
o
a
d
 L

a
n
d
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

a
t 
5
4
0
 -

5
8
0

S
o
u
th

b
u
ry

 

9
1
/0

1
1
0

R
e
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
b
y
 t
h
e
 e
re
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
re
ta
il
 

s
to
re
 (
A
1
) 
(7
0
6
0
 s
q
. 
m
e
tr
e
s
 g
ro
s
s
 f
lo
o
r 

s
p
a
c
e
) 
to
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 c
o
ff
e
e
 s
h
o
p
 (
A
3
);
 

a
u
to
m
a
ti
c
 t
e
ll
e
r 
fa
c
il
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 p
e
tr
o
l 
fi
ll
in
g
 

s
ta
ti
o
n
; 
e
re
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
re
ta
il
 w
a
re
h
o
u
s
e
 u
n
it
s
 

(1
5
 3
3
8
 s
q
. 
m
e
tr
e
s
 g
ro
s
s
 f
lo
o
r 
s
p
a
c
e
);
 

e
re
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
re
s
ta
u
ra
n
t 
(A
3
);
 e
re
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 

b
u
il
d
in
g
s
 f
o
r 
B
1
 o
r 
B
2
 u
s
e
 (
5
 4
6
2
 s
q
. 

m
e
tr
e
s
 g
ro
s
s
 f
lo
o
r 
s
p
a
c
e
);
 e
re
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 

b
u
il
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
B
1
 u
s
e
 (
3
 4
5
8
 s
q
.m
e
tr
e
s
 g
ro
s
s
 

fl
o
o
r 
s
p
a
c
e
);
 r
e
lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
e
le
c
tr
ic
it
y
 s
u
b
-

s
ta
ti
o
n
; 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
a
n
c
il
la
ry
 p
a
rk
in
g
 a
n
d
 

 H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 -

 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 t
h
e
 c

o
s
t 

to
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 o

f 
p
ro

v
id

in
g
 

tr
a
ff
ic

 s
ig

n
a
ls

 a
t 
th

e
 

S
o
u
th

b
u
ry

 R
o
a
d
/C

ro
w

n
 R

o
a
d
 

ju
n
c
ti
o
n
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
 y

e
a
rs

 a
ft
e
r 

th
e
 

s
to

re
 o

p
e
n
in

g
 

£
7
5
,0

0
0

£
7
9
,2

0
2
.0

3
£
7
2
,7

1
6
 

(£
6
5
,0

0
0
 

a
ll
o
c
a
te

d
) 

C
T

0
0
0
2

C
a
rs

 L
a
n
e
 F

o
o
tp

a
th

 £
6
5
,0

0
0
 A

2
0
0
2
8
9
 A

u
th

o
ri

s
a
ti
o
n
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 S

T
 S

e
p
t 
2
0
1
0
 A

2
0
0
2
8
9
, 
w

o
rk

s
 s

ta
rt

e
d
. 

D
a
v
id

 T
a
y
lo

r 

E
n
fi
e
ld

 E
n
e
rg

y
 

C
e
n
tr

e
 L

td

B
ra

n
c
ro

ft
 W

a
y
, 

B
ri

m
s
d
o
w

n

E
N

F
IE

L
D

 

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 

E
L
/9

3
/0

0
0
1

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d
 c

y
c
le

 g
a
s
 t
u
rb

in
e
 

e
le

c
tr

ic
it
y
 g

e
n
e
ra

ti
n
g
 s

ta
ti
o
n
. 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 

1
6
.0

1
.9

7

A
ir

 Q
u
a
li
ty

 -
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

a
ir

 

q
u
a
li
ty

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 o

f 

E
n
fi
e
ld

 x
 3

 p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

  E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

- 
 

in
 t
h
e
 v

ic
in

it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 L

a
n
d
 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 b

u
t 
n
o
t 
li
m

it
e
d
 t
o
 

tr
a
ff
ic

 a
n
d
 h

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 o

r 
w

o
rk

s
) 

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 -
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

a
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 f
a
c
il
it
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

v
ic

in
it
y
  

M
a
y
-1

2
£
2
,0

0
0
 

£
1
0
,0

0
0

£
1
5
0
,0

0
0

£
1
5
0
,0

0
0

£
1
5
0
,0

0
0

£
2
,0

0
0
 

£
1
2
,0

5
2
.0

4

£
1
6
3
,1

3
2
.4

2

£
1
5
0
,0

0
0

£
1
5
6
,0

1
6
.5

2
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

£
4
5
,3

4
6
.4

2
 

C
T

0
0
4
8

£
5
0
,0

6
6
.6

7
 

(C
T

0
2
3
6
)

£
1
0
,3

3
1
.4

1
 

(C
T

0
0
4
7
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

£
5
,9

1
3
.4

4
 

(C
T

0
1
8
5
) 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

£
7
,3

3
0
 

C
T

0
0
5
0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 £
4
5
, 
3
4
6
.4

2
 U

n
a
ll
o
c
a
te

d
. 
S

u
e
 M

c
D

a
id

 a
c
ti
v
e
ly

 

p
u
rs

u
in

g
.

- - - S
te

v
e
 J

a
g
g
a
rd

 a
n
d
 T

o
n
y
 C

o
rr

ig
a
n
 n

o
ti
fi
e
d
 

£
6
0
,3

9
8
.0

9
 a

v
a
il
a
b
le

 u
n
d
e
r 

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

- - £
1
3
,2

4
3
.4

4
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 u
n
a
ll
o
c
a
te

d

S
u
e
 M

c
D

a
id

 

T
&

T
 &

 P
a
rk

s
 

 

K
E

Y
 

U
n
a
llo

c
a
te

d
 s

1
0
6
 m

o
n
ie

s
  

P
ro

je
c
ts

 t
h
a
t 

a
re

 s
ti
ll 

b
e
in

g
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 

P
ro

je
c
ts

 t
h
a
t 

a
re

 c
o
m

m
it
te

d
 

P
ro

je
c
ts

 w
h
e
re

 m
o
n
ie

s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 s

p
e
n
t 

 

P
ro

je
c
ts

 t
h
a
t 

a
re

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

lo
s
e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
ye

a
r 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

. 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
1

P
a
g
e
 1

Page 211



In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 O
n
ly

. 
S

1
0
6
 E

N
F

IE
L
D

 N
O

R
T

H
 C

O
N

S
T

IT
U

E
N

C
Y

D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
r

T
P

 N
u
m

b
e
r 

/ 
S

it
e
 

A
d
d
re

s
s
 

a
n
d

W
a
rd

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

D
e
ta

il
s
 o

f 
O

b
li
g
a
ti
o
n
s
/W

o
rk

s
 

a
u
th

o
ri

s
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

fu
n
d
s

S
p
e
n
d
 D

e
a
d
li
n
e
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

O
b
li
g
a
ti
o
n
 

S
u
m

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 

to
 d

a
te

 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

in
te

re
s
t 
w

h
e
re

 

a
c
c
ru

e
d
)

A
v
a
il
a
b
le

 

b
a
la

n
c
e
 a

s
 o

f 

0
1
/0

2
/2

0
1
1

F
u
n
d
s
 a

ll
o
c
a
te

d
/a

v
a
il
a
b
le

 f
o
r 

 s
p
e
n
d

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

/O
ff
ic

e
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

s
p
e
n
d

S
T

A
T

U
S

 

E
E

C
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
…

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 -
 f
o
r 

th
e
 

g
e
n
e
ra

l 
b
e
n
e
fi
t 
o
f 
th

e
 a

re
a
 i
n
 

th
e
 v

ic
in

it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 l
a
n
d
 o

r 
o
f 
it
s
 

in
h
a
b
it
a
n
ts

M
a
y
-1

2
£
2
0
,0

0
0
 x

 9
 

£
2
5
3
,2

0
9
.8

7
£
1
5
4
,9

1
8
.3

2
 

(C
T

0
0
8
4
)

£
5
7
,7

7
6
.8

0
 

(C
T

0
0
9
1
)

£
5
7
,7

7
6
.8

0
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
d
 f
o
r 

M
U

G
A

 A
2
0
0
1
0
6
 (

o
ld

 A
 

c
o
d
e
 -

 w
il
l 
n
e
e
d
 n

e
w

 a
u
th

o
ri

s
a
ti
o
n
) 

- 
M

e
e
ti
n
g
 w

it
h
 M

r 

F
o
rd

 A
p
ri

l 
2
0
1
0
 t
o
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 i
d
e
a
s
 f
ro

m
 E

n
fi
e
ld

 L
o
c
k
 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
, 
n
o
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
. 

P
o
s
s
ib

le
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
s
t 
B

o
a
rd

 t
o
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 n
e
e
d
s
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
. 

A
D

T
 A

u
c
ti
o
n
s
 

L
td

G
re

a
t 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g
e
 

R
o
a
d
 6

2
0
/6

4
0
  

9
4
/0

4
8
4
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

S
O

U
T

H
B

U
R

Y
 

C
h
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
u
s
e
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 m

o
to

r 
v
e
h
ic

le
 a

u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

g
e
n
e
ra

l 
in

d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
(B

2
) 

to
 m

o
to

r 
v
e
h
ic

le
 a

u
c
ti
o
n
 c

e
n
tr

e
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
. 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 

s
ig

n
e
d

 1
3
.0

6
.9

5

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 -
 

to
w

a
rd

s
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 

e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 a

re
a

N
o
 s

p
e
n
d
 

d
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

£
3
,0

0
0

£
3
,2

9
8

£
3
, 
2
9
7
.8

3
 

(C
T

0
0
7
8
)

£
3
,0

0
0
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

H
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

ll
o
c
a
te

d
 t
o
 T

fL
 f
o
r 

A
1
0
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 

R
e
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 W

o
rk

. 
F

u
n
d
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 d

ra
w

n
 d

o
w

n
 a

t 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
2
0
1
0
/1

1

D
a
v
id

 T
a
y
lo

r

T
W

U
 

In
n
o
v
a
 P

a
rk

9
4
/0

2
8
1
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
4
/0

2
8
1
/1

3

E
N

F
IE

L
D

 L
O

C
K

R
e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
it
e
 b

y
 t
h
e
 c

re
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
/s

c
ie

n
c
e
 p

a
rk

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 l
a
n
d
 

d
e
c
o
n
ta

m
in

a
ti
o
n
, 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
n
e
w

 h
ig

h
w

a
y
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
e
s
 o

ff
 M

o
ll
is

o
n
 A

v
e
n
u
e
, 
th

e
 e

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

b
u
il
d
in

g
s
, 
th

e
 c

re
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
w

il
d
li
fe

 h
a
b
it
a
ts

, 
th

e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
o
p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 a

n
d
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
 

(o
u
tl
in

e
).

 A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 1
1
.0

9
.0

7

O
ff
s
it
e
 O

p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
 P

la
y
 -

 

to
w

a
rd

s
 w

o
rk

s
 t
o
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 

o
u
t 
o
r 

p
ro

c
u
re

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 

to
w

a
rd

s
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

fa
c
il
it
ie

s
 i
n
 p

la
y
 a

re
a
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

v
ic

in
it
y
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 o

n
 f
o
o
t 

o
f 
th

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

 A
m

e
li
o
ra

ti
o
n
 W

o
rk

s
 f
o
r 

h
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 -
 

m
e
a
n
s
 s

u
c
h
 h

ig
h
w

a
y
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 a

s
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
h
ig

h
w

a
y
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 i
n
 

o
rd

e
r 

to
 e

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 f
lo

w
 o

r 

im
p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 s

a
fe

ty
 o

f 
tr

a
ff
ic

 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
s
) 

to
 a

n
d
 

fr
o
m

 I
n
n
o
v
a
 P

a
rk

T
L
R

N
 P

a
y
m

e
n
t 
- 

fo
r 

th
e
 

T
L
R

N
 s

tu
d
y
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

 s
tu

d
y
 

o
f 
th

e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

A
1
0
/B

u
ll
m

o
o
r 

L
a
n
e
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 i
ts

 i
n
te

ra
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

A
1
0
/M

2
5
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
 

0
6
/0

2
/1

3

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
1
/0

1
/2

0
1
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-   
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
6
/0

2
/1

3
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 £
1
0
,0

0
0

- £
2
0
0
,0

0
0

£
1
0
,0

0
0

 £
1
0
,5

0
8
 

C
T

0
2
1
8

£
2
2
1
,4

9
2
.1

5

£
1
0
,4

6
6
.1

4

£
1
0
,5

0
8
 

C
T

0
2
1
8
 

£
2
1
, 
4
9
2
.1

5

(E
s
c
ro

w
 &

 

L
B

E
) 

£
2
0
0
,0

0
0
 

(C
T

0
2
4
2
)

£
1
0
,4

6
6
.1

4

(C
T

0
2
1
9
)

 U
n
a
ll
o
c
a
te

d
. 
T

o
n
y
 C

o
rr

ig
a
n
 n

o
ti
fi
e
d
. 

£
2
0
0
K

 m
o
v
e
d
 i
n
to

 L
B

E
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 
in

 p
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 t
o
 

in
s
ta

ll
 'M

O
V

A
' a

t 
th

e
 A

1
0
5
5
/O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 R

d
/S

m
e
a
to

n
 

R
o
a
d
 T

/S
ig

n
a
ls

. 
M

O
V

A
  
in

v
o
lv

e
s
 r

e
p
la

c
in

g
 b

o
th

 T
/S

 

c
o
n
tr

o
ll
e
r 

h
a
rd

w
a
re

 &
 s

o
ft
w

a
re

. 
T

h
is

 m
a
x
im

is
e
s
 t
h
e
 

e
ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 o

f 
th

e
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
. 
T

&
T

 h
a
s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 a

 P
O

 t
o
 

T
fL

, 
w

h
o
 (

a
s
 T

S
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

) 
w

il
l 
fi
rs

t 
u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 t
h
e
 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 b
e
fo

re
 a

n
y
 i
n
s
ta

ll
a
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
s
 p

la
c
e
. 
S

u
b
je

c
t 

to
 t
h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 i
t 
is

 n
o
t 
k
n
o
w

n
 w

h
a
t 

s
c
a
le

 o
f 
p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
w

o
rk

s
 m

a
y
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
, 

s
o
 a

t 
th

is
 s

ta
g
e
 w

e
 w

o
u
ld

 w
is

h
 t
o
 h

o
ld

 t
h
e
 f
u
ll
 

a
m

o
u
n
t.

 £
1
0
,4

6
6
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
t 
A

1
0
 J

u
n
c
ti
o
n

T
fL

 a
re

 l
o
o
k
in

g
 i
n
to

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 

a
ro

u
n
d
 A

1
0
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 

T
o
n
y
 C

o
rr

ig
a
n
 

T
&

T
 

- T
fL

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
1

P
a
g
e
 2

Page 212



In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 O
n
ly

. 
S

1
0
6
 E

N
F

IE
L
D

 N
O

R
T

H
 C

O
N

S
T

IT
U

E
N

C
Y

D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
r

T
P

 N
u
m

b
e
r 

/ 
S

it
e
 

A
d
d
re

s
s
 

a
n
d

W
a
rd

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

D
e
ta

il
s
 o

f 
O

b
li
g
a
ti
o
n
s
/W

o
rk

s
 

a
u
th

o
ri

s
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

fu
n
d
s

S
p
e
n
d
 D

e
a
d
li
n
e
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

O
b
li
g
a
ti
o
n
 

S
u
m

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 

to
 d

a
te

 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

in
te

re
s
t 
w

h
e
re

 

a
c
c
ru

e
d
)

A
v
a
il
a
b
le

 

b
a
la

n
c
e
 a

s
 o

f 

0
1
/0

2
/2

0
1
1

F
u
n
d
s
 a

ll
o
c
a
te

d
/a

v
a
il
a
b
le

 f
o
r 

 s
p
e
n
d

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

/O
ff
ic

e
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

s
p
e
n
d

S
T

A
T

U
S

 

In
n
o
v
a
 P

a
rk

 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
…

P
u
b
li
c
 T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 -
 m

e
a
n
s
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 b

u
s
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

u
b
li
c
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 

fa
c
il
it
ie

s
 s

e
rv

in
g
 I
n
n
o
v
a
 P

a
rk

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
  
- 

fo
r 

th
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

p
ri

m
a
ry

 a
n
d
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fa

c
il
it
ie

s
 o

r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 

fa
c
il
it
ie

s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
it
a
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
P

lo
t 
5
. 
 

 A
c
a
d
e
m

y
 T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 -

 F
o
r 

A
c
a
d
e
m

y
 

L
a
n
d
 o

n
ly

. 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

£
1
1
0
,0

0
0
 x

3

- - B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

D
fE

S
 

F
o
rm

u
la

e

£
8
0
,0

0
0
 x

 3

£
3
3
0
,0

0
0

- - N
o
t 
re

c
e
iv

e
d
 

y
e
t

N
o
t 
re

c
e
iv

e
d
 

y
e
t

£
5
,5

2
8
.0

7
 

(C
T

0
2
2
0
) 

£
1
1
0
,0

0
0
 

(C
T

0
2
5
2
) 

 £
0

£
0

£
2
2
0
K

 A
2
0
0
2
4
1
 P

u
b
li
c
 T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 

In
n
o
v
a
 P

a
rk

 

£
1
1
0
K

 A
2
0
0
2
9
1
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

ro
u
te

 

4
9
1
 A

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 S

e
p
t 
2
0
1
0
. 
A

ll
 3

 p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
. 
 

P
a
y
m

e
n
t 
d
u
e
 u

p
o
n
 f
ir

s
t 
o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
 u

n
it
s
 o

n
 p

lo
t 
5

F
ir

s
t 
p
a
y
m

e
n
t 
d
u
e
 o

n
 o

c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 

s
c
h
o
o
l

T
&

T

B
o
b
 A

y
to

n

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

T
&

T

M
o
rr

is
o
n
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 

L
td

S
o
u
th

b
u
ry

 R
o
a
d
, 

E
n
fi
e
ld

9
8
/0

0
6
0
  
  
  
  
  

9
8
/0

7
2
0

S
O

U
T

H
B

U
R

Y

E
re

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 m

u
lt
i 
s
c
re

e
n
 c

in
e
m

a
 w

it
h
in

 U
s
e
 c

la
s
s
 

D
2
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

n
c
il
la

ry
 A

1
 a

n
d
 A

3
 u

s
e
s
, 
a
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

s
p
o
rt

s
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 w

it
h
in

 U
s
e
 C

la
s
s
 D

2
, 
re

s
ta

u
ra

n
ts

 

w
it
h
in

 u
s
e
 C

la
s
s
 A

3
, 
a
rt

if
ic

ia
l 
s
p
o
rt

s
 p

it
c
h
e
s
 a

n
d
 

re
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
la

y
in

g
 f
ie

ld
s
, 
c
a
re

ta
k
e
r 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
, 
to

g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 p

a
rk

in
g
, 

a
c
c
e
s
s
, 
s
e
rv

ic
in

g
 a

n
d
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
 (

D
u
p
li
c
a
te

 

D
e
ta

il
e
d
 A

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
).

 A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 1
1
.0

5
.9

8

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 -

 t
o
 

c
o
v
e
r 

c
o
s
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 

tr
a
ff
ic

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

p
a
rk

in
g
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 

 

N
o
 d

e
a
d
li
n
e
 

£
3
0
0
,0

0
0

£
3
0
0
,0

0
0

£
4
, 
4
1
4
.1

8
 

C
T

0
0
8
2
 (

s
p
e
n
t 

to
 b

e
 d

d
 1

0
/1

1
)

H
ig

h
w

a
ys

 w
o
rk

s
 (

c
a
p
it
a
l 
c
o
d
e
 7

0
7
9
7
) 

£
2
4
0
k
 s

p
e
n
t 

o
n
 a

re
a
 

tr
a
ff

ic
 c

a
lm

in
g
 b

a
la

n
c
e
 b

e
in

g
 h

e
ld

 f
o
r 

C
P

Z
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 r

e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 -

 u
s
e
 o

f 
b
a
la

n
c
e
 u

n
d
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
. 

A
u
th

o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 f

o
r 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
fu

n
d
in

g
 f

ro
m

 L
o
n
d
o
n
 b

u
s
e
s
. 

S
c
h
e
m

e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 o

n
 -

 D
e
c
is

io
n
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
. 

R
e
m

a
in

in
g
 

b
a
la

n
c
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

p
e
n
t 

A
2
0
0
2
5
0
 t

o
 b

e
 d

d
 t

h
is

 y
e
a
r.

T
&

T

L
a
in

g
 H

o
m

e
s

S
tr

a
y
fi
e
ld

 W
o
rk

s

C
H

A
S

E
 

9
7
/0

4
2
1
  

R
e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 f
a
c
to

ry
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 b

y
 t
h
e
 

e
re

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
1
2
 h

o
u
s
e
s
. 
 (

O
u
tl
in

e
) 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 

1
2
.0

2
.9

9

P
u
b
li
c
 A

m
e
n
it
y
 -

 C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 

to
 s

e
c
u
re

 f
u
tu

re
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 

o
f 
th

e
 P

u
b
li
c
 A

m
e
n
it
y
 L

a
n
d
  

N
o
 d

e
a
d
li
n
e
 

£
3
5
,0

0
0

£
4
8
,5

3
2
.6

0
£
4
8
,5

3
2
.6

0
 

C
T

0
1
0
9

L
a
n
d
 &

 M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 m

o
n
ie

s
. 
U

n
a
ll
o
c
a
te

d
. 
P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 n

o
ti
fi
e
d
. 
 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

G
a
z
e
le

y
 

P
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

D
e
lt
a
 P

L
C

D
e
lt
a
 w

o
rk

s
 s

it
e
, 

M
il
lm

a
rs

h
 L

a
n
e
, 

E
n
fi
e
ld

9
9
/0

5
6
0

0
2
/0

5
2
0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

E
N

F
IE

L
D

 

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

R
e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
it
e
 f
o
r 

B
1
, 
B

2
 a

n
d
 B

8
 u

s
e
s
 (

to
ta

l 

3
3
,2

0
3
 s

q
u
a
re

 m
e
tr

e
s
) 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 e

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 2

-

s
to

re
y
 w

a
re

h
o
u
s
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
, 
n
e
w

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 M

il
lm

a
rs

h
 

L
a
n
e
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 p

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
in

g
 f
a
c
il
it
ie

s
. 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 0
1
.0

6
.0

0

R
iv

e
rs

id
e
 W

a
lk

 M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 -

 

to
w

a
rd

s
 t
h
e
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 
re

p
a
ir

s
 

a
n
d
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

R
iv

e
rs

id
e
 W

a
lk

 w
o
rk

s
 

T
h
e
 t
e
rm

 o
f 
2
5
 

y
e
a
r 

le
a
s
e
. 

£
1
0
0
,0

0
0

£
1
3
6
,4

2
2
.4

5
£
1
3
6
,4

2
2
.4

5
 

C
T

0
1
2
5

£
1
0
0
,0

0
0
 a

ll
o
c
a
te

d
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 o

f 

R
iv

e
rs

id
e
 W

a
lk

. 
 T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 p
ro

je
c
t 
te

a
m

 w
o
rk

in
g
 o

n
 

M
o
s
s
o
p
s
 C

re
e
k
/D

e
lt
a
 P

a
rk

 a
re

a
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

ro
d
u
c
in

g
 

a
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 

e
n
ti
re

 a
re

a
. 
O

n
g
o
in

g
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
1

P
a
g
e
 3

Page 213



In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 O
n
ly

. 
S

1
0
6
 E

N
F

IE
L
D

 N
O

R
T

H
 C

O
N

S
T

IT
U

E
N

C
Y

D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
r

T
P

 N
u
m

b
e
r 

/ 
S

it
e
 

A
d
d
re

s
s
 

a
n
d

W
a
rd

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

D
e
ta

il
s
 o

f 
O

b
li
g
a
ti
o
n
s
/W

o
rk

s
 

a
u
th

o
ri

s
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

fu
n
d
s

S
p
e
n
d
 D

e
a
d
li
n
e
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

O
b
li
g
a
ti
o
n
 

S
u
m

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 

to
 d

a
te

 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

in
te

re
s
t 
w

h
e
re

 

a
c
c
ru

e
d
)

A
v
a
il
a
b
le

 

b
a
la

n
c
e
 a

s
 o

f 

0
1
/0

2
/2

0
1
1

F
u
n
d
s
 a

ll
o
c
a
te

d
/a

v
a
il
a
b
le

 f
o
r 

 s
p
e
n
d

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

/O
ff
ic

e
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

s
p
e
n
d

S
T

A
T

U
S

 

J
o
h
n
 L

a
in

g
 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 L

td

E
n
fi
e
ld

 R
e
ta

il
 

L
td

.

E
n
fi
e
ld

 T
o
w

n
 

C
e
n
tr

e

0
0
/0

9
7
7

0
0
/0

9
7
7
/7

0
3
/2

0
3
0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

T
O

W
N

R
e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
it
e
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 r

e
ta

il
 f
lo

o
r 

s
p
a
c
e
, 

c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
fa

c
il
it
y
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 l
ib

ra
ry

 a
n
d
 m

u
lt
i-

s
to

re
y
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

 i
n
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 

re
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
la

n
d
 a

t 
E

n
fi
e
ld

 T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 u

n
d
e
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 R

e
f:
T

P
/0

0
/0

9
7
7
. 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 

s
ig

n
e
d

 2
5
.0

8
.0

4

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 -

 

to
w

a
rd

s
 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
o
ff
 

s
it
e
 w

o
rk

s
 f
o
r 

s
tr

e
e
t 
fu

rn
it
u
re

 

a
n
d
 o

r 
c
a
r 

p
a
rk

 d
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
a
l 

s
ig

n
s
/h

a
rd

/s
o
ft
 

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
/f
a
c
il
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

c
y
c
li
s
ts

 

S
h
o
p
 M

o
b
il
it
y
 -

 f
o
r 

th
e
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
s
h
o
p
 m

o
b
il
it
y
 

fa
c
il
it
ie

s
 i
n
 E

n
fi
e
ld

 T
o
w

n
 

 

M
a
y
 2

0
1
0
 

 E
it
h
e
r 

a
) 

5
 y

rs
 

fr
o
m

 g
ra

n
t 
o
f 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 

p
e
rm

is
s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

n
e
w

 s
h
o
p
 

m
o
b
il
it
y
 

(2
1
.1

2
.1

1
) 

o
r 

1
0
 

y
e
a
rs

 f
ro

m
 

s
ig

n
in

g
 o

f 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

(2
5
.0

8
.1

4
) 

T
B

C

£
5
2
,0

0
0

 £
9
0
,0

0
0

£
7
9
,3

6
9
.7

6

C
T

0
1
7
3
 

£
1
0
1
,2

0
3
.2

1
 

C
T

0
1
6
2

£
7
9
,3

6
9
.7

6
 

C
T

0
1
7
3

 £
4
3
,9

9
8
.7

5
 

C
T

0
1
6
2
 

A
ll
o
c
a
te

d
 u

n
d
e
r 

A
2
0
0
2
3
1
 E

n
fi
e
ld

 T
o
w

n
 V

M
S

 S
ig

n
s
 

(a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 i
n
 F

e
b
 2

0
0
8
).

 T
&

T
 N

o
ti
fi
e
d
 f
o
r 

a
n
 u

p
d
a
te

 

o
n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
. 

 £
1
0
1
, 
2
0
3
.2

1
 A

2
0
0
2
3
8
 E

n
fi
e
ld

 T
o
w

n
 S

h
o
p
 m

o
b
il
it
y
. 

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

E
n
fi
e
ld

 T
o
w

n
 s

h
o
p
 m

o
b
il
it
y
 c

o
s
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

o
ff
-s

e
t 
a
g
a
in

s
t 
re

m
a
in

in
g
 £

4
3
,9

9
8
.7

5
 t
o
 b

e
 d

d
 t
h
is

 

y
e
a
r.

 

D
a
v
id

 T
a
y
lo

r 

 D
a
v
id

 T
a
y
lo

r 

C
D

S
 L

td
5
9
, 
L
o
c
k
fi
e
ld

 

A
v
e
n
u
e
, 
E

N
3

0
0
/1

6
4
0

E
N

F
IE

L
D

 

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

R
e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
it
e
 b

y
 t
h
e
 d

e
m

o
li
ti
o
n
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

in
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
u
n
it
 a

n
d
 e

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
n
e
w

 d
a
ta

 c
e
n
tr

e
 (

B
2
 

u
s
e
).

 A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 0
3
.0

9
.0

1

G
re

e
n
 T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 -

 

to
w

a
rd

s
 t
h
e
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
 o

f 

G
re

e
n
 T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 I
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 v

ic
in

it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e
 

a
n
d
 B

ri
m

s
d
o
w

n
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

a
re

a
 

N
o
 s

p
e
n
d
 

d
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

£
2
0
,0

0
0

£
2
0
,8

0
6

£
1
4
,2

2
1
.7

7
 

C
T

0
1
0
5
 

(i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 

£
2
,8

9
3
.5

5
 

tr
a
n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 

fr
o
m

 C
T

0
0
8
7
)

£
1
4
,2

2
1
.7

7
 u

n
a
ll
o
c
a
te

d
. 
T

&
T

 a
re

 a
w

a
re

, 
a
d
v
is

e
 t
h
a
t 

B
B

A
 a

ll
o
c
a
ti
n
g
 r

e
 G

re
e
n
 T

ra
v
e
l 
(E

m
a
il
e
d
 S

J
J
)

T
&

T

L
 A

 B
e
e
c
h

5
0
-5

4
 H

a
d
le

y
 R

o
a
d

9
9
/0

0
4
0

H
IG

H
L
A

N
D

S
 

C
h
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
u
s
e
 o

f 
p
re

m
is

e
s
 f
ro

m
 c

a
re

 h
o
m

e
 t
o
 

n
u
rs

e
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
n
d
 b

a
b
y
 c

a
re

 u
n
it
. 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 

s
ig

n
e
d

 1
7
.0

5
.0

1

T
ra

ff
ic

 C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 -

 f
o
r 

c
a
rr

y
in

g
 o

u
t 
tr

a
ff
ic

 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

v
ic

in
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 l
a
n
d

W
it
h
in

 5
 y

e
a
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 

p
a
y
m

e
n
t 

£
2
9
,4

9
8
.0

0
£
2
9
,4

9
8

£
4
,0

4
5
.6

1
 

(C
T

0
1
0
1
)

U
n
a
ll
o
c
a
te

d
 

L
ia

m
 

M
u
lr

o
o
n
e
y

G
re

g
g
s
 o

f 

E
n
fi
e
ld

8
7
, 
M

il
lm

a
rs

h
 L

a
n
e
, 

E
n
fi
e
ld

. 
 

0
2
/1

1
1
0

E
N

F
IE

L
D

 

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

T
w

o
 s

to
re

y
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 n

e
w

 p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 u

n
it
, 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
o
ff
ic

e
 a

n
d
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
il
o
. 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 

s
ig

n
e
d

 1
8
.0

2
.0

2

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 -

 

to
w

a
rd

s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

s
tr

e
e
t 
li
g
h
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 

e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

N
o
 d

e
a
d
li
n
e
 

£
1
0
,0

0
0

£
1
0
,0

0
0

£
6
,5

4
5
.3

5
 

C
T

0
1
3
8
 

£
7
,5

6
5
.4

2
 A

2
0
0
2
6
6
 F

o
o
tw

a
y
 W

o
rk

s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 v

ic
in

it
y
 o

f 

M
il
lm

a
rs

h
 L

a
n
e
 

S
tr

e
e
t 
li
g
h
ti
n
g
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 -

 n
e
w

 l
ig

h
ti
n
g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 i
n
 

M
il
lm

a
rs

h
 L

a
n
e
 b

e
in

g
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

d
. 

S
te

v
e
 J

a
g
g
a
rd

 

S
e
rv

it
e
 H

o
u
s
e
s

L
a
n
d
 a

d
j.
 T

u
rk

e
y
 S

t 

S
ta

ti
o
n
 E

N
3

0
3
/1

5
7
9

T
U

R
K

E
Y

 S
T

R
E

E
T

R
e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
it
e
 b

y
 t
h
e
 e

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
(2

2
 x

 t
w

o
-

b
e
d
 f
la

ts
, 
1
2
 x

 o
n
e
-b

e
d
 f
la

ts
 i
n
 3

 a
n
d
 4

-s
to

re
y
 b

lo
c
k
s
, 
 

1
2
 x

 f
o
u
r-

 b
e
d
, 
2
-s

to
re

y
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 8

 x
 t
h
re

e
- 

b
e
d
, 
2
-

s
to

re
y
 h

o
u
s
e
s
) 

a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 u
n
it
s
 w

it
h
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
. 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 1
5
.0

4
.0

4

F
o
o
tp

a
th

 R
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t  
- 

fo
r 

re
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 f
o
o
tp

a
th

 

th
a
t 
ru

n
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

a
d
jo

in
in

g
 o

p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e

C
h
il
d
re

n
's

 P
la

y
 E

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 
- 

fo
r 

th
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
n
e
w

 

e
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 
w

it
h
in

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

c
h
il
d
re

n
's

 p
la

y
 a

re
a
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

v
ic

in
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e

 

N
o
 s

p
e
n
d
 

d
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

£
5
2
,0

0
0

£
5
4
,0

0
0

£
5
8
,8

3
4
.3

3

£
5
4
,0

0
0

£
2
3
,6

9
1
.8

3
 

C
T

0
1
4
5

£
1
8
,5

9
9
.1

9
 

C
T

0
1
4
6

£
2
3
,6

9
1
.8

3
 A

2
0
0
2
6
7
 W

o
rk

s
 t
o
 T

u
rk

e
y
 S

tr
e
e
t 

F
o
o
tb

ri
d
g
e
 (

D
e
c
 2

0
0
9
) 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

M
o
n
ie

s
 s

p
e
n
t 
to

 b
e
 d

ra
w

n
 d

o
w

n
 1

0
/1

1
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

 £
1
8
,5

9
9
.1

9
 u

n
a
ll
o
c
a
te

d
. 
N

o
ti
fi
e
d
 T

o
n
y
 C

o
rr

ig
a
n
 o

f 

a
v
a
il
a
b
le

 f
u
n
d
in

g
.

E
d
 J

e
ff
e
rs

o
n

P
a
rk

s
 

W
re

n
fi
e
ld

 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 L
td

 

W
y
n
d
c
re

s
t 

H
o
m

e
s
 L

td

1
8
,L

a
d
y
s
m

it
h
 R

d
 

E
N

1

0
3
/1

8
2
9

0
4
/2

3
6
7

E
N

F
IE

L
D

 T
O

W
N

R
e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
it
e
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 3
-s

to
re

y
 b

lo
c
k
 o

f 

7
 x

 1
-b

e
d
 s

e
lf
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
d
 f
la

ts
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 7

 c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 v

e
h
ic

u
la

r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 f
ro

m
 L

a
d
y
s
m

it
h
 

R
o
a
d
. 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 1
0
.0

3
.0

5

C
P

Z
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 -

 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 

a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 E

n
fi
e
ld

 

T
o
w

n
 C

o
n
tr

o
ll
e
d
 P

a
rk

in
g
 

Z
o
n
e
 (

C
P

Z
) 

N
o
 d

e
a
d
li
n
e
 

£
3
,0

0
0

£
3
,3

0
6

£
2
,9

8
2
.8

6
 

C
T

0
2
0
2
 

£
3
,3

0
5
.8

9
 A

2
0
0
2
1
2
 A

m
e
n
d
m

e
n
t 
to

 y
e
ll
o
w

 l
in

e
s
/C

P
Z

 

a
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 L

a
n
d
 a

d
ja

c
e
n
t 
to

 1
8
 L

a
d
y
s
m

it
h
 R

o
a
d
 

A
u
th

o
ri

s
a
ti
o
n
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 t
o
 u

s
e
 

re
m

a
in

in
g
 f
u
n
d
s
 i
n
 C

T
0
2
0
2
 u

n
d
e
r 

A
2
0
0
2
8
7
 f
o
r 

E
n
fi
e
ld

 T
o
w

n
 C

P
Z

 W
o
rk

s
 (

C
T

0
2
0
9
 &

 C
T

0
1
9
1
 -

 t
o
ta

l 

a
m

o
u
n
t 
£
6
1
,8

5
4
)

D
a
v
e
 O

x
le

y
 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
1

P
a
g
e
 4

Page 214



In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 O
n
ly

. 
S

1
0
6
 E

N
F

IE
L
D

 N
O

R
T

H
 C

O
N

S
T

IT
U

E
N

C
Y

D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
r

T
P

 N
u
m

b
e
r 

/ 
S

it
e
 

A
d
d
re

s
s
 

a
n
d

W
a
rd

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

D
e
ta

il
s
 o

f 
O

b
li
g
a
ti
o
n
s
/W

o
rk

s
 

a
u
th

o
ri

s
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

fu
n
d
s

S
p
e
n
d
 D

e
a
d
li
n
e
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

O
b
li
g
a
ti
o
n
 

S
u
m

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 

to
 d

a
te

 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

in
te

re
s
t 
w

h
e
re

 

a
c
c
ru

e
d
)

A
v
a
il
a
b
le

 

b
a
la

n
c
e
 a

s
 o

f 

0
1
/0

2
/2

0
1
1

F
u
n
d
s
 a

ll
o
c
a
te

d
/a

v
a
il
a
b
le

 f
o
r 

 s
p
e
n
d

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

/O
ff
ic

e
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

s
p
e
n
d

S
T

A
T

U
S

 

G
L
E

 P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

L
a
n
d
 a

t 
J
e
ff
re

y
's

 

R
o
a
d
, 
E

n
fi
e
ld

  

T
P

/0
3
/2

3
5
2
  
  
  
 

E
N

F
IE

L
D

 

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

F
o
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
v
e
h
ic

u
la

r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 e

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
1
9
 

u
n
it
s
 f
o
r 

B
1
, 
B

2
 a

n
d
 B

8
 u

s
e
 w

it
h
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 

ro
a
d
 a

n
d
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 f
a
c
il
it
ie

s
. 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 

0
5
.1

1
.0

4

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 -

 

to
w

a
rd

s
 f
o
o
tw

a
y
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

v
ic

in
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e
 

N
o
 d

e
a
d
li
n
e
 

£
4
0
,0

0
0

£
4
0
,0

5
3
.3

3
£
4
0
,0

3
3
.3

0
 

C
T

0
2
4
0

£
4
0
K

 A
2
0
0
2
6
8
 F

o
o
tw

a
y
 w

o
rk

s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
a
n
d
 a

t 
J
e
ff
re

y
's

 

R
o
a
d
  
W

o
rk

s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

S
te

v
e
 J

a
g
g
a
rd

F
a
ir

v
ie

w
 N

e
w

 

H
o
m

e
s
 L

td
.

F
o
rm

e
r 

T
X

U
 S

it
e
, 

2
4
9
, 
C

a
rt

e
rh

a
tc

h
 

L
a
n
e
, 
E

n
fi
e
ld

.

T
P

/0
4
/0

4
1
3

C
H

A
S

E

R
e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
it
e
 f
o
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
p
u
rp

o
s
e
s
 

in
v
o
lv

in
g
 c

o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 5

-s
to

re
y
 o

ff
ic

e
 b

lo
c
k
 

in
to

 3
0
 f
la

ts
 (

c
o
m

p
ri

s
in

g
 5

 x
 s

tu
d
io

, 
2
5
 x

 1
-b

e
d
) 

a
n
d
 

e
re

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
e
v
e
n
 3

 a
n
d
 4

-s
to

re
y
 b

lo
c
k
s
 o

f 
1
2
7
 t
w

o
-

b
e
d
 f
la

ts
 (

2
5
%

 o
f 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
) 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 r

e
fu

s
e
 s

to
re

, 
c
y
c
le

 s
to

re
, 
c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
, 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
M

e
ll
in

g
 D

ri
v
e
 

a
n
d
 C

a
rt

e
rh

a
tc

h
 L

a
n
e
. 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 0
7
.1

0
.0

4

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 -
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 

to
w

a
rd

s
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 
tr

a
n
s
p
o
rt

 

w
o
rk

s
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 
in

 s
c
h
e
d
u
le

1
5
/0

8
/2

0
0
7

£
6
2
,5

9
0

£
6
7
, 
4
1
2
.0

0
£
2
3
,8

9
8
.7

4
 

(C
T

0
2
3
7
) 

 

R
o
a
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
 a

n
d
 

c
y
c
le

w
a
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
U

n
a
ll
o
c
a
te

d
. 
T

&
T

 t
o
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

T
&

T

K
ie

r 
P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 

L
td

L
a
n
d
 a

t 
C

ro
w

n
 

R
d
/B

a
ir

d
 R

d
 E

n
fi
e
ld

0
3
/1

1
7
6
  
  
 

S
O

U
T

H
B

U
R

Y

D
e
m

o
li
ti
o
n
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

s
it
e
 b

y
 t
h
e
 e

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
tw

o
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

u
s
e
 a

s
 

b
u
il
d
e
rs

 t
ra

d
e
 w

a
re

h
o
u
s
e
 a

n
d
 c

a
r 

a
ft
e
r 

s
a
le

s
 c

e
n
tr

e
 

w
it
h
 c

a
r 

s
a
le

s
, 
w

it
h
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 p

a
rk

in
g
. 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 0
8
.0

7
.0

4

T
ra

ff
ic

 C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 -

 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 

m
a
in

ta
in

in
g
 a

n
d
/o

r 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 

ro
a
d
 m

a
rk

in
g
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
x
im

it
y
 

o
f 
th

e
 s

it
e
 

N
o
 d

e
a
d
li
n
e
 

£
5
,0

0
0

£
6
,1

8
1

£
6
,1

8
1
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

C
T

0
1
5
6

£
5
,0

0
0
 A

2
0
0
2
5
8
 R

o
a
d
 m

a
rk

in
g
s
 a

t 
C

ro
w

n
 R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 

B
a
ir

d
 R

o
a
d
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 s

ti
ll
 a

w
a
it
in

g
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
io

n
, 
T

&
T

 

a
re

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 
th

e
 s

it
u
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

D
a
v
e
 O

x
le

y
 

G
a
z
e
le

y
 

P
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 L

td

E
S

A
B

 s
it
e
 

M
o
ll
is

o
n
 A

v
e
n
u
e
 

E
N

F
IE

L
D

 L
O

C
K

0
4
/0

4
4
8

R
e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
it
e
 f
o
r 

B
1
(c

) 
(b

u
s
in

e
s
s
),

 B
2
 

(g
e
n
e
ra

l 
in

d
u
s
tr

ia
l)

 a
n
d
 B

8
 (

s
to

ra
g
e
/d

is
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
) 

u
s
e
s
. 
 

(O
u
tl
in

e
).

 A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 1
1
.0

4
.0

5

M
o
v
a
 S

y
s
te

m
 -

 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 t
h
e
 

re
a
s
o
n
a
b
le

 a
n
d
 p

ro
p
e
r 

c
o
s
ts

 

in
c
u
rr

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
/a

n
d
 o

r 

T
fL

 i
n
 t
h
e
 i
n
s
ta

ll
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

M
O

V
A

 S
y
s
te

m
 a

t 
th

e
 H

B
M

A
 

J
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 

 T
ra

ff
ic

 P
a
y
m

e
n
t 
- 

T
o
w

a
rd

s
 a

 

s
tu

d
y
 f
o
r 

th
e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

A
1
0
/B

u
ll
s
m

o
o
r 

L
a
n
e
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 

in
 t
h
e
 v

ic
in

it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 S

it
e
 

3
 y

e
a
rs

 w
it
h
 i
n
 

th
e
 d

a
te

 o
f 
th

e
 

p
a
y
m

e
n
t 
b
e
in

g
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
. 

3
1
.0

3
.2

0
1
2

£
1
0
0
,0

0
0

£
1
0
,0

0
0

£
1
1
7
,6

5
6

£
1
0
,0

7
0
.9

2

£
1
1
7
,6

5
6
 

C
T

0
2
2
4
 (

£
4
0
K

 

a
ll
o
c
a
te

d
)

£
1
0
,0

7
0
.9

2
 

C
T

0
2
2
5

£
4
7
K

 A
2
0
0
2
9
3
 A

d
d
it
io

n
 o

f 
M

O
V

A
 a

t 
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 

A
1
0
5
5
/A

1
0
1
0
. 
A

u
th

o
ri

s
a
ti
o
n
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

1
0
 

B
e
e
n
 a

ll
o
c
a
te

d
 t
o
 T

fL
 t
o
 s

p
e
n
d
. 

D
a
v
id

 T
a
y
lo

r 

T
fL

  
 

L
a
in

g
 H

o
m

e
s
 

L
td

R
ic

h
a
rd

 H
o
u
s
e

E
n
s
to

n
e
 R

o
a
d
 

0
4
/0

6
7
8

E
N

F
IE

L
D

 

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

R
e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
it
e
 b

y
 t
h
e
 e

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 t
o
ta

l 
o
f 

2
1
5
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
u
n
it
s
 i
n
 6

 x
 4

 s
to

re
y
 b

lo
c
k
s
 f
la

ts
, 
p
lu

s
 

3
 x

 2
-s

to
re

y
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
s
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
s
 (

2
4
 x

 1
-b

e
d
, 
1
6
0
 x

 2
-

b
e
d
 &

 1
6
 x

 3
-b

e
d
 f
la

ts
, 
1
1
 x

 3
-b

e
d
 &

 4
 x

 4
-b

e
d
 

h
o
u
s
e
s
) 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 r

o
a
d
, 
c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
, 
c
y
c
le

 p
a
rk

in
g
, 
re

fu
s
e
 s

to
ra

g
e
 f
a
c
il
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 

c
h
il
d
re

n
's

 p
la

y
 a

re
a
. 
(2

5
%

 o
f 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 

a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
).

 A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 2
9
.0

4
.0

5

In
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
L
a
n
d
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 -

 

to
 b

e
 a

p
p
li
e
d
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
's

 i
n
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
la

n
d
 a

n
d
 

re
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 

5
 y

e
a
rs

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 

d
a
te

 p
a
y
m

e
n
t 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
. 

2
1
.0

6
.1

0

£
2
5
0
,0

0
0

£
2
5
0
,0

0
0

£
5
2
, 
9
2
3
.8

8
 

(C
T

0
2
0
8
)

£
6
2
, 
3
5
5
.5

1
 

(C
T

0
1
7
6
 

re
v
e
n
u
e
)

In
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
L
a
n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 A

 D
A

R
 w

a
s
 s

ig
n
e
d
 o

ff
 

in
 J

a
n
 0

9
 a

g
re

e
in

g
 t
o
 u

s
e
 £

6
6
k
 o

f 
th

e
 E

n
s
to

n
e
 R

o
a
d
 

m
o
n
ie

s
 t
o
 c

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 c

o
s
t 
o
v
e
r-

ru
n
s
 a

n
d
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
  
o
n
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 H

a
rb

e
t 

R
o
a
d
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 w

o
rk

s
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 .
A

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

4
0
k
 w

a
s
 

a
ll
o
c
a
te

d
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
o
th

e
r 

m
in

o
r 

w
o
rk

s
 o

n
 H

a
rb

e
t 

R
o
a
d
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 
y
e
t 
b
e
e
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 

 J
o
h
n
 H

a
s
le

m
 

L
B

E
L
a
n
d
 a

t 
E

n
s
to

n
e
 

R
o
a
d
 E

n
fi
e
ld

E
N

F
IE

L
D

 

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
4
/0

0
2
7

T
P

/0
4
/2

6
4
9

R
e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
it
e
 b

y
 t
h
e
 e

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 p

a
rt

 4
-

s
to

re
y
, 
p
a
rt

 3
-s

to
re

y
 b

lo
c
k
 o

f 
3
2
 u

n
it
s
 (

c
o
m

p
ri

s
in

g
 8

 x
 

1
-b

e
d
 a

n
d
 1

6
 x

 2
-b

e
d
 p

ri
v
a
te

 f
la

ts
 a

n
d
 8

 x
 2

-b
e
d
 

a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 f
la

ts
) 

w
it
h
 4

2
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 

a
n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 E

n
s
to

n
e
 R

o
a
d
. 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 

2
1
.0

3
.0

5

In
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
L
a
n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 -

 

to
w

a
rd

s
 w

o
rk

s
 t
o
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 

o
u
t 
o
r 

p
ro

c
u
re

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 

to
w

a
rd

s
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

fa
c
il
it
ie

s
 i
n
 p

la
y
 a

re
a
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

v
ic

in
it
y
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 o

n
 f
o
o
t 

o
f 
th

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

W
it
h
in

 5
 y

e
a
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 d

a
te

 o
f 

re
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 

p
a
y
m

e
n
t 
A

u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
1
1

£
3
2
,0

0
0

£
3
6
,0

9
0
.8

4
£
9
1
,0

3
3
.0

7
 

C
T

0
2
0
0
 -

 

C
a
p
it
a
l

£
1
0
6
,0

0
0
 C

0
2
0
0
4
5
 H

a
rb

e
t 
R

o
a
d
 P

ro
je

c
t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

o
f 
in

d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
e
s
ta

te
s
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

je
c
ts

. 
F

u
n
d
s
 f
ro

m
 I
n
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
L
a
n
d
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 

fr
o
m

 R
ic

h
a
rd

 H
o
u
s
e
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 C

T
0
2
0
0
 D

A
R

 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9
  
 

J
o
h
n
 H

a
s
le

m
 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
1

P
a
g
e
 5

Page 215



In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 O
n
ly

. 
S

1
0
6
 E

N
F

IE
L
D

 N
O

R
T

H
 C

O
N

S
T

IT
U

E
N

C
Y

D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
r

T
P

 N
u
m

b
e
r 

/ 
S

it
e
 

A
d
d
re

s
s
 

a
n
d

W
a
rd

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

D
e
ta

il
s
 o

f 
O

b
li
g
a
ti
o
n
s
/W

o
rk

s
 

a
u
th

o
ri

s
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

fu
n
d
s

S
p
e
n
d
 D

e
a
d
li
n
e
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

O
b
li
g
a
ti
o
n
 

S
u
m

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 

to
 d

a
te

 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

in
te

re
s
t 
w

h
e
re

 

a
c
c
ru

e
d
)

A
v
a
il
a
b
le

 

b
a
la

n
c
e
 a

s
 o

f 

0
1
/0

2
/2

0
1
1

F
u
n
d
s
 a

ll
o
c
a
te

d
/a

v
a
il
a
b
le

 f
o
r 

 s
p
e
n
d

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

/O
ff
ic

e
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

s
p
e
n
d

S
T

A
T

U
S

 

M
a
g
n
a
c
re

s
t 
L
td

5
 &

5
A

 O
ld

 P
a
rk

 

ro
a
d
 

E
n
fi
e
ld

H
IG

H
L
A

N
D

S

0
4
/1

6
8
9

R
e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
b
y
 t
h
e
 e

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 t
h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
 

b
lo

c
k
 o

f 
tw

e
n
ty

 t
w

o
, 
tw

o
 b

e
d
ro

o
m

 a
n
d
 o

n
e
, 
th

re
e
 

b
e
d
ro

o
m

 f
la

ts
, 
v
e
h
ic

u
la

r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 b

a
s
e
m

e
n
t 

p
a
rk

in
g
. 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 1
7
.0

2
.0

5

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 -

 

to
w

a
rd

s
 o

ff
 s

it
e
 w

o
rk

s
 t
o
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 h

ig
h
w

a
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

v
ic

in
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 l
a
n
d
  

T
h
e
 f
if
th

 

a
n
n
iv

e
rs

a
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 f
ir

s
t 

o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

b
e
in

g
 i
n
 u

s
e
. 

£
2
5
,0

0
0

£
2
7
,0

9
4
.0

0
£
1
7
,0

9
9
.8

3
 

C
T

0
1
8
0

£
1
9
,8

7
9
.6

1
 A

2
0
0
2
8
2
 Z

e
b
ra

 c
ro

s
s
in

g
/t
ra

ff
ic

 i
s
la

n
d
 i
n
 

v
ic

in
it
y
 o

f 
ro

u
n
d
a
b
o
u
t 
O

ld
 P

a
rk

 R
o
a
d
 A

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 

a
u
th

o
ri

s
e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 b

a
la

n
c
e
 o

f 
£
1
7
,0

9
9
. 
U

n
d
e
r 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
. 
  
 

E
d
w

a
rd

 

J
e
ff
e
rs

o
n
 

F
a
ir

v
ie

w
 N

e
w

 

H
o
m

e
s
 L

td

C
iv

ic
 A

m
e
n
it
y
 S

it
e
, 

M
e
ll
in

g
 D

ri
v
e

T
P

/0
5
/0

0
4
5

C
H

A
S

E

R
e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
C

iv
ic

 A
m

e
n
it
y
 S

it
e
 b

y
 t
h
e
 e

re
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
a
 p

a
rt

 3
-s

to
re

y
, 
p
a
rt

 4
-s

to
re

y
 b

lo
c
k
 o

f 
4
0
 f
la

ts
 

(c
o
m

p
ri

s
in

g
 3

7
 x

 2
-b

e
d
, 
3
 x

 1
-b

e
d
),

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 M

e
ll
in

g
 D

ri
v
e
  
(2

0
%

 o
f 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
),

  
to

g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s

u
b
s
ta

ti
o
n
 a

d
ja

c
e
n
t 
to

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 T

X
U

 o
ff
ic

e
 

b
u
il
d
in

g
. 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 1
5
.0

3
.0

6

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 -

 

to
w

a
rd

s
 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
in

 4
k
m

 o
f 
th

e
 

la
n
d

W
it
h
in

 3
6
 

m
o
n
th

s
 a

ft
e
r 

la
s
t 

o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

o
p
e
n
 m

a
rk

e
t 

h
o
u
s
in

g
. 

£
5
,5

7
1
.2

6
£
5
,5

7
1
.2

6
£
5
,5

7
1
.2

6
 

C
T

0
2
2
1
 

£
5
,5

7
1
.2

6
 C

1
0
0
8
7
1
 E

C
S

L
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
p
it
a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 
A

u
th

o
ri

s
a
ti
o
n
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 J

u
ly

 1
0
. 

B
o
b
 A

y
to

n
 

Z
O

G
 2

N
o
w

H
a
z
e
v
ie

w

T
h
e
 G

o
a
t 
2
7
, 
F

o
rt

y
 

H
il
l 
E

n
fi
e
ld

T
P

/0
5
/0

1
4
2

E
N

F
IE

L
D

 T
O

W
N

C
o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
n
to

 8
 x

 2
-b

e
d
 f
la

ts
 

a
n
d
 e

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 2

-s
to

re
y
 b

lo
c
k
 o

f 
6
 x

 2
-b

e
d
 f
la

ts
 w

it
h
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r

o
o
f 
s
p
a
c
e
 i
n
v
o
lv

in
g
 d

o
rm

e
rs

 t
o
 

N
o
rt

h
, 
S

o
u
th

, 
E

a
s
t 
a
n
d
 W

e
s
t 
e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
to

g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
, 
re

te
n
ti
o
n
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 F

o
rt

y
 

H
il
l 
a
n
d
 R

u
s
s
e
ll
 R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
-s

it
in

g
 o

f 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 O

ld
 

F
o
rg

e
 R

o
a
d
. 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 2
1
.1

2
.0

5

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 -

 

to
w

a
rd

s
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 

e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 

in
 t
h
e
 v

ic
in

it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 l
a
n
d

W
it
h
in

 5
 y

e
a
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 d

a
te

 o
f 

re
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 

p
a
y
m

e
n
t

£
3
0
,0

0
0

£
3
1
,6

9
1

£
2
,3

9
2
.6

7
 

(C
T

0
2
3
8
) 

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 -
 P

a
c
k
a
g
e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 f
e
n
c
in

g
 a

ro
u
n
d
 F

o
rt

y
 H

il
l

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

P
a
rk

s
/H

S
 &

 

T
&

T

T
e
re

n
c
e
 

L
a
z
e
n
b
u
ry

S
A

S
 P

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 

U
K

 L
im

it
e
d

F
lo

re
n
c
e
 A

v
e
. 
c
a
r 

p
a
rk

,F
lo

re
n
c
e
 

A
v
e
.E

n
fi
e
ld

T
P

/0
5
/0

4
4
3

H
IG

H
L
A

N
D

S

R
e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
it
e
 f
o
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
p
u
rp

o
s
e
s
. 
  

(O
u
tl
in

e
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
) 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 2
6
.0

4
.0

6

P
a
rk

in
g
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 -

 

to
w

a
rd

s
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 
p
a
rk

in
g
, 

s
u
rv

e
y
s
, 
p
re

p
a
ri

n
g
 a

 

p
re

li
m

in
a
ry

 d
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
in

g
 o

n
 e

x
te

n
d
in

g
 C

P
Z

 

in
 E

n
fi
e
ld

 T
o
w

n
 

   

N
o
 d

e
a
d
li
n
e
  

£
1
8
,0

0
0

£
1
9
,6

1
2
.4

1
£
1
9
,6

1
2
.4

1
 

C
T

0
2
0
9

£
1
8
,0

0
0
 A

2
0
0
2
7
2
 C

P
Z

 w
o
rk

s
. 
A

u
th

o
ri

s
a
ti
o
n
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 1
0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

L
o
a
d
in

g
 b

a
y
 i
n
s
ta

ll
e
d
 a

n
d
 w

id
e
r 

C
P

Z
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
in

g
 n

o
w

. 

D
a
v
id

 O
x
le

y
 

L
in

d
e
n
 H

o
m

e
s

9
7
-1

0
1
 S

o
u
th

b
u
ry

 

R
o
a
d
 E

n
fi
e
ld

 

T
P

/0
5
/1

6
7
9

S
O

U
T

H
B

U
R

Y

R
e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
it
e
 b

y
 t
h
e
 e

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 3

-s
to

re
y
 

b
lo

c
k
 o

f 
2
4
 s

e
lf
-c

o
n
ta

in
e
d
 u

n
it
s
 (

c
o
m

p
ri

s
in

g
 3

 x
 1

-

b
e
d
, 
2
1
 x

 2
-b

e
d
) 

w
it
h
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
, 
c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 v

ia
 S

o
u
th

b
u
ry

 R
o
a
d
. 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 

s
ig

n
e
d

 2
2
.1

2
.0

5

C
P

Z
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 -

 t
o
 b

e
 

a
p
p
li
e
d
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 t
h
e
 E

n
fi
e
ld

 

T
o
w

n
 C

o
n
tr

o
ll
e
d
 P

a
rk

in
g
 

Z
o
n
e
 

1
7
.0

5
.2

0
1
1

£
4
0
,0

3
8
.5

0
£
4
1
,4

7
1

£
3
9
,2

6
0
.5

3
 

C
T

0
1
9
1

£
3
4
,5

0
0
 A

2
0
0
2
7
3
 C

P
Z

 w
o
rk

s
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

T
&

T
 a

re
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
in

g
 w

id
e
r 

C
P

Z
 r

e
v
ie

w
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
in

g
 

T
&

T

D
u
rk

a
n
 N

e
w

 

H
o
m

e
s
 L

td

1
0
6
 W

e
th

e
rb

y
 

R
o
a
d
 

E
n
fi
e
ld

 E
N

2

T
P

/0
6
/0

0
8
6

C
H

A
S

E

E
re

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 t
o
ta

l 
o
f 
3
6
 f
la

ts
 i
n
 t
w

o
 3

-s
to

re
y
 b

lo
c
k
s
 

(c
o
m

p
ri

s
in

g
 3

 x
 1

-b
e
d
, 
3
3
 x

 2
-b

e
d
) 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 2

5
%

 

a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
, 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 v

ia
 L

a
v
e
n
d
e
r 

H
il
l 
a
n
d
 W

e
th

e
rb

y
 

R
o
a
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
m

o
v
a
l 
o
f 
ro

u
n
d
a
b
o
u
t 
o
n
 W

e
th

e
rb

y
 R

o
a
d
 

(r
e
v
is

e
d
 s

c
h
e
m

e
).

 A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 2
5
.0

4
.0

6

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 -

 

to
w

a
rd

s
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 v

ic
in

it
y
 o

f 

th
e
 l
a
n
d

3
0
.0

7
.2

0
1
2

£
2
8
,3

9
5

£
2
8
,3

9
5

£
2
8
,3

9
5
.0

0
 

C
T

0
2
5
1

£
2
8
,3

9
5
.0

0
 C

1
0
0
8
7
1
E

C
S

L
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
p
it
a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

s
a
ti
o
n
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 i
n
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
0
 

B
o
b
 A

y
to

n
 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
1

P
a
g
e
 6

Page 216



In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 O
n
ly

. 
S

1
0
6
 E

N
F

IE
L
D

 N
O

R
T

H
 C

O
N

S
T

IT
U

E
N

C
Y

D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
r

T
P

 N
u
m

b
e
r 

/ 
S

it
e
 

A
d
d
re

s
s
 

a
n
d

W
a
rd

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

D
e
ta

il
s
 o

f 
O

b
li
g
a
ti
o
n
s
/W

o
rk

s
 

a
u
th

o
ri

s
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

fu
n
d
s

S
p
e
n
d
 D

e
a
d
li
n
e
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

O
b
li
g
a
ti
o
n
 

S
u
m

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 

to
 d

a
te

 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

in
te

re
s
t 
w

h
e
re

 

a
c
c
ru

e
d
)

A
v
a
il
a
b
le

 

b
a
la

n
c
e
 a

s
 o

f 

0
1
/0

2
/2

0
1
1

F
u
n
d
s
 a

ll
o
c
a
te

d
/a

v
a
il
a
b
le

 f
o
r 

 s
p
e
n
d

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

/O
ff
ic

e
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

s
p
e
n
d

S
T

A
T

U
S

 

T
o
tt
e
n
h
a
m

 

H
o
ts

p
u
r

R
o
le

n
m

il
l 
S

p
o
rt

s
 

G
ro

u
n
d
 a

n
d
 l
a
n
d
 

re
a
r 

o
f 
M

y
d
d
e
lt
o
n
 

H
o
u
s
e
, 
B

u
ll
s
 C

ro
s
s
, 

E
n
fi
e
ld

 E
N

2
 9

H
A

  

T
P

/0
7
/1

6
2
3
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

T
O

W
N

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 f
o
o
tb

a
ll
 t
ra

in
in

g
 c

e
n
tr

e
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
in

g
 a

 

b
u
il
d
in

g
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 

fa
c
il
it
ie

s
, 
a
n
c
il
la

ry
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
t,
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 

p
it
c
h
e
s
, 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 r

o
a
d
s
, 
p
a
rk

in
g
, 
p
a
th

w
a
y
s
, 
fe

n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
li
g
h
ti
n
g
. 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 1
1
.0

4
.0

8

O
ff
 S

it
e
 H

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 W

o
rk

s
 -

 f
o
r 

th
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
tr

a
ff
ic

 s
p
e
e
d
s
 

a
n
d
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
s
a
fe

ty
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
n
 

W
h
it
e
w

e
b
b
s
 L

a
n
e
, 

W
h
it
e
w

e
b
b
s
 R

o
a
d
, 
B

u
ll
 C

ro
s
s
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
B

u
ll
s
 

C
ro

s
s
 a

n
d
 B

u
ll
s
m

o
o
r 

L
a
n
e

 A
1
0
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
W

o
rk

s
 -

 f
o
r 

o
ff
-s

it
e
 h

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 w

o
rk

s
 

c
o
m

p
ri

s
in

g
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

to
 t
h
e
 A

1
0
/B

u
ll
s
m

o
o
r 

L
a
n
e
 

ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 b

y
 l
in

k
a
g
e
 o

f 
it
s
 

s
ig

n
a
ls

 t
o
 t
h
e
 M

2
5
/A

1
0
 

ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
p
e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
 a

n
d
 c

y
c
le

 

c
ro

s
s
in

g
 f
a
c
il
it
ie

s
 a

t 
th

e
 

A
1
0
/T

u
rk

e
y
 S

tr
e
e
t 
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
. 

W
it
h
in

 5
 y

e
a
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 d

a
te

 o
f 

re
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 

p
a
y
m

e
n
t

£
1
4
0
,0

0
0

£
1
2
0
,0

0
0

£
1
4
1
,1

8
2
.6

4

£
1
2
1
,0

1
7

£
1
3
0
,7

0
9
 

C
T

0
2
3
2
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

- 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

£
1
2
1
,0

1
7
 

C
T

0
2
3
3
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

£
1
4
0
K

 A
2
0
0
2
5
3
 T

H
F

C
 O

ff
 S

it
e
 H

ig
h
w

a
y
 W

o
rk

s
 

A
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 A

u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
9
 

T
h
e
 m

a
in

 w
o
rk

s
 t
o
 W

h
it
e
w

e
b
b
s
 a

re
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
ll
y
 

fi
n
is

h
e
d
, 
w

it
h
 s

o
m

e
 w

h
it
e
 l
in

in
g
 &

 4
0
m

p
h
 r

e
p
e
a
te

r 

s
ig

n
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

o
n
e
 n

o
w

. 
T

h
e
 b

a
la

n
c
e
 f
o
r 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 W

w
L
/B

u
ll
s
 C

ro
s
s
,B

u
ll
s
m

o
o
r 

L
a
n
e
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 b

e
in

g
 h

e
ld

 u
n
ti
l 
th

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 

o
p
e
n
e
d
 T

ra
in

in
g
 G

ro
u
n
d
 c

a
n
 b

e
 g

a
u
g
e
d
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

£
1
2
0
K

 A
2
0
0
2
5
4
 T

H
F

C
 A

1
0
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
W

o
rk

s
  

A
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 A

u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
9
 T

h
is

 i
s
 f
o
r 

u
ti
li
s
a
ti
o
n
 b

y
 T

fL
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

S
te

v
e
 J

a
g
g
a
rd

 

&
 D

a
v
id

 C
o
w

a
n
 

T
fL

L
B

E
,F

ro
n
ti
e
r 

K
e
y
 (

E
n
fi
e
ld

) 

L
im

it
e
d
, 
C

h
u
b
b
 

C
o
m

m
o
n
 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

F
u
n
d

F
o
rm

e
r 

G
.E

. 

L
ig

h
ti
n
g
 S

it
e
, 
G

re
a
t 

C
a
m

b
ri

d
g
e
 R

o
a
d
  
  
  
  

T
P

/0
8
/1

0
7
7
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

C
H

A
S

E
 

R
e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 s

it
e
 b

y
 t
h
e
 e

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
2
0
 u

n
it
s
 

(2
-s

to
re

y
) 

fo
r 

o
ff
ic

e
, 
li
g
h
t 
a
n
d
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
in

d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
u
s
e
 

a
n
d
 s

to
ra

g
e
/ 
d
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 a

n
c
il
la

ry
 t
ra

d
e
 c

o
u
n
te

rs
 

(B
1
, 
B

2
 &

 B
8
 u

s
e
) 

a
s
 w

e
ll
 a

s
 a

 5
-s

to
re

y
 s

e
lf
 s

to
ra

g
e
 

u
n
it
 (

B
8
),

 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 a

 2
-s

to
re

y
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

ro
o
f 
d
e
c
k
 p

a
rk

in
g
 f
o
r 

u
s
e
 a

s
 a

 c
a
r 

d
e
a
le

rs
h
ip

 w
it
h
 

w
o
rk

s
h
o
p
 (

s
u
i 
g
e
n
e
ri

s
),

 a
s
 w

e
ll
 a

s
 a

 5
-s

to
re

y
 (

1
3
2
 

b
e
d
) 

h
o
te

l 
(C

1
u
s
e
),

 w
it
h
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 f
ro

m
 

L
in

c
o
ln

 R
o
a
d
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 v

ia
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 W

a
y
. 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 1
8
.0

5
.0

9

E
n
fi
e
ld

 J
o
b
s
 N

e
t 
- 

to
 

c
o
m

p
e
n
s
a
te

 f
o
r 

th
e
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 

in
c
o
m

e
 f
ro

m
 o

n
 s

tr
e
e
t 
p
a
rk

in
g
 

b
a
y
s
 

T
ra

in
e
e
 F

u
n
d
 -

 (
if
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
r 

c
a
n
n
o
t 
fi
ll
 t
ra

in
e
e
 p

la
c
e
s
 -

 1
 

tr
a
in

e
e
 p

e
r 

£
1
m

il
li
o
n
 p

o
u
n
d
 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

)

N
o
 d

e
a
d
li
n
e
 

£
7
,5

0
0

£
4
6
,0

0
0

£
7
,5

2
5
.0

0

£
4
6
,0

0
0

£
7
,5

2
5
.0

0
 

(C
T

0
2
2
9
) 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

£
2
7
,5

6
9
.7

4
 

(C
T

0
2
3
0
) 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
n
n
a
 L

o
u
g
h
li
n
 n

o
ti
fi
e
d
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

U
n
a
ll
o
c
a
te

d
. 
A

n
n
a
 L

o
u
g
h
li
n
 n

o
ti
fi
e
d
 f
o
r 

a
n
 u

p
d
a
te

. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
n
n
a
 L

o
u
g
h
li
n
 

A
n
n
a
 L

o
u
g
h
li
n
 

C
h
ri

s
ti
a
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 

G
a
ra

g
e
s
 a

d
ja

c
e
n
t 

to
 9

8
 R

a
m

n
e
y
 

D
ri

v
e
, 
E

n
fi
e
ld

 E
N

3
  
 

T
P

/0
6
/1

5
5
4
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

E
N

F
IE

L
D

 L
O

C
K

E
re

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 p

a
ir

 o
f 
2
-s

to
re

y
, 
3
-b

e
d
 s

e
m

i-
d
e
ta

c
h
e
d
 

h
o
u
s
e
s
 w

it
h
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 p

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

R
a
m

n
e
y
 D

ri
v
e
. 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 0
7
.0

4
.1

0

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 -

 

to
w

a
rd

s
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fa

c
il
it
ie

s
 

in
 t
h
e
 e

a
s
t 
o
f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 

n
o
 d

e
a
d
li
n
e
 

£
4
,2

6
7

£
4
,2

6
7

£
4
,2

6
7
 

(C
T

0
2
4
3
) 

£
4
,2

6
7
 C

1
0
0
8
7
1
 E

C
S

L
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

A
u
th

o
ri

s
a
ti
o
n
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 i
n
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
0
 

B
o
b
 A

y
to

n
 

C
h
ri

s
ti
a
n
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 

C
a
r 

P
a
rk

 a
d
ja

c
e
n
t 

to
 4

2
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

 

R
o
a
d
, 
E

n
fi
e
ld

 E
N

3
 

6
D

R
  
  
  
  
 

T
P

/0
4
/2

6
1
3
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

E
N

F
IE

L
D

 L
O

C
K

E
re

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
 o

f 
th

re
e
 3

-b
e
d
, 
2
-s

to
re

y
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 

w
it
h
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
. 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 

1
1
.0

3
.0

9

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 -

 

to
w

a
rd

s
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fa

c
il
it
ie

s
 

in
 t
h
e
 e

a
s
t 
o
f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 

n
o
 d

e
a
d
li
n
e
 

£
6
,5

0
2

£
6
,5

0
2

£
6
,5

0
2
 

C
T

0
2
4
7
) 

£
6
,5

0
2
 C

1
0
0
8
7
1
 E

C
S

L
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
  

A
u
th

o
ri

s
a
ti
o
n
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
0
 

B
o
b
 A

y
to

n
 

E
n
fi
e
ld

 C
o
u
n
c
il
 

L
e
a
 V

a
ll
e
y
 H

ig
h
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 

N
e
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 w
it
h
 A

n
n
 C

h
a
n
d
le

r 
G

o
u
ld

 a
s
 i
t 
is

 a
n
 

E
n
fi
e
ld

 C
o
u
n
c
il
 o

b
li
g
a
ti
o
n
, 
th

e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

re
q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 a
d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 b

y
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 s

e
tt
in

g
 u

p
 

a
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 a

 C
T

 p
ro

fi
t 
c
e
n
tr

e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
w

h
ic

h
 

w
o
rk

s
 a

re
 c

h
a
rg

e
d
. 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

tb
c

£
1
0
5
,4

2
0
.2

9
 

(C
T

0
1
5
7
)

tb
c
 

A
n
n
 C

h
a
n
d
le

r 

G
o
u
ld

 

tb
c
 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
1

P
a
g
e
 7

Page 217



In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 O
n
ly

. 
S

1
0
6
 E

N
F

IE
L
D

 N
O

R
T

H
 C

O
N

S
T

IT
U

E
N

C
Y

D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
r

T
P

 N
u
m

b
e
r 

/ 
S

it
e
 

A
d
d
re

s
s
 

a
n
d

W
a
rd

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

D
e
ta

il
s
 o

f 
O

b
li
g
a
ti
o
n
s
/W

o
rk

s
 

a
u
th

o
ri

s
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

fu
n
d
s

S
p
e
n
d
 D

e
a
d
li
n
e
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

O
b
li
g
a
ti
o
n
 

S
u
m

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 

to
 d

a
te

 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

in
te

re
s
t 
w

h
e
re

 

a
c
c
ru

e
d
)

A
v
a
il
a
b
le

 

b
a
la

n
c
e
 a

s
 o

f 

0
1
/0

2
/2

0
1
1

F
u
n
d
s
 a

ll
o
c
a
te

d
/a

v
a
il
a
b
le

 f
o
r 

 s
p
e
n
d

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

/O
ff
ic

e
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

s
p
e
n
d

S
T

A
T

U
S

 

L
e
g
a
l 
&

 

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
A

s
s
. 

S
o
c
. 
L
td

M
a
k
ro

 c
a
r 

p
a
rk

 

5
7
, 
S

to
c
k
in

g
s
w

a
te

r 

L
a
n
e

T
P

/0
5
/0

5
6
8

E
N

F
IE

L
D

 

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

E
re

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
w

a
re

h
o
u
s
e
 w

it
h
 a

n
c
il
la

ry
 o

ff
ic

e
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

u
s
e
 w

it
h
in

 C
la

s
s
 8

, 
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 

lo
a
d
in

g
 b

a
y
s
, 
p
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 M

il
lm

a
rs

h
 L

a
n
e
 

v
ia

 D
e
lt
a
 w

o
rk

s
. 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 0
6
.0

4
.0

6

R
iv

e
rs

id
e
 W

a
lk

 -
 P

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 r

iv
e
rs

id
e
 

w
a
lk

 a
d
ja

c
e
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 l
a
n
d
 a

n
d
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
 

£
1
0
0
,0

0
0

£
0

P
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 d
u
e
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.
 S

im
il
a
r 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 l
a
te

r 
a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 -

 e
it
h
e
r 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 m

a
y
 b

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 
 

S
e
e
d
w

e
ll
 L

td
T

h
e
 R

if
le

s
 P

H
 

6
0
0
,O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 

R
o
a
d
,&

la
n
d
 a

d
j 
4
 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
R

o
w

, 

E
n
fi
e
ld

T
P

/0
5
/0

7
2
8

E
N

F
IE

L
D

 L
O

C
K

R
e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
it
e
 f
o
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
p
u
rp

o
s
e
s
 

(t
o
ta

ll
in

g
 2

2
 u

n
it
s
) 

w
it
h
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
, 
c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
, 
g
a
ra

g
in

g
 a

n
d
 a

m
e
n
it
y
 s

p
a
c
e
, 
b
y
 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

ia
l 

d
e
m

o
li
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
 o

f 
T

h
e
 R

if
le

s
 P

u
b
li
c
 H

o
u
s
e
 

in
to

 8
 s

e
lf
-c

o
n
ta

in
e
d
 f
la

ts
 (

c
o
m

p
ri

s
in

g
 4

 x
 2

-b
e
d
, 
3
 x

 1
-

b
e
d
, 
1
 x

 s
tu

d
io

) 
in

v
o
lv

in
g
 s

in
g
le

 s
to

re
y
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
s
, 

in
s
ta

ll
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
2
 d

o
rm

e
r 

w
in

d
o
w

s
 t
o
 f
ro

n
t,
 b

a
lc

o
n
ie

s
 a

t 

re
a
r 

fi
rs

t 
fl
o
o
r 

le
v
e
l 
a
n
d
 f
ro

n
t 
e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 r

a
m

p
; 
e
re

c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
a
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
 o

f 
e
ig

h
t 
3
 b

e
d
 2

-s
to

re
y
 h

o
u
s
e
s
; 
e
re

c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
a
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
 o

f 
fi
v
e
 x

 3
 b

e
d
 2

-s
to

re
y
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 

e
re

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 d

e
ta

c
h
e
d
 2

-s
to

re
y
 4

-b
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
. 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 1
5
.0

5
.0

6

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 -

 

to
w

a
rd

s
 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 

 E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 -

 

to
w

a
rd

s
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 

e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 

in
 t
h
e
 v

ic
in

it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 l
a
n
d

N
o
 d

e
a
d
li
n
e
 

£
3
6
,0

0
0

£
5
0
,0

0
0

£
0

£
0
.0

0
P

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 d
u
e
 o

n
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

L
e
o
n
a
rd

 

C
h
e
s
h
ir

e

A
rn

o
ld

 H
o
u
s
e

6
6
, 
T

h
e
 R

id
g
e
w

a
y

E
n
fi
e
ld

T
P

 0
4
/1

3
7
8

H
IG

H
L
A

N
D

S

R
e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
it
e
 f
o
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
p
u
rp

o
s
e
s
. 
 

(O
u
tl
in

e
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
 -

 m
e
a
n
s
 o

f 
a
c
c
e
s
s
, 
s
it
in

g
 a

n
d
 

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
) 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 8
.1

1
.0

6

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 -

 

to
w

a
rd

s
 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 

W
it
h
in

 5
 y

e
a
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 d

a
te

 o
f 

re
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 

p
a
y
m

e
n
t

£
3
5
,0

0
0

£
0

£
0
.0

0
P

a
y
m

e
n
t 
d
u
e
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

T
e
n
p
in

 L
im

it
e
d

3
 D

e
a
rs

le
y
 R

o
a
d
, 

E
n
fi
e
ld

 E
N

1
 3

R
R

  
  
  
  
  

0
6
/1

5
8
8
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

S
O

U
T

H
B

U
R

Y
 

C
h
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
u
s
e
 f
ro

m
 n

ig
h
tc

lu
b
 t
o
 t
e
n
 p

in
 b

o
w

li
n
g
 a

n
d
 

fa
m

il
y
 e

n
te

rt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
c
e
n
tr

e
. 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 

2
2
.0

1
.0

8

F
o
o
tw

a
y
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 -

 f
o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
o
o
tw

a
y
 

in
 S

o
u
th

b
u
ry

 R
o
a
d
, 
C

ro
w

n
 

R
o
a
d
 a

n
d
 o

r 
D

e
a
rs

le
y
 R

o
a
d
 

o
r 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 v

ic
in

it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 

la
n
d
 

 P
u
b
li
c
 T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 -
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 b

u
s
 

s
to

p
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 T

fL
 r

o
a
d
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 

in
 t
h
e
 v

ic
in

it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 l
a
n
d
 

W
it
h
in

 5
 y

e
a
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 d

a
te

 o
f 

re
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 

p
a
y
m

e
n
t

£
1
5
,0

0
0

£
1
0
,0

0
0

£
0

£
0
.0

0
P

a
y
m

e
n
t 
d
u
e
 o

n
 o

r 
b
e
fo

re
 I
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

S
IG

N
E

D
 S

1
0
6
 A

G
R

E
E

M
E

N
T

S
 W

H
E

R
E

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 H
A

V
E

 N
O

T
 B

E
E

N
 R

E
C

E
IV

E
D

 A
S

 Y
E

T
 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
1

P
a
g
e
 8

Page 218



In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 O
n
ly

. 
S

1
0
6
 E

N
F

IE
L
D

 N
O

R
T

H
 C

O
N

S
T

IT
U

E
N

C
Y

D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
r

T
P

 N
u
m

b
e
r 

/ 
S

it
e
 

A
d
d
re

s
s
 

a
n
d

W
a
rd

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

D
e
ta

il
s
 o

f 
O

b
li
g
a
ti
o
n
s
/W

o
rk

s
 

a
u
th

o
ri

s
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

fu
n
d
s

S
p
e
n
d
 D

e
a
d
li
n
e
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

O
b
li
g
a
ti
o
n
 

S
u
m

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 

to
 d

a
te

 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

in
te

re
s
t 
w

h
e
re

 

a
c
c
ru

e
d
)

A
v
a
il
a
b
le

 

b
a
la

n
c
e
 a

s
 o

f 

0
1
/0

2
/2

0
1
1

F
u
n
d
s
 a

ll
o
c
a
te

d
/a

v
a
il
a
b
le

 f
o
r 

 s
p
e
n
d

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

/O
ff
ic

e
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

s
p
e
n
d

S
T

A
T

U
S

 

L
io

n
s
g
a
te

 

P
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

1
-5

 C
o
le

m
a
n
 

P
a
ra

d
e
 a

n
d
 N

e
w

 

R
iv

e
r 

H
o
u
s
e
, 
6
a
 

C
o
le

m
a
n
 P

a
ra

d
e
, 
6
-

1
4
 S

o
u
th

b
u
ry

 R
o
a
d
  

T
P

/0
6
/1

4
3
0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

S
O

U
T

H
B

U
R

Y
 

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
1
9
1
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
u
n
it
s
 i
n
v
o
lv

in
g
 

c
o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
 a

n
d
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 o

f 
N

e
w

 R
iv

e
r 

H
o
u
s
e
 (

b
lo

c
k
 

A
) 

b
y
 t
h
e
 e

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 s

id
e
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 t
o
 e

a
s
t 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 a

t 
4
th

 s
to

re
y
 l
e
v
e
l 
a
n
d
 a

b
o
v
e
, 
to

g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

re
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
fl
o
o
rs

 t
o
 t
o
ta

l 
1
3
 

s
to

ri
e
s
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 9

4
 u

n
it
s
 a

n
d
 e

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
5
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

fl
o
o
rs

 t
o
 t
o
ta

l 
6
 s

to
ri

e
s
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 2

0
 x

 2
-b

e
d
 u

n
it
s
 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 i
n
s
ta

ll
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
n
e
w

 s
h
o
p
 f
ro

n
ts

 t
o
 g

ro
u
n
d
 

fl
o
o
r 

c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
u
n
it
s
 a

n
d
 g

la
z
e
d
 l
in

k
 t
o
 N

e
w

 R
iv

e
r 

H
o
u
s
e
 f
ro

m
 1

s
t 
fl
o
o
r 

le
v
e
l 
a
n
d
 a

b
o
v
e
; 
e
re

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 9

-

s
to

re
y
 b

lo
c
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r

e
a
r 

(b
lo

c
k
 C

) 
c
o
m

p
ri

s
in

g
 7

7
 u

n
it
s
 

(4
2
 x

 1
-b

e
d
, 
3
5
 x

 2
-b

e
d
) 

w
it
h
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 o

n
 g

ro
u
n
d
 

a
n
d
 1

s
t 
fl
o
o
r 

le
v
e
ls

 w
it
h
 1

s
t 
fl
o
o
r 

v
e
h
ic

u
la

r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

N
e
w

 R
iv

e
r 

H
o
u
s
e
; 
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
u
b
-s

ta
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r

e
a
r 

a
n
d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 c

y
c
le

 p
a
rk

in
g
. 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 1
7
.1

0
.0

7

P
u
b
li
c
 R

e
a
lm

 C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 -

 

fo
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 

o
p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
/r

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

a
re

a
s
, 
la

n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
 a

n
d
 s

tr
e
e
t 

fu
rn

it
u
re

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
 

v
ic

in
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
r 

to
w

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
s

 T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 -

 t
o
 

u
p
g
ra

d
e
 b

u
s
 s

to
p
s
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 o

n
 

S
o
u
th

b
u
ry

 R
o
a
d
 a

d
ja

c
e
n
t 
to

 

th
e
 l
a
n
d
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 -

 t
o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fa

c
il
it
ie

s
 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
  
 

A
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 -

 3
8
 u

n
it
s
 

s
o
c
ia

ll
y
 r

e
n
te

d
 &

 1
8
 u

n
it
s
 

in
te

rm
e
d
ia

te
 

W
it
h
in

 5
 y

e
a
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 d

a
te

 o
f 

re
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 

p
a
y
m

e
n
t

£
6
0
,0

0
0

£
4
0
,0

0
0

£
1
5
7
,0

0
0

£
0

£
0
.0

0
P

a
y
m

e
n
t 
to

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 o

c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
5
0
%

o
f 
th

e
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-   
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-   
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

 P
a
y
m

e
n
t 
to

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
B

lo
c
k
 A

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-   
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

P
a
y
m

e
n
t 
to

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 o

c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
5
0
%

o
f 
th

e
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

K
it
e
w

o
o
d
 

E
s
ta

te
s
 L

td
 a

n
d
 

L
o
n
g
 &

 

S
o
m

e
rv

il
le

S
o
u
th

b
u
ry

 R
o
a
d
, 

E
n
fi
e
ld

T
P

/0
6
/1

9
1
2

S
O

U
T

H
B

U
R

Y

D
e
m

o
li
ti
o
n
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 m

ix
e
d
 u

s
e
 

re
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
p
a
rt

 2
, 
3
 ,
 4

 a
n
d
 5

 s
to

re
y
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 1

3
0
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
u
n
it
s
 (

c
o
m

p
ri

s
in

g
 4

1
 x

 1
 

b
e
d
, 
7
9
 x

 2
 b

e
d
 a

n
d
 1

0
 x

 3
 b

e
d
) 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 4

4
8
 m

2
 

o
f 
re

ta
il
 (

C
la

s
s
 A

1
),

 p
u
b
li
c
 a

n
d
 p

ri
v
a
te

 a
m

e
n
it
y
 o

p
e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
, 
c
h
il
d
re

n
s
 p

la
y
 a

re
a
, 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
s
u
rf

a
c
e
 a

n
d
 

u
n
d
e
r 

c
ro

ft
 p

a
rk

in
g
 f
o
r 

8
5
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

v
e
h
ic

u
la

r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 f
ro

m
 K

in
g
s
w

a
y
 t
o
 E

m
il
ia

 C
lo

s
e
. 

N
O

T
E

: 
A

p
p
e
a
l 
d
e
c
is

io
n
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
d
w

e
ll
in

g
s
 

to
 1

2
3
 (

c
o
m

p
ri

s
in

g
 3

4
 x

 1
 b

e
d
, 
6
5
 x

 2
 b

e
d
 a

n
d
 2

4
 x

 3
 

b
e
d
).

 A
ll
 u

n
it
s
 a

re
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
. 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 

s
ig

n
e
d

 2
5
.0

6
.0

7

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
&

 H
ig

h
w

a
y
 

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 -

 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 

e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
a
n
d
 h

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t
h
e
 v

ic
in

it
y
 

o
f 
th

e
 s

it
e
 

 C
a
r 

C
lu

b
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 -

 

p
a
y
a
b
le

 t
o
 C

it
y
C

a
rC

lu
b
 t
o
 

e
n
a
b
le

 C
it
y
C

a
rC

lu
b
 t
o
 s

e
t 
u
p
 

a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 C
a
r 

C
lu

b
 f
o
r 

th
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 
o
f 
R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

n
o
n
-R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

. 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 -

 i
n
 

re
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 b

y
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 o

f 

p
re

-s
c
h
o
o
l,
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 a
n
d
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

c
h
il
d
re

n
 o

f 
th

e
 R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

  

C
P

Z
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 -

  
in

 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 
th

e
 C

o
n
tr

o
ll
e
d
 P

a
rk

in
g
 

Z
o
n
e

W
it
h
in

 3
 y

e
a
rs

 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 d

a
te

 o
f 

re
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 

p
a
y
m

e
n
t 

 £
2
5
,0

0
0

£
1
2
,5

0
0

£
1
6
1
,6

3
6

£
7
5
,0

0
0

£
0

£
0
.0

0
P

a
y
m

e
n
t 
d
u
e
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 o

c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
1
s
t 
R

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

u
n
it
 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
1

P
a
g
e
 9

Page 219



In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 O
n
ly

. 
S

1
0
6
 E

N
F

IE
L
D

 N
O

R
T

H
 C

O
N

S
T

IT
U

E
N

C
Y

D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
r

T
P

 N
u
m

b
e
r 

/ 
S

it
e
 

A
d
d
re

s
s
 

a
n
d

W
a
rd

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

D
e
ta

il
s
 o

f 
O

b
li
g
a
ti
o
n
s
/W

o
rk

s
 

a
u
th

o
ri

s
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

fu
n
d
s

S
p
e
n
d
 D

e
a
d
li
n
e
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

O
b
li
g
a
ti
o
n
 

S
u
m

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 

to
 d

a
te

 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

in
te

re
s
t 
w

h
e
re

 

a
c
c
ru

e
d
)

A
v
a
il
a
b
le

 

b
a
la

n
c
e
 a

s
 o

f 

0
1
/0

2
/2

0
1
1

F
u
n
d
s
 a

ll
o
c
a
te

d
/a

v
a
il
a
b
le

 f
o
r 

 s
p
e
n
d

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

/O
ff
ic

e
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

s
p
e
n
d

S
T

A
T

U
S

 

A
 &

 M
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 

D
e
v
. 
L
im

it
e
d

S
il
v
e
r 

S
tr

e
e
t,
 

E
n
fi
e
ld

 T
o
w

n
 

T
P

/0
8
/1

7
3
3
 T

O
W

N

E
re

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 p

a
rt

 4
, 
p
a
rt

 5
-s

to
re

y
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
in

g
 

3
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
u
n
it
s
 t
o
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r 

w
it
h
 1

4
 s

e
lf
-

c
o
n
ta

in
e
d
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
u
n
it
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 (

1
 x

 s
tu

d
io

, 
2
 x

 1
-

b
e
d
, 
9
 x

 2
-b

e
d
 a

n
d
 2

 x
 3

 b
e
d
),

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 c

y
c
le

 a
n
d
 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
in

g
 a

re
a
 t
o
 r

e
a
r.

 A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 

s
ig

n
e
d

 0
8
.1

2
.0

8

S
e
c
u
ri

ty
 -

 I
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
to

 

in
s
ta

ll
in

g
 C

C
T

V
 c

a
m

e
ra

s
 a

n
d
 

re
lo

c
a
ti
n
g
/r

e
m

o
v
in

g
 p

la
n
t 

e
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 
lo

c
a
te

d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

fo
o
tw

a
y
 o

f 
th

e
 l
a
n
d
 &

 t
o
 p

a
y
 

a
c
tu

a
l 
c
o
s
ts

 o
f 
in

s
ta

ll
in

g
. 
x
 2

 

p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

  

 O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 -

 

to
w

a
rd

s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 o

p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

v
ic

in
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

N
o
 d

e
a
d
li
n
e
 

£
1
,5

0
0

tb
c
 

£
5
0
,0

0
0

£
0

£
0
.0

0
P

a
y
m

e
n
t 
d
u
e
 o

n
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

L
B

E
 &

 

H
e
tt
ia

ra
c
h
c
h
ig

e
 

D
is

s
a
n
a
y
a
k
e
 &

 

M
a
rc

 

D
is

s
a
n
a
y
a
k
e
 

L
im

it
e
d

F
o
rm

e
r 

M
e
rr

y
h
il
ls

 

L
ib

ra
ry

/C
li
n
ic

 

E
n
fi
e
ld

 R
o
a
d
, 

E
n
fi
e
ld

 E
N

2
 7

H
L
 

T
P

/0
8
/1

9
5
1
 

H
IG

H
L
A

N
D

S
 

R
e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
it
e
 b

y
 t
h
e
 e

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 d

e
ta

c
h
e
d
 

3
-s

to
re

y
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 n
e
w

 g
ro

u
p
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 

D
o
c
to

rs
 S

u
rg

e
ry

 o
n
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r 

a
n
d
 1

4
 x

 2
-b

e
d
 f
la

ts
 

o
n
 f
ir

s
t 
a
n
d
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 f
lo

o
rs

 w
it
h
 b

a
lc

o
n
ie

s
 t
o
 b

o
th

 s
id

e
s
 

a
t 
fi
rs

t 
a
n
d
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 f
lo

o
r 

le
v
e
l.
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 

2
3
.0

1
.0

9

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 -

 f
o
r 

th
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
w

a
it
in

g
 

re
s
tr

ic
ti
o
n
s
/d

is
a
b
le

d
 p

a
rk

in
g
 

b
a
y
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

, 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 

d
ro

p
 k

e
rb

s
, 
s
tr

e
e
t 
tr

e
e
s
 a

n
d
 

s
tr

e
e
t 
fu

rn
it
u
re

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 a

re
a
 

W
it
h
in

 3
 y

e
a
rs

 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 d

a
te

 o
f 

re
c
e
ip

t.

£
2
5
,0

0
0

£
0

£
0
.0

0
P

a
y
m

e
n
t 
d
u
e
 o

n
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

L
B

E
 &

 L
e
g
a
l 
&

 

G
e
n
e
ra

l 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

S
o
c
ie

ty
 L

im
it
e
d

F
o
rm

e
r 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

 5
7
 

s
to

c
k
in

g
s
w

a
te

r 

L
a
n
e
 E

N
3
 7

P
H

 

T
P

/0
9
/0

0
2
8
  

E
N

F
IE

L
D

 

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

E
re

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
in

g
le

 u
n
it
 f
o
r 

u
s
e
 w

it
h
in

 C
la

s
s
e
s
 B

1
(c

) 

(l
ig

h
t 
in

d
u
s
tr

ia
l)

, 
B

2
 (

g
e
n
e
ra

l 
in

d
u
s
tr

ia
l)

 a
n
d
 B

8
 

(s
to

ra
g
e
/d

is
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
),

 w
it
h
 a

n
c
il
la

ry
 o

ff
ic

e
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 l
o
a
d
in

g
 b

a
y
s
, 
p
a
rk

in
g
 

a
n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 M

il
lm

a
rs

h
 L

a
n
e
 v

ia
 D

e
lt
a
 w

o
rk

s
. 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 1
8
.0

5
.0

9

R
iv

e
rs

id
e
 W

a
lk

 -
 P

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 r

iv
e
rs

id
e
 

w
a
lk

 a
d
ja

c
e
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 l
a
n
d
 a

n
d
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
 

W
it
h
in

 5
 y

e
a
rs

 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 d

a
te

 o
f 

re
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 

p
a
y
m

e
n
t 

£
1
1
0
,0

0
0

£
0

£
0
.0

0
P

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 d
u
e
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
1

P
a
g
e
 1

0

Page 220



In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
n

ly
 

S
1

0
6

 S
O

U
T

H
G

A
T

E
 C

O
N

S
T

IT
U

E
N

C
Y

D
e

v
e

lo
p

e
r

T
P

 N
u

m
b

e
r 

/ 
S

it
e

 

A
d

d
re

s
s
 

a
n

d

W
a

rd

D
e

s
c
ri

p
ti
o

n
 o

f 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

D
e

ta
il
s
 o

f 
O

b
li
g

a
ti
o

n
s
/W

o
rk

s
 

a
u

th
o

ri
s
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 

fu
n

d
s

S
p

e
n

d
 D

e
a

d
li
n

e
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

O
b

li
g

a
ti
o

n
 

S
u

m
 

re
c
e

iv
e

d
 t

o
 

d
a

te
 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

in
te

re
s
t 

w
h

e
re

 

a
c
c
ru

e
d

)

A
v
a

il
a

b
le

 

b
a

la
n

c
e

 a
s
 o

f 

0
1

/0
2

/2
0

1
1

F
u

n
d

s
 a

ll
o

c
a

te
d

/a
v
a

il
a

b
le

 f
o

r 
 s

p
e

n
d

D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 

/O
ff

ic
e

r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

s
p

e
n

d

S
T

A
T

U
S

 

C
o
u
n
tr

y 
&

 

M
e
tr

o
p
o
lit

a
n
 

H
o
m

e
s

5
5
, 

C
h
a
s
e
v
ill

e
 P

a
rk

 

R
o
a
d
 S

O
U

T
H

G
A

T
E

 

T
P

/9
6
/0

1
9
3

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
n
e
w

 f
o
o
tp

a
th

/c
yc

le
w

a
y 

lin
k
 t

o
 r

e
a
r 

o
f 

N
o
. 

5
5
 

C
h
a
s
e
v
ill

e
 P

a
rk

 R
o
a
d
 a

n
d
 u

p
g
ra

d
in

g
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 v

e
h
ic

le
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 5

5
 C

h
a
s
e
v
ill

e
 P

a
rk

 R
o
a
d
/ 

1
2
 C

h
a
s
e
v
ill

e
 

P
a
ra

d
e
 t

o
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 n

e
w

 f
o
o
tp

a
th

/c
yc

le
w

a
y.

 A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 

s
ig

n
e
d

 0
1
.1

1
.9

9

H
ig

h
w

a
ys

 C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 -

 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 

w
o
rk

s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 E

n
g
in

e
e
r 

s
h
a
ll 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 u
n
d
e
r 

th
is

 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t.

N
o

n
e

 s
p

e
c
if
ie

d
.

£
1
,5

0
0

£
1
,5

6
2

£
1

,5
6

1
.6

6
 

(C
T

0
0

7
9

)

£
1
,5

0
0
 H

ig
h
w

a
ys

 w
o
rk

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 v

ic
in

it
y 

o
f 

C
h
a
s
e
 R

o
a
d
 

A
2
0
0
2
6
3

L
ia

m
 

M
u

lr
o

o
n

e
y
 

M
u
s
lim

 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 C

e
n
tr

e

S
p
o
rt

s
 G

ro
u
n
d
, 

O
a
k
th

o
rp

e
 R

o
a
d
, 

N
1
3

T
P

/9
8
/0

8
8
5

P
A

L
M

E
R

S
 G

R
E

E
N

 

E
re

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

a
n
d
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 c

e
n
tr

e
 (

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 

m
o
s
q
u
e
, 

n
u
rs

e
ry

/m
u
lt
i-
fu

n
c
ti
o
n
 h

a
ll,

 t
e
a
c
h
in

g
 r

o
o
m

s
, 

lib
ra

ry
, 

k
it
c
h
e
n
/d

in
in

g
, 

im
a
m

/c
a
re

ta
k
e
rs

 f
la

t 
a
n
d
 a

n
c
ill

a
ry

 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
) 

a
n
d
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

a
rk

in
g
 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 t

o
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
m

a
te

ri
a
ls

, 
h
a
rd

 s
u
rf

a
c
in

g
, 

le
v
e
ls

, 
e
n
c
lo

s
u
re

, 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
, 

re
fu

s
e
 s

to
ra

g
e
, 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
in

g
 a

re
a
, 

w
h
e
e
l 
c
le

a
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 

lig
h
ti
n
g
. 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 2
3
.0

2
.0

1

T
ra

ff
ic

 &
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 -
 

to
w

a
rd

s
 t

ra
ff

ic
 c

a
lm

in
g

 

m
e

a
s
u

re
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 i
m

m
e

d
ia

te
 

v
ic

in
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e

N
o

 d
e

a
d

li
n

e
 

£
5
,0

0
0

£
5
,0

0
0

£
2

,9
0

8
.4

2
 

(C
T

0
1

3
9

)

£
5

,0
0

0
 A

2
0

0
1

5
9

  
Y

e
ll
o

w
 l
in

e
s
 O

a
k
th

o
rp

e
 R

o
a

d
. 

F
u

n
d

s
 w

il
l 
b

e
 d

d
 t

h
is

 y
e

a
r.

 

S
te

v
e
 J

a
g
g
a
rd

 

F
u
rl
o
n
g
 H

o
m

e
s
 

L
td

1
-2

3
 L

in
d
e
n
 W

a
y 

N
1
4

0
1
/1

4
6
4

 S
O

U
T

H
G

A
T

E
 

E
re

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
1
8
 x

 f
o
u
r 

b
e
d
ro

o
m

 t
o
w

n
h
o
u
s
e
s
 i
n
 4

 t
h
re

e
 s

to
re

y 

b
lo

c
k
s
 a

n
d
 a

 d
e
ta

c
h
e
d
 3

 b
e
d
ro

o
m

 h
o
u
s
e
 t

o
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 

w
id

e
n
in

g
 o

f 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 r

o
a
d
 (

T
h
e
 R

ye
),

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 r

e
m

o
v
a
l 
o
f 

1
6
 t

re
e
s
. 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 

1
9
.0

3
.0

3

T
ra

ff
ic

 &
 T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

a
ti
o
n
 -

 

to
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

in
tr

o
d
u
c
in

g
 

a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 e

n
fo

rc
e
a
b
le

 

w
a
it
in

g
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o
n
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 i
n
 

a
n
d
 c

lo
s
e
 t

o
 T

h
e
 R

ye
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

s
ig

n
 p

o
s
ts

 a
n
d
 r

o
a
d
 m

a
rk

in
g
s
 

N
o

 d
e

a
d

li
n

e
 

£
6
,0

0
0

£
6
,3

6
8

£
6

,1
1

2
.2

2
 

(C
T

0
1

4
9

)

£
2
,0

0
0
 W

a
it
in

g
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o
n
s
 A

2
0
0
1
5
8
. 

W
o
rk

s
 t

a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 

b
e
  

d
d
 t

h
is

 y
e
a
r

D
a
v
id

 O
x
le

y 

K
E

Y
 

U
n
a
llo

c
a
te

d
 s

1
0
6
 m

o
n
ie

s
  

P
ro

je
c
ts

 t
h
a
t 

a
re

 s
ti
ll 

b
e
in

g
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 

P
ro

je
c
ts

 t
h
a
t 

a
re

 c
o
m

m
it
te

d

P
ro

je
c
ts

 w
h
e
re

 m
o
n
ie

s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 s

p
e
n
t 

  

P
ro

je
c
ts

 t
h
a
t 

a
re

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

lo
s
e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
ye

a
r 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

. 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
1

P
a

g
e

 1

Page 221



In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
n

ly
 

S
1

0
6

 S
O

U
T

H
G

A
T

E
 C

O
N

S
T

IT
U

E
N

C
Y

C
o

rn
e

r 
H

o
m

e
s
 

T
o

w
e

r 
P

o
in

t,
 

S
y
d

n
e

y
 R

o
a

d
, 

E
n

fi
e

ld
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

9
9

/0
6

1
5

C
o

n
v
e

rs
io

n
 o

f 
b

u
il
d

in
g

 i
n

to
 1

4
7

 s
e

lf
-c

o
n

ta
in

e
d

 f
la

ts
 

in
v
o

lv
in

g
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
s
 a

t 
ro

o
f 

le
v
e

l 
a

n
d

 3
/4

th
 f

lo
o

r 
le

v
e

l,
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

b
a

lc
o

n
ie

s
 t

o
 a

ll
 e

le
v
a

ti
o

n
s
, 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
 

h
e

a
lt
h

 c
lu

b
 a

n
d

 a
n

c
il
la

ry
 r

e
ta

il
 u

n
it
 o

n
 t

h
e

 g
ro

u
n

d
 a

n
d

 

fi
rs

t 
fl
o

o
r 

o
f 

th
e

 b
u

il
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 

p
a

rk
in

g
 f

a
c
il
it
ie

s
 (

R
e

v
is

e
d

 S
c
h

e
m

e
).

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

s
ig

n
e

d
 2

9
.0

2
.0

0

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 -
 

to
w

a
rd

s
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 

in
 t

h
e

 v
ic

in
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 l
a

n
d

 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 p

a
y
a

b
le

 i
n

 

in
s
ta

lm
e

n
ts

-

u
p

o
n

 c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
e

a
c
h

 f
la

t 

p
e

rm
it
te

d

N
o

n
e

 
£

5
3

,0
0

0

£
1

7
2

,0
0

0

£
6

9
,7

4
6

.8
8

£
1

5
5

,9
1

9
.3

1

£
7

,0
0

4
.8

7
 

(C
T

0
0

7
5

)

£
7

,4
7

5
.3

0
 

(C
T

0
0

7
4

)

A
2

0
0

2
2

5
 I

m
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 E
n

fi
e

ld
 T

o
w

n
 

F
in

a
l 
w

o
rk

s
 b

e
in

g
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 

-   C
3

8
0

1
2

0
 A

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 

S
te

v
e

 J
a

g
g

a
rd

 S
a

ra
h

 C
a

rt
e

r

S
a
in

s
b
u
ry

s
 &

 

C
o
u
n
tr

y 
/ 

M
e
t 

h
o
m

e
s
 p

lc

-

L
a
n
d
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

H
ig

h
la

n
d
s
 V

ill
a
g
e
 

S
it
e
, 

W
o
rl
d
s
 E

n
d
 

L
a
n
e
, 

L
o
n
d
o
n
, 

N
2
1
  

  
  

  
  

 

9
9
/0

5
8
5
  

 

S
O

U
T

H
G

A
T

E
 

V
ill

a
g
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

c
o
m

p
ri
s
in

g
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

fo
o
d
 

re
ta

il 
s
to

re
 (

2
2
4
8
 s

q
. 

m
e
tr

e
s
),

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 h
e
a
lt
h
 c

a
re

 c
e
n
tr

e
, 

p
h
a
rm

a
c
y,

 v
ill

a
g
e
 h

a
ll 

w
it
h
 o

ff
ic

e
s
 a

b
o
v
e
, 

a
n
d
 n

u
rs

e
ry

, 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 r

o
a
d
 w

o
rk

s
. 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 2
2
.0

6
.0

0

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 -

to
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 

fo
o

tp
a

th
s
/c

y
c
le

 w
a

y
s
 i
n

 

L
o

n
s
d

a
le

 D
ri

v
e

 a
n

d
 B

a
y
li
s
s
 

C
lo

s
e

F
if
th

 a
n

n
iv

e
rs

a
ry

 

o
f 

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
  

(D
e

a
d

li
n

e
 

s
u

rp
a

s
s
e

d
) 

£
2

5
,0

0
0

£
2

5
,0

0
0

£
7

,8
1

2
.0

9
 

(C
T

0
0

9
0

)

A
2

0
0

1
0

5
 L

a
n

d
 o

w
n

e
r 

to
 b

e
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

e
d

 t
o

 a
g

re
e

 a
 

s
o

lu
ti
o

n
. 

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
ro

b
le

m
 i
n

 B
a

y
li
s
s
 c

lo
s
e

 

S
te

v
e

 J
a

g
g

a
rd

 

R
a

in
b

o
w

 

E
s
ta

te
s
 L

td

F
o

rm
e

r 
ra

il
w

a
y
 

s
id

in
g

s
, 

S
ta

ti
o

n
 

Y
a

rd
 N

1
1

 9
8

/0
4

0
6

  
  

  
  

 

9
8

/0
4

0
6

/1

9
8

/0
4

0
6

/2
 

S
O

U
T

H
G

A
T

E
 

G
R

E
E

N
 

H
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 l
e

is
u

re
 c

e
n

tr
e

, 
a

n
d

 s
e

lf
 s

to
ra

g
e

 f
a

c
il
it
y
 

w
it
h

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 r

o
a

d
, 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

s
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 

p
a

rk
in

g
 (

O
u

tl
in

e
).

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

s
ig

n
e

d
 0

5
.0

5
.9

9

T
ra

ff
ic

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

W
o

rk
s
 -

 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e

 c
o

s
t 

o
f 

c
a

rr
y
in

g
 o

u
t 

b
y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il
 

T
ra

ff
ic

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

W
o

rk
s
 

M
a

y
-0

4
£

5
,0

0
0

£
7

,3
0

3
.3

4
£

7
,3

0
3

.3
4

 

(C
T

0
0

6
2

)

£
5

,0
0

0
 F

o
rm

e
r 

R
a

il
w

a
y
 S

id
in

g
s
 S

ta
ti
o

n
 Y

a
rd

 -
 

W
a

it
in

g
 R

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o

n
s
  

W
o

rk
s
 u

n
d

e
r 

A
2

0
0

2
5

7
 a

re
 s

ti
ll
 b

e
in

g
 l
o

o
k
e

d
 a

t 
b

y
 

T
&

T
 a

n
d

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
. 

D
a

v
e

 O
x
le

y
 

T
h

e
 P

a
ro

c
h

ia
l 

C
h

u
rc

h
 C

o
u

n
c
il

S
t 

J
o

h
n

s
 C

 o
f 

E
 

C
h

u
rc

h
 B

o
u

rn
e

 H
il
l 

N
1

3
 T

P
/0

2
/1

0
0

8
 

W
IN

C
H

M
O

R
E

 H
IL

L
 S

in
g

le
 s

to
re

y
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 a

t 
re

a
r 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 f

ro
 y

o
u

th
/c

h
u

rc
h

 g
ro

u
p

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 

a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 f
a

c
il
it
ie

s
. 

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

s
ig

n
e

d
 2

4
.0

1
.0

8

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
- 

to
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 o
f 

th
e

 

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 

o
f 

a
 p

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

 c
ro

s
s
in

g
 o

v
e

r 

B
o

u
rn

e
 H

o
ll
 b

y
 H

o
p

p
e

rs
 R

o
a

d

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
2

£
1

0
,0

0
0

£
1

0
,5

0
8

.0
0

£
1

0
,5

0
8

 

(C
T

0
2

1
7

) 

£
3

1
,0

0
0

 Z
e

b
ra

 C
ro

s
s
in

g
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 w
o

rk
s
 a

t 

B
o

u
rn

e
 H

il
l 
li
n

k
e

d
 t

o
 C

T
0

2
0

7
 &

 C
T

0
2

1
7

.

E
d

 J
e

ff
e

rs
o

n
 

N
ic

o
n

 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 

L
td

L
a

n
d

 r
e

a
r 

o
f 

3
6

9
-

3
7

1
 C

o
c
k
fo

s
te

rs
 R

d
 

H
a

d
le

y
 

W
o

o
d

0
3

/1
0

6
7

0
4

/0
7

1
8

0
6

/0
5

9
6

 

C
O

C
K

F
O

S
T

E
R

S
 

R
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

s
it
e

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t

w
o

 s
in

g
le

 f
a

m
il
y
 

d
w

e
ll
in

g
 h

o
u

s
e

s
 w

it
h

 r
o

o
m

s
 i
n

 r
o

o
f 

in
c
o

rp
o

ra
ti
n

g
 

d
o

rm
e

r 
w

in
d

o
w

s
 t

o
 s

id
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
a

r 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 

d
e

ta
c
h

e
d

 g
a

ra
g

e
s
 w

it
h

 p
it
c
h

e
d

 r
o

o
fs

 a
n

d
 d

o
rm

e
r 

w
in

d
o

w
s
. 

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

s
ig

n
e

d
 1

6
.1

0
.0

6

T
ra

ff
ic

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 -

 

to
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e

 c
o

s
ts

 o
f 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 

e
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
 s

p
e

e
d

 s
ig

n
s
 o

r 

o
th

e
r 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 m
e

a
s
u

re
s
 

d
e

s
ig

n
e

d
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 r
o

a
d

 

s
a

fe
ty

 

N
o

 d
e

a
d

li
n

e
 

£
1

0
,0

0
0

£
1

1
,2

9
3

.2
9

£
3

,8
6

0
.9

3
 

(C
T

0
1

9
2

) 

£
1

0
,0

0
0

 R
o

a
d

 S
a

fe
ty

 M
e

a
s
u

re
s
 A

2
0

0
2

2
2

T
&

T

T
h
e
 B

a
n
k
 o

f 

C
yp

ru
s

9
5
, 

9
5
A

,9
7
 C

h
a
s
e
 

s
id

e
 &

p
a
rt

 o
f 

8
7
-9

3
 

C
h
a
s
e
 S

id
e
 N

1
4

T
P

/0
4
/2

3
6
6

S
O

U
T

H
G

A
T

E

C
o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
 o

f 
p
re

m
is

e
s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 B
a
n
k
 b

ra
n
c
h
 i
n
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 a

d
ja

c
e
n
t 

b
a
n
k
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 a

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 o

f 

u
s
e
 o

f 
g
ro

u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

o
f 

n
o
. 

9
5
 C

h
a
s
e
 S

id
e
 f

ro
m

 a
 L

a
u
n
d
re

tt
e
, 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 i
n
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 o

f 
n
e
w

 s
h
o
p
 f

ro
n
t 

to
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

8
7
 -

 9
3
 

C
h
a
s
e
 S

id
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

s
h
o
p
 f

ro
n
ts

 w
it
h
 c

la
d
d
in

g
 

a
n
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

o
 9

5
, 

9
5
a
 a

n
d
 9

7
 C

h
a
s
e
 S

id
e
. 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 

s
ig

n
e
d

 2
6
.0

7
.0

5

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 -
 

to
w

a
rd

s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 

v
ic

in
it
y 

o
f 

th
e
 S

o
u
th

g
a
te

 T
o
w

n
 

N
o

 d
e

a
d

li
n

e
 

2
0
,0

0
0

2
0
,0

0
0

£
5

7
9

.6
9

 

(C
T

0
1

8
1

)

£
2

0
,0

0
0

 A
2

0
0

1
8

8
 S

o
u

th
g

a
te

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 

J
o
h
n
 G

ri
m

e
s
 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
1

P
a

g
e

 2

Page 222



In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
n

ly
 

S
1

0
6

 S
O

U
T

H
G

A
T

E
 C

O
N

S
T

IT
U

E
N

C
Y

L
e

s
li
e

 

P
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 L

td

C
e

d
a

r 
H

o
u

s
e

, 
6

9
8

, 

G
re

e
n

 L
a

n
e

s
, 

N
2

1

W
IN

C
H

M
O

R
E

 

H
IL

L
T

P
/0

4
/2

1
1

7

s
u

p
e

rs
e

d
e

d
 b

y
 

T
P

/0
6

/1
2

7
5

D
e

m
o

li
ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 b

u
il
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 n

u
rs

e
ry

 

a
n

d
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
u

s
e

 o
f 

re
m

a
in

in
g

 b
u

il
d

in
g

 f
ro

m
 o

ff
ic

e
s
 

to
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
in

v
o

lv
in

g
 e

re
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 p
a

rt
 2

-s
to

re
y
, 

p
a

rt
 3

-s
to

re
y
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 9

 x
 2

-b
e

d
 f

la
ts

, 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it
h

 e
re

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 3
-s

to
re

y
 b

lo
c
k
 o

f 
1

1
 x

 t
w

o
-

b
e

d
 f

la
ts

 a
t 

re
a

r 
o

f 
s
it
e

, 
w

it
h

 b
a

lc
o

n
ie

s
 a

n
d

 r
o

o
f 

te
rr

a
c
e

s
, 

a
n

d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 c
a

r 
p

a
rk

in
g

 w
it
h

 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 v

ia
 H

ig
h

fi
e

ld
 R

o
a

d
 (

a
m

e
n

d
e

d
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 t

o
 

R
e

f:
T

P
/0

4
/2

1
1

7
).

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

s
ig

n
e

d
 2

7
.0

2
.0

6

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
-

to
w

a
rd

s
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 

w
a

it
in

g
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 

H
ig

h
fi
e

ld
 R

o
a

d
, 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 f
o

o
tw

a
y
s
 i
n

 H
ig

h
fi
e

ld
 

R
o

a
d

, 
a

n
d

 a
n

y
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 

h
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 w

o
rk

s

N
o

 d
e

a
d

li
n

e
 

£
1

5
,0

0
0

£
1

7
, 

0
1

2
.8

4
£

1
7

,0
1

2
.8

4
 

(C
T

0
1

8
8

) 

£
1

5
,0

0
0

 H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 W

o
rk

s
 A

2
0

0
0

2
7

. 
H

ig
h

w
a

y
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 9

0
%

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 d

d
 1

0
/1

1

S
te

v
e

 J
a

g
g

a
rd

 

M
ic

h
a

e
le

d
e

s
6

 B
o

u
rn

e
 H

il
l

W
. 

H
il
lw

e
n

d
 

T
P

/0
6

/0
4

2
7

 

W
IN

C
H

M
O

R
E

 H
IL

L

C
h

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

u
s
e

 o
f 

p
e

tr
o

l 
s
ta

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
h

o
p

 t
o

 a
 h

a
n

d
 

c
a

r 
w

a
s
h

 f
a

c
il
it
y
 w

it
h

 s
h

o
p

 a
n

d
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 
s
e

a
ti
n

g
 

a
re

a
. 

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

s
ig

n
e

d
 1

5
.0

5
.0

7
 L

in
k
e

d
 t

o
 

T
P

/0
2

/1
0

0
8

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
-

fo
r 

th
e

 p
u

rp
o

s
e

 o
f 

in
s
ta

ll
in

g
 a

 

z
e

b
ra

 c
ro

s
s
in

g
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 

v
ic

in
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 L

a
n

d
 

1
4

.0
5

.2
0

1
2

£
2

3
,0

0
0

£
2

4
,2

7
6

£
1

7
, 

4
1

6
.5

3
 

(C
T

0
2

0
7

) 

£
3

1
,0

0
0

 Z
e

b
ra

 C
ro

s
s
in

g
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 w
o

rk
s
 a

t 

B
o

u
rn

e
 H

il
l 
A

2
0

0
2

4
0

 l
in

k
e

d
 t

o
 C

T
0

2
0

7
 &

 C
T

0
2

1
7

E
d

w
a

rd
 

J
e

ff
e

rs
o

n
 

J
D

 

W
e

th
e

rs
p

o
o

n

3
1

6
-3

2
2

 G
re

e
n

 

L
a

n
e

s
  

  

T
P

/0
1

/1
0

1
2

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

S
O

U
T

H
G

A
T

E
 

C
h

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

u
s
e

 f
ro

m
 r

e
ta

il
 (

A
1

) 
to

 t
ra

d
it
io

n
a

l 
a

le
 b

a
r 

s
e

ll
in

g
 f

o
o

d
 a

n
d

 w
in

e
 (

A
3

).
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
s
ig

n
e

d
 t

b
c

 

S
a

fe
ty

 C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 -

 

to
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e

 i
n

s
ta

ll
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

C
C

T
V

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

v
ic

in
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 o

r 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 

N
o

 d
e

a
d

li
n

e
 

£
1

5
,0

0
0

£
1

6
,5

5
5

£
2

,4
0

2
.8

1
 

(C
T

0
2

0
6

) 

U
n

a
ll
o

c
a

te
d

. 

S
o

u
ti
ri

s
 

J
o

a
n

n
o

u
 a

n
d

 

F
o

to
u

ll
a

 

J
o

a
n

n
o

u

2
 G

re
e

n
 D

ra
g

o
n

 

L
a

n
e

 W
in

c
h

m
o

re
 

H
il
l 
N

2
1

 2
L

D
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

G
R

A
N

G
E

 

T
P

/0
7

/2
1

8
8

C
h

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

u
s
e

 o
f 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
p

re
m

is
e

s
 (

g
ro

u
n

d
 f

lo
o

r)
 f

ro
m

 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
to

 C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 N

u
rs

e
ry

 f
o

r 
m

a
x
im

u
m

 o
f 

1
8

 

c
h

il
d

re
n

 (
a

g
e

d
 6

m
th

s
 -

 4
 y

rs
) 

in
v
o

lv
in

g
 e

re
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 r

a
m

p
 t

o
 f

ro
n

t 
a

n
d

 a
 s

in
g

le
 s

to
re

y
 r

e
a

r 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 (

re
v
is

e
d

 s
c
h

e
m

e
).

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

s
ig

n
e

d
 

1
8

.0
9

.0
8

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
-

to
w

a
rd

s
 w

a
it
in

g
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o

n
s
, 

ro
a

d
 m

a
rk

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 s
ig

n
a

g
e

 

a
ro

u
n

d
 t

u
rn

in
g

 H
e

a
d

 i
n

 B
u

s
h

 

H
il
l 
a

n
d

 r
e

in
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 

p
u

b
li
c
 f

o
o

tw
a

y
 o

n
 G

re
e

n
 

D
ra

g
o

n
 L

a
n

e

N
o

 d
e

a
d

li
n

e
 

£
4

,0
0

0
£

4
,0

8
6

£
2

,6
0

8
.2

4
 

(C
T

0
2

2
6

) 

£
4

,0
0

0
 H

ig
h

w
a

y
s
 W

o
rk

s
 a

t 
G

re
e

n
 D

ra
g

o
n

 L
a

n
e

 

A
2

0
0

2
5

6

M
ic

k
 P

o
n

d
 

T
h

o
m

a
s
 

W
il
li
a

m
 P

a
rk

e
r 

a
n

d
 T

W
 P

a
rk

e
r 

(P
a

lm
e

rs
 

G
re

e
n

)

9
0

/1
2

0
 G

re
e

n
 

L
a

n
e

s
, 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 N
1

3
 

5
U

P
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

P
A

L
M

E
R

S
 G

R
E

E
N

 

T
P

/0
9

/0
4

2
3

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

T
P

/0
9

/0
4

2
3

/N
M

1

E
re

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 t
o

ta
l 
o

f 
3

8
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
u

n
it
s
 (

c
o

m
p

ri
s
in

g
 

1
0

 x
 1

-b
e

d
, 

1
3

 x
 2

-b
e

d
, 

1
5

 x
 3

-b
e

d
) 

in
c
o

rp
o

ra
ti
n

g
 3

0
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 u

n
it
s
, 

a
n

d
 2

6
8

 s
q

m
. 

C
la

s
s
 A

1
-A

5
 

u
s
e

 f
lo

o
rs

p
a

c
e

 i
n

 a
 3

 a
n

d
 5

-s
to

re
y
 b

u
il
d

in
g

, 
in

v
o

lv
in

g
 

c
a

r 
p

a
rk

in
g

 t
o

 r
e

a
r 

w
it
h

 a
m

e
n

it
y
 d

e
c
k
in

g
 o

v
e

r,
 

a
c
c
e

s
s
e

d
 v

ia
 R

e
g

e
n

ts
 A

v
e

n
u

e
. 

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

s
ig

n
e

d
 

2
0

.0
7

.1
0

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 -

 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 t

h
e

 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

e
a

rl
y
 

y
e

a
rs

/c
h

il
d

c
a

re
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 

fo
r 

s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
p

la
c
e

s
 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 a
re

a
 

 A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 

O
p

e
n

 S
p

a
c
e

 C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 -

  

to
w

a
rd

s
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 n

a
tu

ra
l 

p
la

y
 f

a
c
il
it
ie

s
 a

t 
B

ro
o

m
fi
e

ld
 

P
a

rk
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 

m
e

a
s
u

re
s
 

 U
n

il
a

te
ra

l 
U

n
d

e
rt

a
k
in

g
 O

p
e

n
 

S
p

a
c
e

 C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 -

 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
 n

a
tu

ra
l 
p

la
y
 

fa
c
il
it
ie

s
 a

t 
B

ro
o

m
fi
e

ld
 P

a
rk

 

a
n

d
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 m
e

a
s
u

re
s

W
it
h

in
 1

0
 y

e
a

rs
 

o
f 

th
e

 r
e

c
e

ip
t 

o
f 

p
a

y
m

e
n

t 

£
8

5
,3

3
7

1
8

 u
n

it
s
 

   £
3

5
,0

0
0

 

  £
2

,3
7

7
.0

4

£
0

N
/A

   £
0

  £
2

,3
7

7
.0

4

N
/A

N
/A

   N
/A

 

  £
2

,3
7

7
.0

4
 

C
T

0
2

5
0

P
a

y
m

e
n

t 
d

u
e

 w
it
h

in
 9

 m
o

n
th

s
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

-    P
a

y
m

e
n

t 
d

u
e

 w
it
h

in
 9

 m
o

n
th

s
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

  P
la

y
 f

a
c
il
it
ie

s
 a

t 
B

ro
o

m
fi
e

ld
 P

a
rk

. 
P

a
rk

s
 n

o
ti
fi
e

d

N
/A

N
/A

   N
/A

 

  T
o

n
y
 C

o
rr

ig
a

n
 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
1

P
a

g
e

 3

Page 223



In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
n

ly
 

S
1

0
6

 S
O

U
T

H
G

A
T

E
 C

O
N

S
T

IT
U

E
N

C
Y

J
ic

a
m

a
 

h
o

ld
in

g
s
 L

td
 

L
a

n
d

 N
o

rt
h

 s
id

e
 o

f 

H
ig

h
fi
e

ld
 R

o
a

d
 

T
P

/1
0

/0
1

8
8

 

W
IN

C
H

M
O

R
E

 H
IL

L
 R

e
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

la
n

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 e
a

s
t 

o
f 

s
it
e

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 3

 

b
lo

c
k
s
 o

f 
3

 x
 2

-s
to

re
y
, 

3
-b

e
d

 t
e

rr
a

c
e

d
 h

o
u

s
e

s
 w

it
h

 

re
a

r 
d

o
rm

e
rs

 a
n

d
 o

ff
 s

tr
e

e
t 

p
a

rk
in

g
 a

t 
fr

o
n

t 
a

n
d

 n
e

w
 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 H

ig
h

fi
e

ld
 R

o
a

d
. 

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

s
ig

n
e

d
 t

b
c

 

L
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
in

g
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 -

 

fo
r 

th
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

s
e

m
i 

m
a

tu
re

 t
re

e
s
 a

lo
n

g
 t

h
e

 

p
a

v
e

m
e

n
t 

fr
o

n
ta

g
e

 i
n

 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 c
ro

s
s
o

v
e

rs

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 -

 

to
w

a
rd

s
 r

e
s
u

rf
a

c
in

g
 o

f 

p
a

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 n
e

w
 

v
e

h
ic

u
la

r 
c
ro

s
s
o

v
e

rs
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
m

o
v
a

l 
a

n
d

 

re
p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 n

e
w

 s
tr

e
e

t 

li
g

h
ti
n

g
  

tb
c

£
5

,0
0

0

£
8

,5
0

0

£
5

,0
0

0

£
8

,5
0

0

£
5

,0
0

0
 

(C
T

0
2

5
8

)

£
8

,5
0

0
 

(C
T

0
2

5
9

)

N
o

n
e

 a
s
 y

e
t 

a
s
 p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 h

a
v
e

 j
u

s
t 

c
o

m
e

 i
n

. 
T

o
n

y
 

C
o

rr
ig

a
n

 a
n

d
 S

te
v
e

 J
a

g
g

a
rd

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 n
o

ti
fi
e

d
. 

T
o

n
y
 C

o
rr

ig
a

n
 

S
te

v
e

 J
a

g
g

a
rd

 

F
a

ir
v
ie

w
 N

e
w

 

H
o

m
e

s

r/
o

 C
h

e
rr

y
 B

lo
s
s
o

m
 

C
lo

s
e

 a
n

d
 P

/F
 b

y
 

N
C

R
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

B
O

W
E

S
 

T
P

/0
6

/1
8

4
5

R
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

s
it
e

 f
o

r 
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

c
o

m
p

ri
s
in

g
 1

4
2

 u
n

it
s
 (

1
2

 h
o

u
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 1
3

0
 f

la
ts

) 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it
h

 o
p

e
n

 s
p

a
c
e

 f
o

r 
S

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 R
e

c
re

a
ti
o

n
 

U
s
e

 a
n

d
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 i
n

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 (

O
u

tl
in

e
 a

p
p

li
c
a

ti
o

n
 

- 
la

y
o

u
t,

 s
c
a

le
 a

n
d

 a
c
c
e

s
s
).

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

s
ig

n
e

d
 t

b
c

 

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 -

fo
r 

th
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
fa

c
il
it
ie

s
 w

it
h

in
 

th
e

 v
ic

in
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 l
a

n
d

 

A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 H

o
u

s
in

g

P
u

b
li
c
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

-

fo
r 

th
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

p
u

b
li
c
 

tr
a

n
s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 h

ig
h

w
a

y
s
 

fa
c
il
it
ie

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 v
ic

in
it
y
 o

f 

th
e

 l
a

n
d

 

S
p

o
rt

s
 a

n
d

 L
e

is
u

re
 F

a
c
il
it
y
 

L
a

n
d

-

D
e

ta
il
s
 o

f 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 f

o
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t,

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

, 

o
w

n
e

rs
h

ip
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 o
f 

s
p

o
rt

s
 

fa
c
il
it
ie

s
 l
a

n
d

 

P
u

b
li
c
 A

c
c
e

s
s
 

R
o

u
te

/A
d

jo
in

in
g

 L
a

n
d

 A
c
c
e

s
s
 

R
o

u
te

s

D
e

ta
il
s
 t

o
 b

e
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d

F
if
th

 a
n

n
iv

e
rs

a
ry

 

o
f 

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 

£
1

6
2

,0
0

0

3
6

 u
n

it
s
 

£
1

4
2

,0
0

0

 N
o

n
 m

o
n

e
ta

ry

N
o

n
 m

o
n

e
ta

ry

£
0

- £
0

 N
o

n
 

m
o

n
e

ta
ry

N
o

n
 

m
o

n
e

ta
ry

N
/A

P
a

y
m

e
n

t 
d

u
e

 w
it
h

in
 3

 m
o

n
th

s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
a

y
m

e
n

t 
d

u
e

 w
it
h

in
 3

 m
o

n
th

s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

 

N
/A

S
IG

N
E

D
 S

1
0

6
 A

G
R

E
E

M
E

N
T

S
 W

H
E

R
E

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 H
A

V
E

 N
O

T
 B

E
E

N
 R

E
C

E
IV

E
D

 Y
E

T

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
1

P
a

g
e

 4

Page 224



In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
n

ly
 

S
1

0
6

 S
O

U
T

H
G

A
T

E
 C

O
N

S
T

IT
U

E
N

C
Y

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 

L
o

n
d

o
n

H
y
d

e
r 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
in

g
 

(U
K

) 
L

im
it
e

d

A
4

0
6

 P
in

k
h

a
m

 

W
a

y
, 

N
1

1
 t

o
 

C
o

n
n

a
u

g
h

t 

G
a

rd
e

n
s
 N

1
3

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

S
O

U
T

H
G

A
T

E
 

G
R

E
E

N
T

P
/0

6
/2

3
6

0

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 S

a
fe

ty
 a

n
d

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

S
c
h

e
m

e
 i
n

v
o

lv
in

g
 w

id
e

n
in

g
 a

n
d

/o
r 

re
a

li
g

n
m

e
n

t 
o

f 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 c

a
rr

ia
g

e
w

a
y
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 d

e
m

o
li
ti
o

n
 o

f 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 

p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
, 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 t
h

e
 j
u

n
c
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 N

o
rt

h
 

C
ir

c
u

la
r 

R
o

a
d

 w
it
h

 B
o

u
n

d
s
 G

re
e

n
 R

o
a

d
, 

T
e

lf
o

rd
 

R
o

a
d

/W
il
m

e
r 

W
a

y
, 

B
ro

w
n

lo
w

 R
o

a
d

 a
n

d
 G

re
e

n
 

L
a

n
e

s
, 

m
o

d
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
o

th
e

r 
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
s
, 

th
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 

o
f 

n
e

w
 p

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

 c
ro

s
s
in

g
s
 a

n
d

 d
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 c

y
c
le

 

fa
c
il
it
ie

s
, 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it
h

 o
th

e
r 

a
n

c
il
la

ry
 w

o
rk

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

(f
e

n
c
in

g
 ,

 l
ig

h
ti
n

g
, 

la
n

d
s
c
a

p
in

g
).

 

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

s
ig

n
e

d
 1

1
.0

3
.0

8

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 S

a
fe

ty
 a

n
d

 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

S
c
h

e
m

e

Id
e

n
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 

li
n

e
 r

e
: 

a
n

 i
n

te
rm

e
d

ia
te

 

s
c
h

e
m

e
.

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 

to
w

a
rd

s
 A

ir
 Q

u
a

li
ty

 

M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
.

N
o

 d
e

a
d

li
n

e
 

N
o

n
 m

o
n

e
ta

ry

N
o

n
 m

o
n

e
ta

ry

£
4

5
,0

0
0

N
o

n
 m

o
n

e
ta

ry

N
o

n
 

m
o

n
e

ta
ry

N
o

n
 

m
o

n
e

ta
ry

P
a

y
m

e
n

t 

d
u

e
 

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

H
e

n
ry

 

H
o

m
e

s
/M

y
ra

 

C
u

lv
e

rh
o

u
s
e

T
P

/0
9

/1
6

8
3

 3
8

9
 

C
o

c
k
fo

s
te

rs
 R

o
a

d
, 

E
N

4
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
O

C
K

F
O

S
T

E
R

S
  

R
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

s
it
e

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 d
e

ta
c
h

e
d

 2
-s

to
re

y
 

b
lo

c
k
 o

f 
6

 f
la

ts
 (

c
o

m
p

ri
s
in

g
 5

 x
 2

-b
e

d
 a

n
d

 1
 x

 3
-b

e
d

) 

w
it
h

 r
o

o
m

s
 i
n

 b
a

s
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 r

o
o

f,
 b

a
s
e

m
e

n
t 

p
a

rk
in

g
 

a
n

d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 r

a
m

p
 a

n
d

 r
e

a
r 

te
rr

a
c
e

/ 
b

a
lc

o
n

y
 t

o
 g

ro
u

n
d

, 

fi
rs

t 
a

n
d

 s
e

c
o

n
d

 f
lo

o
r 

le
v
e

ls
. 

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

s
ig

n
e

d
 

2
6

.1
1

.1
0

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 -

 

to
w

a
rd

s
 c

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 

c
e

n
tr

e
 i
s
la

n
d

 a
n

d
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 

fo
o

tw
a

y
 w

o
rk

s
 i
n

 C
o

c
k
fo

s
te

rs
 

R
o

a
d

 

N
o

 d
e

a
d

li
n

e
 

 £
  

  
  

 1
0

,0
0

0
 

£
0

N
/A

P
a

y
m

e
n

t 
d

u
e

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

 P
a

y
m

e
n

t 
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 s

h
o

rt
ly

. 

n
/a

B
e

a
c
o

n
 

S
e

c
u

ri
ti
e

s
 

L
im

it
e

d
 

4
8

3
/4

9
9

 G
re

e
n

 

L
a

n
e

s
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 N

1
3

 

4
B

S
 T

P
/0

9
/1

2
3

8
 

W
IN

C
H

M
O

R
E

 H
IL

L

R
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

s
it
e

 b
y
 t

h
e

 e
re

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 p
a

rt
 2

, 
p

a
rt

 

3
-s

to
re

y
 b

lo
c
k
 o

f 
3

6
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
u

n
it
s
 (

c
o

m
p

ri
s
in

g
 8

 x
 

1
-b

e
d

, 
1

5
 x

 2
-b

e
d

, 
6

 x
 3

-b
e

d
, 

7
 x

 4
-b

e
d

) 
in

c
o

rp
o

ra
ti
n

g
 

1
8

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 u

n
it
s
, 

w
it
h

 a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 r
o

o
f 

s
p

a
c
e

, 
ro

o
f 

te
rr

a
c
e

s
, 

b
a

lc
o

n
ie

s
 a

n
d

 d
o

rm
e

r 
w

in
d

o
w

s
, 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it
h

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 c
a

r 
p

a
rk

in
g

 a
n

d
 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 G

re
e

n
 L

a
n

e
s
. 

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

s
ig

n
e

d
 0

7
.0

5
.1

0

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 -

 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 t

h
e

 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

e
a

rl
y
 

y
e

a
rs

/c
h

il
d

c
a

re
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 

fo
r 

s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
p

la
c
e

s
 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 a
re

a
 

 A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 -

 

to
w

a
rd

s
 w

o
rk

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
u

b
li
c
 

h
ig

h
w

a
y
 (

G
re

e
n

 L
a

n
e

s
) 

a
n

d
 

a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 m
e

a
s
u

re
s
 t

o
 

in
c
lu

d
e

 c
o

s
ts

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 a
s
 

d
e

ta
il
e

d
 o

n
 p

1
7

 o
f 

th
e

 

a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

  

A
m

e
n

it
y
 S

p
a

c
e

 C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 -

  

to
w

a
rd

s
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 n

a
tu

ra
l 

p
la

y
 f

a
c
il
it
ie

s
 a

t 
B

ro
o

m
fi
e

ld
 

P
a

rk
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 

m
e

a
s
u

re
s
 

 

n
o

 d
e

a
d

li
n

e
£

8
5

,3
3

7

1
8

 u
n

it
s
 

£
1

5
,0

0
0

   £
1

5
,0

0
0

£
0

- £
0

   £
0

N
/A

P
a

y
m

e
n

t 
d

u
e

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

- P
a

y
m

e
n

t 
d

u
e

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

   P
a

y
m

e
n

t 
d

u
e

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

N
/A

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
1

P
a

g
e

 5

Page 225



In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
n

ly
 

S
1

0
6

 S
O

U
T

H
G

A
T

E
 C

O
N

S
T

IT
U

E
N

C
Y

E
n

fi
e

ld
 

E
v
a

n
g

e
li
c
a

l 

F
re

e
 C

h
u

rc
h

 

6
7

 &
 7

9
 C

e
c
il
 

R
o

a
d

, 
E

N
2

 6
T

J
 

T
P

/0
8

/2
0

2
0

 

G
R

A
N

G
E

 

E
re

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
re

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 

c
h

u
rc

h
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
in

g
 

a
u

d
it
o

ri
u

m
, 

c
o

ff
e

e
 b

a
r,

 c
rè

c
h

e
, 

a
n

d
 k

it
c
h

e
n

 a
t 

g
ro

u
n

d
 

fl
o

o
r,

 c
la

s
s
ro

o
m

s
 a

t 
fi
rs

t 
fl
o

o
r 

le
v
e

l 
a

n
d

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 

ro
o

m
s
 a

n
d

 o
ff

ic
e

s
 a

t 
s
e

c
o

n
d

 f
lo

o
r 

le
v
e

l,
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it
h

 

a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 c
a

r 
p

a
rk

in
g

 a
n

d
 v

e
h

ic
u

la
r 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 C

e
c
il
 

R
o

a
d

. 
 (

R
e

v
is

e
d

 s
c
h

e
m

e
).

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

s
ig

n
e

d
 

3
0

.0
7

.1
0

L
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
in

g
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 -

 

to
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 

a
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
 l
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
in

g
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
  

 In
it
ia

l 
C

P
Z

 C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 -

 

to
w

a
rd

s
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 a

n
d

 

a
s
s
e

s
s
in

g
 a

n
d

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 

C
P

Z
 s

c
h

e
m

e

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

C
P

Z
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 -

 f
o

r 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
in

g
 u

p
o

n
 a

n
d

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ti
n

g
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 p
a

rk
in

g
 

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 C
P

Z

T
ra

v
e

l 
P

la
n

 -
  

d
e

ta
il
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

s
u

b
m

it
te

d
  

 H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 -

 f
o

r 

c
re

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 n
e

w
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 

th
e

 s
it
e

, 
w

o
rk

s
 t

o
 n

e
a

rb
y
 

s
tr

e
e

ts
, 

re
m

o
v
a

l/
re

-p
a

in
ti
n

g
 o

f 

ro
a

d
 m

a
rk

in
g

s
, 

re
in

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 

o
f 

c
a

rr
ia

g
e

w
a

y
 a

n
d

 f
o

o
tw

a
y
 

N
o

 d
e

a
d

li
n

e
 

£
5

,0
0

0

 £
5

,0
0

0

   £
2

0
,0

0
0

N
o

n
 m

o
n

e
ta

ry
 

 T
o

 b
e

 i
n

v
o

ic
e

 

o
n

 a
n

 i
te

m
 b

y
 

it
e

m
 b

a
s
is

  

£
0

 £
0

   £
0

- -

N
/A

P
ri

o
r 

to
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

 P
ri

o
r 

to
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

   S
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 L

P
A

 d
e

m
o

n
s
tr

a
ti
n

g
 o

n
 s

tr
e

e
t 

p
a

rk
in

g
 h

a
s
 

d
e

te
ri

o
ra

te
d

 

P
ri

o
r 

to
 o

c
c
u

p
a

ti
o

n
  

 U
n

s
p

e
c
if
ie

d

M
u

s
ta

fa
 C

a
n

/ 

M
S

 P
e

a
c
e

, 

H
S

B
C

 a
n

d
 

J
e

re
m

y
 

K
e

n
n

e
th

 

S
te

p
h

e
n

s

L
a

n
d

 a
t 

3
4

 N
e

w
 

R
iv

e
r 

C
re

s
c
e

n
t 

T
P

/0
9

/0
6

6
7

 

P
A

L
M

E
R

S
 G

R
E

E
N

 

D
e

m
o

li
ti
o

n
 o

f 
N

o
. 

3
4

 N
e

w
 R

iv
e

r 
C

re
s
c
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 r

o
a

d
 t

o
 f

a
c
il
it
a

te
 t

h
e

 

e
re

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 t
o

ta
l 
o

f 
3

6
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
u

n
it
s
 

(i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
ti
n

g
 9

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 u

n
it
s
),

 c
o

m
p

ri
s
in

g
 3

3
 u

n
it
s
 

w
it
h

in
 t

w
o

 3
-s

to
re

y
 b

lo
c
k
s
 (

6
 x

 1
-b

e
d

, 
1

0
 x

 2
-b

e
d

, 
1

3
 x

 

3
-b

e
d

, 
4

 x
 4

-b
e

d
),

 w
it
h

 a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 r
o

o
f 

s
p

a
c
e

, 

re
a

r 
d

o
rm

e
r 

w
in

d
o

w
s
, 

ro
o

f 
te

rr
a

c
e

s
 a

n
d

 b
a

lc
o

n
ie

s
 t

o
 

fr
o

n
t 

a
n

d
 r

e
a

r,
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it
h

 c
o

n
v
e

rs
io

n
 o

f 
d

e
ta

c
h

e
d

 

g
a

ra
g

e
 b

lo
c
k
 i
n

to
 3

 x
 2

-b
e

d
 u

n
it
s
, 

a
n

d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 o
p

e
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
v
e

re
d

 c
a

r 
p

a
rk

in
g

 b
a

y
s
. 

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

s
ig

n
e

d
 1

0
.0

8
.0

9

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 -

 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 

o
f 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 a
n

d
 

s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 f

a
c
il
it
ie

s
 

o
r 

s
p

a
c
e

s
 o

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 f

a
c
il
it
ie

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

 n
e

c
e

s
s
it
a

te
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 

N
o

 d
e

a
d

li
n

e
 

£
7

2
,2

2
2

 

    9
 u

n
it
s

£
0

    -

N
/A

P
a

y
m

e
n

t 
d

u
e

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

N
/A

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
1

P
a

g
e

 6

Page 226



 

 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2010/2011 REPORT NO. 189 
 
 
MEETING TITLE AND DATE:  
Governance Review Group -  
15 February 2011 
Planning Committee - 16 February 2011 
Council - 2 March 2011 
 
REPORT OF: 

Director of Finance and 
Corporate Resources 
 

Contact officer:  John Austin – 020 8379 4094 

E-mail: john.austin@enfield.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
At present there is no guidance in the Council’s Constitution or the planning 
procedures relating to Cabinet Members attending the Planning Committee in a 
formal capacity.  They like any member of the Council are able to attend committee 
and with the permission of the Chairman may speak on a particular application. 
 
The proposed protocol would set out a more formalised role and would specify that 
the Cabinet member’s contributions at the Planning Committee would be area based 
and restricted to commenting on applications relevant to the regeneration priority 
areas. 
 

Subject:  
PROTOCOL FOR CABINET MEMBER FOR 
REGENERATION AND IMPROVING 
LOCALITIES TO ATTEND PLANNING 
COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda – Part:  1 

Cabinet Member consulted:  
 

Item: 20 

 

1.    EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

1.1 This report seeks to introduce revised and more formal arrangements for the 
Cabinet member for Regeneration and Improving Localities to be able to attend 
the Planning Committee to put forward the Council's policies on relevant planning 
applications. 

 

 

2.    RECOMMENDATIONS 
  

2.1 That members agree the draft protocol for Cabinet member for Regeneration and 
Improving Localities to attend Planning Committee in his capacity as a Cabinet 
Member. 

 

Agenda Item 20Page 227



 

This suggested change in practice arose from experience in other authorities where 
the planning policy aspects were thought to be best supported by both the officer 
position and the cabinet position.  
 
4. DRAFT PROTOCOL 
 
The proposed draft protocol for the Cabinet member for Regeneration and Improving 
Localities to attend Planning Committee in his capacity as a Cabinet Member is set 
out below: 
 
" The Cabinet member for Regeneration and Improving Localities (or 
equivalent) will be able to attend the Planning Committee. His/her role at 
those meetings will be to put forward the Council's views on relevant 
matters such as policies in the Council's Local Development Framework, 
master planning and urban design, and strategic regeneration and economic 
development issues to give a policy context the Committee's deliberations 
on particular matters. He/she will not be a member of the Committee and 
will not have a vote. 
 
His/her role at the meeting will not be dissimilar to that undertaken by 
the Chairman of the Conservation Advisory Group in relation to relevant 
matters. 
 
The Cabinet member will be invited to comment and respond to discussion at 
meetings after deputations and contributions from ward councillors. He/she 
will restrict his comments to those matters identified above and will not 
otherwise participate in the Committee's decision making process. 
 
5. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
The Cabinet member will be able to attend Planning Committee to highlight and 
assure that the various regeneration areas such as Ponders End are consistent with 
the Council’s objectives and to give those matters greater prominence. 
 
6. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
The alternative would be to continue to rely on the Planning Officers to highlight to 
the Planning Committee the Council’s regeneration objectives. 
 
7. COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND CORPORATE 
RESOURCES AND OTHER DEPARTMENTS 
 
7.1 Financial Implications 
 
7.1.1 There are no specific financial implications relating to this report.. 
 
7.2 Legal Implications 
 
7.2.1 There is no statutory or constitutional impediment to the Council introducing 
the proposed arrangements set out in the draft protocol. 

 

Page 228



 

The Constitution sets out how the Council operates within legal requirements. 
 
It is necessary to review the constitution periodically to reflect changes in 
circumstances or to introduce more effective working practices as evidenced in the 
reasons for recommendations set out above. 
 
7.3      Property Implications  
 
7.3.1 There are no specific property implications relating to this report.  
  
8. KEY RISKS 
 
8.1 There are no identified risks relating to this report. The proposals should 

enhance the role of the relevant Cabinet Member in relation to planning 
application. 

 
9. IMPACT ON COUNCIL PRIORITIES 
 

The attendance of the Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Improving 
Localities at the Planning Committee will strengthen the decision making 
process. 

 
10. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS  
 
10.1 There are no specific performance management implications relating to this 

report. 
 

11. HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 There are no specific health and safety implications relating to this report. 
 
Background Papers 
 
None 
 
 

Page 229



Page 230

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
	4 MINUTES OF PLANNING COMMITTEE 25 JANUARY 2011
	5 REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION  (REPORT NO. 187)
	6 LBE/10/0031  -  HONILANDS PRIMARY SCHOOL, LOVELL ROAD, ENFIELD, EN1 4RE
	7 LBE/10/0037  -  HIGHMEAD ESTATE, FORE STREET & CAR PARK TRAFALGAR PLACE, LONDON, N18 2SL
	8 LBE/10/0039  -  MERRYHILLS PRIMARY SCHOOL, BINCOTE ROAD, ENFIELD, EN2 7RE
	9 TP/10/0473  -  1, CRESCENT ROAD and 33, WAVERLEY ROAD, ENFIELD, EN2 7BN
	10 TP/10/0601/MM1  -  MAIN BUILDING, ST MICHAELS C OF E PRIMARY SCHOOL, BRIGADIER HILL, ENFIELD, EN2 0NB
	11 TP/10/0880  -  WATER TOWER, 405, THE RIDGEWAY, ENFIELD, EN6 5QT
	12 TP/10/1392  -  ENFIELD COLLEGE, 73, HERTFORD ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 5HA
	13 TP/10/1424  -  CHASE SIDE WORKS, CHELMSFORD ROAD, LONDON, N14 4JN
	14 TP/10/1477  -  88 and 90, HOPPERS ROAD, LONDON, N21 3LH
	15 TP/10/1725  -  173, GREEN LANES, LONDON, N13 4UR
	16 TP/11/0026  -  GALLIARD PRIMARY SCHOOL, GALLIARD ROAD, LONDON, N9 7PE
	17 TP/11/0028  -  GALLIARD PRIMARY SCHOOL, GALLIARD ROAD, LONDON, N9 7PE
	18 APPEAL INFORMATION
	19 SECTION 106 AGREEMENTS - MONITORING INFORMATION  (REPORT NO. 188)
	Report No 188 Header 160211
	Report No 188 S106 Edmonton Constituency
	Report No 188 S106 Enfield North Constituency
	Report No 188 S106 Southgate Constituency

	20 PROTOCOL FOR CABINET MEMBER FOR REGENERATION AND IMPROVING LOCALITIES TO ATTEND PLANNING COMMITTEE  (REPORT NO. 189)

